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Financial highlights

UNDERLYING REVENUE

£./.4bn

(2012 £70bn)

UNDERLYING PBITA'

£44)m

(2012 £430m?)

TOTAL REVENUE TOTAL PBITA?
; 4bﬂ £5 6! A |
]
(2012 £7 2bn) (2012 £364m)
UNDERLYING EPS TOTAL EPS
47/p  (249)p
(2012 158p)
(2012 29p)
CASH GENERATED BY DIVIDEND PER SHARE

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

£460m  8.96p ;

(2012, £337m)

(2012 896p)

A Ul review of our financal performance 15 set out n the Chief Financial Officer’s review on
pages 84 10 8% £UJ IFRS financial statements are on pages 94 to |4} The strategic report has

been approved by the board see page 83

1 To clearly pretent underlnng performance specific tems have been excluded and separatcly disclosed

- sce page 86

2 2012 underlying resules are presented at constant exchange rates and have been restated for the adoption of
1AS19 (20i1) 2012 PBITA has been re-presented to exclude PBITA from businesses subsequently classified as
discontmued ane off credits profits on disposal and the prior year effect of the review of assets and labilives

i 2013 - see page B&

3 Including specific tems See page 86 for detals
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Strategic report

Overview

A market led strategy to deliver
sustainable shareholder value

GA4S 1s the leading global integrated securrty company,
specialising in the provision of securtty products,
services and solutions.

Our strategy is market led. We satisfy our customers'
needs by understanding their strategic objectives and
designing and delivering innovative solutions which
support their goals.

Our am is to create sustainable shareholder value
through excellence in customer service, operations
and financial management.

See pages 8 vo 27 for more information
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Chairman's statement

Putting strong foundations

N place
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“This 15 my second chairman’s statement in a G45
annual report and 1t 1s fair to say that it marks the
completion of a year no less challenging than my
first 2013 was a year during which the group
underwent a great deal of change, at both board
and senior management level, and also in some
of the ways we conduct our business”

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

8.96p

(2012 896p)
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John Cannolly
Charrman

AYEAR OF CHANGE

2013 was always going to be a year of change Some board changes
wvolving executive and non-executive directors had been planned
and the foundations for those changes had been lad in 2012

Nick Buckles, who had been chief executive of the group since 2005,
stepped down as CEO n May He was succeeded by Ashley Almanza,

a high quality, respected executive with extensive international business
experience, who became group CEC on | June 2013 Mr Almanza had
joined the group earher in the year as CFO following the retirement of
Trevor Dighton from that role

In May the UK Ministry of Justice ("MoJ”) announced concems in
relation to billing practices on our electronic monitonng contracts in
England and Wales and commenced a review of all Mo contracts held
by G4S At the same time the Cabinet Office mitiated a review of all
our major UK Government contracts — the Cross Government Review
In response to the concerns raised by the Mo| we apponted an
independent law firm and external accountants to look into the matter
on behalf of the board We also co-operated wath the Mo| and Cabinet
Office reviews Both the Mo} review and the Cabinet Office review
have now been completed and we reached settlement of claims raised
in relation to electronic montoring and two other contracts in England




The UK Government s one of the group s largest customers and so
repainng the relationship and rebuilding our reputation, particularly in
the UK market, has rightly been at the forefront of the work of the
execltive team and of the board This wall take time and forms part
of a wider transformation plan launched by the group CEQ which
includes orgamisational and process changes designed to strengthen
customer focus governance and contract management and control
This transformation process 1s something which the UK Government
has been keen 10 see but it 1s important 1o stress that 1t 1s something
which was already In progress and mot just in the UK

SOWHAT CHANGED IN 20137

We welcomed five new members to the board dunng the year

Three of them are non-executive directors Adam Crozier and Paul
Spence, who joned the board in January, and Tim Weller who joined

in April whilst Bo Lerenius and Lord Condon retired from the board

in June There were also changes to the executive board members In
addrtion to Nick Buckles' departure in May Trevor Dighton stood down
as CFO at the end of April and left the board In June Ashley Almanza
joined on | May as CFO before taking on the role of chief executve
officer from [ June Himanshu Raja was apponted CFC in October

In a fairly short space of time the make-up of the board has changed
significantly, so 1t has been important to ensure that it retains the mght
combination of knowledge of the group as well as expertise which 1s
relevant to the business | believe we have a board which s dverse in
compostion and well surted to the task covenng a broad spectrum in
terms of professional background, experence, natonalrty and gender

As announced previously we undertook a thorough review of the
groupss nsk management function and systems in the first half of 2013
The Risk Committee reviewed the findings of the review, and
implemented a number of recommendations The Risk Committee
was constituted as a full board committee 0 2013 to strengthen
support to the board in discharging its responsibilities regarding the
maintenance of a framework of effectrve controls to enable nisk to be
assessed and managed The review process also led to important
changes to the nsk function and the implementation of a new nisk
management framework descrbed in more detall on pages 36 to 41
of the Strategic Report. In addition the Risk Committee reviews and
reports to the board on the nisk aspects of major developments that
affect the group and magor contracts which the group enters into

As reported in the CEQ's review, we have embarked upon a group-
wide transformation responding to the significant 1ssues identfied over
the last |8 months as the new executive team set the business on
track for future profitable growth This plan has embraced a bottom
up business and strategy review bringing in a wide range of new
senior executives in key roles, restructuning a number of businesses,
a portfolio review of the group’s businesses and a comprehensive
review of financials and financial disciplines Importantly the board
approved management's extensive proposals for new processes

and discplines emphasising our key values around customer focus
and integrrty This part of the transformation along with the above
mentioned emphasis on msk management will contribute to meeting
the requirements of our key UK customer, UK Government, around
corporate renewal

We have taken on board the lessons we have leamed from the
challenges of 2013 and a great deal of effort continues to be focused
on ensunng that we have the nght people and the appropnate

systems and processes in place to ensure the group’s long-term success
| believe we are on the mght track.

Strategic report
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The group cperates in many parts of the world and continues to
provide critical services 1o thousands of customers to the highest
standards This undertying strength of the busingss was reflected in
the company s performance for 2013 Underlying revenue growth of
58% was underpinned by |16% growth in emerging markets

Cash generated by continuing operations increased by 36%.

To strengthen the group's financial position, we raised approximately
£343 mihon net via a placing of new shares in August. Together with a
disposals programme which has 1o date, generated £124 million and
a strong focws on cash flow management this wilt enable us to reduce
our debt and to invest In sustainable profitable growth

We have a clear strategic plan and the board believes that the

business has significant growth cpportunities and positive prospects
The directors therefore propose a final dwidend of 5 54p (DKK 04954)
per share, payable on |3 June 2014 WAth an interim dividend of 3 42p
(DKK 0:2972) per share pard on 18 October 2013 the total dvdend
for the year will amount to 8 96p per share, the same as for 2012

On behalf of the board | would ke to thank the 618,000 employees
who make up the group for their hard work and dedication in 2013
and therr focus on doing what they do well ft 1s with canfidence that
I look forward to captunng the value in 2014 of all the groundwork
that has been done in 2013

John Connolly
Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer's review

Focused on sustainable,
profitable growth
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Ashley Almanza
Group Chief Executive Cfficer

"This has been an extremely challenging year for G45
We have taken clear action to address long-standing
1ssues and have introduced wide-ranging changes
to strengthen our business We can now look to the
future with increasing confidence, focusing on the
growing demand for G45 serwvices that underpins
our plans to deliver sustainable, profitable growth”

AYEAR OF CHANGE

| was delighted to join G45 in May 2013 and to take up the role of
group CEQ in June In my first few months | travelled around the group,
meeting senior managers and colleagues working in different regions
and at many levels in our organisation and | also had the opportunity

to visit some of our operations and customers This confirmed my view
that G4S has considerable unrealised potential

In order to address that potential in a focused and drscipined way

we conducted a strategy and business review evaluating our position
and prospects in each of our key markets around the world While the
review confirmed the strength of our global market postions 1t also
entufied the need for wide ranging changes which, over ume, we
expect to transform the group’s abilty to delver sustainable

profitable growth

4 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013



GROUP STRATEGY

G45 15 the world s leading global, integrated secunty company,
specialising In the prowision of secunty products, services and solutions
to customers across s continents

Our strategy 15 market led — everything begins with the custormer
We seek to understand our customers’ strategic and commercial
objectives and from there we design and deliver solutions which
support those objectives Our aim 1s smpte and clear, it 1s to create
sustainable shareholder value through the consistent delivery of
excellence in three areas customer service, operational performance
and financsal management,

As noted above, the strategic review we conducted in 2013 identified
the need for wide-ranging changes which we have captured in the
form of a number of strategic priorties I'm pleased to report that
progress has been made n each of these areas

Strategic focus and portfolio management

At the start of the year we were operating in more than |25 countries
with several lines of business N each country By assessing the strategic
fit, performance and prospects of each of these businesses we
identified 35 businesses which required action to be taken to realise full
value for shareholders through turn-around, restructuring or disposat
As a result, we are actively managing the group's portfolio, divesting a
number of non-core businesses, and have generated cash proceeds of
£124 million to date Our work in this area continues and subject to
value accretive terms being achieved we may make further disposals

Organic investment

Our review concluded that we were under-investing in organic
growth and technology and nnovation The group 1s now investing an
addiional £15 to £20 milhon in 2014 to strengthen sales and business
development capabiiity and to extend our technology and innovation
across the group — both important catalysts for future growth

Balance sheet flexibility

Given the scale and quality of cur organic growth opportunity and the
leve! of net debt at the start of the year we raised £343 million through
the successful placing of 1409 milion new shares

Capital disciphne and Risk management

The groups capital allocation and contract review processes have been
strengthened to ensure that all nvestment opportunities compete for
capttal i a single ‘pool and are evaluated against a stringent set of
economic and risk critena

People

OurPrewew identfied the need to strengihen our resource and
capability in a number of key areas of the business Over the past nine
manths we have significantly strengthened cur seruor management,
with 28 new appointments to the global leadership team

Strategic report

Group values

Our group values underpin the reputation and long-term value of the
group We have updated and reinforced awareness and understanding
of our group values to ensure that we conduct our business to the
highest standards We are enhancing healtth and safety across the group
by standardising safety management systems and embedding health and
safety objecuves in indvidual performance contracts

Competuve strengths

Qur review concluded that our competitive position needed to be
strengthened in a number of key markets During the second half of
the year we established major restructunng programmes, with detailed
plans 1o tnvest £68 millhion over 2013 and 2014 and these are now
being mplemented We expect the economic financial and
performance benefits to be realised over the next |2 to 36 months

Cost leadership

We recognised the growing importance of cost leadership and
following systematic benchmarking we established a number of
efficiency programmes These include focus on direct labour efficiency
orgamsational efficiency, vehicle route planning and telematics IT
standardisation procurement and shared services

Performance management

We re-defined our performance measures and incentives, putting i
place measures and performance management processes which focus
on customers needs sustainable profit and cash flow | believe this
provides clear and strong alignment between management pnonties
and shareholder value

While we still have much to do | have been enormously encouraged by
the positive engagement from colleagues across the group who have
embraced these changes and demonstrated extraordinary commitment
to our customers and to G4S |m grateful for their skill and dedication
which remain criticat to our success

STRATEGIC EXECUTION

To see in more detail how we plan to deliver our focused
strategy to deliver sustamable, profitable growth please see
pages 8 to 27

IMAGE REMOVED
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Chief Executive Officer's review continued

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Demand for our services remained strong in 2013, particularty in
emerging markets where our revenue rose by 16%.

Undertying prefit before interest, tax and amortisation (PBITA) was
£442 million and cash generated by operations increased by 36% to
£460 milion prmanly reflecting mproved working capital management
which 1s described in more detall in the chief financial officer’s review

Our emerging market businesses in Africa. Latm America, Asia and the
Middle East, converted strong revenue growih into very strong profit
progression and underlying PBITA from these businesses rose by 25%
to £216 million

Qur developed market businesses posted PBITA of £270 milion as

our businesses in Europe UK and Ireland suffered from a weak trading
environment, unsatisfactory service delivery in some areas and an
uncompetdive cost structure In the US, our sales in technology and
secure solutions were adversely impacted by cuts In Federal
government spending We have established restructuring programmes
in all of these businesses and, as previously mentaned made a provision
for £68 millon to cover the cost of these programmes

Having performed an extensive review of our UK Government
contracts we were pleased to conclude a settlement agreement with
the Ministry of Justice (Mo} Under this agreement we will refund
approximately £96 milhon for amounts overbilled on three contracts
and will compensate the UK tax payer for £12 5 million costs incurred
by the UK Government We believe that the settiement together with
other actions we are taking, will help us to maintain our position as

a strategic supplier to the UK Government

During the year we conducted a comprehensive financial review of
our assets and liabifities and major contracts These reviews, together
with the Mo settlement and our restructunng programmes resulted
in a £386 mitlon charge to profits dunng 2013 This contributed to

a net loss of 249 pence per share and to a reduction in the bock
value of the group's net assets from £1 231 million to £919 million
Hawving comnpleted these reviews, we now have a sohd baseline against
which we can measure our progress

The resulting total PBITA for the year was £56 milon (2012

£364 million) Undertying EPS was 14 7p against 158p in 2012 and
total Joss per share was 24 9p cornpared with earmings per share of
2% 2012

The group’s share placing, cash proceeds from portfolio disposals and
improved operating cash flow all helped 1o offset nvestmern and other
demands on our cash flow and we ended the year with net debt of

£1 5 bilkon compared with £1 8 billion at the start of the year

& G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Duning 2013, fifty-five colleagues lost their lives in the hne of duty,
principally as a result of attacks by third parties and road traflic
acadents Their loss 1s deeply felt by their families and their colleagues
and 15 a matter of great concern for everyone at G45 This has caused
us to re-double our efforts to mrugate the risks faced each day by
many of our colteagues The Group Executive team 15 leading a
programme to strengthen salety leadership and safety practices
across the group, including

— Crruical country reviews conducting detailed assessments and
developing mitigation plans in those countries and operations
where we have identified the greatest risks

— Establishing a new group wide standard for health and safety
management systems

— Health and safety resource We made a number of new
appointments across the group and at the beginning of 2014 we
had 110 dedicated health and safety professionals assisting us to
reduce health and safety nsks

- Safety leadership traiming and awareness 1s now mandatory for all
senior managers In addition, each member of the Group Executive
team {and each of their teams) has specfic health and safety
performance objectives in 2014

— In support of our health and safety programme we have established
a new group value called Safety First

We work in an inherently hazardous industey and health and safety 1s
an endunng priority for me and my management team Our deepest
desire is to see every employee return to his or her family unbarmed
at the end of each day and we will always remain committed to

that objective

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

For more mformation
see our Corperate Social
Responsibilicy Report 2013

IMAGE REMOVED

See page 41 for more informauon




GROUPVALUES

We updated and strengthened our group values, particularly in light of
events surrounding our electronic monttoring contracts with the UK
Mimstry of Justice which are being investigated by the Senous Fraud
Office (SFO) We commussioned an independent review of these
contracts by a global faw firm which has found no evidence of cnminal
wrongdoing We have also cooperated with the SFO to support its
work With strong sponsorship from the Group Executive team,

we are rolling out a programme in 2014 which s designed to
strengthen understanding of, and compliance with, our group values
This programme addresses the values described opposite and includes
trairung for semor managers and specific objectives in their 2014
performance contracts

We developed and launched a new human nghts policy and guidance
for managers in 2013 Given the services we provide and the
sometimes challenging environments in which we work. this was

a significant priority for the Group Executive

Every two years, we conduct a group-wide management and employee
survey Feedback from our workforce 1s an important element of our
management process and in 2013, 384,000 colteagues responded to
our global employee survey, providing us with a nch source of
information about the business and our people which we are able to
use in developing our plans and employee engagement programmes

QUTLOOK

The outlook for the group is positive There 1s strong demand for G45'
services across the world particularly In emerging markets, and we
have a clear and focused strategy to address this demand

We have taken clear action to address long-standing (ssues and have
introduced wide-ranging changes to strengthen our business We can
now look to the future with increasing confidence, focusing on the
growing demand for G45 services that underpins our plans to deliver
sustainable, profitable growth That confidence is reflected in the boards
recommendation to mainiain the dvidend

Ashley Almanza
Group Chief Executive Officer

I | | | |

Strategic report

GROUPVALUES SUPPORTING
OUR STRATEGY

| CUSTOMER FOCUS |

We have close open relationships with our customers
which generate trust and we work in partnership for
the benefit of our organisations

| BEST PEOPLE |

We employ the best people, develop their competence,
provide opporiunity and inspire them to live our values

| INTEGRITY |
We can always be trusted to do the nght thing

| EXPERTISE ]

We develop and demonstrate our experuse through
our innovatrve approach to creating and delivering the
right solutions

| PERFORMANCE |

We seek to improve performance year on year to ¢reate
long-term sustainabilrty

| TEAMWORK AND COLLABORATION |
We collaborate for the benefit of our customers and G45

| SAFETY FIRST |

We priortise safety management to protect the health and
well-being of cur colleagues and those around us

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 G4S ple 7




Strategic report overview

STRATEGY

With operations on six contnerits and 618,000 employees, we are the leading global integrated security company

Our strategy 1s market led We sausfy our customers’ needs by understanding their strategic objecuves and designing
and delivening innovauve solutions which support their goals

Details of our strategic execution are set out on pages 16 to 27

MARKET LED CUSTOMER FOCUSED SUSTAINABLE
NS NS N
EXECUTION PEOPLE, INVESTMENT, EXCELLENCE
PECPLEANDVALUES |INVESTMENT IN LEVERAGING OUR PORTFOLIO AND DISCIPUNED

ORGANIC GROWTH, | CAPABIUTIES, PERFORMANCE FINANCIAL
CUSTOMER SERVICE | TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT MANAGEMENT
AND OPERATICNAL | AND BEST PRACTICE
EXCELLENCE WORLDWIDE

Strategic execuuon pages 16 o 27 I

OUR CUSTOMERS, SERVICES AND MARKETS

% of 2013 revenue by

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Our strategy is customer focused across a wide range of industries and commercial and government customers Ve have a
diverse range of services to meet our customers' requirements and have a broad geographic footprint to meet demand for

security around the world

8 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013
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Strategic report

PERFORMANCE

2013 was a year of consolidation for the group as we dealt with long-standing 1ssues and made wide-ranging changes te strengthen
the group and lad foundatons to support sustanable, profitable growth

FINANCIAL KPIs

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

To clearly present undertying performance specific stems have been excluded and separately disclosed — sea page 86

2012 underlying results are presented at constant exchange rates and have been restated for the adopten of IAS 19 {2011) 2012 PBITA has been
re-presented to extlude PBITA from busimesses subsequendy classified as disconunued one-off credits profics on disposal and the prior year effect of

the review of assers and liabibues in 2013 — see page 86
3 Total loss per share was 24 9p (2012 earnungs per share 2 9p) ~ see page 87 for details

NON-FINANCIAL KPls HR STANDARDS AND KPls

We believe strong employee refationships help deliver
excellent customer service To ensure that G4S delivers on 1is
commytments to employees businesses are required to report
monthly on key metrics relating to

— health and safety

— industnal relations

[

In 2014 perfoermance contracts for senior managers focus on
fimancial performance but also on personal objectives aligned
to areas of focus such as

— health and safety ~ business development
— people and organisation - values

— operational excellence and

customer service — recrutment and employee retention

KPls page 26/CFOQ's review page 84 |

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

It 1s our responsibility to make sure our impact on soclety 2013 HIGHLIGHTS

15 a positive one YWe make a difference by helping people
live and work in safe and secure environments In 2013, we

— Materiality review of CSR 1ssues

improved our risk management and programme assurance — Launched human nights framework for all businesses
framework to ensure we properly evaluate all areas of how

we do business — Launch of road safety campaign called Driving Force Rules
OUR FOCUS AREAS 2014 PRIORITIES

[ BUSINESS ETHICS AND ANTI-CORRUF’TIONJ

IMAGE REMOVED

| HEALTH & SAFETY ]

IHUMAN RIGHTS ]

CSR page 42 or visit www g4s com/csr I
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G4S at a glance

(GA4S is the leading global
integrated security company

SECURE SOLUTIONS

The secure solutions business covers a wide range of services including

Risk services and consultancy  Riusk management consuftancy services including personal protection, training, mme detection and
clearance services

Secunity systems Access control, CCTV intruder alarms, fire detection, video analytics and secunity and bullding systems
technology integration

Monitoring and response Key halding mobile securty patrol and response services and alarm recemng and monrtoring faciliues

Secure facilities services Integrated faclities services for entire sites or estates for commeraial customers and governments

Welfare to work programme  Assisting long term unemployed people into work

Manned security services Traned and vetted security officers

CARE & JUSTICE SERVICES

Care & justice services Is part of secure solutions and offers highly specialised services to central and local governments and government
agencies and authorities

Juvenife and adult custody Management of all aspects of a facility and those held within the facilsty — similar centres are also used
for the detention of asylum applicants

Prisoner escorung Transportation of prsoners and asylum applicants between courts, police stations and custody and
asylum centres

Asylum services Management of housing provision and other services for asylum applicants

Electromic monitening Electromc tagging and monitoring of offenders at home or in the community

Police services Back office support functions for police forces, support for front ne poliang including the provision

of custody suite services and forensic medical services

CASH SOLUTIONS

The cash solutions business covers a wade range of services including.

QOutsourcing cash management  Managing cash on behalf of financial insttutions including cash transportation, high securty cash centres
counting and reconciling cash fitness sorting of notes for use in automated teller machines (AT Ms})
counterfert detection and removal, redistribution of cash to bank branches ATMs and retail customers

Cash consulting Provision of consultancy services to central banks and commercial banks on overall cash management
strategy bank note production and security and all aspects of cash cycle efficiency

ATM management Managing ATMs on behalf of banks retallers and independent ATM prowviders — including cash forecasting,
cash transportatton and reconciiauon services first line maintenance and ATM engineenng services

Reral cash management Prowision of systems and hardware which prowide an automated cash office for retal sies to improve
security of cash electromc audit trails of takings and a real tme view of retail cash balances

International transportaton Bespoke nternatronal transportation and insurance of currency, gems and other valuables

Cash transportaton Secure transportation of cash using high securtty vehicles fully vetted and traned personnel and

purpose-built technology to transport, protect, count and reconcile cash to customer records

10 G45 ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013




Strategic repart

CONTRACTS AND RELATIONSH!IPS

G4S has a very diverse contract portiolic The duration of contracts
vanes from annual sporting events to 25-year private pnson contracts
In cash solutions, most contracts are annual, with those contracts
reguiring a higher capnal intensity being usually five years in duraton

In practice many relationships become long-term and result in contracts
being renewed year after year

or longer

MARKET AND STRATEGY

(45 15 a global provider with a top three
position in around 80 of the {00 manned
securtty markets in which we cperate

As one of the few globat security companies,
our main international competitors in
developed markets tend to be regional and
international companies operating in one
market segment such as securtty systems

or facilities There are also many local
securtty companies operating in developed
and emerging markets

MARKET AND STRATEGY

Care & justice services delivers more than
10% of secure solutions revenue While the
care & justice services market 1s concentrated
primarily in the UK, US Australa and

New Zealand, we see a number of countres
explonng the possibility of outsouraing these
services to the private sector

MARKET AND STRATEGY

G45 15 the market leader or number two In
57 of our &1 secure cash transportation
markets Our main :nternational competitors
are Leomis and Brink's in most developed
markets and local companies in emerging
rmarkets Our cash solutions business 15
integrated into our wider organisation

and processes through shared customers,
management structures and systems in
many countries The market 1s highly regulated,
often by centrat banks and the business
requires complex infrastructure and
sipnificant expertise

See page 33 for more information

We aim to

— Use our expertise, service delivery and
integratron together with our geographic
coverage to differentiate our business
1o customers

= Drive outsourcing and enhance the value
of tradrtional secunty services through
greater use of technology (see page 25)

IMAGE REMOVED

Revenue

£5,56/m

(2012 £5314m)

The market structure 15 typically
consolidated on the supply side with

a small number of providers Larger
companies are usually better equipped
ta deliver such highly specialised
services

Revernue

£653m

(2012 £553m)

See page 33 for more mformauon

We am to

— Play a key role in the management of
the cash cycle on behalf of central banks,
commercial banks and retarlers, alfowing
them to focus on therr core business

— Use our developed market cash cycle
expertise and track record to encourage
central bank and financial instrtution
outsourcing In emerging markets

— Continue the rolbl-out of innovative
technology such as CASH360™ for
retail customers {see page 25)

IMAGE REMOVED

Revenue
£1,208m
(2012 £1,157m)
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Market review

The market
opportunity

12 G4S plc Annuaf Report and Accounts 2013

According to market research consultancy Freedonia
Inc, global demand for private securtty services will
increase between 201 | and 2016 by 7 3% annually
to $213 billon Growth drvers include GDP and
population growth, regulation and crime levels

IMAGE REMOVED




Our market
positions

Strategic report

We have a truly global business with large
established market positions in developed
markets and outstanding posttions in fast
growing emerging markets Our emerging
market businesses accounted for 37% of
group revenues In 2013 and 44% of profits

NORTH AMERICA

(G4S North Amenca 1s predominantly an
integrated secure solutions business for
commercial custermers, with some government
contracts Including puvenile detertion services
and border protection It has recently launched
an nnovative cash management solution for
retal customers CASH360™ (see page 25)
and 1s selling 1ts classified US Government
business We employ around 54,000 colleagues
in North Amenca

G4S Revenues  Total security market

size in 201 1%
8%

440

UK & IRELAND

G45 UK & Ireland 15 the UK's leading
security provider of cash and secure
solutions wrth a broad range of expertise
covering specalist event security
government outsourcng, Including care
and justice services, and cash solutions

EUROPE

G4S Europe has actvities in Scandinavia,
Benelux, Southern Europe, Eastern Europe
and Central Asia It has 67 000 employees
and strong market positions in cash
solutions and around 20% of revenues

are security systemns related

The region employs 39000 people

GA4S Revenues  Total securtty market
size in 201 1*

22% $7°

IMAGE REMOVED

G4S Revenues

22%

Total secunty market
size in 201 1*

$370n

LATIN AMERICA

GA45 s a leading integrated cash solutions
and secure solutions provider for
commercial customers across Latin
America and government customers in
Brazil with Brazil Colombia and Argentina
being rts largest markets in the region

by revenue We employ around 74 000
colleagues in Latn Amenca.

AFRICA

G4S 15 the largest provider of integrated securtty
solutions in the region, with eperations in 25
African courttnes with more than | 18 000
employees We focus on core sectors in the
region particutarty telecommunications, aviation,
mining, oif & gas, embassies and ports as well

as post-conflict humanitarian work with
government agencies and NGOs.

ASIA MIDDLE EAST

G4S s the leading secunty provider

in the Asia Middle East region with
operations in 32 countries and
employing 266 000 people Cur largest
countries by revenue are India, Saud
Arabia and Australia

G45 Revenues  Total securtty market
size in 201 1*

|0%  $I5

45 Revenues

7%

Total securrty market
size in 201 |*

$8bn

* Source Freedonia and G45 esumates excluding residental secunty

GA4S Revenues  Total securtty market

size in 201 | *
21%

$390n
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Business model

Our business model 1s market led, everything begins with the

RO bu S-t b u S | n e SS customer We seek to understand our customers’ strategic

and commercial objectives so that we can design and

m Od el dehver security solutions which support them Qur aim 1s to
create sustainable shareholder value through the consistent

achreverment of excellence in three areas customer serwice,

operational performance and financal management.

PERFORMANCE We foster a high performance culture which focuses on service
excelfence operational management and financral performance
DELIVERY High performance leads to strong customer relationships,

motvated employees and achievement of strategic goals -
| critical elements cf delivering sustainable, profitable growth

So LUT| ONS DESIGN By analysing customer needs and bringing together our expertise in

market sectors, technology, project management and service delivery
we design solutions which help our customers 1o manage risks

Improve service, protect people and assets and achieve their own
A organisational objectives

CUSTOMER Understanding customer needs i1s central to our success This enables
us to align our organisationat objectives to those of the customer and
UN DERSTAN DENG means we can help our customers to be successful See pages 10 and

Il for our custorner segments

Delwvering high service levels across our core services helps us to
deepen customer partnerships over the long-term and creates
opportunities to work with customers to meet therr existing and
increasingly complex security needs

MARKET DEMAND There 15 strong demand for our core services of secure solutions

cash solutions and care & justice services across the world See pages

/\ 10 and | | for our market positions

SCALE & CAPABILITIES With 618,000 dedicated employees and operations in 120 countries

our ability to deploy skilled staff on a global basis to support local and
international customers 15 central 1¢ our business model This coverage
means we can share learning and expenences across our markets to
the benefit of our customers and our business. We work in ine with
refevant international standards and strive to achieve consistent high
quality employee engagement, health and safety, trasming and ethical
business practices across our operations

Part of the group strategy 15

to design and deliver more
sophustcated security solutions for
customers for both secure solutions
and cash solutions In many of the
countries in which we operate, there
1s stilf great potential to sell more
complex solutions which tend to ”\/] AGE REMOVED
have longer contract terms and
higher margins

14 GA4S ple Annual Repert and Accounts 2013




Strategic report

Closely aligned to our values

PERFO RMANCE We seek to improve performance year on year
to create long-term sustanability

EXPERTISE We develop and demonstrate our expertise through
our innovative approach to creating and delvering
the right solutions

TEAMWORK & We collaborate for the benefit of our customers
and G45

COLLABORATION

CUSTOMER FOCUS We have close, open relationships with our
customers which generate trust and we work in
partnership for the benefit of our organisations.

S AFETY FI RST \We priorttise safety management to protect the
health and well-being of cur colleagues and those
around us

INTEGRITY We can always be trusted to do the nght thing

BEST PEOPLE

We empley the best people, develop their
competence, provide opportunity and inspire them
1o Ive our values

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED
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Strategic execution

People and values

AT THE HEART OF QUR STRATEGY

IMAGE REMOVED

Our culture 1s defined by our values, beliefs and behaviours
\We seek to embed our values i all aspects of our operations
and they form part of our recrutment development and
review processes Managers and employees are encouraged
and expected to behave in Iine with the group’s values and to
speak up when witnessing behaviour which does not meet
our standards

I6 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

OUR GROUPVALUES SUPPORTING
QUR STRATEGY

Customer focus —We have close, open relationships with
our customers which generate trust and we work in
partnership for the benefit of our organisations

Best people —We employ the best people, develop their
competence, provide opportunity and inspire them to live
our values

Integrity —We can always be trusted to do the nght thing J

Experuse —We develop and demonstrate our expertise
through our Innovative approach to creating and delvering
the right solutions

Performance —We seek to improve performance year on year
to create long-term sustanablity

Teamwaork and collaboration —We collaborate for the benefit
of our customers and G4S

Safety first — We prioritise safety management to protect the
heafth and well-being of our colleagues and those around us

In 2014, we have introduced a new value 1o focus specifically
on the safety of our colleagues and those around us This 1s
supported by a number of key safety indiatives and campaigns
designed to increase awareness of health and safety matters,
learn from best practice and prevent health and safety incidents

See pages 44 and 45 for further mformation on health and
safety intiatives
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Strategic report

IMAGE REMOVED

WELFARETO WORK

To date, G4S Welfare to Work has helped 35077
long-term unemployed people in the UK into jobs
We estimate this has saved the UK tax payer more
than £120 million per annum The vast majonty

of people that we have assisted had been out of
work for at least nine months, with many having
been out of work for a number of years

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 G4S ple 17




Strategic execution

IMAGE REMOVED

G4S CASH SOLUTIONS

We are one of the leading cash solutions
companies in the world and are erther number
one or two In secure cash transportation in

57 of the 61 countries in which we operate

For example, across the Asia Middle East region,
we provide customers wrth a broad range of
services including servicing and replenishing over
38,000 ATM and cash deposit machines

18 G4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013




Strategic report

Investment in customer service,
operational excellence and
organic growth

LARGE, GROWING SALES PIPELINE

We benefit from structural growth in the demand for our
products and services around the world and that is reflected in
aur sales pipeline which currently stands at £5 billion per annum

We are in many more markets than our competitors — typically

with higher emerging market exposure

We have higher value added services in our portfolio, and there IMAGE REMOVED

15 potential for us to extend our high value services into more
of our markets We continue to innovate through the use of

technology and process know-how to create new products
and services We are nvesting 1n Improving our sales systems,
customer account management, sales leadership and sales
resource In some of our core markets In order to service
strong market demand

As at March 2014

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 G4S plc
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Strategic execution

IMAGE REMOVED

G4S HAS AVIATION OPERATIONS IN
MORE THAN 40 COUNTRIES, FOR OVER
80 AIRLINES AND FOR 120 AIRPORTS
Awiation contracts won in 2013 included Charleror
arport in Belgium, renewed contracts with British
Airways, and renewal and extension of the Dubai
airport secunty contract

20 GH4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013
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Strategic report

Leveraging our capabilities

worldwide

IMAGE REMOVED

We have a truly global business with established market
posttions In developed markets and strong posrtions in rapidty
growing emerging markets Qur emerging markets businesses
account for 37% of group sales today and this proportion 13
expected to increase in the future Overall, we believe that the
scale and guality of the global market opportunty supports
organic growth potential of around 5% to 8% per annum for
the foreseeable future

IMAGE REMOVED

We invest in developing security services in sectors where
security and safety are strategically important to customers —
such as ports, mining ol and gas and aviation Through our
investment in these sectors we have seen combined revenues
increase over 23% duning the year and these have more

than doubled since 2009 to over £1 tilhon in 2013 We are
now working to further embed this sector expertise

within our regional structure For more information see

www g4s comfsectors

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 G4S plc
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Strategic execution

Portfolio and performance

management

IMAGE REMOVED

Rigorous measurement and monitoring of our performance 1
wital 1o ensuring we are delivering sustainable profitable growth

During 2013, we conducted a "bottom-up” analysis of all of
our businesses forecasting their performance out to 2016
The results showed that 62 countries were expected to
contribute 95% of the total PBITA expected in 2016

22 GA4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Number 2013 2013 2013 Proceeds
of Rev  PBITA Margin to date
businesses (£m) (£m) {%} {(£m)
November
2013 35 4256 133 31 oc
31 March
2014 26 2142 123 58 300

Looking at the materaiity of contribution (growth, PBITA,

cash generation and turnaround potential), we lentified 35
businesses which required action to be taken to realise full value
for shareholders through turm around, restructunng or disposal
We have made good progress selling or closing six businesses
and restructuring three during 2013 and earty 2014 In the
process together with the sale of the Canada cash solutions
and Colombia secure archiving businesses we generated net
proceeds of £124 million We expect further progress will

be made in 2014 with the remaining businesses which are
under review

By actively managing our business portfolio we can ensure that
we maintain our strategic focus — deploying our caprtal and best
people to the best opportunities (see CEO review page 4)

We are also strengthering the Ink between performance and
reward (see Directors' remuneration report pages 64 to 72)
The group’s budget 15 set In the context of the longerterm
business plan which supports our strategy From December
2013, each of our senior managers across the group has a
performance contract which clearly defines how he or she
(and his or her team) will contnbute to the overall success
of the group




Strategic report

IMAGE REMOVED

SHELL

In September 2013, G4S signed a strategic global
framework agreement with Shell International
Limited to provide security solutions to the energy
and petrochemicals company on a call off basis
potentially in more than 30 countries

The five-year contract, with the option of
a further two years, 1s one of the group’s largest
global framework contracts
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Strategic execution

IMAGE REMOVED

SYMMETRY

Our Symmetry product is an access control

and buillding management system It 15 used

by nearly every major industry and secures
everything from a two-door building to large
corporations spread across the globe The system
can easily be expanded as a company grows and
includes integrated wideo, intrusion and threat
level management, workflow designs and
intelligent controllers

24 G4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013
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Technology & innovation

IMAGE REMOVED

QOur technology products and services are focused on the
deployment of custamer-facing security systems and software
which 15 designed to protect customers and their assets and

to prowide customers with management information to achieve
their abjectives typrcally through revenue enhancement, cost
reduction or risk management

There are areas of technology excellence in parts of G45
with proven intellectual property This presents us with the
opporiunity to leverage this know-how more widely across
the group including In emerging markets which currently
account for 28% of the group's systems revenue

In addition, we develop technology and know-how ta ensure
that we deliver our commitments to customers efficiently

IMAGE REMOVED

CASH360™

CASH360™ is one of our customer-facing technology solutions
providing an end-to-end cash management solution to G435
retail customers Launched in 2010 1t now has around 3,000
customers with more than 5,400 soluuons sold across four
continents South Africa the Netherlands and Belgium grew
between 34% and 104% in 2013 Duning 20 3, we also launched
CASH360™ in the United States
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Strategic execution

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Disciplined financial management

FINANCIAL KPls

The group measures its performance on an underlying basis as,in the board’s opinion, this provides the most meaningfu! analysis
of the group’s performance The CFO review on pages 84 to 89 sets out the commentary on the towl performance for the year

The group’s financial key performance indicators (KPls) are revenue growth, operaung cash flow, PBITA and EPS

IMAGE REMOVED

Underlying revenues grew 5 8% to £7 4bn
including the contribution from acquisitions
in 2012 and 2013 G4S revenues grew
47%* organically in 2013 Organic growth
was assisted by strong growth in emerging
markets of 4% but partly offset by weak
magroeconomic conditions in Europe (see
page 31) Based on the structural growth
charactersstics of our markets and strong
customer demand for our services, we aim
to achieve organic growth of between 5%
and 8% per year in the long-term

See page 19 for a description of our
investment in arganic growth

* (excluding the Olympics contract)

IMAGE REMOVED

We are focused on delivening sustainable
profitable growtn PBITA measures how
successful a company is at generating profit
from s operating actvities (before taking
into account interest tax and amortisation
of acquistion-refated intangible assets) In
2013 PBITA grew 2 8% despite challenges
in some developed markets, helped by a
strong performance In emerging markets

IMAGE REMOVED

Operating cash flow measures how
successfu! the business is at managing
s operating capital We are focused on
improving all areas of the operating
cash cycle

| To clearty present undertying performance specific items have been excluded and separately disclosed

— see page B6

1 2012 undertying results are presentad at constznt exchange rates and have been restated for the
adoption of LAS19 (201 1) 2012 PBITA has been re-presented to exclude PBITA from businesses
subsequently classified as discontirued one-off credies profics on disposal and the prior year effect
of the review of assets and llabiliues in 2013 — see page B6

See pages 84 to 89 for more mformauon

IMAGE REMOVED
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IMAGE REMCVED

Underlying earnings were £214 million in
2013 (2012 £222 mithon) down 3 6% With
the average number of ordinary shares up
35% to | 452 mithon (2012 1,403 million)
undertying EPS declined 7% compared to
2012 to 147 pence

3 Total loss per share was 24 9p (2012 earnings
per share 2 9p) - see page 87 for deails

NON-FINANCIAL KPIs

Managers across the group are also

HR STANDARDS AND KPIs

Ve believe that strong employee

incenuvised to achieve addiuonal objectives relationships help to deliver excellent

which are agreed on an indvidual basis and

customer service Qur businesses are

are usually linked to business plan milestones | required to report monthly on key metrics
In 2014, performance contracts of semor relating te

managers focus on financial performance,
but also on personal objecuves aligned to
the following areas

[ Health and safety |

Health and safety

] People and organisation ]

Industral relations

Operational excellence

Employee retention

and customer service

Recrutment rates

|
=
|
|

| Business development |

| Values I

All objectves and targets are focused on
driving sustamnable profitable growth

See pages 42 to 47 for some of our key CSR
KPls and our progress against them in 2013
More detaif can also be found in the 2013
G4S CSR report.
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Business review

2013 Business review

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

For more details of the group execuuve team please see pages 50 and 51

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

| Ashley Almanza 2 Eddte Aston
Chief Executive Officer  Regional CEC —

UK & Ireland

6 Graham Levinsohn 7 Seren Lundsberg-
Regional CEC — Furope  Nieisen

Group General Counsel

G4S 1s managed through a functional and
geographic organisational structure

3 Andy Baker 4 Irene Cowden 5 Grahame Gibson
Regional President — Group HR Director Regional CEC — Americas

Africa

(North America and
Latin America)

8 Himanshu Raja 9 Dan Ryan 10 Debbie Walker
Group Chief Financial Regionat CEQ — Asia and  Group Carmmunications
Officer Middle East Director

2013 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BY REGION

IMAGE REMOVED
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Strategic report

UNDERLYING FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The group's segmental analysis of undertying performance is set out below, adjusting for the effect of the review of the carrying value of assets and
liabilties as set out on page 86

Revenue PBITA Margins Crganic

At constant exchange rates £m £m % growth
2013! 2012 Change % 2013 2012¢ Change % 2013' 20122

Africa 486 435 11 7% 39 30 300% 80% 69% 7%
Asia Middle East 1,567 1,331 17 7% 129 104 240% 82% 7 8% 18%
Latin America 717 615 166% 48 39 23 1% 67% 63% 11%
Emerging Markets 2,770 2,381 163% 216 173 249% 78% 73% 14%
Europe 1,648 1,674 {} 6%) 92 108 (148%) 56% 65% (2%)
North America 1,358 1,352 04% 56 68 (17 6%) 41% 50% 0%
UK & hreland 1,652 1,647 22% 122 129 {5 4%) 74% 80% 1%
Developed Markets 4,658 4,643 G 3% 270 305 (I'15%) 58% 6 6% 0%
Total Group before
Head office costs 7428 7024 58% 486 478 1 7% 65% 68% 5%
Head office costs (44) (48)
Total Group 7,428 7024 5 8% 442 430 28% 6 0% 6 1% 5%

Footnotes | and 2 also apply to pages 30 to 32

I Fo clearly present underlying performance specfic tems have been excluded and separately disclosed — see page 86

T 2012 underlying results are presented at constant exchange rates and have been restated for the adoption of IAS19 (2011) 2012 PBITA has been re-presented to exclude
PBITA from businesses subsequently clasufied as duconunued, one off credits profits on disposal and the prior year effect of the review of assets and labilities 1in 2013
- see page B6

TOTAL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The groups segmental analysis of statutory results s presented below and 1s consistent with note 6 of the consolidated financial statements
(page 106} The impact of the review of assets and liabilities and restructuring costs are excluded from both the current year and the prior year
statutory results The prior year statutory results exclude the impact of the Olympics revenue consistent with the disclosure in note &

Revenue PBITA Margins Crganic

At constant exchange rates £m £m % growth

20133 2012' Change % 2013} 2012* Change % 2013} 20012
Africa 486 435 I'E7% 39 34 14 7% 80% 78% 7%
Asia Middle East 1,567 1,331 17 7% 129 105 229% 82% 79% 18%
Laun America 717 615 16 6% 48 46 43% 67% 75% 1%
Emergmng Markets 2,770 2,381 163% 216 185 16 8% 7 8% 78% 14%
Europe 1,648 1,674 (1 698) 92 114 (193%) 56% 6 8% (2%)
North America 1,358 1352 04% 56 73 (23 3%) 4 1% 54% 0%
UK & Ireland 1,652 1,625 [ 7% 122 145 (159%) 7 4% 85% 1%
Developed Markets 4,658 4651 02% 270 332 (187%) 58% 7 1% 0%
Total Group before
Head office costs 7,428 7,032 56% 486 517 (6 0%) 65% 7 4% 5%
Head office costs (44) 47 (6 49)
Total Group at constant
exchange rates 7428 7032 56% 442 470 (6 0%) 6 0% 67% 5%
Foreign exchange - (8) - -
Total Group at actual exchange
rates 7,428 7,024 5 8% 442 470 (6 0%) 60% & 7%

3 To clearly present underlying performance specific tems have been excluded and disclosed separately — refer to page 86 for a reconciliauon to total results

4 2012 results are reported here at constant exchange rates (but reconciled o actual rates) exclude specific wems but are presented before the smpact of the rewiew of
assets and labiliues in 2013
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Business review continued

All tables show undertying performance at constant exchange rates

AFRICA
Revenue PBITA
im fm
013 20122 Change % 2013! 2012 Change %
486 435 I17% 39 30 300%

In Africa revenues grew |12% and organic growth was 7% PBITA
increased 30% benefiting from overhead efficiency and restructuring
programmes

The acquisition of Depesita n January 2013 and the addition of
CASH380™ devices and ATM engineening services to our cash
solutions business in Sowth Africa have enabled us to sell
comprehensive end-to-end solutions in that market We are now
pasitioned as the market leading cash solutions business in South Afrca
and are able to deploy this capability into Afncan and other markets

Across the region new contracts won include the Port of Tangiers in
Morocco, Anglogold in Ghana, Tenke Mining in DRC, a FM contract
with Rio Tinto and a secure solutions contract with the United Nations
in Southern Sudan

The group has strong market positions across Affica and a healthy
product portfolio to support sales in 2014, especially in the areas

of cash management manned security and technology solutions

The bidding pipeline in Africa 1s diverse and includes sectors such as
financral services, mining, embassies and other government agencies
with increasing numbers of both multi-country and larger scale bids
The region is continuing its restructunng programme into other parts
of Afirica in 2014 and 15 recrutting additional talent to ensure the region
has the capacity to address the market opportunities

ASIA MIDDLE EAST

Revenue PBITA
£m £m
2013 20122 Change % 2013 20122 Change %
1.567 | 331 17 7% 129 104 240%

Revenue growth in Asia Middle East was very strong at 18% and PBITA
ncreased 24%, reflecting a greater contribution from our care & justice
services businesses in Austraha and New Zealand, mproved profitability
in our rsk services businesses In Iraq and Afghanistan and a strong
profit improvement across the Middle East.

Revenue growth accelerated in the second-half of the year due partly
10 a step-up In service volumes at the Manus Island processing centre
Following the Australian elections held in September 2013 and the
change in government, we were advised that the Manus Island contract
would end in March 2014 We wor demining and risk management
contracts to service a number of internatronal oll comparies in Iraq
and won or started a number of secure solutions contracts In the

UAE for key customers including the Abu Dhaby Education Council,
Etisalat, Formula 1, the Road Transport Authority and ODubai arport

30 GA4S plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

We began mvesting n our technology sales and delivery capability in
the Middle East so that we are able to deploy our proven products
and expertise in delivering comprehensive electronic security solutions
1o chients Our business in Saudi Arabia won important contracts in
the banking, ports and real estate sectors Across the region we are
systematically reviewing organisational structures and business
processes. This review 1s well advanced in India the largest country

In the region and ts enabling us to streamline operations, reduce

layers of management and overhead and to invest in sales and
operational capability

See footnotes on p 29
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LATIN AMERICA
Revenue PBITA
£m £m
2013 2012? Change % 2013 20127 Change %
717 615 166% 48 39 23 1%

Revenue growth in Latn America was §7% and PBITA increased by
23% despite economic challenges in the region, including a slow down
in economic growth In Brazil with a ngorous price Increase programme
to mrugate inflation and government mandated wage increases
Following the appontment of a new Regiona! President Martin Alvarez,
in October 2013 we have continued to build management capacrty
across the region

Organic revenue growth was | 1% with a number of contract wins
in the ports car manufactunng, transportavon, financiat services
government and exiractives sectors in Latin Amenca

We sold our Colombia secure archming business for £34 milion
in 2013

EUROPE
Revenue PBITA
£m fm
2013 20127 Change % 2013' 20122 Change %
1,648 1,674 (1 6%) 92 108  (148%)

Our European management team has recently been strengthened
with the appointment of Graham Levinsohn as Regional CEC with
effect from November 2013

In Europe revenue declined by 1 6% driven by challenging market
conditions primanly in secure solutions in the Netherlands and in
Eastern Europe, with growth in'Westermn Europe secure solutions

and cash solutions offset by dechnes in rmost Eastern European markets
PBITA was | 5% lower, adversely impacted by wage inflation and by

the closure of 23 pnsons and other cost reductions by the Ministry of
Justice in the Netherlands During 2014 we will be seeking to improve
alignment between salary and price increases in Eastern Europe

In the fourth quarter we accelerated our restructuring programme to
reduce our cost structure and strengthen our competitive positions m
a number of key markets The programme includes the rationalisation
of management and back-office structures and over the course of 2013
and 2014 we plan to invest £23 million in the Netherlands Belgium,
Greece, Finland and other countnes

The region has earty revenue momentum into 2014, wrth new contract
wins and solid customer retention Secure solutions contract wins
include contracts for Charlero arport in Belgum and Google in
Finland, partly offsetting the loss of a Finrush retal customer In January
2014 we renewed a nine year cash solubions contract with the

Dutch Raitways

In care & justice services, our prpeline 1s strong and our Austrian
business began a £5 milhon per annum immigration contract for

15 years n Decernber 2013 We also won an electromic monitoring
comtract in Bulgana and an Agip-Shell security contract in Kazakhstan

Qur cash solutions businesses in Europe performed well averall

A strong performance was achieved in Belgum and in the Nethertands
including a number of new retall contracts and CASH360™ gains
offset by contract losses in the first-half of the year in Finland and the
Baltics G4S cash solutions supported the smooth introduction of the
Euro i Latvia towards the end of the year In fanuary 2014, G45 won
the majorty of Geldservice Nederfands (GSN) cash solutions business
in the Netherlands for five years, valued at c€50m per annum GSN
serves the major banks in the Netherlands and 1s their provider of
cash counting, handling and logistics, Including the maintenance of

cash devices

Revenues for the security systems business, which accounts for
around 20% of European secure solutions revenues remaned broadly
in hne with 201 2. Systems contract wans include a mantenance
contract for the European parliament in Luxembourg and a major
systems contract with Lego in Hungary The region has an increased
focus on securtty and cash solutions technolagy with the aim of
deploying our proven technology solutions from efsewhere in the
group into key European markets

The region made good progress on its portfolio review selling its
Slovakian cash solutions business in 2013 The sale of our Norway
business for £2%9 millon was also agreed in 2013 and completed 1n
January 2014

We have a diverse European contract pipeline with areas such as
ports, aviation, transportation and healthcare being particularty strong
Qur investment In sales and business development capability 1s
designed to sustain and strengthen this pipeline over time
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Business review continued

NORTH AMERICA
Revenue PRITA
£m £m
2013 20122 Change % 2013' 20122 Change %
1358 1352 04% 56 68  (176%)

Revenwes in the North America region grew 04% and organic growth
overall was broadly unchanged with 2% growth in US commercial
securrty and 0% growth in youth services offset by US Federal
sequestration reduang new and additional federal government work
in secure sclutions and in the G45 Technology business

Against a background of uncertain US Government spending,
commercial contract wins remain robust with major contract awards
from Amazon, Bank of New York, Simon Malls Nawistar, Liberty #utuaf
Metiife, Georgra Pacific the Millstone (Dominion} nuclear power
plant in the US and more recently Toronto Hydro, Imperal Oi and
PTl in Canada

PBITA for the region was 8% lower impacted by sales mix, with lower
revenues In the technology businesses (Federal spending impact) and
reduced border patrel volumes Results in 2012 also benefited from
ane-off protest protection work for banks Our US technology business
has been restructured to increase sales in the commercaal sector

In the United States we continued to see mcreasing interest in our
retall cash solutions product, CASH360™ with two small contracts
awarded recently

The implementation of the Affordable Care Act in the US has been

delayed for large businesses We do not expect it to have a matenal

impact on G4S as the majortty of our US employee healthcare plans
are already broadly complhant

Overall, the North American business has a strong contract pipeline
with over £500 milhon in near-term opportunities across all sectors
and a visible long-term contract pipeline of around £1 2 bilion

Good progress was made In the region on rationalising the portiolio
We sold our cash sokaions business in Canada for £60 million in
January 201 4

UK & IRELAND
Revenue PBITA
fm £m
2013 20122 Change % 2013' 2012% Change %
},652 1617 22% 122 129 (5 4%)

We have reorganised the UK & Ireland region into market-facing
business units of cash solutions, secure solutions, central government
solutions, facilities managernent and outsourced services and we
continued to make a number of new management appointments

to senior line and function roles

There was revenue growth of 2% in UK & Irefand with organic growth
of 1% prinaipally due to good growth in the police outsourcing and
utilities businesses offset by fower revenues in reland and the UK cash
solutions business

PBITA was 5 4% lower due to revenue mix, particdlarly from lower
revenues in the UK cash sclutions business As discussed previously,
sigruficant restructuring programmes are being mplemented n UK
cash sclutions, reland cash selutions and secure solutions covenng
branch networks (Ireland and UK cash solutions) organisational design
and operational labour efficiency Overhead headcount was reduced
by more than 5% in the second-half of 2013 The cost of restructuring
1s £34 millon and 1s expected to pay back within the next two years

UK contracts won during 2013 include being selected by the
Department for Work & Pensions (WP} to manage the Child
Maintenance Options Contact Centre Service prowvision of secunty
at the G8 Summit in fune Pennine Hospital facilrues management, and
our first contract to provide secure patient transport services under
a three-year contract with Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS
Foundation Trust. Other recent contract awards include Derbyshire
and Notunghamshire Police Forensic Medical Services and Avon and
Somerset police custody surtes
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Against the backdrop of a highly competitive commercial secunty
market, we won new contracts with key commercial custorners such
as a security contract with Bank of America a new global framework
agreement with Shell covering 30 countrnies and we retained our
security contract with British Airways The UK events secunity business
successfully supported the UK Police Service of Northern Ireland
{PSNI) at the G8 Summit held at Lough Eme in Northemn Ireland in
June delvering a range of specialised security solutions

In cash sofutions, we retained important contracts with HSBC and
Barclays and have expanded our outsourcing partnership with Lloyds
Banking Group, taking over the management of their Edinburgh cash
processing centre

We reached full and final settlement wrth the UK Government on

the electronic monitoring contract and two smaller contracts and have
made significant progress on our programme of corporate renewal

in the UK The renewal programme 1s embedded within our overall
corporate programme and 15 not anticipated to give rise to significant
additional cost.

See footnotes on p 29
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SERVICE LINE OPERATING REVIEW

Secure solutons

Emerging markets Developed markets Total

At constant exchange rates £m £m %

2013* 20122 Change % 2013 2012 Change % 2013 20122 Change %
Revenue 2235 19i8 16 5% 3,985 3949 09% 6,220 5867 6 0%
Organic growth 15% 8% 0% 7% 5% 7%
PBITA 158 119 328% 213 235 (9 4%) n 354 48%
Margin % 71% 62% 0 9% 53% 60% (07%) 6 0% 60% Q0%
The secure solutions businesses delivered 6% growth in revenue
driven by 17% growth in emerging markets and a solid performance
in developed markets Trading conditions n some developed markets,
in particular in Europe, remain challenging and we have begun
restructuring these businesses to strengthen business performance in
the medium term Lower US Federal government spending affected our
secure solutions and systems businesses and our US systems business
has been restructured to increase sales in the commercial sector
Emerging markets grew strongly across all regions and increased PBITA
33% helped by contract mix, price increases and cost efficencies
Cash solutons

Emerging markets Developed markets Total

At constant exchange rates im £m %

2013 20822 Change % 2013 2012t Change % 2013' 20128 Change %
Revenue 535 462 15 8% 673 695 (3 2%) 1,208 I, 157 44%
Organi growth 12% a% (3%) (1%) 3% 3%
PBITA 58 54 74% 57 70 {186%) 115 124 (7 3%)
Margin % 10 8% 11 7% (09%) 85% 10 1% {1 6%) 95% 107% (1 22%)

The cash solutions business grew by 4% with | 6% revenue growth In
emerging markets offset by a declne In developed markets principalty
due to a weaker performance in the UK and Ireland cash solutions
businesses These businesses are being restructured and we expect an
improved performance in 20§14

Emerging markets PBITA grew 7% notwithstanding new dual vendor
policies for major Malaysian banks and price competrtion in Colombia.

| To clearly present underlying performance specific tems have been excluded and
separately disclosed — see page 86

2 2012 underfying results are presentad at constant exchange rates and have been
restated for the adopton of 1AS19 (2011) 2012 PBITA has been re-presented to
exclude PBITA from businesses subsequently classified as discontinued, one-off
credis profits on disposal and the prior year effect of the review of assers and
labiliues in 2013 — see page 86
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Risk management

Managing risk effectively

Our am 1s to deeply embed risk management
disciphnes which support effective strategy execution

OUR RISKS

The market sectors in which G45 prowides securtty services present
unique operational and health and safety nsks which must be managed
effectvely in order to provide value to customers and to protect our
employees The breadth of countries in which G45 operates, together
with continuing uncertainty of global economic condttions also presents
finanaial controf and commeraal risks similar to those of other
multinatronal comparies

HOWWE MANAGE OUR RISKS

Our nisks are captured in a global nisk reporting nformation system
These risks are reviewed and updated twice a year by the operating
companies The Group Executive Committee and Board Risk
Commuttee review the most significant risks on a regular basis and
the board regularly reviews the overall impact of these major nsks
on the groups activities

WHAT WE DID IN 2013

As announced by the board n September 2012, G45 started a
thorough review of its nsk management processes and systems during
2013 and will continue to make further improvements during 2014

Duning the year the company established a Board Risk Committee and
created a separate risk management funcuion for the group, appointing
a group director of nsk and programme assurance and a group head of

nsk These responsibiiies were previously undertaken by the group
head of internal audit The new Board Risk Commitiee appointed
Delortte to conduct a review of the group s nsk management
processes and then charged the group director of nsk and
programme assurance to develop a plan to respond to the findings
and recommendations During the year, Regional Risk and Audrt
Committees were established to be responsible for assessing nsk
at a regional level and for monitoring the mruigation of nsk and
addressing internal and external audit matters at a regional level

WHATWEWILLDO IN 2014

Regional Risk and Audit Committees will meet quarterly the first
meetings having taken place in January 2014 A new approach to
assessing risks has been defined and during 2014 this 15 bang
implemented across the business, supported by an updated risk
management information system This system will better suppert the
risk identification assessment and action tracking process as well as
providing enhanced risk reparting at al! levels of the group

As a service business many of our risks stem frem the contract bidding,
maobilisation and service delivery lifecycle In the first quarter of 2014
new processes for contract take-on and on-going assurance will be
impfemented to give greater scrutny to the delivery of the group's
most complex contracts Based on contract style, complexity and risk
profile, these processes will ensure that, at all stages throughout the
Ifecycle, expert challenge oversight and approval are given at regional
group or board level as approprate

Qur goal in making these changes 1s to embed more deeply an effectve
risk management cufture to support strategy execution and to provide
enhanced governance over critical business decisions

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT GOVERNANCE MODEL

COperating Regional Rssk and Executive Rusk Board Rusk Board Audit Board
companies Audit Committees Committee Committee Commitiee
Our operating Rusk and Audrt The Executve Risk  The Board Risk The Board Audit The board has
companies identify  Committees in Committee meets  Committee meets  Commitiee meets  the ultimate

and assess the each region meet  three times per year

three tmes per year
to set the groups

risk appetite, to
assess the group's

four times per year
to ensure that the
group’s control
framework 15

responsibilty for
assuring our nisk
management
processes It reviews
our most crtical

risks to ther quarterly to review  and considers the
business objectives  regional level risks  groups principal
and plan review progress of  residual nsks and
appropnate mrtigating acbons,  the progress of

mrtigating actions
These are recorded
In our group-wide
risk management
tool

and 1o review audit
reports financal
control status
reports, nternal
financial reviews and
bafance sheet
integrity and any
accounting
Judgements

mitigating actions
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prncpal residual
nsks, and to assess
progress on the
improvements being
made to enterprise
nsk managernent.

operating effectrvely

risks and controls,
erther directly or
through its Risk and
Audit Committees
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LINES OF DEFENCE

3rd Line Internal independent assurance

N

Ly

2nd Line Control & oversight functions

AN

Z

I'st Line Business operations & support

We employ three lines of defence to control and manage risks across
the group The responsibility for the first line sits with the managers of
our businesses, whether line management or financiat support. The
senmior management team within each business 1s responsible for
implementing and mantaning appropriate controls across their

EXTERNAL AUDIT

Executive Risk
Committee
Group Executve Board, Audit & Rusk
Committee Committees
Regianal Risk,
Audit & Executive
Committees

The thrrd hne s designed to detect or prevent unexpected outcomes
and comprises the group nisk and imternal audrt functions Together
these provide independent assurance over the design and operation
of controls As part of its annual programme of work, the internal
audrt function conducts regular reviews of risk management processes

business to ensure the standards expected by the group our customers  and gives advice and recommendations on how to improve the
and other stakeholders are met. The business managers are supported control environment.

by oversight functions at both regional and group level including Risk.
Finance and Legal which together make up the second line of defence

Our external audrtors provide independent oversight of the
entre process

CONTRACT RISK MANAGEMENT GOVERNANCE MODEL

Bid nsk Contract On-going contract
assessrment Bid approval mobihsation issu;g-ance Group internal audt Board
Based on financial,  Approprate Based on the Based on the Internal audt The board will
legal, reputational challenge 1s given to  complexity and commercial scale conducts audis of  undertake
and operational the bids customer  risk profile of and level of risk selected contracts  occasional reviews
nisk civtena, the value proposition mobilisation contracts are of the most
opportunity 15 commercial terms  appropriate subject to regular significant contracts
referred to the and sk mitigation  methodologies on-going scrutiny
region group or strategy The and project at regional or
board for review expected risk rmanagement group level
and approval return of the bid resources are
1s assessed before  appled Key
approval 1s given contractual
or withheld requirements and
nsk mitigation
strategles are
mapped to
accountable

contract managers

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 G4S ple 35




Principal risks

What are the key risks faced by G45?

During January 2014 the Regional Risk and Audit
Committees met to agree the regional principal
residual nsks These meetings were facilitated by
group risk management and identified the risks to
each region’'s strategic business objectives and to
on-going business operations The meetings were
informed by the country level risks recorded in the
group's risk management systems

Group nisk management and the CFO consolidated
these risks and identified common themes and
regional risks which were material to the group
These group principal residual nsks were reviewed
and approved by the Executive Risk Committee and
the Risk Committee of the board

The potential impact of each risk was assessed on

a | to 5 scale against five criteria strategy, financial,
reputabion, service delivery, and health and safety,
with the highest score being the overall impact The
likelihood of each nisk over the next year, or to three
year strategic goals, was also assessedona | to 5
scale The risks detalled in the following pages are
those which 1n aggregate scored 35 or higher on
bath impact and likelihood Detaled descriptions are
provided of each nisk, its movement since last year, its
potential impact and the mitigation strategies being
employed by the group

Movement since 2012 Resk description

Mitigation

CULTURE &VALUES >

There has been a strong
emphasis from the board, the
CEO and the group executive
commiitee on the Importance
of the company's values
underpinning everything we do
Progress has been made in this
area but reinforcing the core
values across a diverse and
globally spread workforce
takes considerable effort

if we faii to behave in accordance with the high
standards that we set ourselves there Is a risk that

we will not deliver on our commitment to customers,
and fail to comply with legislation and internationat
standards We may also compromise the safety and
security of our employees and the assets or people

that we are protecting

(A4S provides security to people, premises and
valuable assets In its care & justice services businesses
it also provides services which interact with detainees,
wictims of crime, those on state assistance, vuinerable
people and other members of the public This requires  blowng and trading reviews
our staff to conduct themselves with the utmost
integrity We operate in |20 countries around the
worlkd with a diversity of local and national cultures
These factors mean that having a strong set of
corperate values that unite the organisation, deeply
embedded in our culture s of particular importance

We have in place high ethical standards and policies
which we expect our staff to observe globally and
these are reinforced through awareness and training
programmes and monitored through audit, whistle-

Senior managers performance contracts and bonuses
are in part based upon adherence to our values
Duning 2013 our new CEQ and the executive

teamn has reiterated the importance of our values

in delivering customer service and sustamable
shareholder value During 2014 we will be examining
cur HR processes to ensure that they fully support
our values, we are refreshing our whistle-blowing
pohcy: and we wak continue to reinforce the group
values at every opportunity Compliance with the
values 15 assessed through performance reviews
trading reviews, business self-assessments and audit.

This can lead to penalties, falure to renew contracts
and ulumately reduced profitability and damage to cur

globa! brand and reputation
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A\ Increased risk
WV Reduced risk

<>No change

Movement since 2012 Risk descnption Mitigation

HEALTH & SAFETY

There has been a heightened The provision of security services, often in hostle o~ The Group Executive team s leading a programme

focus by the board, the CEQ and  dangerous circumstances across such a broad diversity  to strengthen safety leadership and safety practices

the group executve committee  of countries, presents particular heaith and safety across the group including’

on the importance of health challenges. The protecuon of our staff, people in our — Critical country reviews conducting detaled

and safety care and third parties including the pubhc s of utmost assessments and developing m mgagon plans n
wnportance

The principat health and safety risks are work-related
attacks and road traffic acadents In 2013 55 2012 -
59) employees lost ther lives We are committed to
strengthening our health and safety systems processes
and cuhiures

Fatalities and serous injunes to our staff impact not
only the indmduals concerned, but also their families
loved ones and other dependents

those countries and operations where we have
idenufied the greatest nsks

Estabhishing a new group wide standard for health
and safety management systems

= Health and safety resource We made a number

of new appointments across the group and at

the beginning of 2014 we had | 10 dedicated

health and safety professicnals assisting us to reduce
health and safety risks

Safety leadership training and awareness Is now
mandatory for all semor managers In addition, each
member of the Group Executive team (and each
of their teams) has specfic health and safety
performance objectives in 2014

- In support of our heatth and safety programme,
we have established a new group value called

Safety First
PEOPLE >
G4S human resource processes Ve are a people business and we take great care Ve use rigarous recrurtment, selection, screening
ara well established and effectve  to ensure that we employ the best people to deliver  and induction processes and standards to ensure that
Nevertheless, there will always  quality services to our customers As the largest we employ the best people, with the right values,
be challenges n attracting and employer listed on the London Stock Exchange, for the requisite roles Standards are set by group
retaining employees employing 618,000 people worldwide, and the largest  human resources and measured and enforced through

security solutions provider in the world, our customers a combination of regular staff surveys, country
choose G45 because of the level of screening, traring  self-assessments moritoning of regional and country

integrity and trustworthiness

In a global and diverse business such as ours, there

specfic KPIs and independent audits all driving
constant improvements :n processes

are risks associated with recruiting, robust screening, Attracting and developing the nght talent is the key

motwvating developing and traming, as well as to our success and we have a process for identifying
appropriately rewarding and retaning our high potential employees and putting in place career
critcal talent development plans to promote them intc more senior

ositions We engage our employees through our
Fallure to recruit and retain key managers and staff ERJDE model 538 ploye g

and to motvate and develop them can impact
service delivery customer retention and business
management, which In turn can adversely affect our
financial performance

IMAGE REMOVED
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Principal nisks contimued

Movement since 2012

Rusk description

Miigation

BRAND/REPUTATION A

The nature of the services we
provide means that we are often
in the public eye However the
1ssues which have ansen around
a number of our high profile
contracts over the last two years
have undermined the companys
brand and reputation particularly
as a trustworthy strategic
supplier to the UK Government

The company’s brand 1s weli known and associated
with high quality securtty services around the world
However recent events in the UK had an adverse
impact on our reputation in particular with the UK
Government. Furthermore as detailed in the chief
executive s review;, our performance under certain
UK electronic monitoring contracts was referred
to the Serious Fraud Office (SFO)

There 15 a risk that until cur reputation s sufficiently
repaired and the SFO investigation concluded, our
sales pipeline could be impacted The first key step to
repainng our reputation 1s rebuilding the confidence
of the UK Government in G4S as a strategic suppler
There 15 a nisk that the changes we are implementing
to this end take time to be accepted as sufficient by
the UK Gavernment.

We continue to cooperate fully with the SFO
investigation [In addition, we have an on-gong
programme of corporate renewa! This is supported
by the broader changes being made across the group
to leadership govermance and contract management
and assurance, as well as by the heightened focus on
corporate values and ethics In order to ensure timely
progress this programme 1s being monitored directly
by the group executive and the board and being
independently reviewed by a firm of accountants

on behalf of the UK Government

At indrvidual region and country level there 15 a
strong focus on delivering excellent customer service
1in order to protect and enhance our local brand

and reputation

We are investing in the strengthening of our nsk
management, audrt and customer service capacity

MAJOR CONTRACTS A

The company’s strategy is to
provide integrated security
solutions to customers, which
often results n taking on more
complex contracts The company
15 implementing improvements
0 bid assessment programme
management and assurance
and new contract management
processes These will take tme
to bed in

The group has a number of long-term, complex, high
value contracts with mulii-national, government or
other strategic customers The company’s growth
strategy includes a greater focus on higher value,
and more technology-nich services This will increase
the complexity and indmiduality of customer
requirements and contracts

For such contracts there are risks to the group
accepting onerous contractual terms mobilising
contracts well, transthoning effectively from
mobilisation to on-going contract management,
delivering to contractual requirements, managing
complex billing arrangements, managing contract
change contro!, and managing sub-contractors

Faiture to ensure effective contract take-on mobilise
successfully and manage complex contracts
effectrvely throughout their Iifecycles can impact
customer satisfaction, reputation, revenue cash flow,
and profitabiity

The company has tightened the critera and level of
scrutiny for regional and group level legal review of
complex contracts during the bid cycle

The group has smplemented a standardised
approach to project management for complex
mobilisations in the UK which will be rolled out
globally during 2014 External project management
resource Is utilised in cases when msufficient internal
capability 15 10 place The group s also strengthening
its processes for bid assessment contract take-on
and on-going contract assurance
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/\ increased risk
v Reduced nsk

O Neo change

Movement since 2012

Risk descrniptien

Mitigation

DELIVERY OF CORE SERVICE LINES V/

Cur commitment to delvering
sustainable growth and
shareholder value 15 founded

on delivering on our customer
commitments There s a
continucus focus on this at the
group executive In addrtion,
through the investrments in the
service excellence centres

and within the regions and
countries we continued to make
Improvements In the processes
and systems in many of our
core businesses over the course
of 2013

We deliver our core secure solulions services in

100 markets and our core secure cash transportation
services in 61 markets A number of these businesses
have been acquired over tme resuling in cultural
differences, varying degrees of operational matunty
and a multiphicrty of information systems

This can create nsks around core operational service
delvery and supporting functions Failure to meet

the service delivery requirements of our customers
because we have not implemented the night sofutions
or followed appropnate agreed procedures can
create nsks around cash losses, attacks on our staff
subcontractors or third parties and the non-delvery
of the service level agreements and KFIs agreed with
our customers

Addtional nsks relate to business resiience control
systems and the avardability of critical systems, facilities
and people to perform contractually agreed services

This can lead to financial penatties and negatvely
impact customer retention and goodwilt to the
detrmment of financial performance

We have developed the G45 Way, which defines
best practice processes and standards for all aspects
of service delivery with the aim of improving service
excellence and margin The G45 Way 1s being
implemented globally across all our businesses It sets
out requirements for managing contract take-on

and mobihsation, completion of risk assessments
management of security assignments at customer
and site levels, and defines service delivery KPIs to
measure comphance Mimmum guidelines have been
set for key areas such as control rcom management,
security officer communications fleet routng and
scheduling, resource planning and staff rostenng,

and escalation procedures for duress/attack/
absence situations

Recent developments in our secure solutions business
include deployment of our core operating system
Sawwrn to efficiently match our security officer
deployment to customer requirements In our cash
soluttons business we have put in place a dedicated
nsk management team to ensure robust nsk analysts
and rectfication of deviations from our mirimum
standards Qur countries are required to have business
continuity and ¢risis management plans in place and to
test them regularly

We are also making on-going (mprovements o
the efficiency and effectiveness of supporting and
control systems

LAWS & REGULATIONS <>

The products and services we
provide are subject to the
ever-changing legal landscape
across the many jurisdictions In
which we operate, requiring
constant monronng and
change to ensure complance

(G4S operates in many jurisdictions globally, within
complex and diverse regulatory frameworks

An additional complexiy anses from the extra-
terrtortal reach of some of the legislation to which
the company 1s subject

Risks include increasing Irtsigation and class actions
especially in the United States bnbery and corruption,
obtaining operating licences, comphyng with local tax
regulations, changes to employment legslation,
complying with human nghts legislation and new or
changed restnictions on foreign ownership Risk also
anses from new or changing regulations which require
madification of our processes and staff raming

The necessary changes to ensure continued
complance with apphicable laws and regulations, or
not being compliant, have far reaching consequences,
including hugher costs from claims and Iitigation
nability to operate in certan Junsdictions, ether
through direct ownership or joint ventures, loss of
management cantrol, damage to our reputation and
loss of customer confidence

Each country in the group puts in place ngorous
compliance policies standards and contrels ncuding
training, to assure adherence to local laws, regulations
and licence requirements We review existing pelicies
in light of changes to legislation and recent case law

The group has good procedures in place to ensure
that our businesses are complying with antk-bribery
& corruption legislatron including self-assessments, a
traning and awareness programme for staff in sensitive
postions, an Independent audrt of the effectrveness of
our procedures, and confidential reporting hotlines

We build positive constructive relationships with
governments and related agenctes by engaging in

the legislative process directly and through local trade
associations Our aim 1s to support governments o
craft legislation that achieves its ams in relation to our
industry in as efficent and effective 2 way as possible
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Principal nisks continued

Movement since 2012

Rusk description

Mit:gation

GROWTH STRATEGY A

The group has placed a greater
emphasis on higher value
solution development and sales
underpinned by technology It
will take time to mobilise and
build the nght capabilities to
deliver this strategy

Our growth strategy 1s to leverage our expertise

10 expand our core service lines into more complex,
outsourcing areas which increase long-term customer
partnerships to focus on organic growth opportunities
with less reliance on acquisitions, and to leverage

our expertise In securtty systems technology across
key markets

There are nsks that we will fail to optimise our
product mix; fail to build the sales and solutions
capability we need, fall to leverage our exsting
expertise and resources Into the areas where we
can best achieve organic growth targets, or that
we will underinvest or invest in the wrong areas

Failing to create higher value sclutions that
differentiate us from local competitors could rmpact
targeted growth in revenues and margins

We are investing in sales and business development
resources to support growth and to strengthen our
solution selling capability

We have established a single caprital poo! for all key
investments and have revised our investment approval
processes to approve onty those caprtal requests

that demonstrate an appropniate balance of risk and
retum This 1s designed to ensure we make the nght
investments to support the strategy A revised major
bid assessment process has been implernented which
will ensure that the key opportuniies which underpin
our growth strategy are properly positioned,
resourced and managed

Rigorous trading and performance reviews for each
business untt enable us to monnor progress against
our strategic goals on a periodic basis Our on-going
capabiity review process will ensure we build the rght
skills needed 1o underpin the delivery of the strategy

GeO-POLITICAL >

Grven the wide range of
countnes n which the group
operates there will always be
some with a degree of sernous
poltical instabilty We take
great care with our operations
In these countries to monitor
the situation closely and
respond appropriately

We operate in |20 countnes across the developed
and developing world, with wide-ranging government
and political systems differing cubtural landscapes, and
varying degrees of rule of law; and within conflict anct
post-conflict zones

The risk factors range from political volatility,
revolution terrorism military interventon and
nsurgency

The geo-political risks we face impact us in many
ways the health and safety of our staff and customers,
the continued operation of our businesses, and the
abiity to secure our assets and recover our profits

We have a great deal of expenence of operating n
a wide range of difficulk terrtories We collaborate
with our local partners and/or agents conduct

early risk assessments before and dunng securty
assignments have robust operating procedures and
work closely with our local and globaf customers in
managing the risks of operating in such environments
We have a global process for assessing the geo-
polrical risks of different countries which determines
the types of customers we wiil serve and the types
of services we will provide
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A Increased risk
v Reduced risk

<> No change

Movement since 2012

Risk descnption

Mitigaton

INFORMATION SECURITY A

The sophistication of cyber
hackers increases continuously
and the heightened high profile
reputation of the group in the
UK in particular make us a
potential target.

GA4S has an obligation to safeguard the information
that our customers, partners and employees entrust
to our care

Given G4S' high profile we are at risk of cyber and
physical attack by criminal organisations and indwidual
hackers Whilst we do have strong protection In place,
the threat is increasing If an attempt 1s successful our
information systems could be compromised or our
information disclosed

A successful attack could result in censure and fines
by national governments, loss of confidence in the
(A4S brand and reputatron specific loss of trust by
chents, especially those in government and financial
sectors, disruption to service delivery and integrity,
particularly in cash solutions operations

G4S has cyber secunty controls in place to protect
information

In 2013 we appointed a group head of information
security who has developed a strategy to improve
our information security matunty This strategy will
be rolled out across the group to reduce the
bkelihood of a successful attack and to increase the
ability of G45 to detect and respond to attacks

CASH LOSSES V/

Through the work of the service
excellence centres working with
the regions, improvements have
been made to processes and
systems in many of our cash
solutions businesses over the
course of 2013

We have cash solutions businesses spread across

the world responsible for cash held on behalf of our
customers We provide cash transportation from one
site to another in high secunity vehicles, a range of
cash management services Including secure storage
counting, reconchation and sorting of notes for
ATMs a range of ATM services and secure
international transportation of cash and valuables

There are inherent risks in this business related
to external attacks internal theft and poor
cash reconciliation

Cash losses can have a major impact for our
customers and ourselves in respect of loss of profit,
increased cost of insurance and heatth and safety
considerations for our staff and the public

Our cash solutions service excellence centre (SEC)
works In collaboration with the regions to embed
robust procedures into every cash business to mitigate
cash losses Innovative security defence products are
in use ranging from pavement box tracking to vehicle
protection foam and protective pavement boxes

All cash transactions are subject to strict authorisation
limits and we have very tightly controlled cash
reconciliation procedures to ensure cash is fully
accounted for and controlled and these procedures
are subject to constant monitoning and audrts We also
have a robust process to monitor all cash-related
incidents through a team of secunty specialists and
we ensure that lessons lkeamed are shared through
the SEC
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Corporate social responsibility

Why CSR matters to G4S

GA4S plays an important role in society We make a difference by helping people to operate in a safe
and secure environment where they can thrive and prosper Our size and scale mean we touch the
hves of millions of people across the world and we have a duty and desire to ensure the influence
we have makes a positive impact on the people and communities In which we work,

INTEGRITY

— Business ethics and
anu-corruption*

COMMUNITY
— Soaal & economic impact

- Community investment
— Human rights*

— Rusk assessment

— Internal audit

- Whistle-blowing and
reporting

IMAGE REMOVED

PEQOPLE
— Health & safety*
— Diversity & inclusion

— Employee engagement

ENVIRONMENT
- Energy & fuel efficency
~ Reducing carbon imtensity

~ Traning & development

*OUR PRIORITY AREAS
NS N N
BUSINESS ETHICS AND HEALTH & SAFETY HUMAN RIGHTS
ANTI-CORRUPTION
IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

See our C5R report for more informauon
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Why CSR matters to G4S

CSR 15 an wmportant differentiator for the group and we find it
Increasingly iImportant to customers as part of their process for
evaluatng and selecting a service partner — particularty given the
sensitve nature of some of the semaces which customers require

Our approach to CSR prowdes our customers with confidence that
they are working with an organisation which respects laws and cultures,
has high ethical standards, takes care of rts employees and is a reliable
and dependable partner

Qur CSR strategy

Every two years we conduct a CSR matenality exercise which helps
us to assess the current market emvironment business challenges and
most relevant CSR strategies In 2013, we broadened the scope of this
exercise to include a representative group of external commentators
and stakeholders — seeking opinions from investors NGOs and
custorners in addition to our internal semior management and board
members This ensures that our strategies are aligned to stakeholder
needs and the objectives of our business

The process highlighted three core prionty areas for 2014 — business
ethics and anti-corruption, health and safety and human nghts

‘Whilst these are our three highest priority and most rmatenal 1ssues,
we continue to focus on all aspects of CSR.

CSR management

Reflecting the value we place on CSR and on our reputation, our
CSR Committee has been a full board committee since 201 1,
comprising a number of experienced non-executive directors who
meet, regularly to discuss CSR related matters The cormmittee 15
chared by Clare Spottiswoode, a G45 non-executive director who
has been a member of the CSR committee since 2010 Elements of
our CSR strategy such as health and safety and human rights are also
a regular subject for discussion at group executive committee and
board meetings

IMAGE REMOVED
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Strategic report

Safeguarding
our integrity

IMAGE REMOVED

Integrity 1s one of the group’s core values
Being a responsible business partner,
employer, customer or supplier is an
important part of our strategy and forms an
essential foundation on which we carry out
our business

WHAT WE ARE DOING

Business ethics

To ensure that our employees understand how they can play their
part n delivering high ethical standards across the group, we continue
to remnforce a group-wide ethics code that sets out how we expect
our employees to behave The code is supplemented with a business
ethics policy which provides a more detaied summary of the group's
ethical standards of operation The code and policy are reviewed each
year to incorporate evolving legisiation

Human rights

We recognise the growing importance of human rights as a matenal
business I1ssue and believe that G45 can play a positve role In
respecting human rights around the world Our business can contribute
positvely to the realisation of human nghts through the range of
services we offer to protect people We also recognise that we have a
duty to ensure that we are not at nsk of violating human nghts through
the services we provide the customers we work with and the supphers
we use and through the fair and appropriate treatment of our own
employees and others who are in our care

Increasingly customers and other key stakeholders are locking to
companies such as G45 to demonstrate specaific actions and practices
whuch are aligned to internationally recognised human nights
standards such as the UN Guiding Pninciples on Business and Human
Rights (20} 1) the Voluntary Pnnciples on Security and Human Rights
(200Q), and the International Code of Conduct for Private Securtty
Service Prowders (2010) Our human rights framework aims to bring
our existing pracuces into line with these standards and introduce
new guidelines in areas which are not covered by exsting policies
and practices
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Corporate social responsibility contnued

SAFEGUARDING OUR INTEGRITY

How we're performing
Dunng 2013 we

~ Launched cur human nghts framework, based on the UN Guiding
Principles on Business & Hurman Rights, introducing a systematic
approach to human nghts due diligence and nsk assessrent

-~ Conducted external review of risk management processes and
implemented an acuon plan to increase group resources and
Improve systermns and processes

— Established a board Risk Committee and a separate nsk management
function for the group

— Updated the risk assessment of the groups anti-bnbery policies
and controls

— Completed | 11 on-site internal audits to measure comphance with
G4S standards and controls

— Carried out an external review of internal audrt with an action plan
to increase audit staffing by 50% and expand s remit

— Enhanced communication of the groups Safe2Say whistle-blowing
hotiine through increased use of employee communications channels

- Improved the categonisation and reporting of issues raised through
whistle-blowing reporting processes

Prioriues for 2014
— Resrwigorate group values across all business practices
and programmes

- Update and re-launch business ethics pohicy and compliance
programme

- Continue to embed human nights nisk assessment and due-diligence
into our wader business processes

— Embed improved risk management processes across the group
— Implement governance risk and compliance systerns

- Complete planned increase in internal audn stafling and
expanded remrt

= Undertake audits of the group s human nights policy and guidefines
for our high nisk countries

- Complete a detalled review of whistle-blowing reporting
arrangements covening the policy process and systems

— implement improvements generated by intemal audit and group nisk
management reviews
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Securing our
people
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As a service provider, our customers rely
on us to have a motivated and healthy
workforce Keeping our employees safe,
looking after their interests and treating
them fairly are therefore wital to our
ON-goINg success

Health and Safety

As one of the worlds largest private employers working in sectors

where security and safety present a strategic risk, our responsibility

to protect the health safety and well-being of our employees 1s one
of our highest pnomties

"It 15 not acceptable to us that any colleague 1s injured or kilted in the
ine of duty”
Ashley Almanza, CEQ

We cantinue to focus on health and safety and have introduced a
number of important critical review processes and Improvements
to speaific practices in order to protect our employees in their
workplace These will continue to be a major area of focus for the
group at every level in 2014

Employee engagement
QOur employee engagement strategy 1s based on the internally
developed PRIDE model

IMAGE REMOVED

The strategy has been in place for a number of years and 15 the basis
for our engagement policies and practices To ensure that these policies
are working and our employees are able to share their perceptions of
the business and working environment, we conduct a global employee
engagement survey every two years




J | |

Strategic report

How we're performing

The most prevalent risks to the health and safety of our employees
are from work-related attacks and road traffic nadents Athough the
total number of work-refated fatalites has reduced since 20! |, our
aim 1s to elminate them altogether

During 2013 we have
— Completed three further critical country reviews of heakth and safety

— Introduced the Driving Force Rules campaign to promote safe M AGE REMOVED

driving, piloted in seven countries

— Improved incident reporting and investigation process

Rolled out succession planning to all key management roles

Ploted online performance reviews in a number of businesses

Completed two talent review processes assessing over
1,30C managers

— Continued extension of cuktural awareness training tool In 2013 over 380,000 employees shared their views of working for
— Partnership working to increase employment opportunities GA4S This represents a 62% response rate, up from 38% in 2011
for disabled people and veterans Overall levels of engagement also improved from an average of 80%

to 82% Encouragingly, the number of favourable responses to questions
related to health and safety showed the most positive increase since
the last survey atthough there 1s clearly a need for substantal further
improvermnent The results for the senior leadership survey were also
positive, with 81% of senior managers particpating and an overall
favourable score of 83%

-~ Completed a third global employment survey

Pricriues for 2014
— Establish a new group value called Safety First — to ensure absolute
focus on health and safety in everything we do

IMAGE REM OVED — introduce performance related cbjectives linked to health and safety

for our global leadership management group

— Roll out induction training for new health and safety practiioners
on GA4S policies and practices

— Complete further critical country reviews of heatth and safety
- Roll out the Drnving Force Rules campaign to all businesses

— Continued menitoring of health and safety KPl data

= Launch the revised senior leadership programme

— Imp'ement a new individual based development programme for
people operating at a strategic level

Development and implementation of the senior management
on-boarding tool

— Extend the use of data captured on the talent management system

Review oppartunities for embedding cultural awareness traning

Increase diversity in talent pools and management population

— Analyse resufts from the 2013 global employee engagement survey

IMAGE REM OVED and continue to implement the actions arising from the survey

— Conunue to mantan good urion and employee relations at all levels
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Securing our
environment

IMAGE REMOVED

Our customers and employees demonstrate
increasing concern for environmental 1ssues
Whilst our environmental impacts are not
significant refative to other businesses of
comparable size, it remams important to

us to be efficient in the use of resources
and, in doing so, curtail our greenhouse

£3s emissions

YWhat we're doing

Since 2008 we have used WBCSD' and WR] GHG ~ protocols to
measure our Scope | and 2 emissions — vehicle fleet, fuel, refrgerants
and electroty usage for G45 businesses over which we have financal
and operational control In addmon we have measured Scope 3
emissions from employee business ar travel

The businesses that reported data in our 2013 GHG measurement
represent 94 5% of the group's operations across an | |-month period
This level of measurement, including each of our main service types
allows us to calculate reliably the total GHG emissions for 100% of
the group over a period of 12 months

How were performing

The G4S total carbon footprint, extrapolated to 100% of the business
equates to some 559,000 vCO,e Since we launched our climate action
strategy in 2009, our carbon ntensity has decreased by 23 5% per £m
of revenue — exceeding our stated target of 209 This reduction
transfates to a real reduction of 4 9% in carbon emissions aganst a

24 4% growth in the business dunng the same penod much of which
includes carbon emissions from services which our customers have
outsourced to G45 This 1s a pesitive achievernent which recognises the
efforts made to increase the energy and fuel efficiency of our business

* World Business Councl for Sustzinable Development.
= \World Resources Institute greenhouse gas
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GHG EMISSIONS

(Based on 94 5% measurernent) 2012 2013
Vehicles {Inc refrigerants) 316,000 311100
Total buldings {inc refngerants) 161000 173,200
Induding electnoty emissions of 115000 128,500
Aur trave! 23500 23,900
IMAGE REMOVED
CARBON INTENSITY
2009 2010 2011 2013
Tonnes COye
per £m turnover 944 887 8316 723

Prioriues for 2014

~ Continue t0 implement energy efficency strategies with the aim

of reducing carbon intensity by at least 4 5% per annum

For further details of our Cmate Action Programme please refer to
our 2013 CSR Report or visit www g4s com/cap




Securing our
communities
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We recognise that our ability to provide a
safe and secure environment around the
world depends on the relationships we
have wrth the communities and people
with whom we work We are therefore
committed to working with charity and
commurity partners to tackle issues which
affect local communities, especially relating

Strategic report

Compnising

— Provision of goods services and financial investment in more
than 400 community programmes across 76 countries, with a
combined value of almost £ 34 million

— Investment of £647,500 in projects which support the long-term
welfare and development of employees in developing countres

2013 2012
Corporate
Corporate donations of money £331 900 £921.700
Corporate donations of goods
and services £406 500 £459 500
Employee
Employee and third-party donations
faclnated by G45 £92,900 £72,000
Employee volunteering facilitated
by G45 26,000 hours 30000 hours
Employee welfare and development £647,500 £641 000

Priontes for 2014
— Complete the development and launch of new communiy
programmes across each of our regions

— Continue to build on wider community investment to demenstrate
the impact on the people we strive to support

— Continue to support the welfare and long-term development of

to health, education and welfare of young
people We have a long history of investing
in the communities i which we live and
work and to which we provide services and
we recognise the importance of this role

What we're doing

We seek to make a positive impact on the local communiies i which
our employees, customers and suppliers Iive and work The social and
economic impact reaches well beyond our workng ermaronment and
touches the lives of millions around the world

How were performing

We conducted an academic study of the direct and indirect sccial
and economic tmpacts of G45 in the UK demonstrating support of
68000 jobs across the country and a total gross added value of

£} 95 billion contribution to the UK economy

Building on the partnerships and investment that we have made in
previous years, in 2013 we

— launched GA45S 4teen legacy community projects in Botswana,
Cotombia, Estoria, India, Nigeria, Philppines and Thartand followsng
the conclusion of the six-year flagship GA4S 4teen programme

— invested almost £2 milion in chartable community pregrammes
and welfare programmes for employees facing heatth or
financial hardship

employees facing hardship

— Participate in further acaderic studies of the direct and indirect
social and economic impacts of G45 within key markets
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Board of directors

I JOHN CONNOLLY

Non-executive director

Chairman of the board

Chairrnan — Neminaten and Risk Committees
Joined G4S board June 2012

Key strengths and expenience Extensive
expenence of working in a global business
emaronment and i sectors of strategic
importance to the group

Developing the board and its governance of
the group

A chartered accountant, John spent his career
until May 20t | with global professtonal services
firm Delortte was Global Chairman between
2007 and 2011 and prior to that Global
Managing Director between 2003 and 2007

He was Senior Partner and CEQ of the UK
partnership from 1999 until bis retrement from
the partnership

Current external commutments. Chairman of
AMEC plc and of a number of private companies
Beyond cornmercsal business roles he is on the
Board of Governors of London Business School
and a2 member of the CBI President s Adwisory
Councll He 15 also charman of the appeal board
for The Centre for Children’s Rare Disease
Research at Great Ormond Street Hospral

2 ASHLEY ALMANZA

Executive director

Chief executrve

Member — Risk Commuttee
Joined G4S board May 2013

Key strengths and experience Extensive board and
executive management expenence and strong
track record workang across intermational
borders n complex busmesses

Held a number of senior executve roles at

BG Group from 1992 to 2012 induding Chief
Financial Cfficer from 2002 to 2011 and
Executive Vice President from 2009 to 2012

As Executive Vice President he was accoumable
during 2002 and 2010 for the strategic and
operational management of BG Groups UK,
European and Central Asian businesses He also
led a consortum of global companies through
complex government negohations n

Central Asia.
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He holds an MBA from London Busmess School
and was previousty Chairman of the Hundred
Group of Finance Cirectors

Current external commitments. Non-executive
director of Schroders plc and Noble
Corporation

3 ADAM CROZIER

MNon-executive director
Member — Audit and Nominanon Committees
Joned 45 boord January 2013

Key strengths and expenence Wide-ranging
expenence of business transformation in a
number of public and private sector organisations
in the medha, logistics and retail sectors and
serving FTSE 100 CEO

Started his career with Mars before joining

the Daly Telegraph foflowed by Saatchi and
Saatchi where he became joint chief executive
He then became chief executive of the Football
Association and was subsequently appointed
chief executive of the Royal Mail Group where
he oversaw an extensive programme of
modernisation and change to enable the
business to compete i the UK and international
marketplaces Since April 2010 he has been chief
executive of [TV ple and was a non-executive
director of Debenhams plc until 2012

Current external cornmutrments. Chiaf executive
of MV plc

4 MARK ELLIOTT

Non-executive director

Senmior independent director
Chairman — Remuneration Committee
Member — Nomination Commuttee
Joned G4S board September 2006

Key strengths and expenence Extensve
irternatronal board and executive experience
having held a number of senor management
positions In IBM including leadership of IBMs
operations In Europe the Middle East and Afnica
with responsibility for operations in more than
110 countries

Has particular involvernent wath the group s
businesses :n the Amenricas region

General Manager IBM Glabal Soluttons,
Managing Director of IBM Eurepe Middle East
and Afiica, member of the board of IBAX, a
hospital software company jointly owned by
IBM and Baxter Heakhcare chasrman of Reed
Elseviers remuneration committee chairman of
the Deans Adwisory Council of the Kelly School
of Business Indiana Unrversity

Curremt external commitments. Non executive
charman of QinetiQQ Group plc

5 GRAHAME GIBSON

Executive director
Regional CEQ — Americas
Joined G45 board Aprd 2005

Key strengths and experience Extensive knowledge
of the group and 1ts predecessor companies in
many different markets and in a number of
executive funchiens In additron to his board role
15 also CEQ of the Amenicas regron

Joined Group 4 in 1983 starting as finance
director (UK} followed by a number of senior
roles including deputy managing director (UK),
vice president {corporate strategy), vice president
{finance and administration) vice president
operations (central and south eastern Eurcpe
and UK} and chief operating officer of Group

4 Falck A/S In 2004 he became the companys
drasional president for Americas and New
Markets and was chief operating officer between
2005 and 2012

Curremt external commitments. Board member
of the Ligue Internationale des Sociétés de
Surveillance the international association of
leading security compares.

6 WINNIE KINWAH FOK

Non-executive director
Member — CSR and Remuneration Committees
Joned G45 board October 2010

Key strengths and expenence International board
and senior management expenence with
extensive knowledge of Asian markets and
strong 1nvolvement in Scandinavia

Takes a particular interest in the group's
businesses in Asia,




An audrtor by traming was nvohved in
managernent posrtions i finance audit and
corporate advisory work and a wide range of
rales i asset management firms imvesting with
a focus in Asia. Senior partner of EQT and
CEO of EQT Partners Asia Limrted managing
director of CEF New Asia Partners Limrted

Current external commitments. Senior adwiser to
Foundation Administratton Management Sweden
AB non-executive director of Volvo Car
Corporatton non-executive director of SEB AB
Kermira Oy and HOPU investments Co Ltd

7 HIMANSHU RAJA

Executive director

Chief financial officer

Member — Risk Committee
Joined G4S boord October 2013

Key strengths and expenence Strong track
record as a financial executive i a global
services business

Prior to joinng G45 Himanshu was CFO at
Misys, and from 2010 to 2012 he was CFO of
Logica plc Himanshw worked for more than

10 years at BT Group in a number of dwvistonal
finance director roles ncluding Chief Financial
Officer of BT Global Services BT Design BT
Qperate and BT Wholesale His earty career
induded finance and systems roles at
Worldcom International UUNET and MFS

Himanshu s a qualified chartered accountant
and holds an honours degree in law

Current external comrmtments. None

8 MARK SELIGMAN

MNon-execunve director

Depury chairman

Chairman —Audit Committee
Member — Remuneravon Committee
Joined G4S boord. January 2006

Key strengths and expenence Extenswve financial
and management expenence having worked in
the financial services sector with a focus on
investment banking Takes particular interest in
the financral performance cf the company
including its financing and transactional activity
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Qualified as a chartered accountant with Poce
Waterhouse Sentor roles at SGWarburg & Co
Ltd and Barclays de Zoete Wedd, Head of UK
Investment Banking at C5FB Charman of UK
Investment Banking at Credrt Suisse member of
the Credit Suisse Global Investment Banking
Executive Board and sentor adviser to Credrt
Suisse Europe

Current external commitments. Alternate member
of the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers member
of the Regional Growth Fund Adwvisory Fanel
non-executrve director and audr commrttee
charrman for BG Group ple, and semior
independent directer of Kingfisher plc

3 PAUL SPENCE

Non-executive director
Member — Audit, CSR and Risk Committees
Joined G4S§ board January 2013

Key strengths and expenence in-depth knowledge
of outsourang in both the public and private
sectors and extensive international expenence
i key developing countries such as India, China
and Brazil

A graduate of the Wharton School at the
University of Pennsylvania with 2 degree n
economics and deasion saences served a
30-year career with Capgemin and rts
predecessors Having started m the US and
become managing partner of mid-Atlantic
information and technology for Emst & Young,
he went on to gain sigruficant international
expenence for 16 years as managing partner
of Ernst & Young Consutung Austraha, CEC

of Capgerniri Ernst & Young in Asia and CEC
Capgemim Emst & Young UK. He then spent
eight years serving on Capgeminis executive
management comrmittee dunng which time hrs
roles included deputy group CEQ and CEO
of Capgermny Global Outsourting Services

Current externa! commitments. None

10 CLARE SPOTTISWOODE

Mon-executive director
Chatrman — CSR Committee
Member — Remuneraton
Joned G4S board June 2010

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 G4S ple 49

Key strengths and expenence Considerable
expenence in the public sector the energy
markets and the financial services sector as
well as setting up and managing her own
businesses Has particular involvement with the
groups businesses in the UK and Africa regions.

A mathematiizn and economist by traiming,
warked for the UK Treasury director general of
Ofgas, the UK gas regulator policyholder
advocale for Norwich Umion s wath-profits
policyholders at Aviva non-executive director
of Tullow Ol plc and a member of the
Independent Commission on Banking and the
Future of Banking Commussion

Current extemnal cornmitments Chairman of
Gas Strategies Group Energetix Group and
Magnex Limsted, non-executive director of llika
ple, Enquest pic RBC Europe Limrted and BW
Offshore Limited, and independent director

of the Payments Counci

11 TIMWELLER

Non-executive director
Member — Audit and Risk Committees
Joined the G45 Board April 2013

Key strengths and expenence Significant
expenrience of the energy and utdtties sectors
and serving FTSE 100 CFO

An accountant by training jomed KPMG in

1985 nsing 1o partnership in 1997 before joning
Granada ple as director of financial control
Between 2002 and 2010 he ganed siguficant
further experience in the energy and utifities
sectors holding CFQ posruons with Innogy

(one of the UKs leading ntegrated energy
comparies at the ume) RWE Thames Water
(the world's third largest water and wastewater
service company) and United Utilies Group
PLC {a UK-based water and wastewater service
company) He was Chiel Finanual Officer of
Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc between 20[0
and 201 |

Current external commitments. CFO of Petrofac
Liruted, the FTSE100 international oo and gas
service provider and a non-executive director
of the Carbon Trust




Executive committee
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OUR EXECUTIVE TEAM

(G4S 1s managed through a functional and
regional structure

QOur structure enabfes us to deliver our
strategic objectives maintain a strong
governance framework, develop integrated
solutions target key regional markets and
builld customer relationships

| ASHLEY ALMANZA, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Ashley joined G4S as Group CFO 1in May 2013
and was promoted to Group CEO on | June
2013

Ashley held a number of senior executive roles
at BG Group from 1993 to 2012, ncluding Chief
Financial Officer from 2002 to 201 | and
Executive Vice President from 2009 to 2012

As Executve Vice President he was accountable
during 2009 and 2010 for the strategic and
operaticnal management of BG Groups UK
European and Central Asian businesses which
had combined annual profits of around $3 bilhon
He also led a consortium of global compames
through complex government negotiations in
Central Asta

Ashley 15 a non-executive director of Schroders
plc and Noble Cerporation He holds an MBA
from the London Business School and was
previcusly Chairman of the Hundred Group

of Finance Directors

2 EDDIE ASTON, REGIONAL CEOQ -
UK & IRELAND

Eddie joined G45 i July 2013 as Group Chief
Operating Cfficer and was appointed Regional
CEO of UK & ireland in October 2013

Eddie held a number of senior executive roles
at Deutsche Post DHL, where he worked for 13
years Most recently he was CEQ Global Sectors

His previous role was CEO Life Sciences and
Public Sector, responsible for strategic and
operational leadership of a muth-billion turnover
business He also held a vanety of managing
director roles at the business

3 ANDY BAKER, REGIONAL PRESIDENT
—AFRICA

Andy joined GA4S as regional president for G45
Africain 2012

He has wide ranging experience of managing and
building sustainable businesses across Africa with
2 strong emphasis on technelogy and logistics

He joined 545 from Nashua Group, the second
largest ICT business n South Africa where he
was Group Chief Executive Officer

Prior to this, he spent four years as Group
Chief Operating Officer of Altech a |SE listed
technology group with revenues of $1 2bn
and operations in |5 countries He holds an
MBA from Cranfield University
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4 IRENE COWDEN, GROUP HR DIRECTOR

Irene has spent ber career n HR management
specialising in employee relations, organisational
development, talent management employee
engagement, compensation and heatth and
safety matters

She has been involved in major change projects
including the cultural and ntegration aspects of
mergers and acquisivons as well as large scale
organisational change involving workforce
restructunng, working in partnership with
major trade untans

Irene has worked in the security ndustry for
36 years and has held director level posrtions
at business unit, dwisional and corporate level
She was appointed to the board of Securicor
plc in 2002 as group HR director

Irene 15 a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Personnel and Development {FCIPD)

5 GRAHAME GIBSON REGIONAL CEQ
—AMERICAS

Grahame has been involved in the securrty
industry for 3| years having jomed Group 45 UK
operating company in 1983 as finance director

Since that time Grahame has held a number

of operational management and board posrtions
in the UK USA, Denmark, the Netherlands

and Austria

Grahame has bread expenence of the secunty
industry and management of businesses across
a diverse range of cultures has been invaluable
to the group throughout its development

Grahame jomned the board of GA4S plc in
Apnl 2005

Grahame I1s a board member of the Ligue
Internationale des Societes de Surveillance
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Governance

6 GRAHAM LEVINSOHN, REGIONAL CEO
- EUROPE

8 HIMANSHU RAJA, GROUP CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER

10 DEBBIE WALKER GROUP
COMMUNICATIONS DIRECTOR

Grahamn became Regional CEQ — Europe in
November 2013 Graham has more than 20
years' expenence in the securtty industry having
Jjoined Secuncor Cash Services In 1994 as
general manager — marketing

Since then Graham has held a number of
commercral and ine management posions in
beth the cash and securtty lines of business
Graham was responsible for the creanon of the
UK cash centres outsourcing business in 2001
as managing director before moving on to
become dnvisional managing director for G4S
Cash Services UK, and then regional president
~ Nordics He became group strategy and
development director in 2008 and joined the
executive commrttee In 2010

Grahame 5 a fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Marketing and a director of COESS

7 SOREN LUNDSBERG-NIELSEN, GROUP
GENERAL COUNSEL

Seren began his career as a lawyer in Denmark
and since 1984 he has had a wide range of legal
expenence as general counsel for international
groups In Denmark, Belgium and the US before
joimng Group 4 Falck in 2001 as Group
General Counsel

Saren has been involved in a wide range of

successfid mergers and acquisiions dunng his
career including the acquistion of Wackenhart
and the Group 4 Falck merger with Secuncor

Seren has overall responsibility for all internal
and external legal seraces for G45 as well as the
group's INsurance programme

Seren 15 a member of the Darush Bar and Law
Society a member of the adwisory board of the
Darush UK Chamber of Commerce and author
of the book Executve Management Contracis,
published in Denmark

Himanshu joined G45 in October 2013 as
Group Chief Financial Officer In addiion to

hus role as CFO the {followang funcuons also
report to him service excellence centres risk
management, group procurement and group IT

He joined the group from Misys where as
CFO he was responsible for finance legal and
commercial faciries and procurement

Prior to Misys Himanshu was CFO of Logica plc
where he led the sale protess that resuited in
the company being acquired by CGl of Canada.
Himanshu also held senior executive positions

at BT Group where he worked for more than 10
years in a number of dvisional finance director
roles ncluding Chief Financial Officer of BT
Global Services, BT Design BT Operate and

BT Wholesale

His early career ncluded linance and systermns
roles at Worldcom International, UUNET and
MFS Limited

Hirmanshu qualified as a chartered accountant
with Arthur Andersen and holds a law degree

9 DAN RYAN REGIONAL CEQ ~ASIAAND
MIDDLE EAST

Dan jomed G4S in August 2010 from global
logistics and transportation company Neptiune
Crent Lines (NOL), where he was a member

of the group executive team and held a number
of semior management posrtions including
regional president roles for Greater China, Middle
East and Europe dunng his 20-year career there
In his last postson with the group Dan led the
project to review redesign and transform NOLs
organisaton across all its Amencas dvisions

Dan s a charter member of the Middle East
Logisucs/Supply Chain Management Forum
Hong Kong Liner Shipping Association and the
Amencan Chamber of Commerce — Shangha
He helds an MBA from the Unwersity of
Notre Dame i Indiana and a B S Finance
from Califormia State University, Sacramento

Debbie 1s Group Communications Dhrector
heading the corporate communications tearn
which focuses on the group's key audiences —
investors media government, employees and
customers Debbie 15 also responsible for the
groups CSR and human rights strategles

Prior to the merger between Group 4 Fakk

and Secunicor Debbre was employed in a number
of semor marketing and communications roles
within the Secuncor group from 1993 to 2004

Debbie 1 also wvice chairman of the CBI South
East Regional Councll {the representative
body for all CBI member companies based in
the South East of England and the Thames
Valley} having prewiously served as chairman
for two years
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Corporate governance report

GOVERNANCE CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

IMAGE REMOVED

John Connolly
Chairman

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,

G45 1s committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards
of corporate governance, as we believe that these are the necessary
foundations on which the long-term success of the group 1s built Trust
integrity and transparency are at the heart of what we do My role is
to lead the board and ensure that it has the approprate balance of
skills, experience, Independence and knowledge of the company to
ensure its effectiveness

As explatned in my chatrman s statement on pages 2 and 3,203

has been a year of strong focus on board composition and in ensunng
we have the right senior management team in place | am pleased to
report that the range of backgrounds, skills and expenence of the new
members of the board 15 already producing results A strong emphasis
was placed on ensunng that they have sufficient knowledge of the
company and the ervironment and conditrons in which we operate
Details of inductions and professional development are found below

The role of the board I1s to challenge constructively and help develop
the groups strategy The board took part in the thorough review of
the strategy which the new chief executive officer, Ashley Almanza,
developed during the summer and which resulted in the adoption of
the strategy for delivenng the company's objectives which 1s described
in the Strategic Report

2013 also saw us embark on a thorough review of our nsk
managernent framework, which has led to a number of changes amed
at strengthening and enhanang internal controls and processes for
identifying, reporting and managing nsk The board through its newly
created Risk Committee, oversaw the process

The purpose of the corporate governance report which follows s to
give an understanding of the corporate governance framework and
arrangements we have In place It 15 also 10 explan how the group as
a whole and the board in particular have complied with the pnnciples
of the UK Corporate Governance Codes, published in May 2010 and
Septernber 2012 (the "Code"}

John Connolly
Chairman

31 March 2014
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OUR GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The board sits at the top of the company’s governance framework,
setting broad strategic targets, monrtoring progress, approving
proposed actions and ensuring approprate controls are 1 place and
operating effectively

Management decisions development of strategies and policies and
implementation of board decisions fall to the executive committee

Regional management teams have responsibility for businesses within
their regions and are tasked with implementing policies and controls
at business levels, as well as ensuring they meet agreed financial goals

The presence of a majority of independent non-executive directors on
the board ensures objectivity challenge and debate It 1s the primary
responsibiity of the board to provide effective leadership for the group
and this 1s done by, amongst other things, ensuring that decision making
1s conducted throughout the group within a strong internal control
frarmework — and by setting values and standards

There 1s a detalled schedule of matters reserved to the board under
|2 separate categories strategy and management, structure and capital
financial reporting and controls risk and internal controls contracis
communication, board membership and other appointments,
remuneration, delegatton of autharty, corporate governance matters
pohaes and other matters such as setthng materal litigation and
approving levels of insurance By way of example, board approval is
required for unbudgeted caprtal projects of more than £10m entenng
Into a sales contract where annual revenue 1s to be more than £50m,
any changes to the groups long term objectives and commercial
strategy and the annuat operating and capital expendrture budgets
The schedule of matters reserved to the board was reviewed and
updated during the course of the year

The board fulfils a number of its most important functions through
its committees The work of these commitiees 15 described below in
this report

The terms of reference of the committees are avallable on the
company’s website www g4s com

BOARD BALANCE

Board composition

As at the date of this report, the board comprises | | members the
non-executive chawran (John Connolly), seven other non-executive
directors and three executve directors The board considers all the

non-executive directors to be independent.

The names of the directors serving as at 31 Decernber 2013 and
thewr biographical details are set out on pages 48 and 49 All directors
served throughout the year under review except as noted below

— Tim Weller — appointed as non-executive director on | Apeil 2013

— Ashley Almanza — appointed as director and chief financial officer
on | May 2013 and then as chief executve officer on | June 2013

— Nick Budkles stepped down from the board on 3| May 2013

— Lord Condon, Trevor Dighton and Bo Lerenius retred from the
board at the conclusion of the company’s AGM on 6 June 2013

— Himanshu Raja — appointed as director and chef financial officer
on 7 October 2013

Mark Seligman wilt have served on the beard for nine years by the end
of this year and will stand down from the board after the companys
AGM in 2015 Mark has served as Audit Committee charman since
May 2009 and has been a member of that committee since January
2006 As part of the boards succession plan therefore, Mark will stand




down as a member of the committee at the end of this year and as
charman of the Audit Commuttee after the 2014 AGM, when the role
will be taken on by Tim Weller Both Mark and Tim are the members of
the Audit Committee with recent and relevant financial experience, and
Tim 15 a serving FTSE {00 CFO Tim will therefore lead the external
audit tender process which will be undertaken by the Audit Committee
later this year (see page 63}

Induetion and professional development

A tallored induction 1s provided to new non-executive directors joming
the board This includes spending time with the executve directors

and other senior executives to understand the business, its structure
and people as well as the company's strategy and finanaial performance

In March 2013 Messrs Crozier, Spence and Weller met the groups
regonal CEOs who each presented an overview of therr regton

This was followed by a question and answer session also attended by
the chuef executive officer and the chief financial officer Visits to key
locations within the group are also arranged New directors are given
the opportunity to visit businesses so they can learn about the
group’s operations

In February 2013 John Connolly, Mark Elliott and Paul Spence attended
the North Amencan regional management conference in Miami Prior
to the conference as part of his tnduction, Mr Spence attended a
session with the Americas regional management team who provided

an overview of the businesses In the region, as well as the opportunities
and challenges there

The induction also provides details of the group's governance policies
and structure and includes a summary of the risks facing the group
Meeting regional and country staff continues throughout a director’s
time on the board, as does continuing professional development,
usuzly in areas where the director has specific commrttee responsibility

COMPLIANCEWITH THE UK CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The board s statement on the companys corporate
governance performance s based on the Code which is
avalable on the Financial Reporting Councils website (https //
www fric org uk/Our-Work/Ceodes-Standards/Corporate-
govermance/UK-Corporate-Governance-Code-Code aspx)

The Listing Rules require companies to disclose how they
apply the Code's main principles and report how they have
dore so The Code recognises that alternatives to following
its provisians may be justified in particular circumstances iIf
good governance can be achieved by other means provided
the reasons are explained clearly and carefully In such cases,
companies must also illustrate how their actual practices are
consistent with the pninciple in guesuon and contnbute to
good governance

The company complied throughout the year under review
with the prowisions of the Code The Corporate governance
report, together with the Audit committee report and the
Dhrectors’ remuneration report, describe how the board has
apphed these provisions

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
BOARD
RISK AUDIT CSR REMUNERATION NOMINATION
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
RISK ’ " GrourP
MANAGEMENT INTERNAL S;:C?! ?::F':::T
FUNCTION AUDIT
GROUP
EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE
GROUP EXECUTIVE RISK
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE
REGIONAL
-1 RISK & AUDIT
COMMITTEES
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Board performance review

In 2013 the performance of the board and its committees was
evaluated using a questionnaire-based self-assessment process which
was then interpreted and reported on by the external cansultancy
(Lintstack Limited) which conducted an externally facitated evaluation
of the board and ts committees’ performance 1n 201 | Reports
generated by this process related to the board, the chairman and each
of the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and CSR committees Lintstock
has no connection with the company other than evaluating the beard
and its committees performance

Following consideration of the report on the board s performance, the
board has agreed a set of primary objectives for its work in 2014 which
will include

— reguiar reviews of businesses within each region including the group’s
nisk services business

scrutinising the group's technology strategy

fDCUSiF‘Ig on suUccession planntng

increased understanding of the group's competitors

increased focus on effectiveness of nternal controls environment

I

— analysis of employee and customer satisfaction

In addwion, the reports considered the performance of the chairman
and each board member and were used to inform the discussion
about the chairman's performance, which was conducted by the
senior independent director without the chairman being present

The chairman has alse conducted discussions with individual directors
which, amongst other things, allowed the chairman to review directors’
training and development needs

The chairman akso held regular meetings with the non-executive
directors without the executives being present

Succession

The Nommation Committee led by the chairman is responsible for
the recrutment of all new members of the board and the board

as a whole discusses succession planning for the board and senior
executives

Director re-electuon

The company's articles of association require that all continuing
directors are subject to election by shareholders at the next annual
general meeting following their appointment and that they submit
themselves for re-election at least every three years and that at least
one-third of the directors not standing for etection for the first ume
stand for re-election at each annual general meeting However, In
accordance with the Code provision on re-elect:on of directors all
the continuing directors will stand for re-election every year

Conflicts autherisaton

Each of the directors has disclosed to the board any situations which
apply to them as a rasult of which they have or may have an interest
which conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the company In
accordance with the company s articles of association the board has
authonsed such matters The affected directors did not vote when
their own positions were considered Where the board deemed 1t
appropriate, such authonsation was given subject to certain conditions
The board reviews such matters on a regular basss
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The company actively seeks to engage with shareholders and, during
2013, servor management had extensive contact via one on one
meetings group meetings and telephone conference calls with
sharehalders representing more than 80% of the share register
across over 200 instrtutions

In November the chief executive and chief financial officer presented
to instrtutional Investors at the group’s annual capital markets update
which 1s wideo webcast and avallable on the group's website Addrtional
resutts meetings are held for the preliminary and half-yearly results
announcements and conference calls are arranged for the interim
managerment statements

The chairman has engaged with major shareholders over senicr
managerment changes and other broader governance issues

The previous and current chairs of the CSR Committee Mark Elhiott
and Clare Spottiswoode and relevant serior executives met wath a
graup of socially responsible investors in Septermber 2013, updating
them on the group’s corpeorate responsibility programme Mark Elliott,
In his capacity as char of the Remuneration Committee along with
senior human resources executves, held a detaled consuliation process
with the companys largest shareholders on proposals for a new
long-term incentive plan

It 5 intended that all the directors will attend, and be available to
answer questions at, the company's annual general meeting which 1s
an important opportunity for commumnication between the board
and shareholders, particutarly private sharehclders At the annual
general meeting the meeting is informed of the numbers of proxy
votes cast and the same information 15 published subsequently on
the company's website

BOARD MEETINGS AND INFORMATION FLOW

Seven scheduled board meetings were held during the year ended
31 December 2013 and there were a further seven additional
unscheduled board meetings These addrional meetings were mostly
called at short notice and 1t was not always possible for all directors
to attend Three of the Remuneration Committee meetings were
unscheduled

One of the scheduled board meetings was an extended two-day
board and strategy session covering presentations on development
and implementation of the company’s strategy The board debated the
company’s strategy and business ptans and the company s strategy was
reviewed again by the board at a subsequent meeting Prior to each
meeting comprehensive board papers are circulated to the directors
addressing not only the regular agenda items on which the executives
will report but also details of any areas requiring approval or decisions
such as significant transactions or events ar important market issues

At each meeting, the board then receves reports from the chairman
the chief executave, the chief financial officer and the company
secretary, an HR report which includes summanes of developments

on HR and health and safety matters and an investor relabions report
which includes analysts' reviews and any comments recerved from
major shareholders since the previous board meeting After meetings
of the board commuttees, the respective cornmittee chairmen report to
the board on the matters considered by each committee In addiion in
months where there 15 no board meeting scheduled, the board receives
trading and financial updates investor relations and HR reports

There are seven board meetings scheduled for the current year
including a two-day board and strategy meeting




Meeting attendance n 2013

| | | |

Governance

Board Board Nommation CSR Rusk Audit  Remuneration
scheduled unscheduled Committee Committee Committee Committee Commitiee
Executive directors
Ashley Almanza
(CEO)) 4 of 4 7of7 I of |
Himanshu Raja
(CFOY® 20f2 20f2 I of |
Nick Buckles {CEO)Y™® 3of3 20f3
Trevor Dighton
(CFO)® 4 0of4 20f3
Grahame Gibson
(Regional CEO
- Americas) 7of7 5of7
Non-executive directors
John Connolly
(chairman} 7 of 7 7 0of7 2of2 1 of 1
Mark Seligman
(deputy chairman) 7of 7 6of7 4 of 4 6ofb
Lord Condon (senior
independent
director)t® 4 of 4 30f3 3of3
Mark Efhott (serar
independent director)
® 7of7 6of7 20f2 2of2 6ofb
Adam Crozier 6of7 6of7 2of2 3of4
Winnie Fok 7of7 6of7 4 of 4 6 of 6
Bo Lerenst 4 of 4 30f3 20f2 20of2
Paul Spence 7 of 7 6of7 20f2 Oof 40of4
Clare Spottiswoode 7 of7 6of7 4of4 5 of6
Tim Weller® 50f5 7of7 ) of | 3of3

I Ashley Almanza was appointed to the board on | May 2013

1 Himanshu Raja was appointed to the board on 7 October 2013

3 Mick Buckles stepped down from the board on 31 May 2013

4 Trevor Dighton Lord Condon and Be Lerenius stepped down from
the beard on 6 June 2013

5 Mark Elliott took over from Lord Condon as sentar independent
director on 7 june 2013

6 Tum Weller was appointad to the board on | Apnil 2013

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE
ASSESSMENT

In refation to compliance with the Code, the board has gven
consideration to whether the annual report and accounts, taken
as a whole, 1s far balanced and understandable

The preparation of the annual report and accounts Is coordinated

by the finance investor relations and company secretanat teams with
group-wade support and input from other areas of the business
Comprehensive reviews were undertaken at regular intervals
throughout the process by senior management and other contributing
personnel within the group The statement reguired to be given by
the directors by Code provision C 1 | can be found on page 83

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the group’s system
of risk management and internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness each year

The system 15 designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

Enterprse-wide pohcies and procedures which are reviewed and
monrtored by the group director of nsk and programme assurance

are in place to identify the key risks faced by each business urit and to
put in place appropnate remediation strategies for any risks determined
to exceed the groups nisk appetite The most matenal risks are elevated
to the board which evaluates their impact on the group's actvities and
reviews any matters which may be considered by the board to present
significant exposure

The groups key risks are summansed In the Strategy section —
Managing risk effectively and Our prinapal nisks in detal on pages 34
to 41

The key features of the group’s sk management process which was
in place throughout the year under review are

— Semor executrves in each business unit and region use a common
risk management framework* to provide a profile of those
risks which may have an impact on the achievement of their
business objectives

— Each significant risk 1s documented in the groups sk management
system, showing an overview of the nisk, its owner, how the rsk
1s managed and any improvement actions Risk appetite/tolerance
i1s considered In the context of the residuat (after controls and
mitigation) nsk with a particular focus on* High net nisks To
be categonsed as High , a risk must meet at least one of the
following critena
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majer Impact on the achievement of the business strategy

serous damage to business reputation

severe business disruption

impact of > 5% on operating profit or assets

The risk profiles ensure that internal audit reviews of the adequacy
application and effectiveness of nsk management and internal
controls are targeted on the key risks

Risk management committees have been established at regional
and group level

Risk and control self-evaluation exercises are undertaken for each
operating company, for most companies at least twice a year, and
updated nisk profiles are prepared Similar exercises are undertaken
as part of the integration process for all major acquisitions The
resufts of the company nsk evaluations are assessed by the regional
risk management commrttees

Both the regional committees and the group executsve risk
committee receve internal audrt reports and regular reports on risks
They monitor the actions taken to manage risks

The process 1s carried out under the overall supervision of the group
exacutive risk commitiee which comprises the group chief financial
officer the group general counsel the group communications director
and the group human resources director The group executive risk
committee reports to the group executive and to the Risk Committee
of the board The process outlined above Is reviewed regularly by the
board through its Risk Committee to ensure fts robustness and
surtability to meet the groups needs

In 2C13 a new board Risk Cormmittee was constrituted This committee
approved a plan for the improvement of the group’s risk management
policies and procedures to be led by the group director of risk and
programme assurance Under this plan the following progress has
been made

~ Rewised terms of reference have been agreed for regional nsk and
audit committees and the executive nsk committee The reporting
arrangements and mnter-relationships between these governance

bodies and the Audit Committee have been clarfied

Regional risk managers with revised, standardised, role descrniptions
have been appointed in each region as well as n the global risk
services and consutting business

A new group risk universe providing greater structure to the
classification of the groups nsk was deveioped

A new methodology for identifying and assessing risks has
been created

An interim risk managernent tool, Incorporating the nisk universe
and new methodology was put into place to capture risk at regicnal
and group level

In January 2014 the regiomal risk and audit committees all held risk
workshops 1o identfy and assess the prnincipal regional residual risks
afresh These risks were recorded in the interim nisk management
tool and provided the basis for identifying and assessing the groups
prinaipal residual nisks presented in this annual report. Mitigation
action plans are being refreshed for all regional and group

residual nsks

During 2014, the nsk management improvement programme
will focus on

— Defining a new overall nsk management approach and revised
sk policy
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- Defining a more precise group risk appetite

— Implementing a new nsk management software tool with
improved mitigation action tracking capabilities and improved
management information and reporting

— Rolling-out new approaches to and policies on risk across the
group

— Implementation of enhanced contract approval and contract
management processes

Further information about the Risk Committee its rermit, work during
2013 and its plans for 2014 can be found on pages 34 to 4|

The internal control system includes clearly defined reporting lines
and authorsation procedures, a comprehensive budgeting and monthly
reporting system and wiitten policies and procedures

In addition to a wide range of internat audit reports senior
management also receives assurance from other sources including
secunity inspections, third-party reviews, company financial controt
reviews external audit reparts, summaries of whistle-blowing activity,
fraud reports and nisk and controf self-evaluations

The group has in place robust internat control and rsk management
systems for financial reporting The group has a single global
consohidation system which 1s used for internal management reporting
budgeting and planning as well as external reporting The group has

a comprehensive budgeting process with the budget being approved
by the board Forecasts for the year are reported at least quarterly
Actual results at business unit, region and group level are reported
menthty and variances are reviewed A programme of business internal
financial reviews 1s performed by a finance team from erther region

or group to check the accuracy of financal reporting and comphance
with the group finance manual

The Audit Committee undertakes a high level review of risk
management and internal control each year As well as the above
processes and sources of assurance, the Audit Committee also
considers the following year end reporting in conducting this review

— Summary of 2013 ntermal audrt work, including an update con all
open audits with a deficient rating analysis of results by region,
commeon audt findings and areas identfied for improvement in
internat controls

Summary of 2013 internat financial reviews, inckiding
significant accounting or financial control issues and common
concerns identified

Overview of yearend financial control status reports completed
by all businesses confirming adherence to group standards, with
any exceptions reported

A broad overview of the general nsk management and internal
controf systems in place during the year

Year-end group risk profile

Rewiew of nsk management processes and of the group's principal
residual nsks by the board Risk Committee

External audit year-end reporting on financial controls
and accounting

The Audt Committee has confirmed that # s satishied that the group’s
nisk management and internal contro! processes and procedures are
appropriate The board has reviewed the groups risk management

and internal control system for the year ended 31 December 2013

by considering reports from the Audit Committee and the Risk
Committee and has taken account of events since 31 December 2013

* Because G45 Government Soluuons, Inc. ("GSI' ) 1s governed through a proxy
agreement under which the group 1s excluded from access to operauonal
mfarmaton it is not subject to the same risk management process as is applied
te other group companies The board has however sausfied nself s to the
adequacy of the nternal control processes adoped by GSI which include
a risk review by an external adviser




THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

IMAGE REMOVED

John Connolly
MNominat:on Committee Chairman

"There have been significant changes to the
board during the year The Nomination
Committee was engaged in selecting and
appointing two new executive directors
In any appointment recommended to
the board, the Nomination Committee
continues to ensure that board membership
represents the wide range of skills and
experience required”

John Connolly

MEMBERSHIP IN 203

The members of the Nomination Committee are John Connolly
(chairman), Adam Crozier and Mark Elott On 24 Jaruary Lord
Condon left the committee and Adam Crozier joined

ROLE

The Nomination Committee 1s respensible for making
recommendations on board appointments and on mantaining

a balance of skills and experience on the board and s committees
Succession planning for the board ts a matter which 1s devolved
prmanily to the Nomination Committee, although the committees
deliberations are reported to and debated by the full board The
board rtself also regularty reviews more general succession planning
for the senior management of the group

KEY ACTIVITIES DURING 2013

Following an evaluation of the board commrttee memberships of the

non-executive directors, proposals for changes were mplemented in
January 2013 Further details of these changes can be found in the
relevant section relating to each committee

Governance

NEW APPOINTMENTS

In 2013, three new non-executive directors were appointed to the
board duning the year having been selected and announced in 2012
through a process led by the Nomination Committee which was
assisted by the external executive search consultant, Zygos Partnership

Through a process led by the Nomnation Committee which was
assisted by the external executive search consultant, Inzito, Ashley
Almanza was appointed as CFO on | May 2013 At the end of 2012,
the board iniiated a succession planning process to search for a new
CFO The chairman of the Nomination Committee led the process
Inzito, which was provided with a detailled brief for the role, undertook
a thorough search The Iist of potential candidates selected by Inzito
was considered by the Nomination Committee, which carried out the
review having regard to the balance of skills expenence and diversity
on the board Candidates who were shortlisted were all interviewed
by the CEO and a smaller number also met with the chairman of

the Nomination Committee and other non-executive directors This
process led to the Normination Committee recommending to the
board the appointment of Mr Almanza as the new CFC The board
accepted the recommendation which resulted in the appeintment of
Mr Almanza on | May 2013

At the time of tooking for a replacement for Mr Buckles, with Inzitos
assistance the board considered the skills and expenence of a range
of potential external candidates as well as those of Mr Almanza

After careful review, the board concluded that Mr Almanza’s wealth

of experience gained from working across internaticnal borders

in complex businesses as well as his expenence of strategic and
operational management would enable him to provide strong strategic
and operational leadership to the group The board therefore approved
Mr Almanza's appointment as CEO

The Nomination Committee then instigated the selection process for

a new CFO 1o replace Mr Almanza Mr Almanza and the group human
resources director interviewed a number of candidates, some of whom
had been seen before, ncluding Hmanshu Raja With Inzito’s assistance
a st of candidates was produced a number of whom were interviewed
by the CEO and by the charmen of the Nomination Commuttee and
the Audit Committee The Nominaton Committee recommended to
the board the appaintment of Mr Raja and he was appointed as CFO
on 7 October 2013

Inzrto and Zygos Partnership each provided recrutment consultancy
services to the Nomination Committee and netther has any other
connection with the company

DIVERSITY

With operations in |20 countries, G45 operates in very diverse
communities and businesses Diversity covers many aspects such

as gender race religion and language as well as background and
experience Our workforce reflects this diversity The board recognises
that the group needs to continue to promote dwversrity In order to
create an organisation that attracts supports and promotes the
broadest range of talent This allows individuals to reach therr full
potential but also to provide the best service to our customers
Driversity is a consideration that forms part of any new recrutment
for and appointment to the board Although appointments will continue
to be made on mertt the Nomination Committee and the board
recognise that the board performs better when 1t Includes members
from varying backgrounds experiences and perspectives Diversity will
therefore continue to be a key consideration when contemplating the
composition and refreshing of the board and semor management,
atthough the beard has no specific targets in relation to diversity
including gender
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THE CSR COMMITTEE

IMAGE REMOVED

Clare Spotuswoode
CSR Committee Chair

"Corporate socal responsibility remains

at the heart of G45' business strategy and
operations | was delighted to become chair
of the CSR Committee in june 2013, taking

over from my predecessor Mark Elliott.

Although CSR matters considered by the

committee are wide ranging, a significant
area of focus for the group and the CSR
Committee 15 to ensure the health and

safety of our colleagues around the world

Sadly, 55 of them lost their lives in 2013

This has been and remains a key concern

for the committee Whilst any employee

fatality 1s unacceptable, we are making good

progress In implementing our heafth and
safety campaigns and strategies, which

include significant work around road safety,

to reduce the number of iInjuries and
fatalibes across our global workforce

In addition, Safety First has been introduced

as a new value for the group and

performance-related objectives, which focus

on health and safety awareness and role
modeling, have also been implemented
This work continues in 2014"

Clare Spotuswoode
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MEMBERSHIP IN 2013

The members of the CSR Committee are Clare Spottiswoade (chair)
Winnie Fok and Paul Spence Bo Lerenius retired from the board and
left the committee following the company’s annuat general meeting on
6 june 2013 On the same date Mark Eliott left the committee and
Ms Spottiswoode became the commitiee's char

CSR Committee meetings are attended by the group communications
director and the group human resources director and, from February
2014 onwards also by Grahame Gibson, one of the executve
directors of the board

ROLE

The CSR Committee 1s responsible for reviewing and monrtonng
the groups CSR strategy This includes developing policies on various
CSR-related matters for consideration by the board reviewing the
acuvities of the executives who are responsible for CSR matters and
monitonng performance of the group against ts pohicies and any
associated targets |t also takes responsibiity for the company s CSR
report.

The companys separate CSR report for 2013 provides more detail on
the groups CSR strategy and the progress it has made dunng the year
A brief summary of some of the 1ssues which that report addresses Is
set out on pages 42 to 47

KEY ACTIVITIES DURING 2013

During the year the commrttee reviewed the content of the company s
2013 CSR report and the results of the CSR materality exercise
undertaken during the year

The committee also oversaw the group’s implementation of a number
of initiatives to improve health and safety for the group's employees
With regard to road safety specifically, which remains a strong area

of focus, Inatives included the ' Drving Foree Rules” campaign which
was piloted in seven countries In addition, the committee oversaw the
introduction of enhanced incident reporting and investigation processes
and the collection of "lost ume ncidert” data

Early in the year, the committee oversaw the launch of human rights
and pohey guidelines throughout the group and will monrtor their
effectiveness

The committee reviewed the effectiveness of communication of the
groups whistle-blowing hothines foliowing which the promotion of
these hotlnes was improved

Mark Elliott, the previous chair of the CSR Committee and Clare
Spottiswoode, the current charr, led a meeting with a group of socually
responsible investors in September 2013 to provide an update on the
group's corporate responsibility programme




THE RISK COMMITTEE

IMAGE REMOVED

John Connolly
Risk Committee Chairman

"Qver the past year we have begun an
in-depth review of our risk management
processes A new Risk Committee, chaired
by me, was created in 2013 The Rusk
Committee 1s tasked with overseeing this
review and the implementation of agreed
changes A speafic group risk management
function, separate from internal audt, has
also been created In September 2013,
Alastair James was appointed as group
director of nisk and programme assurance
1o lead the new function | am confident
that these actions will significantly improve
management of the group’s risks”

John Connelly

| | | | ]
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MEMBERSHIP IN 2013

The members of the Risk Commrttee are John Connolly {chairmany),
Ashley Almanza, Himanshu Raja, Paul Spence and Tim Weller

Other regular attendees include the group general counsel the head of
wternal audrt and the group director of nsk and programme assurance

ROLE

The Risk Commitiee adwises the board on the groups overall rsk
appetite develops the group s nsk management strategy, advises the
board on nsk exposures reviews the levet of msk within the group and
assesses the effectiveness of the groups nsk management systems
The committee s composition ensures that a broad-ranging set of skills
and experience come together to take a fresh look at how the group
manages risk in the business

KEY ACTIVITIES DURING 2013

The board decided last year that it would establish a distinct Risk
Committee to oversee a comprehensive review of the group's
enterprise risk management processes It also decided that the
company would implement more fully the best practice “three lines
of defence " mode! for nsk management, by separating responsibility
for risk management from the group mternal audit function

A thorough review of the effectiveness of the group s nsk management
processes was commissioned and carried out by Deloitte The review
took place in july and August 2013 The Risk Commitiee met in
September 2013 to receve Deloitte s report, discuss the results and
agree a plan of action designed to reinforce the groupss nsk
management approach

The conclusion of the Delostte report was that while the group has in
place a basically sound risk management process there were a number
of areas where improvements could be made A plan was therefore
developed to take forward Delortte s recommendations through 2014
The terms of reference of the Risk Committee were finalised and
agreed by the board

During the year a sub-committee of the Risk Committee met on five
occasions to review major contract bids the risk assocrated with them
and mitigation plans

IN 2014

In March the Risk Committee reviewed the residual risks identified
by each of the regional risk and audit committees The residual risks
were identified as a result of the consolidatron of the risks identified
by these regional committees following a revised methodology rolted
out towards the end of 2013 Further detals of the principal nisks and
uncertanties facing the business are set out on pages 34 to 41

The Risk Comimittee plans to meet at least twice more in 2014 to
carry out the followsng activities

— review progress on the inprovement of the nsk management
approach

— review the groups residual rsk exposure and the progress of
mtigation action plans

— review new and emerging rsks

The Risk Commuittee will consider all significant nsks to the group
not only financia nsks The Risk Committee s role is to support the
Audit Committee and the board in discharging their responsibiities in
raspect of the monitonng, reviewing and reporting of internal control
and risk management.
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Corporate governance report continued

THEAUDIT COMMITTEE

Membership in 2013

The members of the Audit Committee are Mark Seligman (chairman)
Adam Crozier Paul Spence and TmWeller On 24 January 2013
Adam Crozier and Paul Spence became members of the committee
and Lord Condon and Ms Fok left. Tim Weller joined the committee
upon his appointment to the board on | Apnl and Mr Lererus left
upon his retirement following the company's anmual general meetng
on 6 june 2013

The commitiee members were selected for ther breadth of
commercial and financial expertise, necessary to fulfil the Commrttee’s
responsibilities Each member of the Audit Committee brings significant
and relevant financial experience gained at senior management level
Their skills and expenence are set out on pages 48 and 4% The Audit
Committee’s charman, Mr Seligman, and MrWeller are considered by
the board to be the members of the Audit Committee wath recent and
relevant financial experience

Mark Seligman has served as Audit Committee chairman since May
2009 and has been a member of the committee since January 2006
As part of the board's succession plan Mark will stand down as
chairman of the Audit Committee after the 2014 AGM, when the
role will be taken on by Tim Weller Mark will remain a member of
the committee until the end of this year

Audit Committee meetings are attended by the chief financial
officer.the group financral controller the head of group nternal audit.
the company secretary and representatives of the group audrtor
The chairman of the board and the chief executive also attend
meetings from time to tme with the agreement of the chairman

of the commritee

The role and work of the Audit Committee 1s descnbed more fully
in the Audit Committee report set out on pages 61 to 63

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Membership in 2013

The members of the Remuneration Committee are Mark Ellott
{chairman), Winnie Fok, Mark Seligman and Clare Spottiswoode
Rermuneration Committee meetings are attended by the group HR
director the director of compensation and benefits representatives

of the committes’s adviser and the company secretary The chief
executive officer also attends from ume to tme to provide information
and guidance to the committee on remuneration packages for senior
executives within the group The work of the Remuneration Committee
15 more fully described in the Directors' remuneration repart, which
appears on pages 64 to 79 of the annual report

Role

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ali elements of the
remuneration of the executive directors and the charman of the board
and monrtors the levels and structure of remuneration for the senior
management team

The charman of the Remuneration Committee attends the companys
annual general meeting to respond to any questions from shareholders
relating to the Remuneration Committee s actmities
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

IMAGE REMOVED

Mark Seligman
Charrman of the Audit Committee

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,

2013 saw the appoinmment of first Ashley Almanza then Stuart Curl
(on an acting basis) and subsequently Himanshu Raja as chief financral
officer after Trevor Dighton stepped down from that position at the
end of April Starting in May a thorough review of the group's balance
sheet was undertaken and work began on a process of change to
strengthen significantly the groups financial capabiliies This process
was fully supported by the committee, which reviewed and discussed
the outcomes with executive management and the rest of the board

Duning the course of the year the Audit Committee devoted
significant time to reviewing the integrity and quality of the group's
financial reporting The Audt Committee reviewed and assessed the
half-year and full-year exercises refaung to the carrying value of the
group s assets and labilities the effectveness of the internal control
environment and the effectiveness of both the internal audit function
and the external audror Together, these actions increased our
understanding of the overall control environment, and resulted in a
number of decisions intended to further strengthen controls The Audit
Committee concluded that the annual report and accounts was fair;
balanced and understandable and reported this to the board

At the end of 2014 | will have served on the board for nine years and
I will retire from the board at the 2015 AGM Tim Weller will become
charman of the commuttee in my place after this years AGM, thereby
allowing Tin to assume leadership of the external audit tender process
described below

Mark Sehgman
Charrnan of the Audit Committes

31 March 2014

ROLE
The committee’s tasks include

— reviewing the group's financial resufts announcements and financial
statements and monitonng compliance with relevant statutory and
Iising requirements

— overseeing the relationship writh the external auditor, including
discussing with them the nature, scope and fees for therr work
and makang recommendations to the board m relaton to the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor

= montonng and reviewing the effectveness and resourcng of the
group Internal auditing functon

— reviewing the group's whistle-blowing arrangements

| |

Governance

- testing the effectveness of the nsk management procedures
(through reviewsng and considenng reports from the
Risk Committee)

- reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls

— adwising the board on whether the annual report and accounts, taken
as a whole, 1s far, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the company s
performance business model and strategy

~ reporting to the board on how 1t has discharged its responsibilities

MAIN ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
DURING THE YEAR

The committee

- reviewed the company’s annual report, half-yearly results and
preliminary announcement

— reviewed and approved the 2013 external audit plan and recewved
reguiar reports from the external auditor

— reviewed and approved the external auditors fees, including fees for
non-audit services

— recommended to the board the re-tendering of the annual external
audit process as set out on page 63

— considered the effecuveness of the groups intemal controls over
financ:al reporting

— reviewed and approved the internal audit resources and annual audit
plan and recerved regular reports from intemal audrt on the results
of their work

— reviewed provisioning for potential tax habilities
— reviewed the committee s terms of reference
= reviewed whistle-blowing reports and actions taken

— carned out an externally faclitated self-assessment of
its performance

— considered the sigruficant 1ssues below

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES CONSIDERED BY THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The primary areas of jJudgement considered by the committee in
relaton to the 2013 finanaal statements and how these were
addressed were

Presentation of the income statement

In order to provide a better understanding of the undertyng
performance of the business for the half-yearty and {ull-year results
management presented a view of the undertying results of the
group with separate disclosure of restructuring charges and other
specific tems

The commitiee discussed the rationale with management and with
the external auditor and concluded that separate presentation of
restructuring charges and other specific items provides users of the
groups financial statements with added clarity and transparency and
therefore facilitates a clearer assessment of the group's performance
over time The commuttee confirmed that appropnate accounting
policies controls and guidance on the constituents for specific terns
were In place and would be applied robustly in future years.
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Audit Committee report continued

Risk of management override of internal controls

The group operates In a large number of diverse locations and has
a decentralised management structure with 2 significant number of
local financial systems and processes which could potentially lead
to management overnde of internal controls in the absence of
group oversight.

The committee assessed the overall control emaronment of the group,
reviewed and approved the group internal audit plan for the year as
well as internal audit reports provided interviewed senior management,
and reviewed cther controls including whistle-blowing arrangements
The committee also exarined significant accounting estimates and
Judgements and the supporting documentation for evidence of fraud

or bias that may represent a risk of material misstatement, and satisfied
itself that the risk of management override of internal controls 15

not matenal

Review of the carrying value of assets and habilities

Foliowing the appointment of Ashley Almanza as chief financiat officer
n May 2013 and subsequently as chief executive officer n June 2013,

a balance sheet review was undertaken of the carrying value of

the group’s assets and liabiliies in advance of the half-year results
Following the appomntment of Himanshu Raja as chief financial officer in
October 2013, a further and more detaled exercise was carried out.
The commrttee had extensive discussions with both management and
with the external audrtor which was asked to include the balance sheet
review as part of the audit's scope and report to the committee

Note 8 to the financial statements provides the detadls of the assets
that have been written down as a result of this exercise In finahsing the
year-end results the committee scrutimised the proposed adjustments
and recewved assurance from management and the external auditor
that the review was comprehensive and complete and that the revised
estimates took account of current circumstances The committee was
satisfied that the adjustments made were balanced and reasonable

Review of contracts

The group delivers outsourcing services that can be complex in nature
and may be governed by unique contractual arrangements There 5 &
risk that revenue from these contracts 1s not recognised in accordance
with contractual entrtlements and therefore provisions may be
required for refunds due to inaccurate biling and revenue recognition
During the year, the group was subject to a number of inquiries in
relation to the accuracy of billing and services provided on some
specfic UK Government contracts most notably the investigation into
the electronic monitoring contracts where the Ministry of Justice
alleged the group had overcharged for certain aspects of the services
Subsequent to year-end, a settiement was reached with the UK
Government which 1s in ine with the provision made at the year-end

During the second half of the year, management undertook a review of
163 contracts across the group The committee tested management on
the underlying principles and application of provisions relating to the
contract portfolio review and was satisfied that the judgements made
were balanced and reasonable

Compliance with foreign ownership rules znd consolidanon

of subsidianes

The group has a diverse set of complex ownership structures, which
are sometimes based upon local laws and regulations relating to foreign
ownership In some instances the group operates through local
structures with imited direct share ownership of the business but
exercses controf through sharehclder agreements Forthcoming
changes to the rules on consolidation require different jJudgements in
deciding whether or not to consolidate the underlying business or to
treat the operation as a joint venture, an associate or an Investment,
as appropriate Dunng the year management carried out an extenswve
exercise to review whether the group is in compliance with local
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foreign ownership rules and whether or not the group holds sufficient
control and influence to support consolidation in the group results This
was a major area of focus in the external audit plan and the work was
reviewed by the external auditor and by the committee

As a result of this review, the committee was satisfied that the basis of
consoldation and joint venture accounting was appropriate for the year
The committee also considered a report on the impact of adopting
IFRS 10, i1 and 12 which came into force on | January 2014 and
approved the enhanced disclosures refating to [FRS 10 || and 12 as
set out in note 3(v) on page 103

Carrying value of goodwill

The total value of the group’s goodwill as at 31 December 2013 15
£2bn and 1t relates to a significant number of acquisitions made
The estimation of the recoverable amount of goodwill supported
by the groups cash generating units requires significant judgement
primarily In relation to the achievability of long-term business plans
and macroeconomic assumptions underlying the valuation process

The committee addressed these matters through receming reports
from management outlining the basis for the assumptions used and
was satisfied with the carrying value of goodwill In additien this matter
15 a prime area of externa! audrt focus

Going concern

The committee considered the group's strategy and the principal risks
and uncertainties reviewed the hquidity postion of the group taking
Into account the significant undrawn but commutted facilities avarlable,
and reviewed compliance with and availability of headroom in relation
to covenants In addition, the committee considered the groups cash
flow forecast for the next 12 months considered a number of stress
test scenanos to assess the robustness of this forecast

The committee was satisfied that the cash flow forecast taking inte
account reasonably possible risk senstivities and the groups current
funding and faalities alongside the group’s funding strategy, shaw that
the group will centinue to operate for the forseeable future In addition
the committee has reviewed the relevant disclosures made in the
statement of directors’ responsibilities on page 83 The committee

has recommended to the board the adoption of the going corcem
statement for inclusion in the annual report and accounts

Oiscontinued operatons

The group often has business disposals underway at any reporting date
There 15 a risk that any such businesses may not meet the group's
accounting policy for presentation as discontinued at the balance sheet
date, ether because they are not a separate major line of business

or because there 1s uncertanty as to the hikefihood of achieving the
sale or the realsable value on disposal The latter requires a fevel of
Judgement due to the range of potential sale prices The committee
reviewed the dassificaton of all discontinued businesses and, following
discussions with management and with the external audrtor was
satisfied that the likelihood of sale was highly probable and that the
carrying value was reasonable based on market muttiples and on
expectations ansing from negotations with potential buyers

Taxavon

The group operates N many tax jursdictions, Including countries
where tax legislation 1s not abways apphied consistently and under some
complex contractual circumstances where the responsibility for tax
arsing 15 not ahways clear

The committee recerved reports from management and the external
audrtor on such issues, challenging them with assistance from external
legal and other advisers and s satisfied as to the judgements made
The committee also evaluated the adequacy of the group s disclosures
about the tax provisions and contingencies at notes 14 and 35 and the
level of estmation due to uncertainty in the tax provisions at note 4




INTERNAL AUDIT REVIEW

The Instrtute of Internal Audrtors suggests that internal audrt functions
are subject to an external assessment at Jeast every five years The last
review of the groups internal audrt function was carmed out n 2009
and updated in 201 [ In May 2013, the committee commuissioned an
independent review of the group's internal audit function After a
selection process which invelved proposals from five firms Delortte
scored highest and was selected to carry out the review

Delortte’s report was considered by the committee in December 2013
The report found that the exsting internal audit function was well
organised and difigent, but that there were areas for improvement
Delortte recommended the strengthening of the internal audit function
and maore emphasis on auditing the “third Iine of defence" activities
Delonte also concluded that, although the group'’s internal financal
review process was well designed 1t could benefit from baing carried
out by finance staff with internal audit reviewing the outcome

The committee accepted Delorttes findings, and adopted a number of
changes including significantly increasing the resources available to the
nternal audd function over the course of 2014 This will enable an
ncrease In the amount of time available for on-site audrts and the
insourcing of testing of internal controls N the UK and of iT auditing
Internal audit's effectiveness will be further enhanced by the
strengthening of regional and country finance functions

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The committee considers the reappointment of the external auditor;
including the rotation of the audit partner; each year and alsc assesses
ther independence on an on-going basis The external auditor is
required 1o rotate the audit partner responsible for the group audit
every five years. The current lead audit partner has been in place for
two years The externat auditor KPMG Audit Plc was first apponted
in 2005

S0 as to ensure that the independence of the audtt 1s not
compromised, duning the year the committee reviewed tts policy on
the pravision of non-audit services Besides its formal audrt function
the external audrtor 1s permitted to provide consultation and due
diligence services related to mergers and acquisitions, audits of
employee benefit plans reviews of internal accounting and control
polices and general advice on financal reporting standards Where the
fees for such services are significant prior approvat of the committee is
required The external auditor Is also prohibited frem prowviding other
services without speofic permission from the committee The provision
of any non-audit services by the external auditor must in any event
comply with the requirements in that regard of the Audiing Practices
Board The commrttee has reviewed this policy and agreed that i

will be amended to allow the external auditor to undertake certan
controls testing activities and any other services with the committes’s
approval which wauld not dimirish the auditor's independence

The external auditor has written to the committee confirming that,

In 1ts apinion, 1t 1s independent The committee discussed the levels of
materialrty used by the external auditor as set out in the report on
page 92 and satisfied itself these were appropriate The committee
approved the fees paid to the external auditor, noting that the external
audit 1s a complex exercise involving over 1,000 KPMG personnel
Details of the fees paid for audnt services and non-audrt services can
be found i note |0 to the financal staternents

Effecuveness of the external auditor

A combination of formal and informal processes is used in the
assessment of the effectiveness of the external audit process
Regular feedback s sought and receved by management from the
businesses within the scope of the external audit At the conclusion
of the year-end audit, this Is fed back to the committee by the group

Gavernance

financal controller where appropriate In addiion the committee has
considered the results of an internal questionnaire about the external
audnor completed by management and members of the committee
The questionnaire included questions relating te the quality planming,
execution and communication of the external audit programme

The commiitee also reviewed the findings of the Financial Reporting
Counal's report on 1is audit quality inspection of KPMG published in
May 2013 Since the assessment of the external audit concluded that
the external audht remains effective and the external auditor remains
independent, the committee racommended to the board that KPMG
should be re-appointed as the group s auditor for 2014 The board
accepted ths recommendation and has proposed a resolution (set
out on page 151) to shareho!ders for the re-appointment of KPMG
The committee also considered whether to tender the external audit

EXTERNAL AUDIT TENDER

KPMG has been the group's external auditor since 2005 As part of
the committee s review of the objectivity and effectiveness of the audrt
process, a detaled assessment was undertaken in 2013 as to whether
the group should consider putting the external audit engagement out
to tender The committee concluded it was appropriate to undertake
a full tender process for external audrit services

The committee has therefore approved a tender process (cutlined
below) which wili be carried out dunng 2014 In the event that KPMG
15 unsuccessful, the board will appoint a successor with effect from the
conclusion of the 2014 audtt, and shareholders will be invited to
confirm this appomtment at the AGM in 2015 i KPMG is successful,
shareholders will have the opportunity to re-appoint the firm as the
group s external auditor at the AGHM in 2015

EXTERNAL AUDIT TENDER

Tender process
— A request for a proposal will be sent to each of the global
audit firms 1n the second quarter of 2014

— A tender evaluation team will be appointed comprising senior
representatives from finance, group internal audit, group
treasury group legal and group tax

— Following a review and evaluation of submissions and
interviews by the tender team a shorthst of prospective firms
will be agreed by the committee and those selected will be
invited to present to the committee

— Members of the board and management will attend to
assist the committee in developing a recommendation for
the board The committee wll make the recommendation
to the board

Criteria

Cetarled critena for evaluation will be developed so as to
incorporate key aspects of the Financial Reporting Council's
Audit Quahty Framework.

Appropriate weighting will be given to

— organisation capability and service delivery — including
fully integrated global coverage, industry experience,
in-depth appreciation of the group’s nsk ervironment
and techrucal expertise

— audit quality — including quality assurance and compliance
procedures commitment to innovation and value-add audit
methodology partner rotation and succession planning

— audit approach — including audit planning and scope
maternialty and nsk focus, and

— team capabidy and fit — including expenence continuty
culture team structure and supervision
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Directors’ remuneration report

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

IMAGE REMOVED

Mark Elliote
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,

In what has been a year of great change for the group, the
Remuneration Committee has dealt with both the actvities that
accur in the normal course of events and those driven by changes
in leadership and regulation

COMMITTEE OPERATIONS

As announced in last year's report, Lord Condon retired from the
board at the AGM held on 6 june 2013 and thus | assumed the role
of chairman of the committee In addrion Winnie Folc joined the
commuttee n January 2013

As 1s best practice, the committee performed a formal review of its
performance by collecting feedback from committee members and
those associated with committee proceedings In summary, the review
found that the commuittes performed well but that we have the
opportunity to Improve In a few key areas such as greater involvement
in the operation of incentives schemes across the group and In
engagement with all of our stakeholders We developed plans to
enhance our performance and will monrtor our improvement. In

those areas as part of this review

In addrtion, we regularly review our terms of reference to determine

if they continue to reflect best practice We have recommended to the
board minor updates to reflect ocur intent to more closely monitor
vartable pay plans across the organisation's top 220 senior managers
Our terms of reference continue to be avallable on our webste

The committee executed a formal review of its advisers in September
and saw presentations and terms from three firms We selected
Deloitte to become our new adwvisers effective from October 2013
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2014 REMUNERATION

The committee had two strategic 1ssues to manage during the year
The development of a remuneration policy for approval by our
shareholders and the creation of a new long-term incentive plan given
the impending expiry of the plan approved in 2004 The policy 1s
presented on pages 65 to 72 of this report The proposed Long Term
Incentve Pran (LTIP) 15 presented on pages 66 and 67 as well as

page 78 of this report and a summary of its rules 1s contained in

the Appendix to the Explanatory Notes to the AGM natice on

pages 156 and 57

While the policy will not formally take effect until approved by the
shareholders at the AGM on 5 June 2014, we intend to operate within
that poficy beginning immediately

The cornmittee consutted with 15 of the company's fargest
sharehelders and a number of key shareholder representative bodies
in the development of both the policy and the LTIP In particular the
new LTIP was ahered to reflect

a desire for greater transparency in the way EPS is calculated

— achange in our TSR comparator group

a desire to alter the metrics so that EPS 15 balanced with TSR and
a third metric akgned with our strategy We selected a cash flow
metric which aligns with our strategic intent to reduce debt and
to invest in organic growth

— an increase In the shareholding requirement for executive directors

We believe the result 1s a plan which is better aligned with our strategy
and with shareholder interests

The committee believes the proposed policy and plan outlined in this
report will allow us to attract and retain top talent for executive roles
and will Incentivise behaviour and performance aligned with

our strategy and shareholder interest

As part of the annual salary review process the committee determined
that the CEO's salary would be increased to £8%0.000 with effect from
| January 2014 Salares for other executive directors were unchanged
An lllustration of the effect of cur remuneration policy duning 2014 can
be found on page 71 of the following report

PAY DURING 2013

The committee was iInvolved i approving the terms agreed with
Messrs Buckles and Dighton upon therr departure dunng the year
ard the employment terms for their replacements The terms agreed
with Messrs Buckfes and Dighton simply reflected their contractual
entittements There were no additional payments nor was there any
accelerated vesting of outstanding awards Further details are set out
on page 76 of the report

In recrurting new executives the committee considered a number of
factors {including external market practice, nternal relativities indmadual
experience expertise and the requirements of the role) In the case

of Ashley Almanza he was first recrurted as the chief financial officer
from | May 2013 and was awarded a salary commensurate with the
position and variable compensation and benefits as reflected n cur
policy When he was promated to chief executive n June 2013, his
base salary benefits and vartable compensation were increased

to reflect bis additional responsibility No further payments were
committed or made




Following Ashiey's promotion to chief executive officer Himanshu Raja
was recrutted as chief finanoal officer His base pay 15 equal to that paid
to Ashfey Almanza whilst he was chief financial officer

The directors service contracts are avallable for inspection by
sharehalders

No bonuses were paid to executve directors n March 2013 for the
year 2012 Having reviewed performance for 201 3, Grahame Gibson
Regronal CEO — Americas was awarded a bonus of £103,000 and
the committee used some discretion to determine that bonuses

of £648,000 and £234,375 will be paid to Ashley Almanza and
Himanshu Raja respectively, in recognition of their significant business
achievements since joining the group

In Ashley Almanza's case, he assumed the role of CEO in a tme of
great uncertainty The board asked him to focus on identifying root
causes of issues that had led to our profit warning in May and to
prioritise the correction of those issues in a sustainable manner We
asked him to stay equally balanced on delivering quality undertying
operating results that would set the foundation for sustanable growth
going forward Given his assumption of the CFO role :n May and then
the CEQ role in june the committee concluded that the underlying
PBITA of £442 million, as presented In the results, was "at target for
the financial portion of his bonus For the partion of his bonus based
on non-financial objectives, the committee, and indeed the whole
board was highly satisfied with the rate and pace of progress and the
committee therefare awarded him the maximum quantum The bonus
was prorated to reflect tus nine months of employment by the group
which resulted in the £648,000 payment

In Himanshu Raja’s case given he did not join untit October; the
committee concluded that his prorated bonus would be awarded
based on a set of non-financal objectives that agan addressed the
immediate need to deal with underlying financial and risk management
processes In a manner that would correct root cause 1ssues uncovered
during 2013 Agan the board and the committee were highly satisfied
with the significant progress he made m three months Therefore we
judged his performance to deserve a maximum prorated bonus of
£234,375

In accordance with the plan rules a portion of these bonus payments
will be deferred for three years and paid in shares

In Grahame Gibson s case, there was no payment for the financial
porticn of his bonus since his financial targets were not achieved
However, he met a number of his non-financial objectives in relation
to talent management, succession planning portfolio management and
i preparing our US businesses for the introduction of the Affordable
Care Act. Therefore Graharme was awarded a bonus of £103,000
payable in cash

Meore iInformation ¢an be found on the committee’s deliberations of
these bonuses on page 73 of the report

Executive directors are also eligible for long-term ncentive awards
afthough there was no vesting In relation to the awards made in
2010 and 201 } which would have vested in March 2013 and
March 2014 respectively

We hope that you find this years remuneration report informative
and that we wilt enjoy your support on all of the remuneration-related
votes at the 2014 AGM

Mark Elliott
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

31 March 2014

| | |
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OUR REMUNERATION POLICY

The commitiee reviews the company's remuneration policy for
directors regularly to ensure that it remains aligned with the company s
strategic objectives, in ine with best practice and suttable 1o attract and
retain high calibre individuals whilst rewarding performance farly

When reviewing and setting the policy the commrttee takes account
of the overall approach and structure of employee reward across the
group, pay decisions for the wider workforce as well as the resutts of
relevant benchmarking data It 15 the committees intention that pay
should also reflect responsibility attached to the role fulfilied, indwidual
performance and other relevant market information Shareholders are
consulted from time to tme on the remuneration policy, for example
where a significant change to the policy I1s proposed

When setting the policy, the commuittee 15 mindful of the need to have
a remuneration framework which not only provides the ability to
attract and retain high calibre executives but also motivates executives
and rewards the delivery of supertor performance The strong link
between executive reward and the group's performance alignment of
the interests of the executives and the shareholders, and provision of
incentive arrangements which focus approprately on both annual

and longerterm performance are at the heart of the policy Overall
the commrttee remains intent on achieving rernuneration levels which
provide a market competitive base salary with the opportunity through
the company’s Incentive schemes to achieve earnings commensurate
with the delivery of superior performance

The pelicy on remuneration of directors 1s set out on pages 66
to 72 and a separate resolution to approve this will be put to the
shareholders at the company’s annual general meeting on 5 june 2014
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

FUTURE POLICY TABLE
This remuneration pelicy will be effective from the day after the 2014 AGM

Remuneration policy for executive directors

Purpase and link
10 strategy

Cperation

BASE PAY

Base pay Is set at competrtve
levels in order 10 recrurt and
retain high calibre executives
with the skils required in
order to manage a company
of the size and global
footprint of G45

The level of pay will reflect a
number of factors ncluding
ndradual expenence
expertise and role

Rewviewed annually and fixed for 12 months commencing | January Intenm salary reviews may be camed out following significant changes n role
scope or responsibility or at any other ume at the commitiee s discretion

The finak salary decision may also be influenced by role expenence indmdual and company performance internal relatmtes and increases for
group employees.

BENEFITS

As with base salary a sutable
range of benefits 15 made
available in order to recrutt
and retain high calibre

Executees are entitled to a number of benefits cornprising pard holiday heaftheare for themselves and ther famdy and hfe insurance of up to four tmes
base salary car allowance business-related transport, bmited financial advice from time to time expatnate benefits where relevant A relocation
allowance reflecting reasonable costs actually incurmed wilt be paid Other bencfits may be granted at the discreton of the Remuneration Committee

Reasonable business expenses in ng with GAS expenses poly (e g travel accommodation and subsistence) will be reimbursed and in some instances

executives
the associated tax will be borme by the tompany
ANNUAL BONUS
Rewards the achievement of  Awarded annually based on performance i the year Targets are set annually and relate to the group and/or the business managed by the executive

annual financial and strategic
business targets and delvery
of personal objectves

Deferred element
encourages long-term
shareholding and discourages
excessive nsk taking.

Bonus outcome s determined by the cormmittee after the year end based on annual performance against targets

Benuses are paid in cash but executives are required to defer any bonus payable in excess of 50% of theirr maximum bonus entitlement Into shares
Deferral 1s for a mirmmum penod of three years Drdends or equivalents accrue during the deferral penad on deferred shares.

Benuses are not pensionabie

LONGTERM INCENTIVE PLAN (NEW)

Incentrvises executves 1o
achieve the companys
tong-term financual goals

as well as focus on value
creation whilst ahigning the
interests of executves with
those of shareholders

Executve directors are granted awards on an anrual basis, which vest over a peniod of at feast three years subject to conbinued service and
the achievernent of a number of (currently three) key perforrnance measures

The Remuneration Commitiee reviews the quartum af awards to be made 1o each executive each year to ensure that they reman approprate
Dnadends or equivalents accrue dunng the vesting penod on awards that vest.
The award 15 settled by the transfer of market-purchased shares to the executive directors

All the released shares (after tax} must be retained until the minimum shareholder requirement 1s met. Currently the mnimum sharehalding
requirement 15 200% of base salary for the CEQ and 150% for the other executive directors

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As with base salary and other
benefits making availlable a
surtable retrement benefits
package ads the recruitment
and retention of high calibre
exacutives allowsng such
executrves to provide for
their retrement,

GAS operates a defined contribution group-wade personal pension plan in the UK in which executrves may participate Alternatively G4$ may provide
a cash allowance n heu of a contrnbuton inte such plan

The current executive directors recerve cash allowances The CEO recerves 25% of base pay as a cash allowance the CFO recewes 20% of base pay
and the other ececutive director recerves 40% of base pay reflecung his fistoric pariaipation in a defined benefits plan wiich has been closed

The level of aw~ard s kept under review by the committee and 5 intended to be broadly market comparable for the roles.
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Maximum opportunity

Performance measures and clawback

Actual base pay for each executve director s dsdosed each year in the
Dhrectors remuneration report.

In determinng salary increases, the committee considers market salary
levels mduding those of appropnate comparator compares,

Ordinanly anrual salary increases would be no more than the average annual
increases across the group However in exceptional circumstances a higher
tevel of ncreases may be awarded for exampie

« lellowing a significant change 16 the nature o1 scale of the business, or

* lollowing a significant change to the nature or scope of the role or

« for a new appomtment, where the base pay may intially be set below the
market level ard ncreased over ime as expenence develops and wrth
reference to the ndnaduals performance n the first few years in the role

‘Where exceptional increases are made we will flly disclose and expiain the
ratonale for such Increases.

None although mdmdual performance may have a beanng on salary increases.

Maximum benefits per director per annum

* holdays — 30 days

*+ car allowance ~ £20000
business related local transport — £40000

+ for financiat advice expatriate bencefits and relocation expenses the expense
will reflect the cost of the provision of benefits from ume to time but wilt be
kept under review by the commrttee

+ other benefits granted &t the discretion of the committee up to 3% of base
pay per annum per director

+ reasonable business expenses which are reimbursed are not subject to a
mMaximum sice these are nat a benefit to the director

Any allowance m relation to refocauon will provide for the resmbursermnent
of reasonable costs incurred.

None

Maamum opportunity of | 50% of base pay per annum for the CEQ and
the CFO

125% of base pay per annum for any other executrve director

Typrcatly executve directors bonus measures are werghted so that.

= between 7% and B5% of the bonus 15 based an achievernent of chaflenging financial performance
measures {c g, profit before tax and amortsation organd growth cash flow measures etc )
with ¢ach measure operating independently of the others and

= the remamder 15 inked to pet sonal and/or non lnancal measures wiich are strategic
or operational in nature

Each year the commuttee may use s discretion 1o vary the exact number of measures as well
as therr relative weightings and this will be disclosed in the annual remuneration report.

As a result of the number of factors taken into account in determining bonus, there 15 no mineum
pay out level, For iflustrative purposes, in the event that only threshold has been achieved pay-out
would be 35% of maumum, nsing 1o full pay-out should achievement of a stretch performance levet
be achieved for all measures assuming the non-financal performance measures were saished

The deferred element of the bonus & not subject 10 any further performance measures but 5
subyect 1o dlaw back i certan arcumstances The non-deferred part of the bonus. which s settled
in cash, 15 also subject to claw-back (see separate secuon below on page 68)

Maximum oppertunty of 250% of base pay per annum for the CEQ

Mammum opportunity of 200% of base pay par annum for the other
executive directors.

Awards vest based on performance over a period of at least three financal years commenaing
with the financial year n which the award 1s made

Performance will be measured based on a combunation of eamings per share growth, total
sharehalder return aganst a comparator group and average operating ash flow For awards made in
2014 these will be n the proporuon of 40%, 30% and 30% respecuvely However the commitiee
retains the flexibiity to amend these proportons, provded that no single measure will be a
significantly greater proportion than the others.

At threshold, 25% of the relevant portion vests. This increases on a strasght-lne basis up to 100%
for performance m Ine wath maxamurm Targets are set out on page 78

Awards are subject 10 daw-back i certan crcumstances (see separate section below on page 68)

Maxmum opportunity of up to 25% of base pay for the CEQ and 20% for
the other executive directors save that 40% of base pay per annum is payable
to Grahame Gibson

None
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration policy for non-executive directors

Purpose Operation

Maarnurn opportunty

CHAIRMAN'S FEE

To attract and retan a high calibre charman by offering
a market competitive fee which aiso reflects the
responsitrliues and time commitment There are no
performance-retated elements

The charrmans fee 1s disclosed each year in the
Directors remuneration report. The fees are reviewed
anrually by the committee The annual fee 1s an all-
nclusive consoldated amount The committee retans
the discretion to review the charman s fee at any other
ume if approprate

The chairman's fee are reviewed aganst those of other
companies of a smilar size

Ordinanly any increase of the charman's fee would be n
ne with increases for similar roles n other companies

Fees payable to the chairman and other non-executive
directors n aggregate per annum shall not exceed the
masarnurn specified in the companys arucles of association
for the relevart year

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ FEES (EXCLUDING THE CHAIRMAN)

To attract and retain fugh calibre non-executive directors NED fees including any addmonal fee for amy addinenal
(MNEDs) by offering market competrtve fees which role isted below are disclosed each year in the
should reflect the responsibilities and time commitment.  remuneration report.

There are no performance related elements
With the exception of the charman the fees for NEDs

are structured by compasion bulld-up consisting of
* abase fee

* an addiional fee for chainng a cormmittee

» an adduonat fee for the role of deputy chairman

+ an addricnal fee for the role of senior
ndependent director

The non-executve director component fees are reviewed
annually by the executive directors The board retains

the discretion to review the NED fees at other times

as appropriate to reflect any changes in responsibiliies
or commitment

The basic fee covers committee membership and each
NED 15 expected to partpate in one or more board
cornmittees All the fees are reviewed against those of
ather companies of a similar size

Ordinanly any increase of the non-executive directors fees
waould be in ine with other mereases for srmilar roles in
other companies

Fees payable to non-executive directors {inchuding the
chairman) in aggregate per annum shall not exceed the
maxamum specified in the companys artcles of assocation
for the relevant year

BENEFITS

Reasonable business expenses in bne with G45 expenses
policy (e g travel accommodation and subsistence) will be
reimbursed and in some instances the assouated tax will

Benefits may be provded from bme to tine n
connection with the charman and other NEDs

Reasonable business expenses which are reimbursed are
not subject to a maximum since these are not a benefit
to the director

performing their roles such as business travel
subsistence and ertertamment, accommedatcn
and professional fees for tax and socal securtty
complance and other ancillary benefits

be borme by the company

Benefits and expanses will reflect the actual cost of
the provision

Notes to the future policy table

| Performance measures

Annual Bonus Plar — The actual performance measures and targets
are set by the Remuneration Committee at the beginning of each year
The performance measures used for our annual bonus plan have been
selected to refiect the groups key performance ndicators. The
commuittee aims to ensure that the measures appropriately encourage
the executive directors to focus on the company's strategic annual
prioribies whilst the targets are set to be stretching but achievable

The aim 1s to strike an appropriate balance between incentsvising annual
financial and strategic business targets, and each executive director’s key
role specific objectives for the year

Long Term Incentive Plan — In choosing the performance measures for
the proposed new Long Term Incentive Plan, the committee ams to
find a balance of measures which reflect the company's long-term
financial goals as welt as incentivise executives to create sustainable
leng-term value for shareholders

Legacy plans — The committee reserves the right to make any
remunerat:on payments including payments for loss of office
notwithstanding that they are not in ne with the policy set out above
where the terms of the payment were agreed (1) before the policy
came into effect or (i) at a time when the relevant indvidual was not
a director of the company and, in the opinton of the committee, the
payment was not in consideration for the indwidual becorming a
director of the company For these purposes, payments may include
the committee satisfying awards of variable remuneration In cases
where all or a part of the vanable remuneration award was in the
form of shares the payment terms are those agreed at the tme the
award was granted
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In particuar awards made under the previous Performance Share Plan
will continue to vest in accordance with the rules of that plan and to
the extent that the relevant performance tests are met Cetalls of the
vesting of the awards will be published in the annual remuneration
report each year

The non-executive directors do not participate in any incentive
schemes nor do they recewve any benefits other than those referred
to In the above table

2 Changes n period

Buring 2013, a new CEQ and CFO were appointed No changes

were made to the remuneration policy in effect during the previous
year and the new CEO and CFO were recrurted sn lne with the
existing remuneration framework. Whithout the influence of the historic
participation s a defined benefit scheme, the new hires were recrurted
on a lower pension cash allowance than the previous CEO and CFO

3 Malus and claw-back mechamisms

Since 2010 any cash and/or shares awarded under the annual bonus
plans and the current Performance Share Plan may be subject to
claw-back The proposed new Long Term Incentsve Plan and the current
annual bonus plan may be subject to malus or claw-back from the
executve director concerned if the Remuneration Committee so
determines and in the case of misstatement of accounts where the
Audit Committee concurs The tme period in which the claw-back can
be operated depends on the reason for the overpayment Please see
the explanatory table on page 69
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Annual Bonus Plan (including deferred elements)

LTIP

2013 Plan

2014 Plan

Current PSP rules Proposed new LTIP

up to 2 years after the
payment of the cash
element (regardless
of the reason)

Materal rmisstatement of group
financial accounts

up to 2 years after the
payment of the cash
element

up to 2 years
after vesting

up to 2 years after
vesting (except where
due to fraud or reckless
behaviour when rt shall
be & years after

vesting)

Misconduct up to 6 years after up to 6 years
the payment of the after vesting
cash element

Fraud unhrmited untimrted

The amount to be clawed back directly from the executve director will  SERVICE CONTRACTS

be the overpaid amount, but the Remuneration Committee retains the
drscretion to claw-back the “net (1e post-tax) amount of the award
recenved by the executive director

PRINCIPLES AND APPROACHTO RECRUITMENT AND
INTERNAL PROMOTION OF DIRECTORS

When hiring a new executive director or promoting to the board from
within the group, the commuttee will offer a package that is sufficient
to retain and motivate and, if relevant, attract the right talent whilst

at all tmes aming to pay no more than 1s necessary Ordinarily,
remuneration for a new executive director will be in iine with the
policy set out In the table abave However, discretion may be required
for exceptional circumstances such as dealing with remuneration
relinguished in a previous job The maximum level of on-going varable
pay that may be awarded to new executive directors on recrutment
or on promotion to the board shall be imited to 400% of base salary
as set out In the policy table above {calculated at the date of grant,
excluding any buy-out awards — see below) Remuneration and any
buy-out arrangements wifl be announced as far as possible at the time
a new executive director or chairman 15 appointed or in the following
Directors’ remuneration report

When determining the remuneration of a newty-appointed
executive director; the Remuneration Committee will apply the
following principles

— The on-going rermuneration package to be designed in accordance
with the policy table above

— New executive directors will participate in the Annual Bonus
Scheme and Long Term Incentive Plan on a similar basis to existing
execuuve directors

— The Remuneration Committee shall have discretion to grant
one-off cash or share-based awards to executive directors where
it determines that such an award is necessary to secure the
recrutment of that executive director and where it 15 In the best
interests of the company to do so Such awards would only be made
as compensation for remuneration relinquished under a previous
employment {1e buy-out arrangements) and would be intended to
mirror forferted awards as far as possible by reflecting the value
nature, time horizons and performance measures attached In such
crcumstances, the company will disclose a full explanation of the
detall and ratronale for such one-off award

— In certain arcumnstances it may be necessary to buy out long notice
periods of previous employment

— With regard to (internal prorotions, any commitments made before
promotion and unconnected with the indwvidual’s promotion may
continue to be honoured even If they would not otherwise be
consistent with the policy prevaiing when the commstment 15 fulfitled

— For external and internal appointments, the Remuneration
Commitiee may agree that the company will meet certain relocation
expenses (Including legal fees), as set out in the policy table

— in determining the approach for all relevant elernents, the
Remuneration Committee will consider a number of factors,
including (but not imrted to) external market practice, current
arrangements for existing executive directors and other
internal refatvities

Shareholders are entitled to inspect copies of executive directors’
service contracts at the company’s head office and annually at
the AGM

Executive directors’ service contracts all have the following features

- Contracts are drafted in Ine with best practice at the tme the
executive directors were appointed

— Terminable an 12 months' notke by either party

Speaific provisions far Ashley Almanza and Himanshu Raja’s contracts
(dated 2013) that are not in Grahame Gibson s contract (dated
2006) include

— Following board approval, Ashley Almanza 1s allowed to hold two
external non-executive appointments (he is currently a non-
executive director of Noble Corporation and of Schroders plc)
and retain the fees paid directly to him for the appontments
Himanshu Raja 1s allowed to hold one external non-executive
appointment and retain any fees paid directly to him for the
appontment Grahame Gibsons contract does not specifically
deal with NED postions, which will therefore be subject solely
to board discretion

— Mitigation obhigaticns on termination payments are explicitly included
in the 2013 contracts Notice payments for Ashley Almanza are
payable monthly and those for Himanshu Raja are payable in two
s monthly nstalments payable in advance

There are no express mitigation provisions in Grahame Gibson'’s
contract

Non-executive directors’ letters of appointment

— Appointment Is subject to the provisions of the articles of
assoclation of the company as amended from time to time regarding
appaintment, retirement fees expenses disqualfication and removal
of directors

— All continuing non-executive directors are required to stand for
re-election by the shareholders at least once every three years
although they have agreed 10 submit themselves for re-election
annually i accordance with the 2012 UK Corporate
Governance Code

— Initial period of appointment i1s two years
— All reasonably incurred expenses will be met

— Fees are normally reviewed annually

LOSS OF OFFICE PAYMENT

The duration of the notice period In each of the executive directors
contracts is |2 months

The Remuneration Committee would consider the application of
mitigation obligations in relation to any termination payments where
such provisions exist in the executve directar's cantract

The contracts do not prowvide for the payment of a guaranteed bonus
in the event of termination Directors (other than Himanshu Raya) will
not be eligibte for bonus accrual during any period of garden leave

In the case of Himanshu Raja, his contract provides for such accrual
afthough any level of payment would depend on the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

The value of the termination payment would cover the balance of any szlary and associated benefits payments due to be paid for the remaining
notice period, the value of which will be determined by the Remuneration Committee The Remuneration Committee would also retain the
discretion to make appropnate payments necessary to finalise any settlement agreement but in exerasing such discretion the Remuneration
Committee will remain mindful to ensure that there 1s no reward for falure

The fees for outplacement services and reasonable legal fees n connection with advice on a settlement agreement may be met by the company

The table below lllustrates how each component of pay would be calculated under different carcumstances

Automatic “good leaver”

Pian categories Treatment for gocd leavers Treatment for other lgavers
Annual bonus {cash element) All leavers other than Executive directors may recenve  Bonus opportunity will lapse
voluntary resignation and a bonus to be paid on the
summary dismissal normal payment date and in

accordance with the agreed
perforrmance measures but
reduced pro-rata to reflect the

time employed
Annual bonus (deferred share element) ¢ Injury, disability or I health Deferred shares may be Deferred share awards
released if the executive shall lapse

* Redundancy
* Retirement

+ Death

director ceases employment
prior to the third anniversary
as a result of one of the good
leaver reasons

= Jermination without cause

= Change of centrol or sale

of employing
or business

company

* Any other circumstances
at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee

Performance Share Plan (current)
* Redundancy
* Retrement

+ Death

= Change of control or sale

of employing
or business

Inury disability or il heaith Awards will vest on the relevant  Awards will lapse

vesting date on a time-
apportioned basis, unless the
Remuneration Committee
determines otherwise and
subject to the achievement of
the performance measures

company

* Any other circumstances,
provided that the
Remuneration Committee
considers there are
exceptional arcumstances

Long Term Incentive Pian (new)
* Retirement
* Redundancy
* Death

« Change of contro! or sale

of employing
or business

¢+ Any other circumstances
at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee

Injury, disabslity or ill heafth Awards will vest on the relevant Awards will lapse

vesting date on a time-
apportioned bass, unless the
Rermuneration Committee
deterrmines otherwise, and
subject to the achievement of
performance measures at the

relevant vesting date
company

The vesting date for such
awards will normalfy be the
onginal vesting date, unless
otherwise determined by the
Remuneration Committee

As directors may leave employment for a wide range of reasons the CORPORATE ACTION

Remuneration Commitiee retains discretion 10 approve payments

where the reason for leaving does not fall precisely within the

prescribed good leaver category The committee will take account of
the directors performance in office and the circumstances of their exit.
The committee will seek to bafance the interests of shareholders the
departing director and the remaning directors Any awards subject to
performance conditions would be assessed at the end of the relevant

period and be subject to tme apportionment
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If the company 1s subject to a change In control the current

adjustment to awards as it may determine to be appropriate

Performance Share Plan and the proposed new Long Term Incentre
Plan provide that awards will vest subject to the performance targets
hawing been satisfied up to the date of the change of control and unless
the committee determines otherwise, time pro-rating On a vanatien of
share caprtal other reorganisation of the company or a demerger of a
substantial part of the groups business, the committee may make such



lllustratons of apphicavon of remunerauon policy

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOGVED

Regional CEO
CEOC CFO - Amencas

Base pay as at
| January 2014 £890000 £625000 £639 483"
Benefits {81408 £98716 £110,152
Pension £222500 £125000 £255793
Total fixed pay £1193908 £848716 £1,005428

* The base pay for the Regional CEC — Americas s calculated using average exchange rates over 2013
The benefits figures include taxable business expenses and the associated tax and NIC payable by the company

The bar charts above set out the effect of the executive directors remuneration policy as it will apply in 2014 and based on the assumptions
set out below

Minimum On-target Maximum
Fixed pay Consists of total fixed pay including base salary benefits and retirement benefits

= Base salary — salary effective as at | January 2014

= Benefits - amount receved by each executive director in 2013 including business expenses
classified by HMRC as benefits but which the company does not consider to be benefits in

the ordinary sense
* Retirement benefits — 25% of salary for Ashley Almanza, 20% of salary for Himanshu Raja
and 40% for Grahame Gibson
Annual bonus No payout 60% of the maximum payout 100% of the maximum payout
(1e 90% of salary for Ashley (1e 150% of salary for Ashley
Almanza and Hmanshu Raja Almanza and Himanshu Raja
and 75% of salary for and 125% of salary for
Grahame Gibson) Grahame Gibson)
Long-term incentives No vesung 25% vesting under the LTIP 100% of the maximum payout

(te 62.5% of salary for Ashley  (re 250% of salary for Ashley
Almanza and 50% of salary Almanza and 200% of salary
for Himanshu Raja and for Hmanshu Raja and
Grahame Gibson) Grahame Gibson)
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

STATEMENTS OF CONSIDERATION OF EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS ELSEWHERE IN THE GROUP

The structure of the executive directors pay policy 15 generally in Ine with the pelicy for remuneration of the sentor management wathin the
group, though the levels of award will be different The performance measures that apply in the vanable element of the remuneration will reflect
the relevant areas of responsibifiies There may be one-off awards for retaining scarce and critical Indmduals below board level

Remuneration of employees gicbally will depend on local regutation and practice taking any collective bargaining agreements into account,

where they exist

Elerments of remuneration

Availabilrty

Fixed Base salanes Available to all employees woridwide
Pensions Avallable to most employees in developed markets
Variable Annual bonus Available to all senior managers worldwide
Long-term ncentive plan Avallable to some senior managers worldwide
Benefits Car or car allowance Available to all semor managers worldwide

Protection insurance

Available to most employees in developed markets

Private Healthcare

Avallable to all senior managers and above worldwide

Across the group the company seeks to pay competitively, taking
into account external benchmarking and internal moderation at
each level to ensure that remuneration i1s in ine with market practice
When determining base salary increases for executive directors, the
Remuneration Cornmiitee pays particular attention to the data at
senior manager level

At GA45, the Remuneration Committee does not normally consult
directly with employees as part of the usual process of determining the
remuneration policy and pay decisions for executive directors and has
not therefore done so in setting this remuneration policy However,
employee surveys are carried out biennally to determine employees’
views of their own pay and benefits, as well as those of colleagues

in general

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

STATEMENT OF CONSIDERATION CF
SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

We are committed to consulting wrth our top shareholders on key
remuneration ssues and we would usually seek to consult prior to

any major ¢hange in policy or practice This helps us to understand any
potential concerns our shareholders may have, and take any views on
board In 2013 and early 2014 we consuited with some of our largest
shareholders and certain shareholders representative bodies in respect
of the proposed new LTIP and the directors’ remuneration policy
Detalls of the consuttation are provided in the Chairman's statement
section of this report.

Furthermore, cur Remuneration Committee charman will be available
to answer any questions and hsten to the views of our shareholders at
the forthcoming annual gererat meeting

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Executive directors

The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration in respect of qualifying services for the 201 3 financial year for each executive
director, together with the comparative figures for 2012 Aggregate executive directors emoiuments are shown in the final column of the table

Base pay Benefits Annual Bonus PSP Pension related henefits Total
£ £ £ £ £

2013 2012 2013 2012 013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Ashley Almanza 600000 na 6] 056 na 648 000 nfa nfa nfa 150 000 nfa  |,459056 n/a
Nick Buckles 345,833 830000 30 095 23551 0 Q 0 4 138133 332000 514,261 | 18555
“Trevor Dighton 221,000 510000 55 471 31749 0 Q 0 0 88 400 204000 364871 745 749
Graharme Gibson 639 483 630286 110152 37223 103 000 0 0 Q 255793 252114 1108428 919623
Himanshu Raja 156,250 nfa 24 679 nfa 234 375 nfa nfa n/a 31 250 nfa 446 554 n/a
Notes

The informzuon relates to the part years during which they have served as executive directors

1. For Ashley Almanza, this includes the period from | April 2013 when he commenced employment and when he was Group CFO from | May 203 (during which ume
has base pay was £625 000 per annum) prior to his appointment as Group CEQ from 1 june 2013 (when his base pay increased to £850 000 per annum)

b For Trevor Dighton, this includes the period when he was an axecutive director, to the AGM held on 6 June 2013 Payments made after that date are thown on

page 76

¢ For Nick Buckles chis 1s up to 31 May 2013 Payments made after that date are shown on page 76
d For Himanshu Raja this was from his appointment date on 7 October 2013 and this includes the period from | October 2013

1 Benefits mclude car allowance business-related trave! healthcare, disabidity and lfe assurance In 2013 for Grahame Gibson the benefits value includes a total value of
£42 290 relaung o flights for hum and his family between the UK and US Benefit values include the costs of overnight accommodauon and meafs which HMRC trears as
a txable benefit and on which the compary will pay 2x i due course although it does not consider such expenses to be benefits in the ordinary sense The grossed-up
amounts are £18914 for Ashley Almanza €8 471 for Himanshu Raja, £18 479 for Nick Buckles £28,695 for Grahame Gibson and £35 218 for Trevor Dighton Benefit
values also mclude business-related local travel costs of £22,528 and £10,224 for Mr Almanza and Mr Raja respectively who bear the tzx themselves

3 The benefic values for 2012 are those from the 2012 znnual report. They do not include estimates of the value of staff entercunment, taxable travel costs and the

assoctared taxes met by the company but these are not expected 1o be significanc.

4 In refauon to the PSP, where the performance measures are substanually complete by the end of a parucular year the value of any award will be reported in the column

for that year

5 Any bonus due above 50% of the individual s maximum bonus enudement 15 awarded as deferred shares which vest after a period of three years
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The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration In respect of qualifang services for the 2013 financial year for each non-executive
direcior together with the comparative figures for 2012 Aggregate non-executive directors emoluments are shown in the last row of the table

Base fee S0 Charr of Committze Deputy Char Benefits Total Total

2013 2012 203 2012 2013 012 2013 2012 2013 012 2013 2012
John Connolly 348 000 195412 nfa nfa nfa na nfa nfa 564 300 348,564 195 741
Lord Condon 24,540 56 800 4,537 10500 7,582 17 550 nfa n/a 4,026 9700 40 685 94512
Adam Crozier 56,800 nfa n/a n/a nfa n/a nla n/a 528 n/a 57328 nva
Mark Elhott 56 800 56800 58% nva 17,550 17550 nfa nfa 12,445 12400 92 691 86795
Winme Fok 56800 56 800 nfa nfa nfa na nfa nfa 36,307 36300 93 107 93 107
Bo Lerenws 24 540 56800 na n/a nfa /a2 nfa nfa 14,050 33700 38590 90520
Mark Seligman S6 80O 56 800 nia nfa 17,550 17550 46,800 46 800 2,556 2.600 123706 123706
Paul Spence S6 80O nfa nfa nfa nfa na nfa nfa 45,530 nfa 102,330 nfa
Clare Spotirswoade 56800 56 800 nfa nfa 9,855 nfa nfa nfa ar: 900 67,527 57672
Tim Weller 41 600 nfa nfa na nfa nfa nfa nfa 417 nfa 43017 n/a
TOTAL 1,007,545 742 053

Notes The above fees were pro-rated where the appointments or retirements were part way through the year

John Connolly was appointed in June 2012,

Lord Condon and Bo Lerenius retired on 6 June 2013

Mark Elott was appointad as chair of the Remuneration Committee and sentor independent director on 6 June 2013
Clare §; d as Chair of the Corporate Socal Responsibility Committee on & June 2013

Adam Crozer and Paul Spence were appomted on ! January 2013

Tirn Weller was appointed an | Apml 2013

Benefit values include the costs of travel avernight accommodaton and meals which HMRC treats as a taxable benefit and on which the company will pay tax in due
course although it does not consider such expenses 1o be benefits in che ordinary sense

P woode was app

N A W N -

8 The only benefits pad for non-executive directors n 2012 were business expenses which HMRC treats as a raxable benefit. Such expenses were not required to be
disclosed in 2012 and so they were not recorded separately for each director Therefore the benefits figures hsted for 2012 are esumated and based upon 2013 data

Ashley Almanza recerved £1 13 000 from Schroders plc and a fee of $33 000 as well as shares valued at $285 000 from Noble Corporation for his non-execuuve
directorships referred to on page 48 and retained such remuneration Mr Almanza uses his annua! leave entitlement for Noble Corporation board meetings

FURTHER NOTES TO THE SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION TABLES

Execuuve directors’ base pay
Ashley Almanzas base pay in 2013 as group CEO was £850 C00
per annum

Himanshu Raja s base pay as group CFO was £625 000 per annum

Grahame Gibson's base pay was last increased i January 2011 He
receives part of his salary in sterling and part in US$ The US$ element
has been converted nto sterling for the purposes of reporting, at the
exchange rates prevaling in each month in which Grahame Gibson
was paid

2013 Annual bonus

In previous years, the annual performance-related bonus scheme

was dependent on profit However during the financial year ending

31 December 2013, the annual benus scheme rules were amended to
include two other financial measures organic growth and cash
generation The organic growth target which s measured against the
budgeted percentage increase constituted 20% of maximum bonus
Cash generation measured against a cash conversion target was 15%
with profit measured by achievernent against budget being 35%
Non-financial strategic objectives linked to the delvery of the business
plan were also introduced These measures were personal objectives
with §5% of maxamum bonus attrnbutable to strategic objectves taken
from the business plan and a further 15% linked to objectives relating
to the organisation such as people, CSR, nsk, values etc Each of the
measures aperated independently of the others

The maximurm bonus entrtlement for the chief financial officer
increased from 125% to |50% of base pay, while the maximum bonus
entitlement for the chief executive (150% of base pay) and other
executve directors (125% of base pay) remained unchanged however
the maximum pay-out 5 only reached when the relevant stretch
targets are achieved

Bonuses are paid in cash up to 50% of ther maxamum entrtiement.
Where the bonus amaount 1s In excess of 50% of the maximum
bonus entitlement, the amount which exceeds 50% wifl be delvered
in the form of a deferred share award which vests after a period of
three years

Payments approved by the committee under the 201 3 bonus scheme
were as follows

For Ashley Almanza gven that he assumed the CEQ role in a time

of great uncertainty in June the board asked him to focus on the
achievement of high quality undertying profit for the poruon of his
borus relating to the financial measures, In view of the part-year for
which Ashley was CEQ we judged his delivery of £442 million of
underlying operating profit aganst a budget of £439 million to be “on
target” For the portion of his bonus relating to non-financial measures
the board asked Ashley 1o complete a thorough assessment of the root
causes for our perfarmance 1ssues and to develop and implement the
changes required for long-term success The commrttee and the board
noted in particular the following performance i concluding that
Ashley has earned a maximum entitlement on the non-financial
element of hus bonus

- Balance sheet — an equity placement in nine days and the
aggressive management of cash-flow allowed us to reduce debt by
£269 million and to improve our net debt to EBITDA ratio to 2 6x
The dentification of underperforming assets with plans to fix or
dispose delvered £124 million of proceeds with more to follow

— Risk management — developed a new sk and assurance organisation
and recrurted professional staff to develop and implement new
contract management processes

— Customer engagement — personally led the work to understand
delivery and brlling sssues with our UK Mo contract. Ashley
personally interacted with the UK Government to understand
concerns and to develop a corporate renewal programme
which when fully wnplemented will regain the trust of this
important custorner

This renewal programme sets the highest ethical standards and
commtment to customer service as the standard behaviour
expected throughout the organisation

~ Leadership — recrurted new leaders for regronal roles and a high
calbre CFO to lead the transformation of the finance organisatson
and #ts process and procedures
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

These scares lead to the following calculated bonus groups transformation programme The committee noted that
excellent progress was made against each of these objectives and
therefore awarded Himanshu a maximum prorated bonus of £234 375
Based on his base pay for a full year's service Hmanshu's maamum
potential bonus would have been £937 500 The payment was prorated
to take account of the perod for which he was employed, namely three
The payment was prorated to take account of the different levels in meonths In accordance with the bonus plan rules half of the bonus will
base pay and the period for which he was employed namely nine be paid In shares, deferred for three years

months £270,000 was therefore paid In respect of non-financial
objectives and £378 000 for the ‘on target” financial achievement.
In accordance with the bonus plan rutes, 30 55% of the bonus paid
will be awarded as shares, deferred for three years

Based on his average base pay Ashley s masamum potential bonus

for a full year's service would have been £1 200 000 in the event of
achievement of a stretch target, 30% of which would be attributable
to non-financial objectives and the remander to financial objectives

For Grahame Gibson, the payment of a bonus under the financial
portion of the annual bonus scheme was dependant on the attanment
of three financial objectives relating to the Americas region {(PBITA
cash conversion and working caprtal reduction) Since the threshold

The board 15 satisfied that Ashley has made very significant progress targets for these objectves were not met, no bonus 1s payable under
in establishing a foundation for long-term sustanable growth of the financral portion Fer the portion of his bonus relating to non-
quality earnings financial measures, Grahame was set a number of strategic objectives

linked to the delivery of the Americas region’s business plan such as
portfolo management and progress on operational and financial
efficencies as well as a number relating to the orgamisation such as
succession planning and progress on health and safety Having met

a number of his non-financial objectives, Grahame was awarded a
borus of £103 000 (paid as $147 717 and £8 608 10), which represents
161 1% of his maximum bonus entrtlement.

Himanshu Raja did not join the group untl October Himanshus
cbjectives included strengthening the group’s audnt and risk
management functions, reviewing and applying balanced accounting
judgements to the group’s assets and habilities and assessing prior
year underlying performance undertaking a financial review of the
group's large contracts portfohio developing and implementing a
successful 2014 budget process and supporting the CEO with the

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN (PSP)

The PSP values shown n the 2013 and 2012 columns of the single figure table refate to the PSP awards made n March 2011 and March 2010,
for the three-year EPS performance periods ended on 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 respectively The performance measures and
targets for these PSP awards are set out below

Two-thirds of each award (2010 and 201 1) COne-third of each award (2010 and 201 1}
Average annual growth in Proporuon of allocauon Ranking against the bespoke Proporuon of allocauon
EPS — Period ending on vesting comparater group by vesting
3| December in the third year reference to TSR
Less than global CPl + 4% pa Nl Below median NIl
Globat CPl + 4% pa {12% over  25% Median 25%
3 years)
Global CPI+ 4 to 12% pa Pro-rata between 25% Between median and Pro-rata between 25%
and 100% upper quartile and 100%
Greater than global CPH+ 100% Upper quartile 100%
12% pa (33% over 3 years)
The table below illustrates the company's performance against the The table below iflustrates the company’s performance against the
2010 PSP award targets and the resulting payout, shown in the 2012 2011 PSP award targets and the resulting payout shown in the 2013
column of the single figure table column of the single figure table
Vesting (% of Vesting (% of
Performance element) Performance element)
Increase of Fall of
Average annual growth n EPS 265% pa 0%  Awerage annual growth in EPS 10 8% pa 0%
Ranked Ranked
between between
9th and [0th |5th and |é6th
Relatve TSR in peer group 0%  Relatve TSR IN peer group 0%
0% of 0% of
Total vesting maximum Total vesting MOEXIMJM
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TOTAL PENSION ENTITLEMENTS (AUDITED INFORMATION)
Nerther Ashley Almanza nor Himanshu Raja 15 2 member of the company s pension plan which

Governance

15 a defined contribution group personal

pension plan available to all UK employees instead they recenve cash allowances of 25% and 20% of their base pay, respectively

Nick Buckles Trevor Dighton and Grahame Gibson have ceased accruing pensions under the company s defined beneiit scheme
A salary supplement in heu of penston of 40% of basic salary was paid Ther pension transfer values in the defined benefits scheme

(all figures are in £000s) are shown in the table below

Total accrued

Total accrued

Pension input  Pension input  annual pension  anmwal penston Date accrual Normal

amount 2013 amount 2012 at 31/12/13 at31/12/12 ceased retrement date
Nick Buckles G 0 [ 4116 S/7/201 | 172/2021
Trevor Dighton ¢ 0 1617 1480 6/472011 307772009
Grahame Gibson 0 0 217 200 6/412006 17/1/2013
Notes

Nick Buckles transferred out the value of his G4S pension benefits on {5 December 2013 The transfer value
the Trusiees of the Pension Scheme for all members

[¥]

was calculated using the same actuaral basss as that used by

In 2011 Grahame Gibson transferred the majority of his penston benefits to a private pension arrangement leaving a residual pension of £20K pa payable from age 60

Grahame Gibson has passed normal reurement daze and the accrued pension shawn includes the applicavon of a late retrement factor

The earliest date when enutlement 1o 2 pension anses without consent and without actuarial reducuon 1s ag
benefits available on early reurement before the normal reurement date

Trevor Dighton has passed normal reurement dace and the acerued pensran shown for both 2012 and 2013 include the application of a late retirement factor

e 60 (the normal reurement date) There are no addivonal

SCHEME INTERESTS AWARDED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (AUDITED INFORMATION}

Awards have been granted each year under the company’s Performance Share Plan (PSP) generally in March after the announcement of the
company's results. PSP awards were made or deemed to be made to the executrve directors in March 2013 save for the additional award for
Ashley Almanza on his appointment as CEQ in accordance with the company's normal grant policy, as shown in the table below

Number of
shares (see EPS TSR
notes below Face value  Performance  Performance  Performance % vesting at
Director Award type for details) (£ condition period period threshold
Ashley Almanza Conditional 777,367 2,151,426 50% TSR/ 01/01/2013  As per note | 25%
shares S0% EPS - 3171272013 below
Nick Buckles Conditional 6922823 2074998 50% TSR / 01/012013 19/03/2013 25%
shares S0% EPS - 31/1202015 - 19/03/2016
Trevor Dighton Condrional 3403021 1019997 50% TSR / G1/01/2013 19/03/2013 25%
shares SO%EPS  =31/122015 - 1970372016
Grahame Gibson Condronal 357611 1071878 S50% TSR/ 01/0172013 19/03/2013 25%
shares S0% EPS - 31/1272045 - 19/03/2016
Himanshu Raja Conditional 347531 1,041,654 S50%TSR/ 01/01/2013 19/03/2013 25%
shares 50% EPS - 31/1272015 - 19/03/2016
Notes

I Ashley Almanza was granted an award aver 417,037 shares on hus appontment as CFO This award had a face value of £1,250 000 based on a share price of 299 733p

On 21 May 2013 a further condmonal share award over 360,330 shares was made when his appointment as

CEQ was announced This award had a face value of

£901,426 based on a share price of 250 |67p The total number of shares awarded was calculated on a pro-raced basis The EPS performance critera are the same

for both awards but the TSR reference penods are different as they refate to the dazes of grant.
Himanshu Raja was granted an award over 347,53 shares on his appomnument as CFO This award had a face

value of £1,041,654 based on a share price of 299 733p

The award 1 calculated on a pro-rated basis bated on 30 complete months (between the appointment date and vesung date) relaoive to three years

Nick Buckles award has been reduced on a ume pro-rated basis to 57 630 shares to reflect the penod from
an executve director

an employee
PSP awards granted in 2013 have the followang performance measures and targets

the date of grant to 31 May 2012 when he ceased to be

Trevor Drghton s award wall be reduced on a ime pro-rated basis to 160 698 shares to reflect the period from dare of grant to 30 july 2014 when he will cease to be

Half of each 2013 PSP award

Half of each 2013 PSP award

Average annual growth in Proporuon of Ranking agains

t the bespoke Proporuon of allocanon

EPS pencd ending on allocation vesung comparator group by vesting
31 December in the third year reference to TSR

Less than global CP1 + 4% pa Nif Below median NI
Global CP1 + 4% pa 25% Median 25%

(11% over 3 years)

Pro-rata between 25%
and 100%

Global CPl + 4 to | 1% pa
upper quartile

Between median and

Pro-rata between 25%
and 100%

Greater than global CPI + 100% Upper quartile

11% pa (33% aver 3 years)

100%
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING AND SHARE INTEREST (AUDITED INFORMATION)

The executive directors are required to build up a minimum shareholding in G45 as explained in the remuneration policy Shares are valued for
these purposes at the year-end price which was 262 5p per share at 31 December 2013

Mumber of shares owned outright

Number of

Share ownership deferred shares  Total shares under Shares vested

requirements Share ownership held as at PSP awards subject  (but unexertised)

(% of salary) 2013 2012 requirements met? /1272013 o performance’ PSP awards

Ashley Almanza 200% 100 000 n/a No 0 777 367 0

MNick Buckles 150% 1 832050 1 832050 Yes 0 795633 0

Trevor Dighton 100% 825 090! 1225090 Yes 45 161 683 143 55291

Himanshu Raja 150% 0 n/a No 0 347531 0

Grahame Gibson 1 S0% 651 682 704 685 Yes 7526 963036 0
Notes

| Deferred share awards and PSP awards de not include the further shares with a value equivalent to the drvidends which would have been pad in respect of shares
received The number of shares is gross and will be subject to tax when they are released

2 In addmion wo the above, each of the directors has a deemed interest in the total number of shares held by the company’s empioyee benefit trust As at 31 December
2013 the trustee of the employee benefit trust held & 934 564 shares (7 589 853 in 2012)

-

respectvely At 31 May 2013 Nick Buckles held 370 568 deferred shares

v oA

Includes any shares owned by connected persons

[=ad

31 December 2013 and the date of this report.

~l

of their respective maxemum bonus enutlement.

There are no requirements for the non-executive directors or
former directors 10 hold shares once they have ieft the company
The shareholdings for non-executive directors are shown below

As at As at

31122012 31122013

John Connoliy 100,000 100,000
Lord Condon' 2,029 nfa
Adam Crozier n/a 4]
Mark Elhott 25,000 25,000
Winnie Fok 20,000 20,000
Bo Lerenius? 16000 nfa
Mark Seligman 75496 75,496
Paul Spence nfa 10,000
Clare Spothiswoode 0 4,681
Tirm Weller n/a 37570

I Interests for Lord Condon shown as at & June 2013
2 Interests for Bo Lererius shown as at 6 June 2013

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS
(AUDITED INFORMATION)

No payments have been made to former directors of the company
during the financial year ended 3| Drecember 2013 other than
those payments set out In the payments for loss of office section

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE
{AUDITED INFORMATION)

Nick Buckles
Nick Buckles was entitled under the terms of his contract to payment
for a 12 month notice period comprising the following elements

— Base pay of £69 167 per month
— Car allowance of £1 667 per month

— Cash allowance in lieu of pension of £27,666 per month
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Number of shares awned outright shown as at 3| December 2013 except for Messrs Buckles and Dighton for whom they are shown as at 31 May 2013 and & June 2013

Shares under PSP awards include awards on a time pro-rated basts for Messrs Buckles and Dighton

On 12 March 20t4 Himanshu Rapa purchased 50 000 shares in the company There have been no changas in the interest of each of the other directors between

The table does not include the deferred shares which will be awarded to Ashley Almanza and Himanshu Raja in respect of the poruon of their bonus which exceeds 50%

The total payment made for his |2 month notice pericd was

£1 182 000 and was paid subject to the normal withholding of payroil
taxes The monthly payments were made up to and ncluding August
In September the balance of the payments relating o the |12 months
notice was paid

Nick Buckles did not receive any bonus payment, nor did he recerve
any award under the PSE, for the duration of his | Z-month notice
period His unvested awards under the PSP were reduced on a time
pro-rated based on the period from the dates of grant to 31 May 2G13

The company paid for the cost of outplacement advice and services
which was £48 000

Non-cash benefits, including medical insurance of £1 892 and a gift
{valued at £12 8%0 exclusive of associated taxes} n recognition of his
long service were also provided to Mr Buckles

Trevor Dighton

Trevor Dighton remained an employee after he stepped down from
the board at the conclusion of the 2013 AGM The terms of his
employment between 7 June 2013 and 30 July 2013 were in respect of
contractual service performed and equalled his nermal monthly salary

Trevor Dighton was served notice on 24 July 2013 i accordance with
his contract of employment pursuant to which he will cease to be an
employee on 3¢ July 2014 Trevor Dighton 1s entitled under the terms
of his contract to payment comprising the following until his departure
on 30 July 2014

~ Base pay of £42 500 per month

— Car allowance of £1 333 33 per menth from | September 2013
following the return of his company car

— Cash allowance in lieu of pension of £17,000 per month

The total payment made for the perod from | August 2013 to 3|
December 2013 was £302,833

The total payment due to be made for the period | January to 30 july
2014 s anticipated to be £425 833

Mr Dighton has nat receved any bonus i respect of the year under
review His unvested awards under the PSP will be pro-rated to
30 July 2014




Governance

PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND TABLE

The line graph below shows the eight-year annual Total Shareholder Return {TSR) performance against the FTSE 100 index The directars believe
this to be an appropnate form of broad equity market index aganst which to base a companson given the size and geographic coverage of the
company and the fact that the company s tself a member of the FTSE 100

2006 — 2013 TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

06 7 a8 o 10 kH 12 13

== 45 =@=FTSE (00 index

CEO’S PAY IN LAST EIGHT FINANCIALYEARS

Year 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013
MNick Nick Nick Nick Nick MNick Nick Nick Ashley
Incumbent Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles Buckles  Almanza
CEO's total figure of annual
remuneration(£'00C)! 1,908 2269 2376 3248 2,823 1542 | 186 514 1,459
Bonus % of maximum awarded 76% 95% 83% 74% 53% 0% 0% 0% 72%
PSP % of maximum vesting 63% 75% 100% 100% 58% | 4% 0% 0% n/a
Notes

Nick Buckles stepped down as CEQ on 31 May 2013 and Ashley Almanza took aver as CEO from | June

2 After July 2011 the CEO's total single figure of annual remuneration included payment in keu of pension This was 40% of base pay for Nick Buckles and 15 25% of base
pay for Ashley Almanza. Prior to july 2011 a nouornal sum equal to 40% of relevant base pay has been included The value of shares that vested in the relevant year under
the PSP {or a national value m the case of shares vested but unexercised) have been included in the prior year's CEQ s total figures singe that 1s the most refevant year
for measurement of performance

3 Prior to 2013 the CEO's toral single figures did not include table expenses

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN CEO'S REMUNERATION RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
The table below shows how the percentage change In the CEC's salary  The table befow ilustrates the relative importance of spend on pay

benefits and bonus between 2012 and 2013 compares with the compared with other disbursements from profit.
percentage change in the average of each of those components of pay Disbursements 2013 2012 Change
for a selected group of G45 employees The Rernuneration Committee Drwidends pad 2130 7190 83%
has chosen alt employees in the UK as the group which should provide vidends pax m il
the most appropriate comparator Total employee
costs £5,441m £5452m -0 2%
Percentage change in remuneration between
3012 and 2013 | There were no share buy-backs effected in either year
Salary Benefits  Annual bonus
CEQ 1 4% 01% See note 2
Average increase for
all other UK
employees 8 2% 7% See note 3

| The CEQ s benefits for 2013 were calculated on a ke for hke basis and
therefare do not include taxable business expenses and grossed up tax and
NIC payable thereon In future years, the comparison will include such taxable
business expenses and the baseline cost for 201 3 will be £84 820

2 There was no bonus paid to the CEQ in 2012

3 Informauon on bonuses 15 not avarable for all ather UK employees

GAS employs more than 618,000 employees globally Inflation is a key
drwver of general ncreases in salary and the structure of the benefits
provided is often driven by the local market practice Hence as the
CEQ 15 based in the UK, employees in the same country rather than
all employees within the group have been chosen as the comparator
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

STATEMENT OF IMPLEMENTATION OF
REMUNERATION POLICY IN 2014

Qur Remuneration Policy for directors as set out on pages 66 to 72
will if approved take effect following the 2014 AGM and will then be
implemented on the basis set out in this report. Some elements of pay
for executive directors forming a significant proportion of the total
reward available, are subject to the achievement of performance
conditions

Base pay

The committee agreed to freeze base pay for executive directors in
2009 and 2010 and again in 2012 and 2013 in view of the economic
circumstances and the pay and employment conditions across the
group For 2014 at the annual pay review, t was decded to increase
Mr Almanza's base pay by just under 5% whilst no change was made
to the base pay of the other two executwve directors

Annual Bonus Scheme

The annual bonus for the financial year ending 31 December 2014

wall be consistent writh the policy detalled in the remuneration poficy
section of this report in terms of the maximum bonus opportunsy,
deferral and claw-back provisions The committee selects for each
executive director, from a range of financial and non-financial measures
which support the groups key strategic objectives The range of
financial measures includes group profit. organic growth and operating
cash flow The non-financial measures are based on the core values
and include the following key areas

Health & safety

— Customer service and retention

People and organisation

— Operational excellence

Business development
— Values .

Between 70% and 85% of the bonus will be based on financial -
measures and the balance will be based on non-financial measures

Details of the performance measures and targets are commercially

sensitive They will be disclosed in the 2014 report when they are

no longer commercially sensitive

Performance Share Plan
Awards will be granted under a new LTIF subject to shareholder
approval at the 2014 AGM

Details of the new LTIP are as set out in the summary of the scheme
on pages |56 and 157

The Remuneration Committee considers that a combination of
earnings per share growth, total shareholder return and cumulative
cash flow targets are the most appropriate performance measures
for 2014 awards as they provide a transparent method of assessing
the company s performance, both in terms of undertying financial
performance and returns to sharehalders

PERFORMANCE MEASURES FOR LONG TERM INCENTIVES TO BE AWARDED IN 2014

40% of each award granted

309% of each award granted

30% of each award granted

Average annual growth
n EPS — Period ending
on 3| December In

Ranking against the
bespoke comparator

Proporucn of group by reference

Proporuon of Average operaung Proporucon of

the third year allocation vesting to TSR allocation vesung cash flow allocauon vesting
Less than 5% pa Nil Below median Nl <105% Nil
5% pa (15% over
3 years) 25% Medhan 25% 105% 25%
Pro-rata between 25%  Between median and  Pro-rata between 25%  Between 105% Pro-rata between 25%
+5 10 12% pa and 100% upper quartle and 100% and 125% and 100%
Greater than +12% pa
{36% over 3 years) 100% Upper quartle 1 00% 125% 100%

The company s current policy I1s to use market purchased shares to
satisfy performance share plan awards The new plan will continue to
do the same

Participarts in the LTIP waill receive a further share award with a value
equivalent to the dwvidends which would have been paid In respect of
future LTIP award vesting at the end of the performance percd

The company calculates whether the EPS performance targets have
been achieved by reference to the company’s audited accounts which
provide an accessible and objective measure of the company's earnings
per share

Adjustments to the EPS will be made in respect of

— Constant exchange rates — which will be normalised 1o the rates in
the base year

— Acquisition — earnings will be added to the EPS base at the leve!
used In the acquistion business case

— Disposal — earnings will be removed from the EPS base at the
business plan rate

— Share buy back — the company will only execute buy-backs if the
investment 1s economically accretive and it 1s in the interest of
the company The adjusted EPS for the purpases of calculating
performance against the LTIP target shalt be further adjusted by

(3} Increasing the average number of shares in issue duning the
performance year by the number of shares bought back during
the past three years
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(b) Decreasing the net interest cost in the performance year in .
respect of the interest charge on the cash cost of any share buy
backs during the past three years Interest will be calculated at
the group's average costs of funds for the year

The Remuneration Committee will apply discretion in the event of
impairment, if the Impairment 1s not a result of management falure
then it does not iImpact the payout

The Remuneration Comrrittee may akter the terms of the EPS measure
if it feels that it 15 no longer a fair measure and 1s no longer Incentivising

Operating cash flow 1s a measure taken before caprtal expendrture
and investments 1o ensure that management 1s not iIncentivised to
under-invest in growth opportunities Cperating cash flow 1s expressed
as EBITDA +/- working caprtal and provisions movement as a
percentage of EBITA Average operating cash flow I1s the average

over three years

TSR ranking will be venfied externally

Non-executive directors’ remuneration

The fees payable 1o the non-executive directors are set by the
executive directors and the chairman The fees payable to the
non-executive chairman are set by the Remuneration Committee
In both cases fees are reviewed mud-year




ADVISERS TO THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For the period to October 2013, the Remuneration Committee
received advice from Towers Watsan Limited as the committee s
appointed adwiser on executive and senior management remuneration
matters After a tendering process, the Remuneration Committee
appointed Deleitte as its independent adviser on |7 October 2013

L |

Governance

Towers Watson has also provided and will continue to provide
management remuneration information in respect of semior
management below the level of the group executive committee

The Remuneration Commuttee has satisfied itself as to the
independence of Defortte Deloitte 15 a member of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and as such, voluntanly operates under the code
of conduct in the UK

Adwviser Services provided to Rem Co Cther services provided to company Fees
Towers Watson Advice on executive remuneration and Provision of market remuneration data for senior
pay benchmarking management and collatron of pension data for
accounting purpeses £51,000
Deloitte Advice on executive remuneration Employment tax advice on expatnate and share
plans along with corporate tax advice and other
consuiting services provided by different parts of
Deloitte £23,25¢
Alithos TSR — vesting indications for in-flight plans MNone
and verifying the TSR vesting percentage and advice
on potential peer group constiiuents £10500

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP {HSF) provided legal advice to the
company throughout the year, including in relation to the operation
of the company’s iIncentive arrangements and on executive directors’
service agreements This adwvice was avallable to be considered by the
Remuneration Committee HSF has also advised the Remuneration
Committee on compliance with the new regulations relating to
directors’ remuneration

The CEC (Nick Buckles to 31 May 2013 and from | June 2013
Ashley Almanza) prowided guidance to the Remuneration Committee
on remuneration packages for senior executives within the group
Further guidance was received from the group’s HR director frene
Cowden and the director of compensation and benefits Sok Wah Lee
Neither the CEO nor the HR director participated in discussions
regarding their own remuneration

The Remuneration Committee 15 satisfied that the advice it received
during the year was objective and independent based on the
experience of its members generally

The table below sets out the members of the Remuneration
Committee who were present dunng any consideratton of directors
remuneration, and shows the nurmber of meetings attended by

each director

Name Number of meetings attended
Lord Condon 3/3
Mark Elliott 6/6
Winnie Fok 6/6
Mark Seligman &/6
Clare Spotuswoode 5/6

STATEMENT OF VOTING AT GENERAL MEETING

An ordinary resofution to receive and approve the Dhrectors
Remuneration report contaned in the annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2012 was passed at the company's annual
general meeting which tock place on 6 June 201 3, with 78 4% of the
votes In favour and 21 58% aganst. 28,733 156 votes were withheld

It 1s beleved that many of the votes against and abstentions were
prompted by a recommendation from one of the proxy adwiser firms
which expressed concern about an increase in the PSP allocations in
2013 The then chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee and his
successor have consutied widely with key shareholders and shareholder
representatives to explan the rabeonale for the policy adopted in 2013
and that proposed for the future

Following his appaintment as chairman of the Remuneration
Committee Mark Elliott has also undertaken an extensive process
of consultation with major shareholders on the proposed new LTIP

Mark Ellkort
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

31 March 2014
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Directors’ report

For the year ended 3| December 2013

This 15 the report of the directors of the board of G4S pk for the year
ended 3| December 2013

| THE COMPANY

G4S plcis a parent company with subsidianes, associated undertakings
and joint ventures in numerous punsdictions GA4S ple has its pnmary
hsting on the London Stock Exchange and a secondary bisting on the
NASDAQ OMX exchange in Copenhagen

2 REPORTING OBLIGATIONS

In compliance with relevant listing rules and in particular DTR4 | 5R
and OTR4 | 8R, the annual repert contains the consclidated result for
the year, shown in the consolidated income statement on page 94

a management statement contained in the Strategic Report and in the
Directors report and responsibility staterments on pages 80 to 83

Details of the development and performance of the group s business
dunng the year, its position at the year end future developments
principal nsks and uncertanties and prospects of the group and

other informauon which {ulfils the requirements of a management
report are contained on pages 4 to 7 of the Strategic Report and

are incorporated by reference in this Report of the Directors The
Corporate Governance report. the Audit Committee report. the
Directors' Remuneration report set out on pages 64 te 79 and the
Chief Financial Officer's review on pages 84 to 8% are also incorporated
in this report by reference The group's financial rsk management
objectives and policies in refation to its use of financial instruments, and
its exposure to price credit hquidity and cash flow risk, to the extent
material are set out in note 32 to the consclidated financial statements
on pages 124 to 127 which 1s also incorporated by reference in the
Report of the Directors

3 DIVIDENDS

The directors propose the following net dvidend for the year

- Intenm dmdend of 3 42p (DKK 02972} per share pad on
18 October 2013

- Final dvidend of 554p (04954DKK ) per share payable on
13 June 2014

Shareholders on the Danish VP register will receve their dividends in
Danish kroner Shareholders who hold ther shares through CREST or
in certificated form will receive their dividends in sterling unless they
prefer to recerve Damish kroner, in which case they should apply in
wnting to the Registrars by no later than 2 May 2014

4 SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS
AND DEVELOPMENTS

— In January 2013 Deposita Systems (Pty) was acquired in South Africa

- In February 2013 a settlement agreement was entered into with
LOCOG m the UK in relation to the Olympics contract

— in August 2013, G4S plc completed a placing of shares which
resutted in the 1ssue of 140,925,797 new ordinary shares of 25
pence each at a price of 247 pence per placing share raising gross
proceeds of approximately £348 | milion

~ In September 2013 G45 Secure Data Sotutions Colombia 5AS
and G45 Document Delvery S.A S were disposed of in Colombia
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~ In January 2014 G4S Cash Solutions (Canada) Limited was
disposed of in Canada

~ In January 2014 G4S Holdings (Norway) AS was disposed of in
Norway

— In March 2014, a settlement agreement was entered into with the
Murustry of Justice in the UK in relation to contracts for electronic
monitoring services provided between 2005 and 2013 and two
faciities management contracts

5 CAPITAL

Following the issue on 28 August 2013 of 140,925,797 new ordinary
shares in the company’s caprial (the "Placing”) representing
approximately 9 99 per cent of the companys issued share capital prior
to the Placing the 1ssued share capital of G45 plc at 31 December

201 3 consisted of 1,551,594 436 ordinary shares of 25 pence each
The number of shares in issue as at 3| March 2014 remains unchanged

Resolutions granting the directors power, subject to certain conditions
to allot and make market purchases of the company’s shares will be
proposed at the company s annual general meeting The resolutions are
set out In the Notice of Meeting on pages 151 and 152 and further
explanation i1s provided on pages 154 to 157 At 31 December 2013
the directors had authority in accordance with a resolution passed at
the company's annual general meeting held on 6 June 2013 1o make
market purchases of up to 141 066,000 of the company’s shares

The company does not hold any treasury shares as such However the
6934 564 shares held within the G4S Employee Benefit Trust { the
Trust ) and referred to on page 137 (note 37 to the consolidated
financial staternents) are accounted for as treasury shares The Trust
has waived its nght to recerve dvidends in respect of the company s
shares which 1t held during the period under review

6 SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS

The company 1s party to a GBPI 100000 000 multi-currency revohang
crednt facility agreement which requires prompt notification of a change
of control event following which funds committed but unutiised could
be cancelled and repayment of outstanding commitments would need
to be made within 45 days

The company entered into two US Private Placement Note Purchase
Agreements (the “USPP Agreements™), on | March 2007 and |5 July
2008 respectively The first USPP Agreement 1s for USD 550000000
and seres A-D senior notes mature between | March 2014 and |
March 2022 The second USPP Agreement 1s for USD 513 500000
and GBP 6% 000 000 and seres B-F senior notes representing USD
448 500 000 and GBP 69 000 000 remain outstanding and will mature
between |5 july 2045 and 15 July 2020 Under the terms of both USPP
Agreements the company 1s required to offer the note holders to
purchase the notes at par value together with interest thereon upon
a change of control

Under the terms of the GBP 2,000 000,000 Euro Medium Term Note
Programme under which the company tssued three tranches of
Medium Term Notes (MTNs) to varous institutions on 13 May 2009
{GBP 350,000,000) 2 May 2012 (Eurc 600 000,000) and 6 December
2012 {Euro 500000 000) In the avent of a change of control, a put
option comes into force, according to which holders of any MTN

may require the company to redeem the MTNs at par f the MTNs
carry a sub-investment grade in the period immediately prior to the
change of control, or In certain circumstances where the MTNs are
downgraded to sub-investment as a result of the change of control



7 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

Research in connection with the development of new services and
products and the improvement of those currently provided by the
group 1s carned out continuously Research and development written-
off to profit and loss during the year amounted to £5 milion (2012
£5 millon)

8 EMPLOYEES

High levels of employee engagement are crucial to the success of our
business Malang our people feel valued and able to contmbute fully In
their roles helps ensure they can deliver excellent customer service and
In turn improves business performance

To measure levels of engagement the company conducts regutar
employee surveys across the organusation The latest survey, conducted
1n 2013, was the most comprehensive to date, with over 62% (380,000
of employees responding To encourage employees to participate, the
survey was offered both online and in a paper version in 31 languages
The questions in the survey were based around the employment
engagemnent model, or PRIDE and asked employees to rate the extent
to which the company takes steps to protect, respect, involve develop
and engage them The responses to these questions showed positve
improvements, with 82% of employees responding favourably
compared to 80% when the last employee survey was conducted In
2011 Having shared the survey results, businesses in each cauntry are
now implementing the action plans they have developed to address
areas identified for mprovement.

‘We value the constructive relationships we have with urions globally,
regionally and locally With over a third of our employees covered by
collective agreements, unions provide addrtional opportunities for
sharing information wrth employees on the company's performance
and consufting them on decisions likely to affect their interests

Protecting our people 1s a key challenge especially where they work in
roles and environments where the risk of harm s high As the reduction
In work-related fatalities indicates we have made some progress in
2013 but there s much more to be done In 2014 the increased
resources improved processes and leadership commuitment to health
and safety will ensure more progress 15 made

With employees in six continents and 120 countries the diversity of
Ideas and thinking avarilable to the business is a competrtive advantage
and one we seek to safeguard by having employment policies and
procedures that do not disciminate Creating an inclusive workplace
where everyone can flourish regardless of their backgreund i1s often an
important factor that influences people’s decision to join, to stay and 1o
recommend the company to others Offering the same opportunities
for traimng, development and promotion and making reasonable
adjustments to support new employees or people who have become
drsabled during the course of their employment with G45 1s just one
example of how we strive to create an Inclusive environment.

9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Details of the financial sk management objectives and policies of the
group and exposure to interest risk, credrt nsk, iquidity risk and foregn
exchange nsk are given in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements

10 POLITICAL DONATIONS

Each year shareholders of the company have passed a resolution on

a precautionary basts, to allow the company and its subsidianes to
make potrical donations to pohtical organisations or incur political
expenditure not exceeding £50,000 However the board confirms that
the group's policy 1s not to make any financial comrnbution to political
parties and that the company and its subsidiaries have made no
contnbutions dunng the year to political parties carrying on activities,
or to candidates seeking election within the EU or anywhere else in
the world

11 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Our customers and employees demonstrate ncreasing concern for
ervironmental ssues, Whilst our environmental impact 15 not significant
relatrve to other businesses of comparable size 1t remains important

to us to be efficient 1n the use of resources and in doing so to curtall
where possible our greenhouse gas emissions We are required to

state the annual quantity of emissions in tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent from activities for which the group 1s responsible, ncluding
the combustion of fuel and the operation of any facility Detalls of our
emissions for 2013 and information about the group's actions to reduce
them are set out on page 46 and form part of the Directors’ report.

For further detalls of our Climate Action Programme and the
methodology used, please refer to our 2013 CSR report or visit
www g4s com/cap

12 SUBSTANTIAL HOLDINGS

The company had been notfied under DTR 5 of the following interesis
in the ordinary capital of G45S plc

Asac 31 122013

Invesco 250071.735(16 11%)

Cevian Capital | GP Limited 72142365 (5 11%)

Tweedy, Brown Company LLC 71,420,862 (5 06%)

Wiltam H Gates Hl 45,224 081 (3 2%)

These figures represent tha number of shares and percentage held as at the date
of notification to the company

* Noufications recerved prior to the increase in the company s share capical on
28 August 2013 These percentages were therefore based on the lower number
of shares in tssue at that tme

Between | | 2014 and 31 32014

Prudental pic group of companies 82 292,546 (5 30%)

13 AUDITOR

A resolutton to re-appoint KPMG Audr Plc chartered accountants,
as audrtor to the company and for their remuneration to be fixed by
the directors will be submprted to the annual general meeting
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Directors' report contnued

14 DIRECTORS

The directors, biographical details of whom are contained on pages
48 and 49 held office throughout the year with the exception of

Tim Weller who was appainted to the board on | Apnl 2013 Ashley
Almanza, who was appointed to the board on | May 2013, and
Himanshu Raja who was appointed to the board on 7 October 2013
Nick Bucides stepped down from the board on 31 May 2013 and
Trevor Oighton Bo Lerenwus and Lord Candon retired on 6 June 2013

In accordance with the code provisions on re-election of directors

in the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012, each of the directors
conunuing m office will offer themselves for re-election (or, in the case
of Himanshu Raja, election) The board believes that the directors
standing for re-elecuion possess experience and experuse relevant to
the company's operations, that they continue to be effective that they
are committed 1o the success of the company: and that they should
be re-elected at the annuat general meeting

Mr Raja has been appointed to the board since the last annual general
meeting and 5o he would in any event, be required to retire in
accordance with the companyss articles of association Being eligible, he
offers himself for election The board believes that Mr Rajas extensve
experience of leading financial disciphne in farge and complex global
orgamsations strong track record of streambning financial reporting
systems and processes to smprove controls and visibilty of business
performance and bullding strong relationships with the investor
community adds significant value to the board and therefore
recommends that he 15 elected at the annual general meeting

The contracts of service of the executive directors have no unexpired
term since they are not for a fixed term They are termunable at

12 months notice None of the non-executive directors has a contract
of service

The company has executed deeds of indemnity for the benefit of each
of the directors in respect of labilities which may attach to them in
their capacity as directors of the company These deeds are qualifying
third party indemnity provisions as defined by section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006 and have been in effect since 3 November 2006
for Mark Elliott Mark Seligman and Graharne Gibson 14 june 2010

for Ms Spottiswoode, | October 2010 for Ms Fok, 8 June 2012 for

Mr Connolly | January 2013 for Messrs Spence and Crozier, | April
2013 for Mrweller | May 2013 for Mr Almanza and 7 October 2013
for Mr Raja Copies of the forms of indemnity are avallable on the
company’s website In addition, ndemnities have been granted by the
company in favour of certain of the directors of certan of the group's
subsidraries in the UK, Germany and the Netherlands The company has
maintained a directors’ and officers’ habiity insurance palicy throughout
the year under review

Detalls of directors’ interests (including the interests of thewr connected
persons) In the share capital of G4S pic and of the directors'
remuneration are set out on pages 64 to 79

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’
report confirm that, so far as they are each aware there 1s no relevant
audit informatron of which the company’s auditor i1s unaware and each
director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a
director to make fum or herself aware of any relevant audrt information
and to establish that the company's auditor 1s aware of that information
None of the dwectors had a matenal interest n any contract significant
to the business of the group during the financial year

By order of the board

Peter David
Company Secretary

31 March 2014
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Directors’ responsibilities

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN
RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and
the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law reguires the directors to prepare group and parent
company financial statements for each financial year Under that law
they are required to prepare the group financiat statements in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable faw and
have elected to prepare the parent company financal statements in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
staterents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affars of the group and parent company and of ther
profit or loss for that period in preparing each of the group and
parent company financial statements the directors are required to

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
— make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

— for the group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

— for the parent company financial statements, state whether apphicable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial
statements and

— prepare the financal statements on the going concern basis unfess it
s nappropriate to presumne that the group and the parent company
will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explan the parent companys
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial posttion of the parent company and enable them to ensure
that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open 1o them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other wregulanties

Under applicable law and regulations the directors are also responsible
for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report, Directors’
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that
complies with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnity of the
corporate and financial information included on the company’s website
Legslation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from tegislation in cther jurisdictions

Governance

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Each of the directors, the names of whom are set cut on pages 48
and 49 of this annual report confirms that to the best of his or
her knowledge

- the financ:al statements in this annual repert have been prepared n
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and give a true
and fair view of the assets lizbilibes financial postion and profit of
the company and the group taken as a whole, and

- the management report required by DTR4 | 8R (contained in the
Strategic Report and the Directors report} inciudes a fair review of
the development and performance of the business and the position
of the company and the group taken as a whole together with a
deseription of the principal nisks and uncertainties they face

The Strategic Report from the inside front cover to page 47 and pages
84 to 89 includes information on the group structure the performance
of the business and the prinapal nisks and uncertanties 1t faces The
financial staternents on pages 94 to | 50 include information on the
group and the company's financial results, financial outlook, cash flow
and net debt and balance sheet positions Notes 23,27, 28, 31 and 32
to the consolidated financial statements include :nformation on the
groups investments, cash and cash equivatents, barrowings, derwvatives,
financial nsk management objectives, hedging policies and exposure to
interest foreign exchange, credit hquidity and market risks In addition
to the above, the directers have considered the group's cash flow
forecasts for the next |12 months The drectors are sausfied that

these cash flow forecasts, taking into account reasanably possible risk
sensitivities associated with them and the groups current funding and
facilities and tts funding strategy show that the group will continue to
operate for the foreseeable future

Accordingly the directors have a reasonable expectation that the group
and company will continue to operate within the leve! of avalable
funding for the foreseeable future and it 1s therefore approprate to
adopt the going concern basis In prepaning the financial statements

The drectors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a
whole 1s fair balanced and understandable and prowides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the companys performance,
business model and strategy

The statement of directors responsibiities and the Strategic Report
was approved by a duly authonsed committee of the board of
directors on 31 March 2014 and signed on its behalf by Himanshu
Raja chief financial officer

31 March 2014
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Chief Financial Officer’s review

A solid underlying
performance

This section presents a summary of our financal
performance, providing commentary on the group's
underlying and reported results During the year, the
group took the opportunity to enhance rts resulis
presentation by separately disclosing the underiying
business performance from restructuring and other
specific items

IMAGE REMOVED

“Qur strong market positions and focus on
operational excellence, operating cost reduction
and cash flow generation, provide a platform for
sustainable growth in profit and cash flow in the
medium term”

INTRODUCTION

The continued opportunrties we see in our emerging and developed
markets are murored in the financial results The group's underlying
revenue increased by 5 8% Emerging markets grew by 16% and now
represent 37% of the group's total revenue and 44% of the groups
underlying PBITA. In our developed markets revenue overall was flat
on 2012, with growth of 2% in the UK & Ireland, no change in North
America and Europe down 2%

Underlying PBITA was £442m’, an increase on £430m? in 2012,
reflecting solid progress during the year In the fourth quarter, we
accelerated the restructuring of some of our businesses which together
with the actions taken n the first-ba¥f resulted in a restructunng

charge of £68m for the full year This will help to improve the market
competitiveness of thase businesses and improve profitability with
paybacks generally in the range of 12-36 months

In terms of specfic tems we undertook an extensive review of the
bafance sheet to assess the carrying value of the groups assets and
liabilities This resulied i a total specific stems charge of £182m to
PBITA and a £46m charge to goodwill impairment. The balance sheet
at 31 December 2013 1s therefore on a more balanced footing

84 GAS plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Officer

We also carried out a global financial review of 163 contracts with
annualised revenues of around £2bn which together with the
settlement for the UK Electrenic Monitoring contracts and two
smaller contracts resulted in a £136m charge

The balance sheet and contract reviews together with the settlement
with the Mo] and our restructuning programmes, resulted in a £386m
charge to profits n 2013 and contributed to a decrease in net assets

which fell to £919m (2012 £1.231m)

The resulting total PBITA for the year was £56m {2012 £364m)

Cash flow from centinuing operations improved by 36% to £460m
The group has previously highhighted ts focus on cash and free cash
flow, ang this remains a key target in 2014

During the year we also strengthened the financial postion of the
group The group raised £343m from a 999% share placing in August
and has taken a discipiined approach to managing the portfolio of G45
businesses We dispased of our Colombna secure archiving business
Together these steps helped to reduce net debt to £1,533m as at

31 December 2013 This has also improved the graups net debt

to EBITDA ratio to 2 6x Since the end of the year, we have also
completed the divestment of businesses In Norway and Canada
raising net proceeds of £89m

Underlying EPS was 14 7p against 15 8p in 2012 and total loss per
share was 24 9p, compared with earnings per share of 29p in 2012
The group has declared a final dwidend of 5 54p (2012 5 54p) making
the total dvidend for the year 8 96p (2012 856p)




Strengthening our capability

TFhe group has grown rapidly, both organically and through acquisition,
resutting in considerable variation in financial capabilty operational
systems and processes across the world, including manual processes

We are committed to mantaining disciplined financial ranagement.
We have begun a process of change to significantly strengthen our
finance capability by brnging in people with expenence of operating
In a global finance orgarwsation We are also mowving to regional shared
service centres which will further strengthen the control environment
and bring greater consistency to our finance operations, whilst at the
same time reducing costs The shared service centres wall act as a
platform to brng further activities iInto shared service environments
to get the benefits of scale in being part of a large global organisation

On the operational front, we are committed to standardising certain
operational processes and procedures across the business These

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The following discussion and analysis is based on, and should be read
in conunction wrth the consohdated financial statements, ncluding the
related notes that form part of this annual report The consclidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with [FRS

as 1ssued by the JASB and as adopted by the EU A reconcilation of
nen-EU IFRS prior period results 1s set out on page 86

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Summary Income Statement

Financial statements

include programmes on direct labour efficency orgarisational efficency
vehicle route planning, telematics, IT standardisation and procurement,
Over tme this will dnve operational improvement and reduce costs at
the same time

Cutlook

Demand for the group s services and products rematns robust, as
reflected n 5 8% revenue growth and the potential in the global sales
pipeline of £5 billion (see page 19)

Our focus in 2014 1s to continue to nvest in organic growth and
operational capacity and for the on-going and accelerated restructuning
of a number of our businesses to begin to deliver benefits in 2014

In the medium term we expect the group to deliver attractive revenue
growth and we expect that operational actions across a wide range

of areas will underpin our plans to deliver sustainable growth i profit
and cash flow in the medium term

Underlying Spealfic Undertying

results items Total resufts
2013 2013 2013 012!

£m fm £m £m

Revenue 7,428 7,428 7024
PBITA (pre-restructuring) 442 (318) 124 430
Restructuring — (68} {68) -
PBITA 442 (386) 56 430
Amortisation of intangible assets - (72} (72} -
Goodwill impairment - (46) {46) -
Acguisition related expenses - [C)] 4 -
Profit on disposal of assets and subsidianes - 24 24 —
PBIT 442 (484) (42) 430
Net finance expenses (128) - (128) (117
PBT 314 (484) (170) 313
Tax (75) 19 (56) (69)
PAT 239 {465) (226) 244
Loss from discontinued operations - {116 (116) -
Profit/{loss) for the year 239 (581) (342) 244

Attributable to

Equity holders of the parent 204 (576} (362) 222
Non-controlling interests 25 {3} 20 22
Profit/(loss) for the year 239 (581) (342) 244
Earnings per share Basic and diluted 14 7p (24 %p) |5 8p

Refer wo footnotes on page 89
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

Prior year reconciliation from total to underlying results

Prior year results have been re-presented to clearly show the impact
of net charges arising from the balance sheet review of assets and
liabiltties performed in 2013 {(more detals are given in note 3},
restructuring costs and the Olympics contract The group considers
that this presentation provides readers with a clearer understanding
of comparatve undertying performance and trends A reconciliation
of reported statutory results to undertying results is set out below
The £40m prior year impact of the review of assets and liabiliies

i+ 20173 relates mainly to a write-down of recevables and
absolescent inventory

December 2012

Revenue PBITA
£m £m

Total results as reported in the
Income statement 7.228 64

Foreign exchange 8 -
Total results as reported at current

exchange rates 7,236 364
Exclude impact of Olyrmpics contract (204 88
Add back restructunng costs - 42
Less One-off credits - 24)
2012 results at current rates 7,032 470
Imparment of fixed assets - 3)
Current asset write-downs - @
Impairment of recevables (8) (28)
Creditors claims and provisions - (5)
Total prior year impact of review

of assets and fabiliues in 2013 (8) (40}
Underlying 2012 results at

current rates 7,024 430
Revenue

Organic growth was 47% Contributions from acquisitions 1n South
Afnca and Indonesia in 2313 and a current year benefit from
acguisihions (n Brazl in 2012 helped the groups underlying revenue
increase by 5 8% Emerging markets grew by 16% and now represent
37% of the groups total revenue (2012 34%) In our developed
markets, revenue overall was flat on 2612 with 2% growth in the UK,
no change in North America and Europe down 2%

Gross margin

2013 2012

£m £m

Revenue 7.428 7024

Cost of sales (5.941) (5.563)
Gross profit 1,487 1,461

Gross margin (%) 20 0% 208%

Underlying gross margin declined by 80 basis points to 200%

{2012 208%) for the year ended 31 December 2013 Developed
markets declined |20 basis points to 18 8% (2012 200%) manly as

a resutt of challenging economic condtions in the UK and Europe

and the impact of Federal spending cuts affecting both our secure
solutions and technologies businesses in the US Emerging markets
gross margins were broadly in kne at 22 1% (2012 22 4%) the decline
was In Afrca with margins effectively maintained in Latin Amenica and
Asia Middle East.

Underlying revenue in the prior year excludes speafic items
Underlyng cost of sales in both years excludes speafic tems as
described in note 8 on page 108
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PBITA

Group undertying PBITA was £442m' an increase of 2 8% on the
prior year (2012 £430m)? Emerging markets generated 44% of PBITA
(2012 36%) See the Business review on pages 28 to 33

The underlying PBITA margin was 60% (2012 6 1%)

Specific items

Specific tems have been excluded from the underlying resuhs to
provide a clear companson of the underlying trading performance
of the group Those items are set out below

As at 30 Since 30 Asat 3|

June June December

2013 2013 2013

£m £m £m

Contracts review - 136 136
Review of assets and labihues

Impairment of fixed assets 23 3 26

Current asset wrrte-downs 17 17 34

Impairment of recewvables 52 7 59

Creditors, clams and provisions 40 23 63

Total review of assets and

liabilities 132 50 182

Subtotal 132 186 318

Restructuring 4 64 68

Total specific items 136 250 386

Contracts review

A global financial review of 163 contracts with annualised revenues
of around £2bn, which together with the settlement for the UK
Electroric Monrtoring contracts and two smaller contracts resulted
ina £136m charge

Review of assets and labihiues

A review of the group's assets and lizbilities was initiated in the first
half of 2013, resulting in a PRITA charge of £132m This was extended
to cover all legal entities during the second half of the year Completion
of this review resulted in a further charge of £50m, bringing the
full-year charge to PBITA of £182m The total charge related principally
to imparment of fixed assets mventory obsolescence wrrte down

of recevables and the recogniion of employer related fiabilities

The groups balance sheet I1s therefore on a more balanced footing

as at 31 December 2013

Restructuring

Following the strategic review over the summer, we identified
opporturibies to significantly enhance the competrtiveness of some
of our businesses and to reduce overheads speafically in the UK &
Ireland and in certan European operations resulting in £35m of
restructuring programmes announced in August 2013

Acceleration of the restructuring programme in the fourth quarter,
primarily in the Netheriands Belgium and Finland resulted in addtional
charges of £33m

Amoruosauon and impairment

Acquisition-related intangible assets included in the balance sheet at
31 December 2013 consisted of £1,966m goodwll £137m customer-
related intangible assets and £4m other intangible assets

The charge for the year for the amorusation of acquistion-related
intangible assets other than goodwill amounted to £72m (2012 £84m)

Goodwill 15 not amortised, but it 1s tested for impairment annually As a
result of the group’s impairment test for the year ended 31 Decernber
2013 the group incurred an impairment charge of £46m to conunuing
aperations {mainly refating to the technology business in Brazil see
note 19 on page | I 7 for details) and a further £80m to discontinued
operations {relating to the US Government Solutions business, see
note 7 on page 108 for details)




Net finance expense

Met interest payable on net debt was £108m This 15 a net Increase

of 29% over the prior year cost of £105m, principally due to the
increase i the group s average gross debt in the first-half of the year
The pension mterest charge was £20m (2012 £15m), resulting 1n total
net finance costs of £128m (2012 £120m)

The groups average cost of gross borrowings 10 2013 net of Interest
rate hedging, was 4 19, compared to 4 3% in 2012 The cost based on
prevailing interest rates at 3| December 2013 was 3 7%, compared to
39% at 31 December 2012

Taxatuon

The underlyng taxation charge of £75m represents an effective tax
rate of 24% an increase from 22% in 2012 The cash tax rate 1s
18% compared to 23% in 2012

The group's target 1s to maintan the effective tax rate in the short
term The amortisation of acquistion-related intangible assets grves rise
to the release of the refated proportion of the deferred tax labiity
established when the assets were acquired amounting to £21m

(2012 £25m)

Disposals and discontinued operations

In August 2013, the group sold s Colombian secure archivng business
for £34m and s cash business in Slovakia for £1m In January 2014
the group completed the sale of its cash solutions business in Canada
and its remaining business In Norway for total proceeds of £8%m

The cash solutions business in Canada the business in Norway and the
US Government Solutions business were classified as held for sale as
at 31 December 2013 and therefore their results have been included
within discontinued operations in the Income statement

The classified LS Government Solutions business continues 1o be
classified within discontinued operations as at 31 Decernber 2013 as
it was held for sale at that date Due to the restrictions on US
Gavernment spend during the year the sale process has been
extended but the group is confident a sale will be finalised in 2014

Duning the prior year the group disposed of its cash solutions business
in Sweden in February 2012, its businesses in Poland in September
2012, its justice services businesses in the United States and Canada
in April 2012 and its secunty sehutions business In Pakistan in

October 2012

The total loss from discantinued operations of £116m (2012 £56m}
includes a post-tax trading loss of £1 Im restructuring costs of £2m
and an impairment charge of £103m, of which £80m relates to
goodwill imparment in the US Government Solutions business

The contribution to the tumover and operating profit of the group
from discontinued operations 1s shown In note 6 on page 106 and
therr contnbution 1o net profit and cash flows 1s detailed n note 7
on page 108

Consolidauen of subsidianes

The group has a diverse set of complex ownership structures, often
driven by local laws and regulations relating to foreign ownership

As set out In note 3 and on pages 103 to 104, the group has not
adopted early the new consolidation standards, IFRS 10 Consohdated
Financra! Statements and IFRS | | ‘Joint Arrangements’ Had the group
applhed IFRS 10 and IFRS 11, revenue would have been £317m lower
(2012 £277m tower) and PBITA would have been £32m lower at
£410 (2012 £27m lower at £443m) As shown on page |04, profit
to equrty holders would have been unchanged

J

Financial statements

Non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests was £20m in 2013,a
shight decrease on £22m for 2012 mainly due to the partners share
of specific charges in the year

Loss for the year

The group made a loss of £342m (2012 profit of £62m) for the
year after specific stems interest, tax amortisabion and the results of
discontinued operations

Earnings per share (EPS)

Underlying' earnings per share

20127 20122
at constant at actual
exchange exchange
2013 rates rates
£m £m £m
Profit far the year 239 244 244
Non-controlling interests (25) (22) (22)
Adjusted profit attnbutable
to shareholders 214 222 222
Average number of
shares (m) | 452 1,403 1 403
EPS (p) 147p 158p 15 8p
Total® (loss)/earrings per share
2012 2012
at constant at actual
exchange exchange
2013 rates rates
£m £m £m
Los/(profit} for the year (342) 62 &2
Non-controlling interests (20) (2n 22
Adjusted (loss)/profit
attrbutable to shareholders (362) 40 40
Average number of
shares {m) | 452 1,403 | 403
EPS {p) 29%p 29 29

Underlying earnings per share was |4 7p compared to |5 8p in the
prior year Total loss per share was 24 9p (2012 earmings per share
29p) These are based on a weighted average number of shares in
tssue of 1 452 milhion (2012 1,403 million)

A reconciliation of the total and underiying £PS 1s provided in

note 6 Undertying earnings, as analysed in note 16 on page | 12,
excludes the result from discontinued operations amortisation and
impairment of acquisition-related intangible assets, acquistion-related
costs and non-underlying items, all net of tax This better allows the
assessment of operational performance the analysis of trends over
time the comparison of different businesses and the projection of
future performance

Refer to footnotes on page 89
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Chief Financial Officer's review continued

Cash flow
A reconcliation of net cash generated by continuing operations to
movement In net debt s presented below

2013 2012
£m £m

PBITA 56 364
Non-cash movements
Depreciation 18 17
Amortisation of other Intangible assets 24 22
Write down of fixed assets 24 -
Increasef(decrease) in provisions 189 {3)
Working capital and pensions
Working caprtal 87 (124)
Pensions (38) (37)
Cash flow from conunuing operations 460 337
Cash from discontinued operations 28 35
Net cash generated by operations 488 372
Investment in the business
Investment in capital expendrture and
nen-current assets {199) {137)
New finance leases (12} 2n
Disposal proceeds 35 19
Acquistions {35) [CH)
Net investment in the business (211 (226)
Net cash flow after investing in the business 277 146
Other (uses)/sources of funds
Net financing (110) (e
Tax (88) (85)
Dndends {154) {139)
Share caprtal 343 -
Other 16 3
Net sources/{uses) of funds 7 (332)
Net cash flow after investment, financing
and tax 284 (186)
Net debt at beginning of period (1.802) (1L616)
Foreign exchange (15) -
Net debt at end of penod (1,533) (1,8023

Cash generated from continuing operations was £460m (2012 £337m)
resutting from mproved working capital management and the receipt
of £76m relating to the Olympics contract, offset by approximately
£60m of payments which were deferred from December 2012 to
January 2013 and from £27m of recervables withheld as at the year-end
in refation to the UK electrenic monitonng contracts

Net investment in the business was £211m (2012 £226ém) The man
areas of investment have been in vehicles and plant and equipment,
together with investment in new contracts and alse includes £35m on
acquisrions, mainly in the first-nalf of 2013, with a number of smaller
cash solutions acquisitions in South Afnca and Indonesia.

Tax paid was £88m (2012 £85m), interest pad was £110m (2012
£111m) and group shareholder dividend payments were £130m
(2012 £120m)

Net cash flow was £284m (2012 outflow of £186m) resutung in an
improved net debt of £1 533m

Net debt

The net debt position as at 31 December 2043 was £1 533m (2012
£1,802m}) resulting In a net debt to EBITDA ratio of 2 6x. The decrease
of £269m 15 principally attnbutable to the improvement in net cash
flow after investing in the business and the proceeds of the share
placing offset by interest tax and dividend payments
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Net debt maturicy
The group's funding posiion 1s strong, with committed but undrawn
faclities of £965m and with no significant debt maturing before 2016

IMAGE REMOVED

The group's primary sources of bank finance are a £1 1bn mulu-
currency revolving credit facility provided by a consertium of lending
banks at a margin of | 30% over LIBOR and maturing 10 March 2016

The group also has US $550m n financing from the private placement
of unsecured senior loan notes on | March 2007 maturing at varous
dates between 2314 and 2022 and beaning interest at rates between
577% and 6 06% The fixed interest rates payable have been swapped
into floating rates for the term of the notes, at an average margin of
060% over LIBOR

On |5 Juty 2008, the group completed a further US $514m and £69m
private placement of unsecured senior loan notes $449m and £69m
remain outstanding maturing at various dates between 2015 and 2020
and bearing interest at rates between 643% and 7 56% US $200m of
the loan note proceeds have been swapped intc £101m fixed rate
sterling for the term of the notes

On 13 May 2009 the group 1ssued a £350m note bearing an interest
rate of 7 75% and matunng in 2C19

On 2 May 2012, the group issued a Euro 600m note bearing an interest
rate of 2 875% and matunng in 2017 €325m was swapped into £266m
fixed rate sterfing and the nterest rate on €50m was swapped 1o a
floating rate inked to six menth EURIBOR.

On 6 December 2012, the group issued a €500m note beanng an

interest rate of 2 625% and maturing in 2018 €350m was swapped
into £284m fixed rate sterling and the interest rate on €120m was
swapped to a floating rate hnked to six month EURIBOR

The group’s net debt at 31 December 2013 was £1 533m The groups
committed but unutilised facilities at 3] December 2013 were £965m
The group has sufficient capacity to finance rts normat funding and
current investment plars

Credit raung
The group's credrt rating was revised by Standard & Poars from
BBB- (Negatve) to BBB- (Stable) on 4 September 2013

Dmidend

The directors recommend a final dwidend of 5 54p {DKK (4954)
per share, unchanged from 2012 The interim dwvidend was 342p
{DKK 02972) per share and the total dvidend if approved will be
896p (DKK 0 7926)per share, unchanged from 2012

The proposed dvdend cover is | 6 times (2012 24 tmes} on adjusted
eamings The board's intention 1s that dvidends will increase broadly in
line with undertying earmings over the medium term




OTHER INFORMATION

Pensions

As at 31 December 2013 the defined benefit pension obligation on the
balance sheet was £504m (2012 £47Im), or £405m net of tax (2012
£367m) of which £472m (2012 £436m) related to matenal funded
defined benefit schemes The most significant pension scheme 15 in the
UK and accounts for 95% {2012 95%) of the total matenal scheme
obligation The scheme has approximately 30,000 members and further
details of the make up of the scheme are given in note 33 on page 129

Defined benefit obhigation — UK scheme

2013 2012 Movement

im £m £m

Scheme assets 1,564 1,474 90
Obligation (2.013) {1 886) (127)
Totat UK obligation (44%) (412) 37

The movement In the UK scheme was as a result of scheme obhigations
increasing by £127m partly offset by an increase of £90m in the value
of scheme assets arising from contributions paid to the scheme during
the year and an increase in underiying asset values The increase in the
obligation 1s manly due to actuanal losses incurred in the year resufting
from discount rates decreasing to 4 4% (2012 4 5%) inflation rates
increasing to 34% (2012 30%) and a change in demographic
assumptions during the year

The group made payments of £38m (2012 £37m) into the scheme
during the year Following the recent triennial valuation, the group
agreed with the Trustees to increase next years annual deficit recovery
payment to £42m and extended the term of these payrments from
2022 to 2024 The next trienmial vatuation s in 2015

Due to the nature and matenahty of the groups pension schemes
certain risks exist as detaled further in note 33 on page 130

Financing and treasury acuvities

The group's treasury function is respensible for ensuning the availabiity
of cost-effactive finance and for managing the group’s financial rsk
ansing from currency and interest rate volatiity and counterparty credit
Treasury 1s not a profit centre and 1t 1s not permitted to speculate in
financial instruments The treasury department’s policies are set by the
board Treasury 1s subject to the controls appropriate to the nisks it
manages These risks are discussed in note 32 on pages 124 to 127

To assist the efficent management of the groups interest costs the
group operates a multi-currency notional pooling cash management
systen with a wholly owned subsidiary of an A+ rated bank. At
year-end, credt balances of £425m were pooled with debit balances of
£422m, resulting In a net poo! credr, balance of £3m There 15 tegal nght
of set off under the pooling agreement and an overdraft facility of £3m

Interest rate risks and interest rate swaps

The group’s nvestmentts and borrowings at 31 December 2043 were
at a mix of fixed rates of interest and floating rates of interest nked
to LIBOR and EURIBOR

The private placement notes in March 2007 and July 2008 and the
pubhc notes in May 2009, May 2012 and December 2012 were all
wssued at fixed rates whilst the group’s investments and bank
borrowings were all at variable rates of interest linked to LIBOR
and EURIBOR.

Financal statements

The group’s Interest risk policy requires treasury to fix a proportion of
its interest exposure on a skding scale in US dollars sterling and euro,
using the natural mix of fixed and floating nterest rates emanating
fror the bend and bank markets and by utilising interest rate and
cross currency swaps The proceeds of the private placement notes
issued in March 2007 and part of the public notes 1ssued in May 2012
and December 2012 were swapped to floating interest rates and
accounted for as far value hedges with a net gan at 3|1 December
2013 of £45m The market value of the pay-fixed recewe-variable
swaps and the pay-fixed receve-fixed cross currency swaps outstanding
at 2| December 2013, accounted for as cash flow hedges was a net
gan of £40m

Foreign currency

The group has many overseas subsidaries and associates denominated
in various different currencies Treasury policy 1s to manage significant
translation risks in respect of net operating assets and its consoldated
net debt/EBITDA ratic by holding foreign currency denominated loans
where possible The group no longer uses foreign exchange contracts
to hedge the residual portion of net assets not hedged by way of loans
The group believes cash flow should not be put at risk by these
nstruments in order to preserve the carrying value of net assets

At 31 December 2013, the groups US dollar and euro net assets were
approximately 59% and 82% respectively, hedged by foreign currency
loans As at 31 December 201 3, net debt held in US doliar and euro
and in those currencies officially pegged 1o these two currencies
equated broadly to a ratio of 2 times the EBITDA generated from
these currencies

If year-end 31 December 2013 exchange rates were used for 2013
undertying PBITA would have been £422m, a reduction from £442m
due to a strengthening of the relative value of sterling

Exchange differences on the translation of foreign operatens included
in the consohdated statement of comprehensive iIncome amount to a
loss of £109m (2012 £95m)

Corporate governance

The group’s policies regarding risk management and corporate
governance are set out in the Corporate governance report on
pages 52 to 60

Going concern

The directors are confident that, after making enquings and on the
pasis of current financial projections and available facilmies they have a
reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to
continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future For this
reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis In preparing
the financral statements

Mimanshu Raja
Chref Financial Officer

| To clearly present underlying performance specific tems have been excluded and
disclosed separately — see page 86

2 2012 underlying results are presented at constant exchange rates and have been
restated for the adoption of IAS19 (201 1) 2012 PBITA has been re-presented to
exclude PBITA from businesses subsequently classified as disconunued one off
credits profits on disposal and the prior year effect of the review of assets and
labthues m 2013 — see page 86

3 Including specific items See page 86 for details
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Independent audrtor’s report to the members of G4S plc only

OPINIONS AND CONCLUSIONS ARISING FROM CUR AUDIT

I OUR OPINICN ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IS UNMODIFIED
We have audited the financial statements of G4S pk for the year ended 3| December 2013 set out on pages 94 to 150 in our opimion

— the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent companys affairs as at 31 December 2013
and of the group s joss for the year then ended,

— the group financral statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Internavonal Financial Reportng Standards as adopted
by the European Union,

- the parent company financral statemnenits have been property prepared i accordance with UK Accounting Standards and

— the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparves Act 2006, and as regards the group
finanaial statements, Article 4 of the LAS Regulation

2 OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

In arrwing at our audtt opinion above on the financial statements the nsks of matenal misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit
were as follows

Presentauon of the income statement
Refer 1o page 61 (Audi Committee Report) page 98 (accounting policy) and page 108 (financial disclosures)

The nisk — In order to give better understanding of the underlying performance of the business, management have presented a view of the
underfying results of the group, with separate disclosure of specific items. There 1s a rnisk that rems included within restructunng and specific
items’ are not in accordance with clearly disclosed group accounting policies and therefore the ‘'undertying’ result 1s misstated There 1s a related
presentation nsk concerning discontinued operations and held for sale assets and habilities which are further considered below

Our response — In this area our audnt procedures included, inter alia, providing detalled instructions to all in-scope audit teams on the definttions
of items that can be included within these income statement categories 1o aswst them in therr assessment of specific tems identfied in their
components We considered and challenged the work of the group finance team in reviewing wrth the regional and local finance teams the basis
of any specific tems In doing so we cnitically assessed their accuracy and presentation of specific items taking into account their policy, considered
the approprateness by reference to accounting standards, of the iIndmdual tems presented within these categones and therefore excluded from
underlying results at both the local and group levels

We have also considered the adequacy of the groups disclosures about the stems included within restructuring and specific tems in notes 8
(specific tems) and 34 (restructuring) and the related accounting policies for these categones on page 98 and on page |01

Rusk of management overnide of internal controls
Refer to page 62 (Audit Committee Report)

The risk = The de-centralised structure of the group and the manwal nature of many accounting entnes means there 15 a higher nsk of management
overnde of financial controls. There 15 also a rsk of management bias within judgements and estmates including those related to the other risks
discussed in this report. The application of management overnde or biased judgements could be influenced by targets on winch bonuses are paid
which could be significant to the relevant indwaduals This nsk affects all areas of the financial statements

Qur response — In this area our audit procedures included among others, extending the scope of our audit to include businesses where we see

a nsk of management bias or overnde of controls (see below} We alse mandated certain key audit procedures be performed by all in-scope audit
teams to assist in the dentification of management overnide of financial contrels within the local books and records We tested the reconcliations
from the group consclidation package to the local books and records for 84% of the group induding for those businesses out of scope for the
group audit, performed testing on manual joumals within all in-scope businesses performed testing on the group consohidation system identifying
and testing significant unusual transactions and assessing Indications of management bias in judgements and estimates This work was performed
with assistance from our Forensic Accounting specialists
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Financizl statements

Revenue recogniuon parucularty on UK Government contracts and related provisions
Refer to page 62 (Auait Committee Report) page 102 {accounting policy) and page 134 (financial disclosures) ‘

The nsk —The group delivers outsourcing services that can be complex in nature and may be governed by unique and complex contractual
arrangements In these corcumstances there is a heightened risk of inaccurate billing and revenue recognition In particular the group was subject
to a number of Inquirtes In relation to the accuracy of billing and services provided on certain of s UK Government contracts There was an
investigation into an electronic monitoring contract where the Ministry of Justice alleged the group has overcharged for certan aspects of the
services There was a nsk that revenue recognition on these contracts 1s not in accordance with contractual entitlements and therefore provisions
may be required for refunds due {e g to the UK Government) or costs of terrmination There was further a risk that the provisions for refunds are
not appropnately disclosed and presented

QOur response — I this area our audit procedures included among others, reviewing the sales process en complex and significant contracts

in order to criticatly assess controls over process risks which might lead to revenue recognition issues, and companng the contractual terms

of the relevant agreements to the accountng treatment adopted We made inquines with contract managers and reviewed customer
correspondence to dentify, investigate and evaluate any areas of dispute or subjectvity within contracts and related billing, meeting with the
company's legal adwisors to discuss their advice on any areas of interpretation within the contract We also considered the recovery of significant
overdue receivables including seeking external evidence of hkely recovery, taking into account the ageng of recenvables and companng any
provision to recavery levels post year end

We inspected correspondence with the Government and its appointed advisers Based on those inquines we recalculated the quantumn of
potential exposures and critically assessed the judgements made by management as to the prowsion made for the settlernent of any and all claims
arising from these contracts

Full and final settlerment in respect of the Ministry of Justice claims was reached in March 2014 ‘We have evaluated the adequacy of the group’s
disclosures about the UK Government settlement and amounts recognised within the financial statements as revenue and provisions

Comphance with foreign ownership rules and consohidation of subsidianes
Refer to page 62 (Audit Commuttee Report), page 98 and 105 (accounting policy) and pages 140 and 141 (financial disclosures)

The nsk —The group 1s required to comply with sometimes complex or imprecise foreign ownershup rules in the countnes in which #t operates
There 1s a nisk that the rules may be interpreted in different ways In some instances the group operates through local structures with imited
direct share ownership of the business but exercising control through shareholder agreements These structures can mean there 1s a higher
level of judgement required In deaiding whether or not to consolidate the underiying business or treat the operation as a joint venture/
associate/investment.

Qur response ~ In this area our audit procedures inchuded, inter alia, understanding the structure of local businesses and evaluating whether they
are In compliance with local foreign ownership rules iInvohing local lawyers where apphcable We also challenge the Directors’ conclusions on
whether or not consolidation was appropriate by comparing the rights bestowed by share ownership and all related ownership and management
agreements o the requirements set out in the relevant accounting standards

We have also evaluated the adequacy of the groups disclosures about the degree of judgement as to which businesses can be consolidated
in note 4 and the reasons for consohdating those businesses with less than 50% ownership In note 3 and note 43

Recoverable value of goodwill and other intangible assets
Refer to page 62 (Audit Committee Report) page 100 (accounting pohicy) and page 115 {financial disclosures)

The nsk —The group has £2 2 billion of goodwill and other mtangible assets Although the majority of this relates to business units where the
carrying value 1s exceeded by the calculated Value In Use by a significant margin, in the current economic environment there s a nsk of iImpairment
related to particufar business units within the group The estimation of the recoverable ameunt of cash generating unris requires significant
Judgement in refation to the appropriate discount rates, growth rates terminal values, forecast cashflows and, where the fair value less costs

to sell approach 1s used, the appropriate fair value muitipte

Qur response — In this area our audnt procedures included, among others, chaflenging the forecast earnings and cash flows over the five year
forecast penied, for example by comparison to historic results and budgets and by seeking explanations for any assumed trends and growth rates
We also chalienged the discount rates and terminal values and, where a fair value less costs to sell approach 1s used, challenged the mutiiples
employed Where possible we compared the group's assumptions to externally derved data Our valuations specialists assisted in the evaluation
of the more subjective and material cash generating unrts We challenged the group’s sensiiivities to help us assess whether the key assumptions
and drivers considered are correctly identified We compared the group’s aggregate recoverable amount to its market caprtalisation

We have also assessed the adequacy of the groups disdosures on goodwill impairments (see note |9) and considered whether the sensitvity
analysis provided properly reflects the nsks inherent within the estmate of the recoverable amount of goodwill
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of G45S plc only continued

Disconunued operations and held for sale assets and liabiboes
Refer to page 62 (Audit Committee Report} page 103 (accounting policy) and pages 108 and 121 (financial disclosures)

The risk —The group often has business disposals underway at any reporting date Given the judgement Involved there s a risk that any such
businesses may not mest the accounting standard s critera for presentation as discontinued at the balance sheet date as either they are not
a separate major hne of business, the Directors are not committed to the sale and that sale 15 not hughly probable, or the business has not
been exted

The results of discontinued businesses are presented below profit before tax on the face of the income statement and therefore any profitsfiosses |
from discontinued businesses are not included wrthin underlying PBITA being the group's own key financial KPl Were the group to incorrectly i
classify a loss makang business as discontinued a higher undertyng PBITA would resutt.

For the US Government Solutions business, which 1s presented as held for sale, the calculation of the fair value less costs to sell 1s subject

to judgement due to a range of potential sales prices and assumptions around the method and quantum of recovery of working capital balances
This subjectivity creates a nsk around the determination of an approprate fair value for the business and therefore the appropnate

Impairment recognised

Our response — In this area our audit procedures included amongst others using our knowledge of the business to perform an assessment

of whether the businesses constrtute separate major Iines of business or geographical areas of operations We also obtained and evaluated
evidence to cnticalty challenge the level of the Directors commitment to sel! the businesses classified as held for sale and to cntically challenge
the probability of those sales at the balance sheet date We sought external evidence of lkely safes prices and compared these 1o the net book
value of the held for sale assets and liabilities to assess whether any further impairment was required For those businesses being wound down
and therefore being classified as discontinued on the basis that the business has been exrted, we sought external ewdence that the group

15 no longer operating that business

We have also considered the adequacy of the group s disclosures about discontinued operations and held for sale assets in notes 7 and 26

Taxation exposures and provisions
Refer 10 page 63 (Audit Committee Report) page 102 (accounting policy) and page 1| (financial disclosures)

The risk — The group 1s required to make estimates of tax provisions in junsdictions and/or cincumstances where the application of the tax rules
15 complex, uncertain and 1 some cases Inconsistent

Cur response — Qur audit procedures included, consideration of each significant exposure on a case by case basis taking into account cur
understanding of the facts any specific advice the group has receved, past experence and any relevant observations of our tax specialists

Using this information we conducted a critical review of the group's jJudgement as to the prowision required We have also evaluated the adequacy
of the group's disclosures about the tax provisions and contingencies in note |4 and the level of estimation uncertainty in the tax provisions

n note 3(r)

3 OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN OVERVIEVY OF THE SCOPE OF QUR AUDIT

The matenality for the group financial statements as a whole was set at £10m This has been determined with reference to a benchmark of group
loss before tax, adjusted for non-recurning tems including ‘restructunng costs', specfic tems’ and goodwill imparment which we consider to be
one of the principal considerations for members of the company in assessing the financial performance of the group Materiality represents 4 9%
of group profit before tax adjusted for these items and 4 4% of group profit before tax from continuing operations as disclosed on the face of the
income statement

We agreed with the audrt committee to report to it all corrected ang uncorrected misstatements we identified through our audit with a value in
excess of £0 5m for errors impacting profit and in excess of £4m for balance sheet only misclassifications in addition to other audit misstatements
below that threshold that we believe warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

Audrts for group reporting purposes were performed by component audrtors at the key reporting components in 42 countries tn addmion,
specified audn procedures were performed by component auditors in a further 42 countnies These group procedures covered

Group revenue

Audtt for group reporting purposes 81%
Specific audit procedures 13%
Not covered 6%

The audrs undertaken for group reparting purposes at the key reporting compenents of the group were: all performed to materzality levels set by,
or agreed with the group audrt team These matenality levels were set indwviduafly for each compenent and ranged from £002m to £5m

Detalled audit mstructions were sem to alf the auditors in these locations These instructions covered the significant audit areas that should be
covered by these audits (which included the relevant risks of matenial risstatement detalled above) and set out the information required 1o
be reported back to the group audit team The group audit team wisited the following locations the Philippines Ireland South Africa, Botswana
Peru Brazil Saudi Arabia, India, Belgium Finland Denmark and the United Kingdom Telephone meetings were also held with the audrtors of 25
significant countnes as part of the planning process and a further 22 high risk countres as part of the audtt close out process

The remaining 6% of revenue includes no componenis which indmdually represent more than 0 4% of revenue
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4. QUR OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 IS UNMODIFIED
In our opinion
— the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Compares Act 2006, and

— the mformation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements

5 WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT IN RESPECT OF THE MATTERS ONWHICH WE ARE REQUIRED
TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under ISAs (UK and Treland) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have identfied
other information i the annual report that contains a material inconssstency with ether that knowledge or the financial statements, a matenal
misstaternent of fact or that s otherwise misleading

In particular we are required to report to you if

— we have identfied materal inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during our audrt and the directors statement that they consier
that the annual report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the group’s performance, business mode! and strategy or

— the Audit Commuttee Report does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repert te you If, in our opirien

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not visted by us, or

~ the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report 1o be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

— certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or

— we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

— the directors statement set out on page B3, in relation to going concern and

— the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on page 53 in the Chairmans letter relating to the company's compliance
with the mine provisions of the 2010 UK Corpoerate Governance Code specified for our review

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities

SCOPE OF REPORT AND RESPONSIBILITIES

As explared more fully in the Directors Respongibilities Statement set cut an page 83 the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being sabisfied that they give a true and fair view A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements
15 provided on the Financal Reporting Council's website at www fre org ulk/audrtscopeukprivate This report 1s made solely 1o the company’s
membgrs as a body and 1s subject to important explanations and disclaimers regarding our responsibilities, published on our website at
auditscgpeukco?01 3a which are incorporated inte this report as If set out in full and shouid be read to provide an

e of this report, the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions

n Luke {(Semor toly or)
r and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
hartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
Londen
E14 5GL

31 March 2014
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Total Total
2013 2012
Notes £m £m

Conunuing operations
Revenue 56 7,428 7228
Operating profit before interest, tax, amorusation, specific items and restructuring 442 470
Speciic tems 8 (318) (64)
Restructuring costs 8 (68} 42)
Operating profit before interest, tax and amorusation {PBITA) 56 Je4
Amortisation of acquisition-related intangible assets (72} (84)
Goodwll mparment (46} -
Acquisition-related expenses 4 )]
Profit on disposal of assets and subsidianes 24 5
Operating {loss)/profit before interest and taxauon (PBIT) 68 (42) 278
Finance income 12 15 12
Finance costs 13 {143) (132)
Operaung {loss)/profit before taxauon (PBT) {170) 158
Taxation 14 {56) (40}
{Loss)profit after taxauon (226) g
Loss from disconunued operauons 7 (116) (56}
(Loss)/profit for the year (342) 52
Attrbutable to
Equity holders of the parent (362) 40
Non-controlling interests 20 22
{Loss)/profit for the year (342) 62
Earnings per share attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent i%
Fram (loss)/profit from continuing operations
Basic and diluted (16 9p 68p
From {Joss)/profit from continuing and discontinued operations
Basic and diluted (24 9p 2%

* Restated - see notes 3(a} and 3(v)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
{Loss)/profit for the year (342) 62
Other comprehensive income
Items that will never be reciassified to profit or loss
Actuarial losses on defined retrement benefit schemes (60} (167)
Tax on jtems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss 14 (1} 30
(61} (137)
ltems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (10%) (95)
Change in fawr value of net investment hedging financial instruments 25 4
Change in far value of cash flow hedging financial instruments (8) (%)
Tax on rtems taken directly to equity 14 {4) 5
(38) (100)
Qther comprehensive income, net of tax {157} (237)
Toral comprehensive income for the year {499) (175)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent (518) (194)
Non-controlling interests 19 19
Total comprehensive income for the ysar (499) {175)
* Restated — see note 3 (v)
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 3| December 2013
Attnbutable to equity holders of the parent
Share Share Retained Other NCI Toual
capital premium earnings reserves’ Total reserve equity
£m £m £m £m £m im £m
At | January 2013 353 258 143 422 1,176 55 1,231
Total comprehensive income
attrbutable to equity shareholders
of the parent - - {422) {96) (518) 19 (499)
Shares rssued 35 - - 308 343 - 343
Dwvidends declared - - {130) - {130) 24) (154)
COwn shares awarded - - {2) 2 - - -
Transactions with
non-controlling interests - - {1 - 1) 2 {2)
At 3! December 2013 388 258 (415) 636 867 52 919
At | January 2012 353 258 389 494 1,494 50 1,544
Total comprehensive income
attnbutable to equity shareholders
of the parent - - (126) {68) {1949 19 (175)
Dmdends declared - - (120) - (120) (18) (138)
Own shares purchased - - - &) (6) - (6)
Own shares awarded - - (2} 2 - - -
Transactions with
nen-controling interests - — 2 - 2 4 &
At 31 December 2012 353 258 143 422 | 176 55 1,234
* See note 37
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Consolidated statement of financial pesrtion
At 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 19 1,966 2,108
Other acquistion-related intangible assets 19 14} 204
Other intangible assets 19 77 87
Property plant and eguipment 20 450 512
Trade and other recewvables 24 130 132
Deferred tax assets 35 184 179
2,988 3,222
Current assets
[nventones 72 17 128
Investments 23 39 56
Trade and other recevables 24 1,354 1,506
Cash and cash equivalents 27 594 469
Assets classified as held for sale 26 220 229
2,364 2388
Total assets 6 5,352 5610
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts 2728 (22) a7
Bank loans 28 27) (18)
Loan nectes 28 (1)) {40)
Obligations under finance leases 29 (21) (18)
Trade and other payables 30 (1,172} (1,193)
Current tax liabilities (48) (41)
Provisions 34 (200) (29)
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale 2 (133) (52)
{1684} (1408)
Nen-current lrabilities
Bank loans 28 (169) (327)
Loan notes 28 (1,921) (1,99%)
Obligations under finance leases 29 {31) (43)
Trade and other payabies 30 {13 (18)
Retirement benefit obligations 33 (504) (471)
Provisions 34 {64) (45)
Deferred tax hablties 35 (47) (68)
(2.749) {2971)
Total liabilites 6 (4.433) {4379)
Net assets 919 1,234
EQUITY
Share caprtal 36 388 353
Share premmum and reserves 479 823
Equrty attnibutable to equity holders of the parent 867 | 176
Non-controlling interests 52 55
Total equity 919 1231

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonised for 1ssue on 31 March 2014
They were signed on 1its behalf by

Ashley Alman Himanshu Raja
Dire Director d J
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Financial statemenits

Consolidated statement of cash flow
For the year ended 3§ December 2013

2013 2012

Notes £m £m
{Loss)/profit before taxauon {(170) 158
Adjustments for
Finance income (i5) (12)
Finance cosis 143 132
Cepreciaton of property, plant and equipment 18 HIT
Amortsation of acquisition-related intangible assets 72 84
Amorusation of other intangible assets 24 22
Goodwill impairment 46 -
Acquisition-related costs 4 7
Impairment of other assets 24 -
Increase/(decrease} in provisions 189 (5)
Addrtional pension contributions (38) (37)
Profit on disposal of fixed assets and subsidianes (24) (5)
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital 373 461 ‘
Decrease/(increase) n nventories 5 (14
Decrease/(increase) in recervables 40 (118}
Increase in payables 42 6
Net cash flow from operating acuvities of conunuing operations 460 337
Net cash flow from operating acuvives of disconunued operations 28 35
Cash generated by operations 488 n
Tax pad {88) (85)
Net cash flow from operating activiues 400 287 '
Invesung activities
Interest recerved 22 6
Cash flow from associates (6} 3
Purchases of non-current assets (210} (i160)
Proceeds on disposal of property plant and equipment
and intangible assets other than acquistion-related I 23
Acquisition of subsidiaries {23) {101
Net cash and overdraft balances acquired [t:)] 5
Disposal of subsidiartes kL3 19
Sale of iInvestments 16 -
Net cash used in invesung acuviues (163} (195)
Financing activities
Share Issues 343 -
Drndends paid to minority interests (24) (19)
Own shares purchased - {6)
Dnadends paid to equity shareholders of the parent {130} (120)
Other net movement in borrowings (165} 324
Movement in custorner cash balances 24 -~
Transactions with non-controlfing interests (2} [
Interest paid {132} (17
Repayment of obhigauons under finance leases (%) (22)
Net cash flow from financing activities (95} 46
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 38 142 138
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginning of the year 472 370
Effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (27) (36)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 27 587 472
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

I GENERAL INFORMATION

G4S ple s 2 company ncorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the company and entrities (its subsidiaries) controlled by the company (collectively comprising the group) and the
group’s interest In associates and jointly controlled entries made up to 3| December each year The group operates throughout the world and
i a wide range of functional currencies. the most significant being the eurc the US doliar and sterfing The group’s financial statements are
presented in sterking as the group’s pnimary isting 1s 1n the UK. The address of the regisiered office 1s given on page 160

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financral statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted
by the European Union (adopted IFRSs) The company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) These are presented on pages 142 to 150

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Bas:s of preparauon

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the going concern basts and using the histoncal cost basis except
for the revaluation of certain non-current assets and fimancial nstruments The prinaipal accounung policies adopted are set out below Judgements
made by the directors n the application of these accounting policies which have a significant effect on the financial statements, and estimates with
a significant nsk of matenral adjustment are discussed in note 4 The directors are confident that, after making enquines and on the basis of current
financial projections and avallable facilties, they have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future Further information on the going concern assessment 1s given in note 32 on pages 124 to 127

In preparing the financial staternents the notes to the accounts have been presented with regard to the principles set out in the Financial Reporting
Counal's publication 'Cutting Clutter to make the financial statements easier to follow and more intuitive to provide readers with a clearer
understanding of the financial performance of the group

The comparative Income statement for the year ended 3| December 2012 has been re-presented for operations qualfying as discontinued duning
the current year Revenue from continuing operations has been reduced by £273m and PBT has decreased by £7m compared to the figures
published previously Further details of discontinued operations are presented within note 7 In addition the comparative consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2012 has been restated to reflect the completion during 2013 of the initial accounting in respect of
acquisitions made during 2012 Adjustments made to the provisional calculation of the fair values of assets and habit:es acquired amount to £15m,
with an equivalent decrease in the reported value of goodwill The impact of these adjustments on the net assets acquired 1s presented in note 17

(b) Changes in presentation of the income statement
During the year the group has enhanced its presentation of business performance by separately disclosing ‘'undertying results' Underlying results
exclude specific tems and for the prior year re-present the effect of one-off crednis relating to far value and other provision releases

The group’s income statement and segmental analysis note separately identfy resutts before specific tems. Specific tems are those that In
management’s judgement need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size, nature or inaidence In determining whether an event or
transaction s specific management considers quanirtative as well as qualizative factors such as the frequency or predictabilty of occurrence
Specific tems include tems relating to acquistions and disposals Including amortisation and impairment of acquistion-related intangible assets,
discontinued operations, restructuring costs and impairments and other one-off items such as the review of the carrying value of assets and
habilives performed in 2013 or the impact of the Olympics contract in the prior year

This 1s consistent with the way that financial performance 1s measured by management and reported to the Board and assists n providing

a meaningful analysis of the underlying results of the group The directors believe that presentation of the group’s resutts in this way 1s relevant
to an understanding of the group’s financial performance, as specific items are wentified by virtue of ther size nawre or inodence Any reversal
ansing from a recovery of previously impaired assets will also flow through specific tems such that the underlying results reflect the ongoing
recurring results of the business

Specific tems may not be comparable to similarly ttled measures used by other comparues.
Speafic nerms for the current and prior years are disclosed in note 8

(c) Basis of consohdaton

Subsidianes

Subsidianes are entities controlled by the group Control 1s achieved where the group has the power to govern the financial and operating polices
of an investee entity 50 as to cbtain benefits from its activitses determined either by the group's ownership percentage, or by the terms of any
shareholder agreement In the case of certain investments detailed analysis of the different contracts in place s required together with a level

of jJudgement, to asceriain whether there 1s contrel under the definition of 1AS 27 Separate Financial Statements (see note 4)

On acquisttion the assets and habidities and contingent hiabilities of the acquired business are measured at their far vahses at the date of acquistion
The cost of acquistion 1s measured as the acquisition date fair value of the assets transferred as consideration to the vendor and does not
nclude transacon costs Any excess of the cost of acquistion over the fair values of the idenufiable net assets acquired s recognised as goodwall
Any deficiency in the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the idenufiable net assets acquired (1e discount on acquiston) 1s credited o

the income statement in the year of acquistion
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The cost of acquistion incfudes the present value of deferred and contingent consideration payable including that i respect of put options held
by non-controlling shareholders as estmated at the date of acquistion For acquisiions prior to | fanuary 2010 subsequent changes to the
present value of the estimate of contingent consideration and any difference upen final settlement of such a lability are recognised as adjustments
to the cost of acquistuon For acquisitions after | January 2010 such changes are recognised in the income statement with respect to contingent
consideration and in other comprehensive income with respect to put optians Non-controlling interests are stated at thewr proportion of the

far values of the assets and habiliues recognised Profits and losses are applied in the proportion of their respective ownership to the mterest

of the parent and to the non-controlling interest.

The resutts of subsidianes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date
of control or up to the effective date of disposal as appropriate

Jaint ventures
A joint venture 1s a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic ackivity that 1s subject to joint control,
in that strategic, financial and operating decisions require the unanimous consent of the parties

The groups interest in Joint ventures 15 accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method whereby the group s share of the results
and assets and habiltties of a jointly-controlled entity 1s combined line by line with similar items in the group s consolidated financial statements

Associates
An associate 1s an entity over which the group 1s in a posiuon to exeruse significant influence but not control or joint control through participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

The results and assets and habilities of associates are incorporated in the group s consolidated financial statements using the equity method

of accounting Investments in associates are carned in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition
changes in the group’s share of the net assets of the associates, legs any impairment i the value of indvidual investments Losses of the assaciates
In excess of the group's interest in those associates are not recognised

Transacuons elminated on consolidotion
All iIntra-group transactions balances ncome and expenses are eliminated on consolidation Where a group company transacts with a joint venture
or associate of the group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the groups interest in the relevant joint venture or assocate

(d) Foreign currencies

The financial statements of each of the groups businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that busingss Transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance
sheet date monetary assets and labilities which are denominated in other currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing on that date
Non-monetary assets and habilities carred at far value which are denominated in other currencies are translated at the rates prevaling at the
date when the fair value was determined Non-monetary items measured at historical cost denominated i other currencies are not retranstated
Gains and losses arising on retransiation are included in the income statement for the period

On consolidation, the assets and liabiities of the group's overseas operations, Including goodwall and far value adjustments ansing on ther
acquisition, are translated into sterling at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and expenses are translated into sterling
at the average exchange rates for the penod (unless this s not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rate prevarling on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions) Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income, together with exchange differences anising on monetary tems that are In substance a part of the group's net
investment in foreign operations and on borrowings and cther currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments where and to
the extent that the hedges are deermed to be effective Cn disposal, transfation differences are recognised in the income statement in the period
in which the operation 1s disposed of

(e} Denvauve financial instruments and hedge accounung

In accordance with its treasury pohicy the group only holds or 1ssues dervatve financial instruments to manage the groups exposure 10 finanaaf
risk. not for trading purposes Such financial risk includes the interest risk on the groups vanable-rate borrowings the fair value risk on the group's
fixed-rate borrowings, commodity nsk in refation to s diesel consumption znd foreign exchange risk on transactions on the translation of the
group's results and on the translation of the group's net assets measured in foreign currencies The group manages these nsks through a range

of dervative financial instruments including interest rate swaps, fixed rate agreements, commodity swaps, commodity options forward foreign
exchange contracts and currency swaps

Dervative financial nstruments are recognised in the consahdated statement of financial posstion as financial assets or habilties at far value

The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value 1s recognised smmediately in the income statement, unless the dernvatives guabfy for hedge
accounting Where derwatives do quatfy for hedge accounting the treatment of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged as descnbed below

Farr value hedge
The change n the fair value of both the hedging instrument and the related portion of the hedged tem 1s recognised immediately in the
tncome statement

Cash flow ond net investment hedges

The change 0 the fair value of the portion of the hedging nstrument that is determined to be an effective hedge 15 recogrised in equity
and subsequently recycled to the income statement when the hedged cash flow or hedged net investment impacts the income statement.
The ineffective portion of the fair value of the hedging nstrument 1s recogrused immediately 11 the income statement.

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 G4S pie 99




Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

(f} Inangible assets

Goodwil

All business combinations are accounted for by the application of the acquisison method Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess
of the cost of acquistion over the group s snterest in the fair value of the identifizble assets and labilties and contingent labilities of a subsidiary,
associate or jointly-controfled entity at the date of acquisiton No goodwill arses on the acquisition of an additional interest from a non-controlling
interest in a subsichary as this s accounted for as an equity transaction Goodwill 1s stated at cost, less any accumulated impairment losses and

I5 tested annually for impairment or mere frequently if there are indicatrons that amounts may be imparred On disposal of a subsidiary associate
or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Acquisition-related intangible assets

Intangible assets on acquisitions that are ether separable or ansing from contractual nghts are recogrised at far value at the date of acquisition
Such acquistion-refated intangible assets include trademarks, technology, customer contracts and customer relationships The fair value

of acqusition-related intangible assets is deterrnined by reference to market prices of simifar assets, where such information 1s avallable

or by the use of appropnate valuation techmiques including the royalty rel:ief method and the excess earmings method

Acquisition-related intangible assets are amortised by equal annual instalments over their expected economic e The directors review
acquisiion-refated intangible assets on an ongowg basis and, where appropniate provide for any impairment in value

The estmated useful Iives are as follows

Trademarks and technology up to 2 maximum of five years
Customer contracts and customer relationships up to a maximum of ten years

Other intangible assets

Development expendrture represents expenditure incurred n establishing new services and products of the group Such expenditure 15 recogrised
as an intangible asset only if the following can be demonstrated the expenditure creates an identifiable asset, its cost can be measured reliably

it i1s probable that it will generate flture economic benefits, it 5 techrucally and commercially feasible and the group has sufficient resources

to complete development In all other instances the cost of such expenditure 1s taken directly to the income statement.

Capnahsed development expenditure 15 amortised over the perod dunng which the expenditure 15 expected to be revenue-producing
up to a maxsimum of ten years The directors review the capitalised development expenditure on an ongoing basis and where appropnate,
provide for any impamment in value

Research expenditure i1s written off in the year in which it 1s incurred

Capralised computer software 15 stated at cost, net of amortisation and any provision for impairment Amortisation 1s charged on software
so as to wnite off the cost of the assets to their estimated residual values by equal annual instalments over their expected useful economic
Iives up to a maximum of eight years

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment Is stated at cost, net of accurnulated depreciation and any prowsion for impairment (epreciation 1s provided
on all property plant and equipment other than freehold tand Depreciation is calculated so as 1o write off the cost of the assets to ther
estmated residual values by equal annual mstalments over their expected useful economic lives as folfows

Freehcld and long leaseheld bulldings up to 50 years
Short leasehold bulldings (under 30 years) over the life of the lease
Equipment and motor vehicles 2to 10 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the expected useful economic ife and the term of the relevant lease
Where significant, the residual vatues and the useful economic fives of property, plant and equipment are re-assessed annually

{h) Financial instruments
Financiat assets and financal habilies are recogrused when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Trade recevables

Trade recevables do not carry interest and are stated initrally at their far value The carrying amount of trade recevables 1s reduced through
the use of a bad debt allowance account The group prowvides for bad debts based upon an analysis of those that are past due n accordance
with local conditions and past defauft experience

Service concession assets

Under the terms of a Private Finance Initative (PFI) or smilar project, the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset remain largely with the
purchaser of the associated services in such cases, the group s interest in the asset is classified as a financial asset and included at «s discounted
value within trade and other recevables to the extent to which the group has an uncondrional nght to receive cash from the grantor of the
concession for the construction of the asset To the extent that the group has the right to charge for the use of such an asset. conditional upon
the extent of the use, the group recognises an imangible asset.

Current asset investments

Current asset investments compnse investments in securties which are classified as held-for-trading They are nitaally recogrsed at cost,
including transaction costs and subsequently measured at fair value Gains and losses ansing from changes n fair value are recognised in the
income statement
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equrvalents compnse cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on derand and that form an integral
part of the group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equrvalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flow

Interest-bearing borrowangs

Interest-beanng bank overdrafis, loans and loan nates are recogrised at the value of proceeds receved, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges,
inctuding premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs are recognised n the Income statement on an accrual basis using
the effecuve interest method

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated instially at far value

Equity instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued by the group are recorded at the value of proceeds recerved, net of direct ssue costs

(1) Inventories

Irventores are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost represents expenditure incurred in the ordinary course of business
in bringing inventaries to their present condition and location and includes approprate overheads Cost 15 calculated using erther the weighted
average or the first-in-first-out method Net realisable value 1s based on estmated sefling price less further costs expected to be incurred

to completion and disposal

{1} tmpairment

The carrying value of the group’s assets, with the exception of inventones and deferred tax assets, 1s reviewed on an ongaing basis for any
indication of impairment and, if any such indication exists the assets recoverable amount 1s estimated An impairment loss 1s recognised

in the iIncome staterment whenever the carrying value of an asset or ns cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount

An impairment loss In respect of goodwill 1s not reversed In respect of any other asset, an irmpairment loss s reversed if there has been
a change In the estmates used to determine its recoverable amount The amount of the reversal 1s imited such that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed that which would have been deterrmined (after depreciation and amortisation) iIf no iImpairment loss had been recognised

{k) Employee benefits

Retrement benefit costs

Payments to defined contnbution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due Payments made to state-managed retrement benefit
schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contnbution schemes where the group's obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those
ansing In a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial postion represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost reduced by the far value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from the calculation
15 imrted to unrecognised past service cost plus the present value of avalable refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme

For defined benefit plans the cost charged 1o the Income statement consists of current service cost, net Interest cost. and past service cost
The finance element of the pension charge is shown 1n finance expense and the remaining service cost element 1s charged as a component
of employee costs In the income staterment Actuarial gains and losses and other remeasurement gains and losses are recognised immediately
in full through the statement of comprehensive Income

Share-based payments

The group Issues equity-settled share-based payments to certan employees The fair value of share-based payments 1s determined at the date
of grant and expensed, with a corresponding increase In equity, on a straight-ine basis over the vesting penod based on the group’s estimate
of the shares that wiil eventually vest The amount expensed is adjusted over the vesting peniod for changes in the estimate of the number

of shares that will eventually vest, save for changes resulting from any market-related performance conditions

() Provisions and conongent habiliues

Provisions are recognised when a present legal or constructive obligation exists for a future hability in respect of a past event and where the
amount of the obligation can be estinated reliably The amount recognised as a prowision s the group’s best esumate of the cost of settlement
at the end of the reporting penod

In respect of clams and Iitigation the group provides for anticipated costs where an outflow of resources 15 considered probable and a reasonable
estimate can be made of the likely outcome For all risks the ultimate liability may vary from the amounts provided and will be dependent upan
the eventual outcome of any settlement Management exercise Judgement in measuring the exposures to contingent hiabilties (see note 34)
through assessing the likellhood that 2 potentral clam or liability will anse and in quantfying the possible range of financial outcomes

Where the time value of money 1s matenal, provisions are stated at the present value of the expected expenditure using an appropriate
discourt rate

{m} Restructuring prowision

A restructuning provision is recogrused when the group has developed 2 detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has rased a valid
expectation n those affected that it will carry out the restructuning by starting to implement the plan or announcing 1ts main features ta those
affected by . The measurement of a restructunng prowision includes only the direct expenditures ansing from the restructuning, which are
those amounts that are both necessarily entaled by the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the enuty
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{n) Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue represents amounts recevable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business and 1s measured at the fair value

of the consideration recerved or recevable, net of discounts VAT and other sates-related taxes. Revenue for manned secunty and cash solutions
products and for recurring services In secunty systems products s recognised to reflect the period in which the service 15 provided Revenue
on security systems installations is recognised erther on completion in respect of product sales or in accordance with the stage of completion
method In respect of construction contracts

Construction contracts

Where significant. security system installations with a contract durauon in excess of one rmonth are accounted for as construction contracis
Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract actvity at the balance sheet date This 1s measured erther by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work to
date bear to the esumated total contract costs or by the proportion that the sales value of work completed to date bears to the total sales value
Vanations v contract work, clams and incentive payments are included to the extent that it 1s hkely that they will be agreed with the customer

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannct be estimated relably, contract revenue s recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are deemed likely to be recoverable Contract costs are recogrised as expenses as they are ncurred Where 1t 1s probable that
total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss s recognised immediately as an expense in the ncome statement

Construction contracts are recognised n the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus profit recognised to date, less provision
for foreseeable losses and less progress billings Balances are not offset

{o) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs in respect of major outsourcing contracts incurred after the point at which the group achieves preferred bidder status

(at which point it 1s considered probable that the contract will be obtained) are caprialised and expensed over the life of the contract subject to
recoverability criteria Costs incurred prior to this pont are expensed as incurred Capitalised costs are expensed immediately in the event that
preferred bidder status is not followed by the award of the contract.

{p) Onerous contracts

Cnerous contract provisions are recognised for losses on contracts where the forecast costs of fulfilling the contract throughout the contract
period exceed the forecast income receivable Management plans to recover the position on less-making contracts require a level of judgement
and are only taken into account in the calculation of the onerous contract provision when implementation has commenced and tangible evidence
exists of benefits being delivered The prowsion is calculated based on discounted cash flows o the end of the contract

In-year losses from onerous contracts will continue 1o be reported In undertying earnings as they are incurred, whilst provisions for future losses
on onerous contract provisions will be ¢harged and unwound through specific rems

Vacant property provisions are recognised when the group has committed to a course of action that will result in the property becoming vacant,
The prowsion is calculated based on discounted cash flows to the end of the lease taking into account expected firure sub-lease ncome

{q) Interest

Interest income 15 accrued on a ime basis by reference 1o the prinoipal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable This 1s the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets net carrying amount Borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense In the In¢ome statement

{r) Income taxes
Tax s recognised in the income staternent except to the extent that it relates to rtems recognised in equity in which case 1t 1s recognised In equity
or other comprehensive income The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current tax 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because 1t excludes
tems of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible 11 other years and it further excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible
The group’s hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and hiabihities in

the consolidated financial siatements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using
the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax habilities are generally recogrused for alt taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profits will be available aganst which deductible temporary differences can be utilsed

Deferred tax labilties are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments 1n subsidianes and interests in joint ventures
except where the group 15 able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of each deferred tax asset 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be avarlable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s measured based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

Tax habxlties or refunds may differ from those anticipated due to changes in tax legistation, differing interpretation of tax legislation and
uncertanties surrounding the application of tax legislavon In stuations where uncertainty exists prowsion 1s made for contingent tax labslties
and assets on the basis of management judgement following consideration of the avallable relevant information
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(s} Leasing
Leases are classfied as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all of the nisks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
On occasion this classification requires a level of jJudgement All other leases are classified as operating feases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the mception of the lease at their fair value or if lower at the present value of the minimum
lease payments, The corresponding liability to the lessor 1s included in the consolidated statement of financial posiiion as a finance lease abhgation
Lease payments made or receved are apportioned between finance charges or income and the reduction of the lease lability or asset so as

to produce a constant rate of interest on the outstanding balance of the hability or asset

Rentals payable or recevable under operating leases are charged or credited to income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, as are
incentives to enter into operating leases

{t) Non-current assets held for sale and disconunued operauons
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to self

Naon-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use This condition 1s regarded as met only when the sale 1s highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) 15 avaifable
for immediate sale i its present condrtion The group must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualfy for recognition

as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

A discantinued operation 15 a component of the group's business that represents a separate major Iine of business or geographical area
of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale that has been disposed of, has been abandoned or meets the critera
to be classified as held for sale

{u) Dvidend distribution
Dividends are recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the period in which they are paid or approved by the shareholders
in general meeting

(v) Adopuon of new and revised accounting standards and interpretations
In the year ended 31 December 2013, the group adopted the following new standards and amendments

— As a result of the amendment to 1AS 19 (201 I} the group has changed its accounting policy with respect to the basis for determining the
income or expense related to its post-employment defined benefit plans

The amendment makes changes to the recognition, measurement and disclosure of the defined benefit expense in particular requiring that
the return on investment assets recognised in the iIncome staternent be calculated at the same interest rate as that used for calculating the
finance cost on the cbligations, and to the disclosures of employee benefits

Pensions interest has therefore been restated for the change in calculation of the net pension interest charge, resulting in an additional £14m
interest cost for the year ended 3| December 2013 and £7m additional interest cost for the year ended 31 December 2012

The amendments also require that the group re-allocates pension administration costs from 1ts previous classification within finance income
through other comprehensive income (OCI) o disclosing it within PBITA Current year and prior year PBITA has reduced by £3m as a result
of this restatement

~ As a result of the amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements’ the group has modified the presentation of items of
comprehensive income In 1is condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive Income to present separately tems that would be
reclassified to profit or Joss i the future from those that would never be reclassified Comparative Income has also been re-presented
accordingly The adoption of the amendment to IAS | has no impact on the recogmsed assets, llabiities and comprehensive income of the group

- The group also adopted IFRS 13 'FairValue Measurement’ during the year This has not resutted in any significant impact on the group’s results
for the year ended 31 December 2013 or the year ended 3| December 2012

The group has not adopted early any standard, amendment or interpretation A number of new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been announced but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 Those that are expected to have an impact
on the group accounts are detalled below

— IFRS 10 (201 1) Consolidated Financral Statements', which replaces parts of IAS 27 'Consohdated and Separate Financral Statements and all
of SIC-12 ‘Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities’ introduces a new control model that focuses on whether the group has power over an
Investee, exposure or nights to vanable returns from its involvernent with the investee and the ability to use 1ts power to affect those retumns
This differs from the previous approach where one of the main criteria used to consolidate was to have the power to govern the financal
and operating policies of the entrty Apart from certain exceptions within the Asia Middle East region (including certain business in Kuwart,
Saudi Arabia and Qatar) it i1s expected that under the terms of the existing shareholder agreements the remamnder of the group’s principal
subsidiaries (see note 43} will continue to be consahdated upon adeption of IFRS 10 (201 1) Those entraes which do not meet the IFRS [0
{201 1) cntera to be consolidated will be accounted for generalty as jont ventures under the new IFRS 1§ ‘Joint Arrangements

— IFRS |1 ‘Jont Arrangements replaces IAS 31 ‘Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jeintly Controlled Entries — Non-monetary Contributions
by Vendors and removes the option to account for jointly controiled entriies using the proportionate consolidation method Instead all jointly
controlled entities will be accounted for using the equity method of accounting simifar to that used to account for associates under the current
standards As the group currently apphes the proportionate method of accounting to rts jointly controiled entities this will impact the group’s
consclidated income statement and consolidated statement of financial position
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Notes to the consolidated financial staternents continued

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Had the group applied IFRS 10 (201 1) and IFRS 11 10 1ts accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 Decernber 2012 it would have
had the following estimated impact on the group's consalidated income statement, statement of financial poston and statemeant of cash flow

Year ended 3| December 2013 Year ended 3| December 2012
As reported  Adjustments New basis Asreported  Adjustments New basis
£m £m £m £m £m fm

Income statement
Revenue 7.428 @317 ALY 7024 @277 6747
PBITA before specific tems 442 (32) 410 470 (27 443
PBT" 314 (27) 287 353 {15) 338
Tax” (75) 2 {73) (83) — (83)
PAT" 239 (25) 214 270 (15) 155
Non-controlling interests” (25) 25 - (22) 5 )
Profit to equity holders” 214 - 214 248 - 248
Statement of financral positon
Non-current assets 2988 18 3,006 3,222 19 31240
Current assets 2,364 (167) 2,197 2,388 (147) 2241
Total assets 5.352 (149) 5,203 5610 (129) 5481
Current habilities {1.684) 74 {1.610) (1,408) 80 (1.328)
Non-current habihues (2.74%) 48 {2,701) (2.971) 8 (2953)
Total liabiities (4,433) 122 (4311 (4.379) 98 (4.281)
Net assets 919 (27) 892 1,231 {31) 1200
Non-controlling interests 52 (27} 25 55 3h 24
Statermnent of cash flow
Net cash flow from operating activibies 460 (42) 358 287 “4hH 246
Net cash flow from investing actrities (163} 30 (133) (195) 14 (181
Net cash flow from financing activities (95) 3 (92) 46 25 71
Net increase/(decrease) in cash 142 (%) 133 i38 (2) 136

* Exchding specific items amorusation of acquistion-related inangible assets, goodwill imparrment, acquision-related expenses and profit on disposal of assets and
subsidunies 2012 results also exclude the impact of the Olympics contract.

- {FRS 12 Dhsclosure of Imerest in Other Entities 1s a new and comprehensive standand on disclosure requiremenis for all forms of interest
In other entities including jont arrangements, associates special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles The standard includes
disclosure reguirements for entrties within the scope of IFRS 10 {2011) and IFRS ||

— IFRS 10 (201 1) IFRS 1) and IFRS 12 together form a surte of standards that are effectve from | January 2013 However they have been
endorsed by the EU 1o be apphed from | january 2014 The group will therefore adopt all three standards for its financial statemenis for the
year ended 31 Decemnber 2014

4 ACCCUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financrzal statements in conformity with adopted [FRSs requires managemeni to make judgements estimates and assumptions
that affect the apphcation of the group's accounting palicies, which are described in note 3 wath respect to the carrying amounts of assets and
labilities at the date of the financial statements the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting pencd These judgements, estmates and associated assumptions are based

on histoncal expenence and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, Including current and expected
economic conditions and N some cases actuanal techniques Although these judgements estimates and associated assumptions are based

on managements best knowledge of current events and crcumstances the actual results may differ

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estmate 1s revised and in any future pernods affected

The judgements estimates and assumptions which are of most significance In preparing the group s 2013 accounts are detailed below

Review of the carrying value of assets and liabilines

In 2013 the group carred out a review of the carrying value of its assets and labdlities as at 31 December 2012 taking into account any changes in
facts or arcumstances since that date The purpose of this review was to ensure that the financial statements were presented in a more balanced
way This exercise required a tevel of jJudgement and in many cases taking a more balanced judgement based on the groups current understanding
of circumstances surrounding each issue The resulis of the review are presented within speafic tems’ given the one-off nature of the review
performed and are disclosed In note 8
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Contract pordolio review

Financial staterents

The group delivers outsourcing services that 1n some circumstances can be complex in nature and may be governed by unique contractual
arrangements There 1s a nsk that revenue recognition on these contracts 15 not In accordance with contractual entitlements and therefore
provisions may be required to be recognised wathin'contract provisions (see note 34) Estimates and judgements are therefore required

to determine the appropnate level of provisioning applied to these contracts

Comphance with foreign ownership rules and conschdauen of subsidianes

The group has a diverse set of complex ownership structures, which are sametimes driven by local Yaws and regulations relating to foreign
ownership fn some Instances the group operates through local structures with imited direct share ownership of the business but exercises control
through shareholder agreements In determining whether some group entrues qualify for consolidation under IAS 27 'Separate Financial
Statements, professional and legal advice 15 sought and a level of judgement 15 required Consolidation of any of these entihies would be at nsk if
the group’s ability to enforce its nights of control were successfully challenged Furthermare, as set out In note 3{v) following the adoption of IFRS
10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements' n 2014, the group expects to cease to consohdate some of these entities and will equity account for themn

Carrying value of goodwill

The group tests tangible and intangible assets, ncluding goodwall, for impairment on an annuat basis or more frequently if there are indications that
amounts may be :impaired The impairment analysis for such assets 15 based pnncipally upon discounted estimated future cash flows from the use
and eventual disposal of the assets Such an analysis includes the esumation of future results, cash flows annual growth rates and discount rates
Judgement 1s required in relation to the achievability of the long-term business plan and macroecenomic assumptions underfying the valuation
process In certan circumstances where market prices can be ascertained (for example through recent transactions) farr value less costs to sell

15 used as a basis for the recoverable amount This nvolves judgemenits and estimates to apply reasonable valuations technigues and to estimate
future selling costs The full methodology and results of the group’s mmparment testing 1s presented in note 19

Discontinued operauons

The group normally has business disposals underway at any reporting date There s a nsk that any such businesses may not meet the accounting
standards criteria for presentation as discontinued at the balance sheet date erther because they are not a separate major Ine af business
or there 1s uncertainty as to the likelhood of achieving the sale or the realisable value on disposal (see note 7) The latter requires a level

of judgement due to the range of potential sale prices

Taxauon

The group operates in many tax Junsdictions including countries where the tax legislation s not consistently applied and under some complex
contractual crcumstances where the responsibility for tax arsing 1s not afways clear Management are required to apply judgements and estirnates
to determine the approprate amount of tax to provide for and any required disclosure around contingent tax labiliues at each period end

Valuauon of reurement benefit obligauons

The valuation of defined retrement benefit schemes 1s arrved at using the adwice of qualfied independent actuaries who use the projected

untt credit method for determining the group's obligations This methodology requires the use of a variety of assumptions and estimates including
the appropriate discount rate the expected return on scherne assets mortality assumptions, future service and earnings increases of employees
and inflavon Full detalls of the groups retirement benefit obligations including an analysis of the sensiivity of the calculations to the key

assumptions are presented n note 33

5 REVENUE
An analtysis of the group's revenue as defined by IAS 18 Revenue’, is as follows
2013 2012

Notes £m £m
Conunuing operatons
Sale of goods 165 154
Rendenng of services 7.064 6853
Revenue from construction ¢ontracts 199 221
Revenue from continuing operations as presented in the consolidated income statement 6 7.428 7.228
Discontinued operations
Sale of goods | |
Rendenng of services 609 808
Revenue from construction contracts 12 2
Revenue from discontinued operations 6.7 522 811
Other operaung income
Interest Income 1S 12
Total other operating income 15 12
Total revenue as defined by IAS |18 8,063 8051
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6 OPERATING SEGMENTS

The group operates on a worldwide basis and derives a substantial proportion of its revenue, PBITA and PBIT from each of the following

six geographic regions Afnca, Asta Middle East, Latin Amenca, Europe, North Amenca and UK & Ireland For each of the reportable segmenis,
the group executive committee (the chief operating decision maker) reviews internal management reports on a regular basis This presentation

has been re-algned during the year to more closely reflect internal management reporting which 1s based on geographical regions

Segrment information 1s presented below

Conunuing  Disconunued Continung  Discontinued

operations operatons Toral aperations operations Total
Revenue by reportable segment 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
and gecgraphical area £m £rm £m £m £m fm
Afnca 486 8 494 465 !5 480
Asia Middle East 1,567 5 {,572 1,353 73 ! 426
Latn America 717 - 717 644 | 645
Europe 1,648 164 1,812 1,604 184 788
Naorth America 1,358 445 1,803 1,338 538 1.876
UK & Ireland 1,652 — 1,652 1,620 - 1,620
Total revenue before Clympics 7428 622 8,050 7,024 81 7,835
Clympics revenue - - - 204 - 204
Total revenue 7,428 622 8,050 7,228 8l 8,039

Total gross Total gross

segment  Inter-segment External segment  Inter-segment External
revenue revenue revenue revenue revenue revenue

Revenue from interna! and excernal 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
customers by product £im £m im £m £m fm
Secure solutions 6,735 {8) 6,727 6,737 (5) 6,732
Cash solutions 1,325 (2) 1,323 1,307 — 1,307
Total revenue 8,060 (10} 8,050 8 044 (5) 8,039
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices Refer to note 7 for details on discontinued operations

Conunuing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued

operauons operauons Total operations aperations Total
PBITA by reportable segment and 2013 2043 2013 20012 2012 2012
geographical area £m £m £m £m £m £m
Africa 39 {5) 34 35 2 37
Asia Middle East 129 3 132 108 I 1o
Latin America 48 - 48 48 - 48
Europe 92 (8) 84 108 (2) 106
North Amerca 56 15 71 73 I 84
UK & Ireland 122 - 122 145 - 145
PBITA before head office costs 486 5 4% 517 12 529
Head office costs (44) - (44) (47) - (47)
PBITA, before specific items 442 5 447 470 12 482
Spealfic items
Contracts review (136) - (136) - - -
Review of assets and labilties (182) (23) (205) - - -
Sub total (318) (23) (341) - - -
One-cff credits - - - 24 - 24
Olympics - - - (88) - (88)
Restructuring costs (68) {2) (70) (42} {8} (50)
Total specific items (386) (25) (411) (106} (8} {14
Total PBITA 56 (20) 36 364 4 368
Goodwill impairment (46} {80) (126) - {35) (35)
Amortisation of acquistion-related
intangible assets (72) 4) (76) (84) 5 (89)
Acquisition-related experses 4 - 4) €} - €)]
Profit on disposal of assets and subsidianes 24 — 24 5 - 5
Total PBIT (42) (104) (146) 278 (36) 242

Continuing PBIT as stated above 15 equal to PBIT as disclosed in the income statement. Drscontinued PBIT as stated above 1s analysed in nate 7
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Segment assets and habiliues
The following information 1s analysed by reportable segment and by the geographical area in which the assets are located

Total Total Total Total
assets assets liabihues liabihities
2013 2012 2013 2012
Total assets and liabiliues £m £m £m £m
By reportble segment and geographical area
Afnca 240 250 (76) 73
Asia Middle East 736 762 (247) (215)
Latin Amenca 345 425 (104) (105)
Europe 880 888 (360) (348)
North America 818 964 (184) (205)
UK & Ireland 1,397 1,480 (493) (357
Inter-segment trading balances (192) (218) 192 218
Total segment assets and liabilitzes 4,224 4551 (1,272) (1,085)
Head office 115 140 (86) (65)
Total operating assets and labilities 4,339 4,691 (1 358) (I 150)
Non-operating assets and liabilities 1,013 319 (3,075} (3229)
Total assets and liabilies 5,352 5610 (4.433) (4379

Included within operating and non-operating assets are £179m (2012, £183m) and £41m (2012 £46m) respectively relating to disposal groups
classified as held for sale Included within operating and non-operating labilities are £93m (2012 £36m) and £40m (2012 £16m) respectively
relating to liabdiies associated with disposal groups classified as held for sale Oisposal groups are anatysed n note 26

2013 2012
Non-current operating assets £m £m
By reportble segment and geographical area
Afrca 136 152
North America 409 431
Latn America 223 297
Asia Middle East 530 521
Europe 505 598
UK & Ireland 1,027 1.05%
Total segment assets 2830 3058
Head office 46 56
Total non-current operating assets 2,876 3114
Non-operating assets 214 202
Less Non-current assets held for sale {102) (94)
Total non-current assets 2,988 3222

Non-operating assets and habilities comprise financial assets and habilities taxation assets and labilties and retirement benefit obligations

Crther informavon

Impairment Impairment
fosses  Depreciation losses  Depreciation

recognised and Caprtal recognised and Caprtal
I INcome  amortisauon addivons N Income amorusatien additions
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
By reportable segment £m £m fm fm fm fm
Afnca 12 14 27 - 15 16
Agia Middle East 5 34 40 - 34 32
Latin Amenica - 21 14 - 19 98
Europe 4 41 47 - 48 50
North America 105 29 B 35 35 )
UK & lreland 7 8s 65 - 87 56
Head office 7 2 3 — 2 E)
Total 150 227 207 35 240 268
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7 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Operations qualifying as discontinued in 2012 manly comprised the cash and secure solutions businesses in Pakistan which were disposed
of iIn October 2012, the justice business in the United States of America, which was disposed of in Apnl 2012, and the groupss classified
US Government Solutions business

The classified LS Government Solutions business 1s stll included within discontinued operations as at 31 December 2013 as it was held for safe

at that date Due to circumstances beyond the group’s control, mainty relating 1o the impact on market sentiment anising out of poliical uncertanty
culminating with the US Government shutdown in early October 2013 the sale process has been extended and has now taken over |2 months
since the previous year end The sale process has progressed to a stage of negotiation with potential biuyers and the group 15 confident a sale

will be agreed in 2014

Operations qualifying as discentinued in 2013 also included the group s cash business in Canada and the group s remaining business in Norway,
both of which were sold in jJanuary 2014

The results of the discontinued operations are presented below

2013 2012

£m £m

Revenue 622 8l
Expenses (617) (799)
Underiying PBITA 5 12
Review of assets and liabilities 23) -
Restructuring costs {2) {8)
Total PBITA (20) 4
Impairment of goodwill and other assets to net recoverable amount {80) (35)
Amortisation of acquision-rejated intangible assets (4 (5)
Operating loss before interest and taxation (PBIT) (104) (36)
Net finance costs (N {6)
Autributable tax (charge)/credit (8) 6
Total operating loss for the year (H13) (36)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations (3) 20
Net loss attnbutable to discontinued operations (116) (56)

The effect of discontinued operations on segment results 1s disclosed In note 6

The imparment of goodwill and other assets in 2043 and 2012 relates to the US Government Solutions business and reduces the carrying value
of 1ts net assets down to therr recoverable amount.

Cash flows from disconunued operations ncluded in the consohdated cash flow statement are as follows

2013 2012
fm £m
Net cash flows from operating activities (after tax) 30 35
Net cash flows from investing actvities (18) {1)
Net cash flows from finanaing actviies 19 (6)
31 28
8 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXATION (PBIT)
The ncome statement can be analysed as follows
2013 2012
Continuing operations £m £m
Revenue 7.428 7228
Cost of sales (6.068) {5812)
Gross profit 1362 1416
Adrmimistration expenses (1,404} (1138
PBIT (42) 278

Cost of sales includes a charge resuling from the group's review of assets and habikties of £98m (2012 £nd) and a provision for the review
of contracts of £27m (2012 £nil} Cost of sales in 2012 included a £70m net loss relating to the Olympics contract.

Administration expenses nclude £72m of amortisation of acquistion-related intangible assets {2012 £84rm) £4m of acquisiion-related expenses
(2612 £7m} and are net of a £24m profit recognised on the disposal of the groups secure archiving business i Colombia (2012 £5m profit
on disposal of assets and subsidiaries)

Administration expenses also include a £46m charge relating to goodwill impairment made at the half year (2012 £nil) a charge resutting

from the group’s review of assets and labrlties of £84m (2012 £nif), a provision for the settlement on the UK Electronic Monitoring contract and
two smaller contracts of £109m (2012 £nif) and restructuring costs of £68m (2012 £42m) Further details of specific items are given below
Adrministration expenses in 2012 included £24m of one-off credits relating to far value and other provision releases and a charge of £18m for
sponsorship and other costs relating to the Olympics contract.
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Specific items

Financial statements

Speafic tems have been excluded from underlying results to prowide a clear comparison of the underlying trading performance of the group

These rtems are set out below

As at Since As at

30 June 30 june 31 December

2013 2013 2013

£ £m £m

Contracts review — 136 136
Review of assets and habthues

Impawrment of fixed assets 23 3 26

Current asset write-downs 17 17 34

Impairment of recenvables 52 7 59

Credrtors claims and provisions 40 23 63

Tortal review of assets and llabiliues 132 50 182

Subtotal 132 186 318

Restructunng 4 64 68

Total specific items 136 250 386

Contracts review

A global financia! review of 163 contracts, including UK Electronic Monitoning and other cantracts with annuatised revenues of around £2bn
resulted in a £136m charge For more details of the UK Electronic Monitonng settlement please see note 34 on page 135

Review of assets and habifites

A review of the group’s assets and habilmes applying more balanced judgements was nitiated n the first half of 2013 resulting in 2 PBITA charge
of £132m This was extended to cover all legal entibes duning the second half of the year Completion of this review resufted in a further charge of
£50m, bringing the full-year charge to PBITA of £i82m The total charge related principally to impairment of fixed assets, inventory obsolescence

write down of recevables and the recognition of employee related habiities

Restructuring costs

Restructuning charges of £68m (2012 £42m) were incurred during the year These include £35m in respect of restructuring programmes in the UK
& Ireland, Finland and other European businesses Acceleration of the restructunng programme in the fourth quarter primantly in the Netherlands
Belgium and i North Amenca resulted in additional charges of £33m

9 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from centinuing and discontinued operations has been arrived at after charging/{(crediting)

Continung Disconunued Tota!  Conmtinuing Discontinued Total
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost of sales
Cost of Inventores recognised as an expense 108 5 113 84 é 90
Net loss on Olympics contract 8 - - - 70 - 70
Contracts review 8 27 - 27 - - -
Review of assets and liabilities 8 98 - 98 - - -
Administration expenses
Acquisition-related expenses 4 - 4 7 - 7
Sponsorship and other costs on Olympics
contract 8 - - - 18 - t8
Restructuring costs 8 68 2 70 42 8 50
Amorusation of acquisttion-related
intangible assets 72 4 76 84 5 89
Goodwill impairment 19 46 80 126 - 35 35
Contracts review 8 109 - 109 - - -
Review of assets and liabilites 8 84 23 107 - - -
One-off credits - - - (24) - (24)
Amortisation of other intangible assets 24 2 26 22 2 24
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 118 7 125 17 10 127
Profit on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - - - (3) - 3)
{Profit}fioss on disposal of subsidianes 18 (24) 3 2n (2) 20 18
Impairment of trade recenables 20 - 20 18 - 28
Litrgation settlements ! - | ! - |
Research and development expenditure 5 - 5 5 - 5
Operating lease rentals payable 135 5 140 126 5 131
Operating sub-lease rentals receivable (16) - {16) {14 — (14)
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10 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

2013 2012

£m fm

Fees payable to the company s audrtor for the audrt of the companys annual report and accounts I i
Fees payable to the company’s audrtor and its associates for other services

The audtt of the company's subsidianes pursuant to legslation 6 5

All other services* !

* Cther services includes the provision of tax and non-audit advisory services.

The Corporate Governance Report on pages 52 to 60 autlines the company s established policy for ensuring that audrt independence i not

compromised through the provision by the company's auditor of other services

|| STAFF COSTS AND EMPLOYEES

The average monthly number of employees in continuing and discontinued operations, Including executrve directors was

2013 2012
Number Number
By reportable segment and geographical area

Afnca 113,964 112347
Asia Middle East 262,818 277,028
Latin Amenca 75,118 67190
Europe 72152 82333
Naorth America 60238 59062
UK & Ireland 44,672 50168
Head office 173 126
Total average number of employees 629,135 648 254

Their aggregate remuneration in continuing and discontinued operations comprised
2013 2012
im £m
Wages and salanes 4,665 4689
Social securrty costs 561 552
Employee benefits 215 211
Total staff costs 5441 5452

Information on directors’ remuneration, long-term incentive plans pension contnbutions and entitlements 1s set out in the Directors Remuneration

Report on pages 64 to 79

12 FINANCE INCOME

2013 2012
£m £m
Interest income on cash, cash equivalents and investments 14 I
COther interest sncome | I
Loss arising from change n fair value of dervative financial instruments hedging loan notes (28) (6)
Gain ansing from fair value adjustment to the hedged joan note tems 28 6
Total finance income 15 12
13 FINANCE COSTS
2013 2012
£m £m
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 26 35
interest on loan notes 100 83
Net interest recevable on loan note related denvatves (12) (10)
Interest on obligations under finance leases 4 3
Other interest charges 5 6
Total group borrowing costs 123 17
Net finance costs on defined retirement benefit obligatons 20 15
Total finance costs 143 132

Included within interest on bank overdrafts and loans 1s a charge of £6m (2012 £6m) relating te cash flow hedges that were transferred from

equity duning the year
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14 TAXATION
Conunuing  Disconunued Contnuing  Disconginued
operations operations Total operations operations Total
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
fm £m £m £m £m £m
Current taxaton expense/(credit)
UK corparation tax 12 - 12 4 - 4
Overseas tax 58 (4) 54 72 (2) 70
Adjustments in respect of prior years
UK corporation tax 1 - | (3) - (3)
Overseas tax 21 2 30 ) - )
Total current taxation expense/(credit) 92 5 97 72 () 70
Deferred taxaton (credit}/expense
(see note 35)
Current year (23) (2) {25) {26) - (26)
Adjustments in respect of prior years (13} 5 (8) (6) 6] (10}
Total deferred taxaton {credi)/expense (36} 3 (33) {32) G)) (36)
Total Income tax expense/(credr)
for the year 56 8 64 40 (6} 34
UK corporation tax is calculated at 23 3% (2012 24 5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the period Overseas tax s calculated at the
corporation tax rates prevasing in the relevant jurisdictions
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as folfows
2013 2012
£m £m
{Loss)/profit before taxation
Continuing operations {170) 158
Discontinued operations (108) (62)
Total (Joss)/profit before taxation {278) 96
Tax at UK corporation tax rate of 23 3% (2012 24 5%) (65) 24
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 46 9
Tax losses not recogrised in the current year 44 8
D.fferent tax rates of subsidianes operating in non-UK junsdictions 13 8
Movement in deferred tax balance due to reducuon m UK rate to 20% from § Aprl 2015 3 )
Adjustments for previous years 23 (14)
Total income tax charge 64 34
Effective tax rate (23)% 35%
The following taxation charge/(credit) has been recogrised directly in equity within the statement of comprehenswe income
2013 2012
£m £m
Tax relaung to components of other comprehensive iIncome
Actuarial losses on defined retirement benefit schemes 1 (30)
Change in farr value of cash flow and net investment hedging financial nstruments 3 (3)
Crher | (2)
Total tax debited/(credited) to other comprehensive iIncome 5 (35)
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15 DIVIDENDS
Pence DKK 2013 2012
per share per share £m £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders
of the parent in the year
Final dwdend for the year ended 31 December 201 | 511 04544 - 72
Intenm dndend for the six months ended 30 June 2012 342 03220 - 48
Final dvdend for the year ended 31 December 2012 554 04730 78 -
Interim dvidend for the s months ended 30 june 2013 342 02972 52 —
130 120
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 554 04954 86

The proposed final dwidend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting If so approved 1t will be paid on 13 June 2014
ta shareholders who are on the UK register on 2 May 2014 The exchange rate used to translate it into Danish krone is that at |1 March 201 4

16 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDER OF THE PARENT

2013 2012

Notwe £m £m
From conunuing and discontnued operations
{Loss)/profit for the year attnibutable to equity holders of the parent (362) 40
Woeighted average number of ordinary shares (m) (see note below} 1,452 1,403
(Loss)/earnings per share from continuing and disconunued cperations (pence)
Basic and diluted (24 9)p 25p
From conunuing operatons
(Loss)/earnings
(Loss)/profit for the year attnbutable 1o equity holders of the parent (362) 40
Adjustment to exclude loss for the year from discontinued operations (net of tax) 7 116 56
(Loss)/profit from conunuing operations {246) 96
(Loss)fearmngs per share from continuing operations {pence)
Basic and diluted (16 9)p &8p
From discontinued operaucns
Loss per share from disconunued operatuons (pence)
Basic and diluted (80)p (40)p
From adjusted earnings
Earmings
(Less)profit from continuing operations (246) 96
Adjustments for
Amertisation of acquisition-related intangible assets 72 B4
Goodwill impairment 46 -
Acqussiion-related expenses 4 7
Profit on disposal of assets and subsidiaries (24) 5
Contracts review 136 -
Other specific tems 182 67
Restructunng &8 42
Tax on specific tems (19} {43)
Non-controlling interests share of specific tems (5} -
Adjusted profit for the year attributable 1o equity holders of the parent 214 248
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (m) 1,452 | 403
Adjusted earmings per share (pence) 14 7p 17 7p
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Adjusted earmings per share

In the opimion of the directors the earnings per share figure of most use to shareholders s the adjusted earnings per share This figure better
allows the assessment of operational performance the analysis of trends over time, the comparison of different businesses and the projection

of future earnings

Share placing

In August 2013 the group completed a 9 99% share placing which resulted in the weighted average number of shares for the year ncreasing

to 1,452 million

17 ACQUISITIONS

Current year acquisiaons

The group undertook a mumber of business combinations in the current year including the acquisivon of Deposita. a cash solutions business

in South Afnca.
A summary of the prewisionat fair value of net assets acquired by geographical location 1s presented below
Emerging Toral
Europe Markets group
£m £m £m
Provisional fair value of net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 5 2 14
Goodwilt | 3 4
Total purchase consideration é 12 18
The following table sets out the provisional far value to the group i respect of all acquisitions made in the year
Fair value
£m
Intangsble assets 15
Property plant and equipment 2
Deferred tax assets 2
Inventories 4
Trade and other recenvables 3
Cash and cash equivalents |
Trade and other payables (6)
Borrowings 4
Deferred tax labilities (3)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 14
Goodwill 4
Total purchase consideration (paid in cash) 18

Adjustments made to idenufiable assets and habilities on acquistion are to reflect their far value These include the recognition of customer-related
intangible assets amounting to £12m The fair values of net assets acquired are provistonal and represent estimates followsng a preliminary valuation

exercise These estmates may be adjusted to reflect any development in the 1ssues to which they relate

The goodwill arising on acquisitions can be ascribed to the existence of a skifled, actve workforce developed expertise and processes and the
opportunrties to obtain new contracts and develop the business None of these meet the critena for recogniion as intangible assets separable

from goodwill No goodwill acquired in the year is expected to be deductible for tax purposes

From their respective dates of acquisition, the acquired businesses contributed £28m to revenues, £4m to PBITA and £3m to profit for the part
year they were under the group s ownership If all acquisiions had occurred on | January 2013, group revenue would have been £7.434m,

undertying PBITA would have been £443m and tota! loss for the year would have been £341m
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17 ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

Prior year acquisiuons
Prinaipal acquisiions in subsidiary undertalangs in the prior year included the purchase of a 100% mterest inVanguarda Seguranga e Viglanca Ltda
Vanguarda', a securty personnel, securtty systems and monitonng services provider n Brazil.

At 31 December 2012, the far value adjustments made against net assets acquired were provisional The inrtial accounting 10 respect of acquistions
made dunng 2012 has since been finahsed This resulted in fair value adjustments to acquired trade debtors (increase of £9m) trade credrors
{decrease of £3m) and provisions (decrease of £3m) with a resuling £15m decrease in the value of goodwill

The net assets acquired and goodwall ansing in respect of all acquisivons made 1n 2012 are as follows

Fair value

£m

Intangible assets 3l
Property, plant and equipment I
Trade and other recevables 16
Cash and cash eguivalents 17
Trade and other payables (9
Provisions (4
Borrowings (1)
Deferred tax habiimes (9)
Net assets acquired of subsidiary undertakings 32
Goodwill 6l
Total purchase consideration 93

Adustments made 1o 1dentifiable assets and habiltties on acquisition are to reflect their fair value These indude the recognition of customer-related
intangible assets amounting to £31m

In the year of acquisition, In aggregate, the acquired businesses contnbuted £39m to revenues £4m to PBITA and £1m to profit for the part year

they were under the group’s ownership If all acquisttions had occurred on | January 201 2, group revenue would have been £7 264m underlying
PBITA would have been £472m and total profit for the year would have been £64m

Post balance sheet acquisions
No significant acquistions have been effected between the balance sheet date and the date that the financial statements were authonsed for 1ssue

18 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Durnng the current year the group disposed of its data solutions business in Colombia and its cash business in Slovakia Since the year end the
group has disposed of ris business in Norway {for proceeds of £29m) and s cash solutions business in Canada (for proceeds of £60m) In the
prior year the group disposed of its cash solutions business 1n Sweden, a Justice services business in the Unrted States of Amenica, its security
systems business in the Netherlands and its businesses in Poland and Pakistan

The net assets and profit on disposal of operations disposed of were as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Goodwill - 10
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisition-related 8 18
Current assets ] 26
Liabilities . {5} (17)
Net assets of operations disposed 14 37
Profit/(loss) on disposal 21 (18}
Total consideration 35 19
Satisfied by
Cash receved 35 25
Disposal costs - (6)
Total consideration 35 19
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Acquisiuon-related intangible assets

Customer Other

Goodwill Trademarks related Technology intangibles Total
2013 im £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At | January 2013 2,170 33 675 6 199 3,083
Acquisition of businesses 4 - 12 3 - 9
Addtions - - - - 27 27
Disposals - - - - {5} (%)
Reclassified as held for sale (45} (n (18) — (14 (78)
Translation adjustments (66) - {12) - (7} (85)
At 31 December 2013 2,063 32 657 9 200 2,961
Amorusation and accumulated
impairment losses
At | January 2013 (62) (30) (475) {5) {112) (684)
Amortisation charge - (2) {73) n (26) (102)
Impairment charge (46) - - - - {46)
Disposals - - - - 4 4
Redlassified as held for sale - | 17 - 8 26
Translation adjustments I - 11 - 3 25
At 31 December 2013 (97) {3) (520) {6) {123) (777)
Carrying amount
At | January 2013 2,108 3 200 | 87 2,399
At 3| December 2013 1,966 | 137 3 77 2,184
2012
Cost
At | January 2012 2275 34 673 19 185 3,186
Acquisition of businesses 6l - 31 - - 92
Additions - - - - 25 25
Disposals & (n @3] (12} {10 (30
Reclassified as held for sale (88) - (14) - - (102)
Translation adjustments 73 - {13) {1 h (88)
At 31 December 2012 2170 33 675 2] 199 3083
Amorusation and accumulated
impairment losses
At | January 2012 (70) (28) (412) (17 (98) (625)
Amortisation charge - (3) (85) {n 249 (113)
Imparment charge (35) - - - - (35)
Disposals | | 2 12 6 22
Reclassified as held for sale 35 - I - - 46
Translation adjustments 7 - 9 | 4 21
At 3] December 2012 (62) (30) (475 {5} {112) (684)
Carrying amaount
At | January 2012 2,205 6 261 2 87 2561
At 31 December 2012 2,108 3 200 | 87 2,399
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Goodwil! allocauon

Goodwill acquired in a business combination s allocated to the cash-generating units (CGUS) which are expected to benefit from that business
combrnation The majortty of the group's goodwill was generated by the merger of the secunty services businesses of Group 4 Falck and Securicor
in 2004 which was accounted for as an acquisition of Securicor by Group 4 Falck.

Goodwill impatrment testung

The group tests tangible and ntangible assets, including goodwll, for iImpairment on an annual basis or more frequently if there are indications
that any of these assets may be impaired The annual impamment test 1s performed prior to the year end when the budgeting process 1s finalised
and reviewed post year end The group’s mpairment test compares the carrying value of each CGU with ts recoverable amount. CGUs are
dentified on a country level basis induding sigruficant business units as per the group’s detailed management accounts Under IAS 36 lmparment
of Assets’ an imparrment 15 deemed to have occurred where the recoverable amount of a CGU s less than its carrying value

The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s generally deterrmined by its value in use which 1s derived from discounted cash flow calculations The key
nputs to the calculations are descrbed below In certan circumstances where market prices can be ascertaned (for example through recent
transactions) fair value less costs to sell 1s used as a basis for the recoverable amount.

Forecast cash flows

All operating countries in the group are required to submit a budget for the next financial year (for the current year test this is for the year
ended 31 December 2014} and therr strategic plan forecasts for the following two years (in this case the years ended 31 December 2015
and 3| December 201 6)

The revenue figures submitted as part of this exercise are used to derve a growth rate for the discounted cash flow calculation (see the growth
rate table below) The group applies a 10% forecast risk to reduce revenue forecasts in each year to reflect the uncertainties inherent in estimating
future revenue streams

Forecast cash flows are adjusted from year 4 onwards by applying a growth rate as detailled in the growth rate section and discounted using
specaific nsk-adjusted discount rates as described in the discount rate section

Growth Rate

Growth rates are determined from the budgeted and {orecast revenue in years 1-3 and then projected using the lower of the forecast growth
rate and the country's nominal growth rate (per the IMF) to a terminal growth rate in year |5 of 1% for developed markets or 3% for emerging
markets This is detalled In the table below

Growth :
assumptions  Year | Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6to |5 Terrmmnal value
Input Budget*  Forecast* Forecast* Projected —to Projected —to Projected to Estimate of residual
year 5 at lower year 5 at lower year 15 growth developed
of forecast or of forecast or ‘terminal growth' 1% emerging 3%
country growth country growth
Example 8% % 6% 5% 4% 4% to 1% 1%

over |0 years

* Budgets and forecasts are reviewed by the group Board

In the above example, budgeted year | growth rate s 8%, forecast growth n year 2 15 7% and in year 3 1s 6% The country growth rate is 4%
so the growth rate is reduced each year to reach 4% at year 5 From year 6 the growth rate is then reduced over the next ten years to provide
a termingl value growth of 1% (the example 1s based on a developed market CGU)

Discount rate

Discount rates are calculated for each CGU based on the relevant local nsk-free rate adjusted for that CGU s specific nsk-adjusted equity nsk !
premium For the impairment test performed for the year ended 31 December 2013 the group has revised the calculation of the discount rates

applied to certain CGU's This revision adjusts for the current iow-interest rate environment by increasing abnormally low discount rates Details

of how the other key discount rate inputs are derved are given below

Input How datermined 31 Dec 2013
Rusk free rate The risk free rate 1s generally obtained from the applicable government’s 10 year git/bond

rates Where these are unavalable the group uses the closest avarlable information

{eg shorter term gl rates) 283% in UK
UK equity risk premium The equity rnsk premium 1s determined for the UK by analysing a vanety of sources including

economuc studies camed out by Barclays Capital and others. 50% in UK
Operating country Specific local equity nsk premums are based on the UK nsk prermium adjusted for speaific
equity risk premium economic and financial risks. The sources for these adjustments are the institutional Investor

Magazine and the IMF websrte as well as other studies by independent economists
Leveraged beta Beta s a risk adjustment apphed to the discount rate to reflect the risk of the groups

operating companies relative to the market as a whole The group s beta s obtained from 08 for the

independent market studies and 1s adjusted for the appropnate leverage of the group group
Tax rate Local tax rates are apphed 1o each CGU to calculate pre-tax cost of equity 23% in UK
Debt margin The group apphies a margin to the cost of debt for each CGU with a higher margin applied

ta those CGUs operating in higher nisk ermronments These margins range from | 5%

in less risky CGUs (for example in the UK} to 5-6% in more nsky CGUs (eg 5 5% in Yemen) | 5% n UK
Weighted average The weighted average cost of caprtal s caltulated by weighung the cost of equity and the
cost of capnal cost of debt by the applicable debt equity ratto at the year end 86% in UK
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The table below sets out the discount rates and growth rates used for the group’s significant countries

Goodwiil Goodwill

Discount rate  Discount rate  Growth rate*  Growth rate* 2013 2012

2013 2012 2013 2012 im £m

South Africa 16 0% 14 0% 85% G 0% 30 36
Brazil 18 4% 14 8% 80% 87% 98 142
Canada** 82% 69% 40% 28% 8 51
United States of Amenca 90% 7 4% 53% 52% 384 395
Hong Kong 92% 54% 75% 73% 38 39
Malaysia 104% B 6% 74% 75% 40 43
Estona 92% 7 4% 62% 36% 63 6l
Israel 10 4% G 4% 10% 20% 34 34
Netherfands 89% 70% 31% 36% 150 146
United Kingdom 86% 7 1% 43% 28% 710 706
Other (all allocated) 409 455
Total goodwill 1,966 2,108

* Lower of country growth rate per IMF and implied year 3 business forecast growth rate

*=* £45m of goodwill n respect of the cash soluuions business in Canada was reclassified as held for sale m 2013

Within the UK, the most significant CGUSs and their goodwill carrying values are UK Care and Justice (£247m) UK Cash Solutions (£205m)
and UK Secure Solutions (£102m) Within the USA the most significant CGU 1s US Commeraial Security Solutions with goodwill of £302m

Impairment

During the year ended 31 December 2013 impawrment charges totalling £46m were recorded in respect of the group's goodwill,

in the following countries

Goadwill Gooadwill
pre- post-
Impairment Impairment impairment  Growth rate* Discount rate
Democratc Republic of Congo 8 (4) 4 114% 42 7%
Malaw 3 (2) 1 106% 500%
Nigeria 9 ) 5 136% 25 6%
Brazil 122 24) 98 80% 18 4%
freland 17 {5} 12 42% 10 1%
Other mpaired 7 {7) -
Non-impaired 1,846 - 1,846
Total 2,012 (46) 1,966

* Lower of country growth rate per IMF and implied year 3 business forecast growth rate

The smparment charge in Brazil was driven by losses incurred i the first half of the year in the technology business and a general downturn in
trading The imparment in Ireland was as a result of the econom:c challenges in the country and the speaific suation of the group s cash business
Certain CGUs in Africa were impaired as a result of worsening economic and polrtical circumstances in those countries

Sensiovity to key assumptions

The key assumptions used I the discounted cash flow calculations relate to the discount rates and growth rates used The table below shows the
additional Imparment that would arise from an increase n discount rates by |% and 3% (with all other varables being equal, for example taking
the UK base rate from 8 6% to 9 6% and | | 6%) or a decrease In growth rates by 1% and 3% {with all other variables being equal for example
taking the UK growth rate from 4 3% to 3 3% and | 3%} for the group in total and for each of tts significant countries

Base Addiuonal impairment Base Addiuonal impairment
Goodwill discount 1% increase 3% increase growth 1% decrease 3% decrease
2013 rate 2013 2013 rate™ 2013 2013
£m 2013 £m £m 2013 £m £m
South Africa 30 16 0% - - 85% - -
Brazil 98 184% 6 16 80% 4 12
Canada 8 82% - - 40% - -
Unnied States of Amenica 3% 90% - - 53% - -
Hoeng Kong 38 92% - - 75% - -
Malaysia 40 10 4% - - 7 4% - -
Estoria 63 92% 7 22 62% 6 18
Israel 36 104% - - 1 0% - -
Netherlands 50 89% i 28 31% ) 15
United Kingdom 70 86% - 47 43% - n
Other (all allocated) 397 2 9 i é
Total 1,966 26 122 17 73

* Lower of country growth rate per IMF and implied year 3 business forecast growth rate
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20 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Equipment

butldings and vehicles Total
2013 £m £m £m
Cost
At | January 2013 240 983 1,223
Acquisition of businesses - 2 2
Addrions 2 138 159
Disposals (10} {63) (73)
Reclassified as held for sale (3} (35) (40)
Translation adjustments (2} {29) {31)
At 3| December 2013 244 996 1,240
Deprecration and accumulated impasrrment losses
At | January 2013 77 (634) I
Deprecation charge {15) (110 (125)
Disposals 8 47 55
Reclassified as helg for sale 4 2 26
Translation adjustments | 4 S
At 3) Decernber 2013 (79) (671) {750)
Carrying amount
At | January 2013 163 349 512
At 31 December 2013 165 325 490
2012
Cost
At | January 2012 222 1,012 1,234
Acquisition of businesses - | [
Addrtions 24 126 £50
Disposals 3) (8% 92)
Reclassified as held for sale (2) (15) (17
Translation adjustrments 0 (52 (53)
At 3§ December 2012 240 983 1223
Depreciatton and accumulated impairment losses
At | January 2012 (67) (636) (703)
Deprecation charge (15) (2 (427)
Disposals 4 65 69
Reclassified as held for sale | 10 1]
Transtaton adpustments - 39 39
At 31 December 2012 7N {634) gy
Carrying amounzt
At | January 2012 155 376 531
At 3) December 2012 163 349 512

The net book value of equipment and vehicles held under finance leases was £52m (2012 £57m) Accumulated depreciaion on these assets
was £124m (2012 £116m) and the depreciation charge for the year was £17m (2012 £19m)

The nights over finance leased assets are effectively security for lease liabiliies These nights revert to the lessor in the event of defauft.

The net book value of equipment and vehicles includes £26m (2012 £34m) of assets leased by the group to third parties under operating leases
Accumulated deprectation on these assets was £37m (2012 £91m) and the depreciatton charge for the year was £7m (2012 £9m)

The net book value of land and buildings comprses freeholds of £73m (2012 £71m), long leaseholds of £20m (2012 £20m} and short leaseholds
of £72m (2012 £72m)
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21 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

At the year end the group owned 59% of the equity of Bridgend Custodial Services Ltd The group jontly shares operational and finangial control
over the operations and ts therefore entitled to a proportionate share of its results, which are consolidated on the basis of the equity shares held
The group's correctromal facilives in South Afrmca are under a similar arrangement other than that the groups holding is 20%. During the year the
group acquired a 50% share of the equity of Policity Limited to construct and run a police traning academy facility in Israel, which also operates
under a similar arrangement

The results of each of the jointly controlled operations are prepared in accordance with group accounting policies The way the group accounts
for joint ventures will change in 2014 with the adopuon of IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements’, as explaned in note 3{v) In particular, the group will no
longer account for joint ventures using the propertionate method and will instead apply the equity method

Amounts proportionately consolidated o the groupss financial statements are as follows

2013 2012
Results £m £m
Revenue 43 35
Expenses 39) [€2)]
Profit after tax 4 4

2013 2012
Balance sheet £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets 22 16
Current assets 24 6
Liabilities
Current habilities {9 (10}
Non-current kabifties (32) 7y
Net assets 5 5
22 INVENTORIES

2043 2012

£m £m

Raw matenals 14 16
Work in progress 14 16
Finished goods including consumables 89 98
Total inwentones 117 128

23 INVESTMENTS

Investments compnise pnmarily listed securtties of £29m (2012 £40m) held by the group's wholly-owned captive insurance subsidianes These are
stated at their fair values based on quoted market prices consistent with level | of the valuation hierarchy Use of these investments 1s restrnicted
10 the settlement of claims against the group's capiive insurance subsidiaries

24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2013 2012

MNotes £m £m
Within current assets
Trade debtors 1,£59 1,243
Allowance for doubtful debts (39) (46}
Other debtors {including tax recenable) 154 173
Prepayments and accrued income 82 88
Amounts due from construction contract custorners 25 23 22
Dervative financial nstruments at far value 31 15 26
Total trade and other receivables included within current assets | 394 1,506
Within non-current assets
Dervative financial instruments at far value 3 74 8t
Other debtors® 56 5t
Total trade and other recervables included wathin non-current assets 130 132

*  Other debuors include zmounts recervable under service concession arrangements of £22m (2012 £13m) which are pledged as security agunst borrowings
of the group
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24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk on trade receivables

There 1s imrted concentration of credrt nsk with respect to trade recewables, as the group’s customers are both large in number and dispersed
geographically n 120 countries The group's largest customer is the UK Government which compnses approximately §3% (2012 10%) of the total
trade debtor balance as at 31 December 2013 Group companies are required to follow the Group Finance Manual guidelines with respect to
assessing the credit worthiness of potential customers These guidelines include processes such as obtaning approval for credit limits over a set

amount, performing credit checks and assessments and obtaining additional secunty where required

Credrt terms vary across the group and can range from Q to 90 days to reflect the different risks within each country in which the group
operates There 15 no group-wide rate of provision, and prowision 1s made for debts that are past due according to local condiions and past

default experience

The movement In the allowance for doubtful debts 15 as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
At | January (46) (&7)
Amounts written off during the year 20 28
Increase n allowance {13 0
At 31 December (39) (46)
The ageing of trade debtors, net of allowance for doubtful debts 1s as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Not yet due 887 890
1-30 days overdue 132 161
31-60 days overdue 27 70
61-90 days overdue 28 29
91-180 days overdue 38 26
181-365 days overdue 6 7
Over 365 days overdue 2 14
Net trade debtors 1,120 1 197

Included wathin ‘not yet due’in the prior year is £75m relating to the Olympics contract settlerent

No addtional prowvision has been made on the above amounts as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the group
believes that the amounts are stifl recoverable The group does not hold any collateral over these balances The proportion of trade debtors
at 31 December 2013 that were overdue for payment was 21% (2012 26%) The group-wide average age of all trade debtors at year end

was 54 days (2012 60 days)

The directors believe the far value of trade and other recewables, being the present value of future cash flows approximates to their book value

25 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

2013 2012
Notes £m fm
Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other recevables 24 23 22
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other payables 30 {2) (2)
Net balances relatng to construction contracts 21 20
Contract costs ncurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 87 311
Less progress billings {266) (291)
Net balances relating to construction contracts 21 20

At 31 December 2013, advances received from customers for contract work amounted to £4m (2012 £4m) There were no retentions held
by customers for contract work at either balance sheet date All trade and other recevables arising from construction contracts are due

for settlement within one year
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26 DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

At 31 December 2013 disposal groups classified as held for sale primarily comprised the assets and habilties associated with the classified
Government Solutions business in the United States of America (see note 7), the groups business iIn Norway which was sold in January 2014
and the cash solutions business in Canada which was also sold in January 2014 A further mpairment charge of £80m has been applied to
goodwill and other assets in the US Government Solutions business during the year

At 3| December 2012 disposal groups classified as held for sale primanly comprised the assets and habilises assocrated with the classified
Government Selutions business in the United States of America, which were subject to a £35m impairment charge to goodwill in the prior year
to write down their assets to their estimated recoverable value

The major classes of assets and liabilities compnsing the operations dfassified as held for sale are as follows

2013 2012
£m £m

ASSETS
Goodwill 45 53
Acquisition-related ntangible assets ! 3
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than acquisiion-related 20 6
Interest In associates 12 5
Trade and other receivables (non-current) 10 12
Deferred tax asset 14 15
Trading investrnents 12 I
Inventories 2 -
Trade and other recewvables {current) 89 104
Cash and cash equivalents |5 20
Total assets classified as held for sale 220 229
LIABILITIES
Bank cans (19) (1
Trade and other payables (93) (36)
Retirement benefit coligations (7 {13
Deferred tax lability (4) (3
Totaf Iiabiliies associated with assets classified as held for sale (133) {52)
Net assets of disposal group 87 177

27 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS

A reconaliation of cash and cash equivalents reported within the consohdated cash flow statement te amounts reported within the consolidated
statement of financial position 15 presented below

2013 2012

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 594 469
Bank overdraits (22) (17
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafis included within disposal groups classified as held for sale 15 20
Total cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 587 472

Cash and cash equivalents comprise principally short-term money market deposits current account balances and group-owned cash held in ATM
machines and at 3| December 2013 bore interest at a weighted average rate of 07% (2012 05%) The credit nsk on cash and cash equivalents
1s hmited because wherever possible and in accordance with Group Treasury policy, the cash 1s placed with bank counterparties that hold
investment grade credrt ratings assigned by intemational credit-rating agencies

The group operates a multi-currency notional peoling cash managerment system which included over 140 group companies at 31 December 2013
It 1s expected that the number of participants in the group will continue to grow The group met the condrtions of IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments
Presentation allowing balances wrthin this cash pool to be offset for reporting purposes At 31 December 2013 £422m (2012 £360m) of the
cash balances and the equivalent amount of the overdraft balances were offset

Cash and cash equivalents of £39m (2012 £27m) are held by the group s wholly-owned captive insurance subsidianies Their use 15 restricted
to the settlement of claims against the group's captive insurance subsidiaries
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28 BANK OVERDRAFTS, BANK LOANS AND LOAN NOTES

2013 2012
£m £m
Bank overdrafts 22 17
Bank lcans 196 345 .
Loan notes* 1,982 2039 |
Total bank gverdrafts bark loans and loan notes 2,200 2401 .
The borrowings are repayable as follows \‘
On demand or within cne year 1o 75
fn the second year 96 86
In the third to fifth years inclusive 1392 1.05%
After five years 602 1,181
Total bank averdrafts, bank loans and loan notes 2200 2401
Less Amount due for settlement within |2 months (shown under current liabiltes)
- Bank overdrafts (22) (17}
— Bank loans (27) (18)
—~ Loan notes (61) (40)
{110} {75}
Amount due for settlement after |2 morths 2,090 2,326
¥ Loan notes includes £716m (2012 £7%4m) of private loan notes and £1 266m (2012 £1 245m) of public loan notes
Analysis of bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes by currency
Sterling Euro US Daollar Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Bank overdrafts | 8 [ 7 22
Bank loans - 37 BO 79 196
Loan notes 419 915 648 - 1,982
At 31 December 2013 420 960 734 86 2,200
Bank overdrafts 6 [ 7 3 17
Bank foans 137 73 99 36 345
Loan notes 419 895 725 - 2,039
At 3| December 2012 562 969 83| 39 2,401

Of the borrowings In currencies other than sterfing £1,014m (2012 £) 078m) 1s designated as a net Investment hedge

The we:ghted average interest rates on bank cverdrafts, bank loans and loan notes at 31 Decerber 2013 adjusted for hedging were as follows

2013 2012

% %

Bank overdrafts 11 15
Bank loans s 35
Private loan notes 42 45
Public loan notes 43 472

The group’s committed bank borrowangs compnse a £1,100m mutb-currency revohang credit facility with a2 maturity date of March 20H6

At 31 December 201 3, undrawn committed available facirties amounted to £365m (2012 £856m) Interest on all committed bank borrowing

faciliies 1s at prevailing Libor or Eunbor rates dependent upon the pertod of drawdown, plus an agreed margin and re-priced within one

year or less

Borrowing at floating rates exposes the group 1o cash flow interest rate risk. The management of this nisk 1s discussed in note 32
The group i1ssued fixed rate loan notes in the US Private Placement market totaling US$550m (£332m} on | March 2007 The notes mature

in March 2014 {($100m) March 2017 ($200m) March 2019 ($145m) and March 2022 ($i05m)

The group sued further fixed rate loan notes in the LS Private Placement market totalling US$514m (£310m) and £69m on 15 July 2008
$65m notes matured and were repaid on |5 July 2013, wath the remaining notes maturing in July 2015 ($150m) July 2016 {£25m),

Jty 20H8 ($224m) and (£44m), and July 2020 (§75m)

The group issued its snaugural public note of £350m using its European Medium Term Note Programme on |3 May 2009 The note matures

in May 2019

Dunng 2012 the group issued two further public notes, a €600m note issued in May 2012 matunng May 2017 and a €500m note

issued in December 2012 maturing Decemnber 2018
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The committed bank fatiliues and the private foan notes are subject to one finanual covenant {net debt to EBITDA ratic where EBITDA

15 calaulated as undertying group PBITA plus deprecation and amortisation) and non-comphance wrth the covenant may lead 1o an acceleranon
of mawrity The group complied with the financial covenant throughout the year to 31 December 2013 and the year to 31 December 2012
The group has not defaulted on or breached the terms of any matenal loans during the year

Bank overdrafts, bank loans the loan notes issued in July 2008 the loan notes issued in May 2009 €510m of the loan notes issued in May 2012

and €380m of the loan notes 1ssued in December 2012 are stated at amortised cost The loan notes issued in March 2007, €90m of the loan notes
issued in May 2012 and €120m of the loan notes 1ssued i December 2012 are stated at amortised cost recalculated at an effective interest rate
current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a far value hedge relationship

US$200m (£121m) of the loan notes issued in July 2008 have a far value market gain of £21m {2012 £3Im) resulting from the cross currency
swaps fiang the sterbng value of this portion of the loan notes at an exchange rate of 1 ¥75

€325m (£270m) of the loan notes 1ssued in May 2012 have a far value market gain of £5m (2012 loss £5m) partly resulting from the cross
currency swaps fixing the sterling value of this portion of the loan notes at an exchange rate of | 222 and partly resutting from the cross currency
swaps fixing the steriing and euro interest rates

€350m (£291m) of the loan notes issued in December 2012 have a far value market gan of £16m (2012 £2m) partly resutting from the cross
currency swaps fixing the sterling value of this portion of the loan notes at an exchange rate of | 233 and partly resutting from the cross currency
swaps fixing the stering and euro interest rates

29 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Present Present
Vzlue of value of
Mintmum Minimum minImum [Lgtialla g Wlas]
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 23 20 21 i8
In the second to fifth years inclusve 31 42 28 40
Alter five years 3 4 3 3
57 66 52 6l
Less future finance charges on finance leases (5) (5)
Present value of lease oblgations 52 6l
Less ameount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current
liabilities) (21) (18)
Amount due for settlement after |2 months 3l 43

It 15 the group's policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases The weighted average lease term is eight years For the
year ended 3| December 2013 the weghted average effective borrowing rate was 4 8% (2012 4 9%) Interest rates are fixed at the contract date
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

The group's cbligat:ons under finance leases are secured by the lessors charges over the leased assets

30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Within current labilives
Trade creditors 223 232
Amounts due to construction contract customers 25 2 2
Amounts owed to associated undertakings 2 2
Orther taxation and social security costs 200 228
Holday pay accruals 336 356
Crther creditors 95 74
Accruals and deferred income 312 294
Dervatve financal instruments at fair value 31 2 5
Total trade and other payables inchuded within current liabilities 1,172 1 193
Within non-current hiabilices
Dernvative financial instruments at fair value 31 2 3
QOther credritors Il 12
Total trade and other payables included within non-current liabilities 13 18

Trade and other payables comprise principally amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credit peried taken
for trade purchases 15 43 days (2012 42 days)
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31 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of dervative financial instruments at the balance sheet date are presented below

Assets Assets Liabilines biabilihes

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 42 32 - 5
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - 2 6
Interest rate swaps designated as far value hedges 46 73 | -
Commodity swaps | 2 | -
89 107 4 It
Less non-current portion {74} 81) (2) (&)
Current portion 15 26 2 5

Derwatve financial instruments are stated at fair value, measured using techniques consistent with Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy (inputs other
than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the asset and liability, ether directly or indirectly) The source of the market prices is
Bloomberg and in addrtion the third party relationship counterparty banks The relevant currency yield curve 1s used to forecast the floating rate
cash flows anticipated under the instrument which are discounted back to the balance sheet date This value 1s compared to the original transaction

value gving a fair value of the instrument at the balance sheet date

The mark to market valuation of the denvatives has fallen by £1 Im during the year

The interest raie cross currency and commodity swaps treated as cash flow hedges have the following maturities

Assets Assets Liabifrues Liabilities

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Within one year I 3 | |

In the second year 16 - - 2

In the third year - 17 2 -

In the fourth year 5 - — 3

In the fifth year or greater 21 8 - 5

Total carrying value 43 34 3 Il
The projected settlement of cash flows (inchuding accrued interest) associated with dervatives treated as cash flow hedges

Assets Assets Liabiliwes bLabilities

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Within cne year | 7 6 7

In the second year 6 3 4 6

In the third year - - 4 5

In the fourth year I 17 - 4

In the fifth year or greater 26 17 - -

Total cash flows 54 44 14 22

32 FINANCIAL RISK

Capital management

On 28 August 2013 the group rased equity capital amounting to £348m before costs The net proceeds of £343m were used to reduce debt

that was drawn on the group’s £1 1bn bank facility

In May 201 3, Standard & Poors downgraded the group’s long term credit rating to BBB- Negative However following the equity capttal raising
the group's rating was revised to BBB- Stable in September 2013 The group intends to continue to manage 1ts caprtal structure so that it retains

an Investment grade rating

The group’s policy 1s to maintain a net debt to EBITDA ratio to below 25 times At the end of 2013 the ratio was 2 6 times, before £89m
of divestment proceeds recenved in January 2014 It is expected the ratio will be within the target range in 2014

The group 1s currently well financed with £965m avadable and undrawn facilities from rts committed £1 tbn bank facidity It bas no significant
maturty until March 2816 and has a medium te long term debt maturity profile The group can access finance from the debt caprial markets
and the bank market Borrowings are principally in sterling, US dollars and euros reflecting the geographies of significant operational assets

and profits
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Liquidity risk
The group mmigates liquidity risk by ensuring there are sufficient undrawn committed faciliies available to it For more details of the group s bank
' overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes see note 28

| The percentage of avalable, but undrawn committed faciliues durng the course of the year was as follows

‘ 31 December 2012 28%
! 31 March 2013 25%
30 June 2013 25%
30 September 2013 32%
31 December 2013 32%

Te reduce re-financing risk, group treasury obtains finance with a range of maturtties and hence mimimises the impact of a single matenal source
of finance terminating on a single date

i
| Re-financing risk is further reduced by group treasury opeming negotiations to erther replace or extend any major medium term facility at least
‘ 12 months befare its termination date

Maturity prefile of loans and borrowings
The contractual maturities of financial assets and habiliies, together with the carrying amounits in the statement of financial postion including
interest payments, esimated based on expectations at the reporting date are shown below

Total

Carrying contractual Within Over
31 December 2013 Notes Amount  FairValue  cash flows | year 2-5 years 5 years
Investments 23 39 39 39 39 -
Derwvative financal instruments (interest rate swaps) 31 46 46 53 16 35 2
Financial assets desighated at fair value
through profit or loss 85 85 92 55 35 2
Derwative financial instruments (commadity swaps) 31 | [ 1 I - -
Derwvative financial instruments
(cross currency swaps) 3 42 42 42 (3) 45 -
Financial assets designated as cash flow hedges 43 43 41 {2) 45 -
Net trade recervables 24 1,120 1,120 1,120 1,120 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 27 594 594 594 594 - -
Orther finangial assets 24 22 22 22 — 22 ~
Loans and receivables 1,736 1,736 1,736 1,714 22 -
Loan notes
(tssued March 2007, 5 77%-6 06%, maturing 2014-22) 28 (377) 377) (420) (78} (175) {167)
Denvative financial instruments (interest rate swaps) 31 (1) {I) () | {2) -
Financial labiliues designated as fair value hedges (378) (378) (42hy (77) (177) (167)
Denvatve financial instruments (interest rate swaps) 31 2) (2) [€)] (2) {1} -
Denwvative financial instruments (commaodity swaps) 31 (1) )] {1) - [{}] -
Financial fiabilives designated as cash flow hedges (3) (3) 4 {2) 2) -
Loan notes
(1ssued July 2008 609%-7 56%, matunng 2015-20) 28 (340) (381) (418) (23) (344) {s1)
Loan notes
(issued May 2009, 7 75%, maturing 2019) 28 (350) (376) (513) 27) (109) (377
Loan notes
(1ssued May 2012, 2 875%, maturing 2017)* 28 {500) (508) (556) (14) (542) -
Lozan notes
(1ssued December 2012, 2 625%, maturing 201 8)* 28 (415) (410} {471) (H) (460} -
Bank foans 28 (196) {196) {196) 27) {169} -
Overdrafts 28 (22 {22) (22) (22) - -
Finance lease labilities 29 (52) (52) (52) {21} (28) (3)
Trade payables 30 (223) (223) (223) (223} - -
Other liabilties 30 {n (1) (11} — (1) -
Financial liabiliues measured at amortsed cost (2,109) (2,179) (2,452) {368) {1,663) (431)

*  €9%0m (£75m) of May 2012 loan notes and €120m (£100m) of Decamber 2012 Ioan notes are recorded at fair value through profit or loss
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32 FINANCIAL RISK

Total

Carrying contractual Within Over
31 December 2012 Notes Amount FarrValue  cash flows | year 2-5 years 5 years
Investmenis 23 56 56 56 56 - -
Derrsative financial nstruments (interest rate swaps) 31 73 73 8l 18 52 1
Financtal assets designated at fair value through
profic or loss 129 129 137 74 52 1
Derwative financizl nstruments (commodity swaps) 31 2 2 2 2 - -
Dervative financral nstruments
(cross currency swaps) 3t 32 32 32 6 12 14
Financial assets designated as cash flow hedges 34 34 34 g 12 14
Net trade recevables 24 1197 1192 1192 192 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 27 469 469 449 469 - -
Other financial assets 24 13 13 13 - 13 -
Loans and receivables 1 679 1,674 1,674 1,661 13 -
Loan notes
(1ssued March 2007, 5 77%-6 06%
maturing 2014-22) 28 {409) {409) {448) (20} (249) {179)
Financial habihues designated as fair value hedge {409) {409) (448) (20) (249) (179
Derwvative financial nstruments (interest rate swaps) 31 (6) %) ©) (3) (3) -
Derwative financial instruments
(cross-currency swaps) 31 (2 (3 (&) (2) (3) -
Financial liabilities designated as cash flow hedges (rn tn {an (5) (6) -
Loan notes
(issued July 2008, 6 09%-7 56%.
maturing 2013-20) 28 (385) (354) (514) (66) (198) (250)
Loan notes
(issued May 2009 7 75% maturing 2019) 28 (350 {3509 (590) 27y (109) (404)
Loan notes
(issued May 20112 2 875%. matunng 2017) 28 (489) {507} (557) {14) (543) -
Loan notes
(ssued December 2012, 2 625%, maturning 201 8)° 28 (406) {409) (469) {an (42} (416)
Bank loans 28 (345) (34%) (345) {18) (327) -
Overdrafts 28 (17 17y (17) {7 - -
Finance lease liabiliies 29 (61} 61) ®l) {18) 40 )
Trade payables 30 (232) {232) (232) (232 - -
Orther labilities 30 {12) (12) (12) - (12) —
Financial llabilines measured at amorused cost (2.297) (2.287) (2.747) (403) (1271) (1073)

The gross cash flows disclosed in the tables above represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to derwative financial liabilives
held for nsk management purposes and which are usually not closed out before contractual maturity The disclosure shows net cash flow amount
for denvatves that are net cash-settled and gross cash inflow and outflow amounts for dervatives that have smultaneous gross cash settlement —

e g forward exchange contracts

* €90m (£73m)} of May 2012 loan notes and €120m (£97m) of December 2(H2 loan notes are recorded at fair value through profit or loss
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Market nsk

Currency nsk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business in many currencies Transaction nsk s limited since wherever possible each business operates and conducts its
financing activities in local currency However the group presents s cansolidated financial statements in sterling and 1t 15 In consequence subject
to foreign exchange risk due to the translation of the results and net assets of its foreign subsidianes The group hedges a substantial proportion
of its exposure to fluctuations m the translation into sterling of its overseas net assets by hotding loans in foreign currencies

Transtation adjustments arising on the translation of foreign currency loans are recognised 1n equity to match translation adjustrents on foreign
currency equity investments as they qualfy as net investment hedges

A1 31 December 2013, the groups US doliar and euro net assets were approxmately 82% and 59% respectively hedged by foreign currency
loans (2012 US dollar 85% euro 60%)

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £191m are in place hedging the fareign currency sk on US$200m of the second US Private
Placement notes issued in July 2008, eflecuvely fixing the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of | 9750

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £266m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency risk an €325m of the euro publc notes issued
in May 2012, effectively fixing the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of 1 2217

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £284m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency risk on €350m of the euro public notes issued
in December 2012 effectively fixing the sterling value of this portion of debt at an exchange rate of | 2332

Assuming a | % appreciation of sterling against the U3 dollar and the euro the far value net gain on the cross currency swaps which hedge part
of the currency loan notes would be expected to fall by £7m

Interest rate nsk and interest rate swaps

Borrowing at floating rates as described in note 28 exposes the group to cash flow interest rate risk, which the group manages within policy lrmits
approved by the directors Interest rate swaps and to a Imited extent, forward rate agreements are utiised to fix the nterest rate on a preportion
of borrowings on a reducing scale over forward periods up to a maximum of five years At 31 December 2013 the nominal value of such contracts
was £57m (in respect of US dollar) (2012 £98m) and £37m (in respect of euro) (2012 £73m) ther weighted average interest rate was | 3%

{US dollar) (2012 13%) and 2 8% (euro) (2012 32 %) and therr weighted average period to maturtty was two and a half years Al the interest
rate hedging instruments are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements in thew far value have been deferred in equrty

The US Prvate Placement market 1s predominantly a fixed rate market. with investors wanting a fixed rate return over the life of the loan notes
At the time of the first 1ssue In March 2007 the group was comfortable with the proportion of floating rate expasure not hedged by interest
rate swaps and therefore rather than take on a higher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floating swaps effectively converting

the fixed coupon on the Private Placement 1o a floating rate Following the swaps the resulting average coupon on the US Private Placement

15 Lbor + 60bps These swaps have been dacumented as fair value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed nterest loan notes with the
movements n ther far value posted o profit and loss at the same time as the maovement in the fair value of the hedged tem

The interest on the US Private Placement notes issued in July 2008, the sterling public notes ssued in May 2009 510m of the euro public aotes
1ssued it May 2012 and 380m of the euro pubiic notes issued in December 2012 was kept at fixed rate

All three public notes have a coupon step up of | 25% which s triggerad should the credit rating of G45 plc fall below iInvestment grade

The core group borrowings are held in US doliar, euro and sterling Although the impact of nsing interest rates 15 largely shielded by fixed rate
loans and interest rate swaps which provide certainty on the vast majority of the exposure some Interest rate risk remains A 1% increase

In interest rates across the yield curve in each of these currencies with the 3t December 2013 debt postion constant throughout 2014,
would lead to an expectation of an additional interest charge of £8m in the 2014 financial year

Cemmodity nsk and commodity swaps

The group’s principal commadity risk relates to the fluctuating fevel of diesel prices, particularly affecting its cash solutions businesses Commodity
swaps and commodity options are used to fix synthetically part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatility Commodity swaps
hedging 4t million Iitres of projected 2014 diesel consumption, 27 miilion litres of projected 2015 diesel consumption and 9 millien itres of
projected 2016 diesel consumption were in place at 31 December 2013

Counterparty credit nisk
The groups strategy for credit risk management Is to set minimum credit ratings for counterparties and monitor these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions, the policy limits the aggregate credit nsk assigned to a counterparty The utilisatron of a credst irmit 1s calculated
by applying a weighting to the notional value of each transaction outstanding with each counterparty based on the type and duration of the
transaction The total mark to market value outstanding with each counterparty 1s also closely monitored aganst policy imns assigned to each
counterparty For short-term transactions (under one year} at inception of the transacbon, the financial counterparty must be investment grade
rated by either the Standard & Poor’s or Moodys rating agencies For long-term transactions, at inception of the transaction the financial
counterparty must have a miumum rating of BBB+/Baal from Standard & Poor's or Moody's

Treasury transactions are dealt with the groupss refationship banks, all of which have a strong investment grade rating At 31 December 2013

the largest two counterparty exposures related to treasury transactions were £29m and £28m ard both were held with institutions with a long
term Standard & Poor's credit rating of A and A- respectively These exposures represent 3% and 12% of the carrying values of the treasury
transactions, with a far value gain at the balance sheet date Both of these banks had significant loan commitments outstanding to G45 plc

at 3| December 2013

The group operates a multt-currency notional pooling cash managemenit system with a2 wholly owned subsidiary of an A+ rated bank. At year end

credit balances of £425m were pooled with debrt balances of £422m resulting In a net pocl credit balance of £3m There s tegal nght of set off
under the pooling agreement and an overdraft facilty of £3m

At an operating level the minimum investrment grade rating critena apples Exceptionally where required by focal country aircumstances
counterparties with no, or a non-investment grade, rating can be approved as counterparties for a penod of up to 12 months Due to the
group's global geographical footprint and exposure to muttiple industries there 1s minimal concentration risk.
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33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The group operates a wide range of reurement benefit arrangements which are established in accordance with local conditions and practices
within the countries concerned These include funded defined contnbution mulu-employer and funded and unfunded defined benefit schemes

Defined contribution arrangements

The maortty of the retirement benefit arrangements operated by the group are of a defined contribution structure where the employer
contribution and resulung income statement charge 1s fixed at a set level or s a set percentage of employees' pay Contributions made to defined
contribution schemes and charged to the Income statement totalled £99m (2012 £107m)

In the LK, following the closure of the defined benefit schemes to new entrants in 2004 the man scheme for new employees 15 a contracted-in
defined contnbution scheme

G45 Government Solutions, Inc 1s the admimistrator of severat defined benefit scheres. 45 Government Solutions, Inc 15 responsible for making
penodic cost-rembursable deposits to the various defined benefit schemes as determined by independent actuaries In each instance, the US
Department of Energy (DOE) acknowledged within the contract entered between the DOE and G45 Government Solutions, Inc s responsibility
for all unfunded pension and benefit labities Therefore, these schemes are accounted far as defined contnibution schemes

Mult-employer arrangement

In the Netherlands, most of the employees are members of the Securtty Industry Wide Pension Fund (’IWPF) This is a career-average defined
benefit plan Pensionable salary 1s subject to a cap, and minus an offset that reflects social secunity levels Withdrawal from the scheme 15 only
possible under certan strict cenditions determined by Dutch law and by the pension fund board of the IWPF

The plan 1s funded by a premium that 1s set by the IMWPF board in line with the financing rules that state that the premum should cover the
cost of the annual accrual of pension benefits Histoncally, the premium has been 30% of pensionable salanes and the employer pays 60%
of this premium and the employees the remaining 40%

The finanang rules specify that an employer 1s not obliged to pay any further premiums in respect of previously accrued benefits This means
that in case of insufficient funding, the benefits of participants could, n theory, be reduced The current solvency ratio «s |16 6% (October 2013)
The required solvency ratio according 1o Dutch law 15 122% (as at 31 December 2012) Should a surplus appear within the scheme the board
will decide 1f a reduction i premium 1s possible although this would only be possible at much higher solvency levels

Premiums paid to the scheme by the group and charged to the income statement in 2013 totalled £8m (2012 £8m) The estimated amounts

of contributions expected to be paid to the schemes during the financial year commencing | fanuary 2014 in respect of the on-gong accrual

of benefits 1s approximately £8m The premium that the IWPF receved in 2013 1s not yet available in 2012 this amounted 1o €60m of which
approximately €8m was paid by the group The total number of employees in the scheme 1s approximately 22 000 at the end of 2012 The number
of employees working for the group 1s approximately 5 600 as at 31 October 2013

The scheme s not accounted for as a defined benefit scheme under IAS |9 Employee Benefits' as it 1s not possible to :dentify the group’s share of
the schemes assets and habilities As a result, and in ine with general practice for such schemes, the scheme is accounted for as f it were a defined
contribution scheme under 1AS {9

Defined benefit arrangements

The group operates several funded defined retirement benefit schemes where the benefits are based on employees length of service Whlst
the group’s primary scheme 1s In the UK, 1t aiso operates other material schemes in the Netherlands and Canada and other less matenal plans
elsewhere Under funded arrangements the assets of defined benefit schemes are held in separate trustez-administered funds or similar
structures in the countries concerned

There are also various less material unfunded arrangements, for these the group does not hold related assets separate from the group

The amounts recogrised in Income are Induded within the following categortes in the income statement

2013 2012
Amounts recogrised in income £m £m
Cost of sales (5) {5)
Administration expenses 2) 3
Net finance costs {20) (15)
Total for all defined benefit schemes {27) (23)
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The Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO), Assets and balance sheet provisions for defined benefit schemes are as ollows

DBO Assers Provision
2013 £m £m £m
UK (2011) 1,562 (449)
Netherlands (i 88 (23)
Other {10} 10 -
Total for matenal funded defined benefit schemes (2.132) 1,660 (472)
Total provision for unfunded and other funded defined benefit schemes (32)
Total prowision for all defined benefit schemes {504)

OBO Assets Provision
2012 £m £m £m
UK (1886) 1474 (412)
Canada* (34) 28 )
Netherlands (96) 79 (7
Other {9) 8 {1
Total for matenal funded defined benefit schemes {2025) 1 589 {436)
Total prowision for unfunded and other funded defined benefit schemes (35)
Total provision for all defined benefit schemes (471)

* Labiwes and assets for the Canadran scheme were transferred to held for sale as at 30 June 2013 and the sale of the sponsoring business was completed on
17 January 2014

UK Defined Benefit Scheme

The defined benefit scheme in the UK accounts for 95% of the net balance sheet hability for materia! funded defined retirerent benefit schemes
it compnrises three sections the Group 4 section which s the pension scheme demerged from the former Group 4 Falck ASS, the Secuncor section
responstbility for which the group assumed on 20 july 2004 with the acquisition of Secuncor plc and the GSL section, responsibility for which the
group assumed on 12 May 2008 with the acquisitron of GSL.

The UK scheme s closed to future accrual apart from some sub-sections of the GSL secuon and for most members defines the pension based on
final salary The GS5L section has histoncally remained open to provide a facility 1o accept former publicsector employees who jon G4S through
outsourangs In the Group 4 and Secuncor sections members retain therr ink to final salary where appropriate on ther benefits accrued up to
closure n 2011

As at the latest actuanal funding valuaton the partucipants of the UK pension scheme sections can be analysed as follows

Group 4 GSL Securicar

At 5 Apnl 2012 section section section Total
Active participants

— Number - 808 - 808

—Average age N/A 471 N/A 47 |
Deferred participants

— Number 4,390 1318 9973 15,681

— Average age 515 500 513 512
Pensioner participants

— Number 3024 581 8,891 12496

— Average age 699 636 712 705

There 1s 2 mix of fixed and inflation-dependent pension increases (in payment and deferment) which vary from member to member according
to therr mernbership history and the section of the scheme

The discounted weighted average duration of the accrued habilities of the sections are respectvely |7 years (Group 4 section) 18 years
(GSL section) and 18 years (Secuncor section)

The scheme 1s set up under UK law and governed by a Trustee company which 1s responsible for the scheme's iInvestments, administration
and management The Board of the Trustee Company 18 compnsed of an independent chairman and further independent group and scheme
membership representatves

The current schedule of deficit recovery contnbutions provides for a contribution of approximately £42m during 2014 In addrion the company
has pledged a share of any matenal disposal proceeds to the pension scheme {to be shared i the same proportion as the pension scheme deficit
bears io overall group ndebtedness) and has agreed that additional contributions would be made in the event that the average annual dvidend
payment to ordinary shareholders over the three financial years 2013 2014 2015 exceeds a certan threshold orin the event that the company
makes a significant special dwdend payment, (or equivalent capital return), to sts ordinary sharehcldars over the same penaod

A funding valuation 1s carmed out for the scheme s Trustee every three years by an independent firm of actuanes Depending on the outcome of
that valuation a schedule of future contnbutions 1s negotiated the group has guaranteed any contnbutions due from s subsidianes The most
recent valuation had an effectrve date of 5 Apnit 2012
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33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATICNS (CONTINUED)

Other matenal Pefined Benefit Schemes

Apart from the multi-employer scheme referred to above, the group operates two matenal pension schemes in the Netherlands which apply
to different employee populations, they are known as the Securicor Staff and Cash Solutions schemes Both schemes define pensions in terms
of average career pay are open to new entrants and are funded in accordance with Dutch requirements

Pension increases in the Secuncor Staff scheme are conditional on the funding level and so are only required if there 1s a funding surplus

The Secuncor scheme has a nsk sharing arrangement whereby members pay 50% of the cost of the scheme but the group has opted to record
100% of the deficit as a company hability due to uncertanties as to the practicaliues of applying the schemes provisions in this respect, for example
in 2012 benefits were reduced rather than increasing members contributions

The Cash Solutions scheme is required to provide benefits at least equivalent to the industry-wide multti-employer scheme and in particular
pension increases in payment and deferment, as well as revaluation of active members rights in the Cash Solutions scheme have to follow the
muhi-employer scheme (which also applies a conditional approach) The Cash Solutions scheme 1s insured, so longewvity nsk on the base level of
insured pension (that is befare icreases) I1s carried by the insurer; and any bonuses from the insurer's returns may defray the cost of pension
increases Accordingly, there 1s a counterparty nsk aganst the insurer

The other matenial scheme 15 1n Canada, it 1s a final salary schame that 15 closed to new entrants, other than to hourly-paid members in a few
specific locations Most of the benefits are not subject to indexation in payment. The scheme 15 funded 10 accordance with Canadian requirements
The sponsoring business 15 held for sale as at 3| December 2013 It was sold on |7 January 2014 and the entire liabilries and assets of the scheme
are now the responsibility of the purchaser

The discounted weighted average duration of the accrued labilities of the schemes are respectively 28 years (Netherlands Secunicor Staff)
28 years (Netherlands Cash Solutions) and 18 years (Canada)

Expected Contributions

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the material schemes during the financial year commenaing | January 2014 1n
respect of the ongong accrual of benefits are approsamately £9r (split £6m UK £3m Netherlands} and 1 15 anticipated that these waill remain at
a simifar level in the medium term subject to changes in financal conditions Additional contributions of approxamately £42m will atso be made in
2014 1n respect of the deficit n the UK schemes

Principal Risks

The groups pension schemes create a number of nsk exposures Annual increases on benefits are to a varying extent from scheme to scheme,
dependent on inflation so the mam uncertanties affecung the level of benefits payable are future inflavon levels (incfuding the impact of inflaton
on future salary increases) and the actual longewity of the membership Benefits payable will also be influenced by a range of other faciors
ncluding member decisions on matters such as when to retire and the possibility to draw benefits in different forms.

A key nisk 15 that addittonal contributions are required if the investment returns fall short of those anticipated when setting the contributions
to the pension plans For the UK funding valuauon those assumed investment returns (for funding valuations) are set based on fixed margins
over the LIBOR swap curve The management of the pension fund assets has been delegated to an asset manager which manages the assets
against a hability benchmark. The key parameters of this mandate can be summanised as follows

= An asset mix which 1s managed dynamically over time rather than a set strategic allocation

— Interest rate and inflaton nsk 15 managed with the benchmark of hedging 100% of these risks as a percentage of the asset value through
the use of debt instruments (government bonds) and dervatives

— Currency nsk s managed with the objective of hedging at least 70% of the overseas currency exposure in the portfolio through the use
of forward foreign currency contracts

All pension schemes are regulated by the refevant junsdictions These include extensive legislation and regulatory mechanisms that are subject
to change and may impact G45' pension schemes

Regarding financial reporting measures the 1AS |9 hability measurement (DBO) and the service cost are sensitve to the actuarial assumptions
made on a range of demographic and financial matters that are used te project the expected benefit payments, the most important of these
assumptions being about future inflation and salary growth levels and the assumptions made about life expectation The DBO and service cost
are also very sensiive to the IAS 19 discount rate which determines the discounted value of the projected benefit payments. The discount rate
depends on market yields on high-quality corporate bonds Investment strategies are set with funding rather than 1AS 19 considerations in mind
and do not seek to provide a specfic hedge against the IAS |9 measurement of liabilities As a result the difference between the market value
of the assets and the 1AS 19 labilries may be volatile

130 G4S ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013




Financial staternents

Assumpuens and sensiuvities
The weighted average principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuanal valuations were as follows

UK Canada  Netherlands
Key assumpuons used at 3|1 December 2013
Discount rate 44% 50% 37%
Expected rate of salary increases 35% 310% 20%
Pension increases 1n payment {for the UK, at RPI® with a limit of 5% pa) 32% 1 4% | 4%
Inflation 3 4% 2 3% 20%
Key assumptions used at 3| December 2012
Discount rate 45% 45% 37%
Expected rate of salary sncreases 31% 30% 20%
Pengion increases in payment (for the UK, at RPI with a hmit of 5% pa) 29% | 4% 1 0%
Inflation 30% 23% 20%

* The CPl assumption used for the UK valuation in 2013 was 2 4%,

IAS 19 specifies that pension habilities should be discounted at appropriate high-quality corporate bord rates. The group considers that
1t I1s appropriate to consider AA-rated corporate bonds as high quality and therefore have used discount rates based on yelds on such bonds
corresponding to the liebility profile of the schemes.

The effect of a movement in the discount rate applicable n the UK alters reported habilities (before associated deferred tax adjustments)
by approximately the amounts shown in the table below

Increase/{decrease) in the
DBO of the UK Scheme

2013
Sensiuvity analysis £m
Discount rate assumption being 0 5% higher {163)
Dhscount rate assumption being 0 5% iower 181

The effect of a movement in RPI inflabon apphicable in the UK alters reported labiliies (before associated deferred tax adjustments)
by approximately the amounts shown in the table below

ncrease/(decrease) in the
DBO of the UK Scheme

2013
Sensiuvity analysis £m
Infiation assumption being 0 5% higher 79
Inflation assumption being 0 5% lower (70)

The above sensitivities allow for inflavon-dependent assumptions such as salary growth and refevant pension increases o vary corresponding
1o the mflation assumption variation Due to the caps and floors on pension increases a certain movement in the nflation assumption will not
generally result in the same movement in the penston increase assumption

In addrtion to the above, the group uses appropnate mortality assumptions when calculating the schemes’ obligations The mortality tables
used for the scheme ;m the UX are Birth year table S P[M/F]A Base with future improvements in line with CMI_201 3 Core projections based
on a long term impraverment rate of | 25% pa and allowing for Indivdual scaling factors based on the majority analysis carried out as part

of the last {funding valuation

The resulting assumed life expectancy of a male member of the UK schemes currently aged 65 1s between 21 and 22 years depending on the
section of the plan The assumed Iife expectancy at 65 of a male currently aged 52 1s between 22 and 23 years At those ages the assumed hfe
expectancy for a female member 1s between 2 and 3 years higher than for a male member

The effect of a one year change in this UK Iife expectancy assumption s to alter reported liabilimes (before associated deferred tax adjstments)
by approximately £88m

The selection of these movements to ilustrate the sensitvity of the DBO to key assumptions should not be interpreted as the group expressing
any specific vew of the probability of such movements happening.
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33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

The amounts recogrised on the balance sheet in respect of these defined benefit schemes and the vanous components of income
OCl and cashflow are as follows

DBO Assets Total
2013 £m £m £m
Amounts recogrised on the balance sheet at beginning of the period {2,025) 1,589 (436)
Amounts recogrised In income
Current service cost {?) - 9)
Settlements and past service costs } - |
Interest on obligations and assets (90) 70 (20)
Administration costs paid from plan assets - {2) (2)
Transfers in (1) 14 3
Total amounts recogrised in Income {109) 82 (27) !
Remeasurements '
Actuaral loss — change I financial assumptions (80) - (80)
Actuanal loss — change in demographic assumptions (22) - (22)
Actuanal loss — experience {4) - )
Return on assets in excess of interest = 46 46
Remeasurement effects recognised in OCI (106) 46 (60)
Cash
Employer contnbutions - 49 49
Employes contributions 4 4 -
Benefits paid from plan assets 79 79 —
Net cash 75 {26) 49
Other
Exchange rates 2 ! 3
Transfer of Canada scheme to held for sale 3 (32) ()
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet at end of the penod {2,132) 1,660 (472)

In 2011 G45 won the managed prisons bid in respect of HMP Birmingham and relevant employees have accrued benefits in the GSL section
since | October 2011 New employees had the option to transfer accrued pension rights This occurred as at | March 2013 and the effect
of this transfer has been presented in the "Transfers in line of the above breakdown
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DBO Assets  Asset Ceding Total
2012 £m £m m £m
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet at beginning of the period (1825) 1539 %) (293)
Amounts recognised i income
Current service cost O - - Q)
Settlements and past service costs 2 - - 2
Interest on obligations and assets (89) 75 (1) (15)
Administration costs paid from plan assets - (3 - 3
Total amounts recogrused n Income (94) 72 (1) {23)
Remeasurements
Actuanal loss — change in financial assumptions (179) - - {179)
Actuanal gain — experence 1 - - ]
Return on assets in excess of interest - | - |
Change n effect of asset celling In excess of interest - - 10 10
Remeasurement effects recognised in OCl {178) | 10 (167)
Cash
Employer contrbutions - 47 - 47
Employee contnbutions C)) 4 - -
Benefits pad from plan assets 73 (73) - -
Net cash 69 (22) - 47
Cther
Exchange rates 3 n - 2
Amounts recognised on the batance sheet at end of the penod (2025} } 58% — (436)

The asset ceiling restnction at the beginning of 2012 reflects an inabilty to derve economic value from an IAS 19 surplus in a scheme in the

Netherlands, by 31 December 2012 the scheme was in deficit and ne restnction was necessary and this was stil the case at 31 December 2013

The contribution from sponsoring cormparies in 2013 included £38m (2012 £37m) of additional contributions in respect of the deficit in the

UK schemes

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 G4S ple

133



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

33 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

The composition of the scheme assets at the reporting date 1s as follows

Total  Netherlands UK
2013 im £m £m
Equity 438 25 413
Bonds 107 44 63
Other 1,105 19 1,086
Total 1,650 88 1,562
Total Canada Netherlands UK
2012 fm £m fm £
Equity 257 16 2 214
Bonds 373 10 38 325
Other 956 2 19 935
Total 1581 28 79 | 474
A more detalled spirt of assets of the UK scheme at 31 December 2013 is presented in the table below
2013
£Em
Equity 367
Private equity 46
Government bonds 63
Credrt 274
Property 42
Macro-onented 296
Multi-strategy 48
Denvatives 15
Cash and cash equivalents 411
1,562

Within the UK pension fund, the Equity, Credit, Macro-onentated and Multi-strategy sub-categories consist of pooled vehicles investing
predominantly In assets with quoted prices In active markets All government bonds are issued by the UK government and have quoted prices
in active markets Other UK investments are predominantly not quoted

Derwvatves include a range of interest rate and inflation linked swaps forward currency contracts equity index total returm swaps equity options,
and futures Investing in interest rate and inflation linked swaps 1s designed to mitigate the impact of future changes in interest rates and nflation

None of the pension scheme assets are held in the group's own financial instruments or in any assets held or used by the group
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Employee Claims Contract
benefits Restructuring reserves provisions Towal
£m im £m £m £m
At | January 2013 14 3 46 I 74
Additional provision in the year 21 68 27 136 252
Utilisation of prowision (6) (35) (17} (2) (60)
Transfers and reclassificatrons - - - (2) (2)
Translation adjustments 2 (3) | - -
At 31 December 2013 31 33 57 143 264
Included i current habilities 200
Included in non-current hiabiliies 64
264

Employee benefits
The provision for employee benefits 1s tn respect of any employee benefits which accrue over the working lves of the employees, typically
including items such as long service awards and termination indemnity schemes

The group’s net obligatron in respect of long-term service benefits other than retirement benefits represents the present value of the future
benefit that employees have earned at the balance sheet date, less the far value of scheme assets out of which the obligations are to be
settled directly

Restructuring
Restructuning promsions include amounts for redundancy paymenits, and the costs of dosure of activities 1n acquired businesses and discontinued
operations Settlement of restructunng prowvisions (s highly probable The timing 15 uncertan but 1s generally likely to be short term

Claims reserves

The claims reserves are held by the wholly-owned captive insurance subsicharies in Guernsey and the US which underwnte part of the
group s cash solutions general liabilty, workers' compensation and auto hability policies The prowisions are subject to regular actuanal review
and are adjusted as appropnate Settlement of thase prowvisions s highly probable but both the value of the final settlements and their tming
15 uncertain, dependent upan the outcome of ongoing processes to determime both liabxlity and quantum in respect of a wide range

of dams or possible clams

Contract provisions

Contract provisions Include provisions for onerous contracts including future liablities for loss-making contracts for all properties sub-let
at a shortfall for the cost of replacing assets where there 13 a present contractual requirement and for long-term idle leased properties
Provisions relating to revenue recognriion are also included in this categary The prowvision is based on the value of future net cash outflows
Whilst the likelhood of settlement of these obligations 1s considered probable, there is uncertanty over their value and duration

On 12 March 2014 the group announced that t had reached agreement with the UK Ministry of Justice (Mo} on a settlement in respect
of dams arising i relation to Electronic Monitoring services provided between 2005 and 2013 The agreement also concluded outstanding
matters relating to two UK faciliues management contracts

The total settlement amount was £109m and the group has prowded for this amount within contract provisions as at 31 December 2013

Contingent habihties
Contingent liabilies exist in respect of agreements entered nto i the normal course of business, none of which are Indvidualty
or collectively significant.

Details of unprovided contingent tax liabiities are presented in note 35

Annual Report and Accounts 2013 G4Sple 135



Notes to the consolidated financal statements continued

35 DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax liabilties and assets recogrised by the group and movements thereon during the current and pror
reporting penods

Retirement Other
benefit Intangible temporary

obligations assets Tax Josses differences Total

£m fm £m £ £m

At | Jargary 2013 104 (1)) 18 S3 124
(Charge)/credit to the income statement {5} 20 2 16 33
Acguisttion of subsidianes - (3) - 2 (i)
Charge to equrty - - - ] (4)
Translation adjustments - 2 - 4 (2)
Transfers/cther — ~ — 3) (3)
At 31 December 2013 99 {42) 30 60 147
At ] January 2012 76 {79) 23 45 65
Credit 1o the income statement 3 27 5 I 36
Acquisition of subsidiaries - )] - - )]
Credit to equity 25 - - 3 28
Transfers/other - - — 4 4
At 31 December 2012 104 (61) 28 53 124

Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset where permitted The following s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)
2013 2012

£m £m
Deferred tax labilities “7n (68)
Deferred tax assets 184 179
Net deferred tax asset ncluded in held for sale 10 13
Total deferred tax position 147 124

At 31 Decemnber 201 3, the group had unutilised tax losses of approximately £705m (2012 £485m) potentally available for offset aganst future
profits A deferred tax asset of £30m (2012 £28m) has been recognised in respect of approsemately £120m {2012 £106m) of gross losses

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining £585m (2012 £379m) of gross losses due to the unpredictabiity of future
profit streams n the relevant jursdictrons and the fact that a significant proportion of such losses remains unaudited by the relevant tax authorities
Included i unrecogrised tax losses are gross losses of £1 5m which wilt expire between 2014 and 2023 Other losses may be carmed

forward indefirstely

At 3| Decemnber 201 3, the aggregate amount of temporary differences assocated with undistributed earnings of non-UK subsidiaries for which
deferred tax labrities have not been recogrised 1s £1 220m (2012 £1 378m}) No liability has been recogrised in respect of these gross differences
on the basis that the group I1s in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and 1t 15 probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

At 31 Decemnber 2013 the group had total unprovided cantingent tax fiabilities of approwmately £58m (2012 £5m) relating to unresolved tax
1ssues I various junisdictions
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36 SHARE CAPITAL

2013 2012
G45 ple £ £
Issued and fully pard ordinary shares of 25p each 387,898,609  352667,160
Ordinary shares in 1ssue 2013 Number 20127 Number
At | Jarwary 2013 1,410,668,639 | 410668,639
New shares 1ssued for cash 140,925,797 -
At 3| December 2013 §.551,594,436 | 410668,639

In August 2013 the group 1ssued 140925 797 ordinary shares as a result of the 9 99% placing The group received gross proceeds of £348m
and paid related costs of £5m

37 OTHER RESERVES

Hedging Translauon Merger Reserve for Total other
reserve reserve reserve own shares reserves
£m £m £m £m £m
At [ January 2013 (34) 50 426 {20) 422
Total comprehensive Income attnbutable
1o equrty shareholders of parent 13 {109) - - (96)
Shares issued - - 308 - 308
Own shares awarded - - — 2 2
At 31 December 2013 (21) {59) 734 {18) 636
At | January 2012 (26) 10 426 (16) 494
Total comprehensive income attnbutable
to equity shareholders of parent (8 {60} - - (68}
Own shares purchased - - - (6) G}
Own shares awarded - - - 2 2
At 3t December 2012 (34 50 426 {20) 422

Cther reserves include

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change In the fair value of cash flow instruments related to the hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred (net of tax)

Translauon reserve
The translation reserve compnises all foreign exchange differences arsing from the transtation of the financial staternents of foreign operations,
as well as from the translation of Imbilities that hedge the company’s net iInvestment in foreign operations (net of tax)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve comprises reserves arising upon the merger between the former Group 4 Falck A/S and the former Group 4 Secunitas BY
n 2000 and the acquisition of Secunicor plc by the group in 2004 In 201 3 the £308m addition to the merger reserve resulted from the group’s
999% share placing in August 2013

Reserve for own shares

An employee benefit trust established by the group held 6934 564 shares at 31 December 2013 {2012 7,589 B33 shares) 1o sausfy the vesting
of awards under the performance share plan and performance-related schemes Durning the year no shares were purchased by the trust whilst
655 289 shares were used 1o satisfy the vesting of awards under the schemes At 31 December 2013, the cost of shares held by the trust was
£18460753 (2012 £20207 798) whilst the market value of these shares was £18,203.231 (2012 £19,470,928) Shares held by the trust are
treated as treasury shares, are deducted from equity do not recesve dmdends and are excluded from the calculations of earnings per share
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38 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT

A reconciliaion of net debt to amounts in the consolidated siatement of financial posiion 1 presented below

2013 2012
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 594 469
Investments 39 56
Net cash and overdrafts included within disposal groups classified as held for sale 15 20
Net debt (excluding cash and overdrafis) included within disposal groups classified as held for sale (17 10
Bank overdrafts (22) (17)
Bank loans (196) (345)
Loan notes (1.982) (2039)
Fair value of loan note derwative financial Instruments 88 105
Obligations under finance leases {52) (61}
Total net debt (1.533) (1.802)
Aq analysis of movements in net debt in the year 1s presented below
2013 2012
£m £m
Increase n cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts per consolidated cash flow statement 142 138
Sale of nvestrments {18) -
Movement in debt and lease financing 174 {302)
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows 300 {164)
Borrowings acquired with subsidianes (4) n
Net additions to finance leases (12) 2n
Moverment in net debt in the year 204 {186}
Translation adjustments (15} -
Net debt at the beginning of the year (1.802) (1.616)
Net debt at the end of the year (1,533) {1 802)
39 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The group as lessee
As at 31 December 2013 the group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Within one year 134 133
In the second to fifth years inclusive 290 315
After five years 214 181
Total operating lease commitments 638 629

The group leases a number of its office properties, vehicles and other aperating equipment under operating leases Property leases are negotiated
over an average term of eight years, at rates reflective of market rentals. Periodic rent reviews take place to brning lease rentals in line with
prevailing market condiions Some but not all lease agreements have an option 1o renew the lease at the end of the fease term Leased vehicles

and other operating equipment are negotiated over an average lease term of four years

Certain leased properties have been sub-let by the group Sub-leases are negotiated on terms consistent with those of the associated property
The total future minmum sub-lease payments expected to be receved by the group from sub-let properties amount to £12m (2012 £10m})
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40 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Shares allocated condrtianally fall under erther the group s performance-related bonus scheme or the group s Performance Share Plan (PSP)
Shares allocated conditionally under the performance-related bonus scheme vest three years following the date of grant provided certain
non-market performance condrtions are met Those allocated under the PSP vest after three years to the extent that (a) certan non-market
performance conditions are met and (b) certain market performance conditions are met The proportion of the allocation of awards to these
critena 1s descnbed in the remuneration report Vesting occurs after the third annversary of the date the shares were allocated conditionalty
To the extent that the performance criteria have been met and the shares are not forferted, these shares can only be released upon request
after the third annversary but before the tenth annversary

The number of shares allocated conditionally 15 as follows

Performance- Performance-
related bonus related bonus
scheme PSP Total scheme PSP Total
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
Number Number Number Number Number Number
Qutstanding at | January 812,200 15,589,225 16,401,425 1068455 16,102,450 | 7,170905
Allocated duning the year 58,026 7385392 7443418 40652 5859439 5900091
Transferred during the year {494,492) (161,948} (656,440} (296907) (613.518) {910,425)
Forfeted during the year - (2,546,129) (2.546,129) - (727.959) (727959)
Expired dunng the year - {4232.718) (42327i8) - (5031187 (5031 187)
Outstanding at 31 December 375,734 16,033,822 16,409,556 812200 15.589,225 16,401,425

The weighted average remarning contractual life of conditional share aflocations outstanding at 31 Decemnber 2013 was |6 months (2012 16
months) The weighted average share price at the date of allocation of shares aflocated conditionally during the year was 291 7p (2012 277 I1p)
and the contractual hfe of all conditional allocations was three years

Under the PSP the vesung of half (2012 halfy of the shares aliocated condionally depends upon Total Shareholder Return (a market performance
condrtion) over the performance period measured against a comparater group 25% of the allocation vests upen the group'’s Total Shareholder
Return equalling median performance amongst the comparator group The far value of the shares alfocated subject to this market performance
condition has therefore been reduced by 75%

The income statement is charged with an estimate for the vesting of shares condrtionally awarded subject to non-market performance conditions
The charge for 2013 was £nil {2012 £n)
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactons and balances with joint ventures and associated undertakings

Transactions between the company and tis subsidiaries have been elminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note Details of
transactions between the group and other related parues are disclosed below All transactions with refated parties are entered into in the normal
course of business

Transactions with joint ventures included revenue recorded of £28m (2012 £30m) Ameunts due to related parties include £2m (2012 £1m)
to jomt ventures and £2m (2012 £2m) to associates Amounts due from related parties include £4m (2012, £4m) from jont ventures and £!m
(2012 £2m) from associates

No expense has been recognised in the year for bad and doubtful debts In respect of amounts owed by related parties Details of principal joint
ventures are shown in note 21

The group has a legal interest in a number of joint ventures and joint arrangements where the economic interest was divested by the Global
Solutions Group prior to its acquistion by GA4S ple in 2008 Transactions with these entrties during the year compnsed

Services/ Services/

sales to sales to

2013 2012

£m £m

White Horse Education Partnership Limited 2 2
Integrated Accommodation Services plc 39 44
Fazakerley Prison Serwices Limited 33 34
Onley Prison Services Limited 14 14
ECD Cookham Wood Limited 12 13
ECD Onley Limited 13 13
Stratus Integrated Services Limited 8 7
UK Court Services {(Manchester) Limited 2 2
East Londen Lift Company Limited ) |
Total 124 130

Transacuons with post-empifoyment benefit schemes
Details of transactions with the group's post-employment benefit schemes are provided in note 33 Unpaid contrnibutions owed to schemes
amounted to £0 5m at 31 December 2013 (2012 £05m)

Transacuons with other related partes
In the normal course of the group s business the group provides services to and recenves services from certain non-controlling interests
on an arms length basis

Remuneraton of key management personnel

The groups key management personnel are deemed to be the non-executive directors and those individuals, including the executive directors
whose remuneration i1s determined by the Remuneration Commitiee Their remuneration is set out below Further information about the
remuneration of individual directors included within key management personnel 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors Remuneration
Repaort on pages 64 to 79

2013 2012

£ £

Short-term employee benefits 10,887 469 7253734
Post-employment benefits 217937 104212
Cther long-term benefits 56,682 41,819
Share-based payment 931,197 132289
Jotal 12,093,285 7532054

42 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
In January 2014, the group sold its cash solutrons business in Canada and its remaining business in Norway for total proceeds of £89m
No ather significant post-balance sheet events have affected the group since 31 December 2043

43 SIGNIFICANT INYESTMENTS

The companies listed below are those which were part of the group at 3| December 2013 and which, in the opinion of the directors
sigrificantly affected the groups results and net assets during the year The directors consider that those companies not listed are not significant
In refation to the group as a whole A comprehensive list of all subsidiaries will be disclosed as an appendix to the group's annual retum

The pnncipal actvities of the companies listed below are indicated according to the following key

Secure solutions S
Cash solutions C

These businesses operate principally In the country n which they are incorporated

140  G4S ple Annual Repert and Accounts 2013




Financial staterments

Product Country of Ultimate

segment  incorporation ownership
Subsidiary undertakings
GA4S Soluaiones de Seguridad 5 A S Argentina 75%
G445 Australia Pty Limited ) Australia 100%
G45 Custodial Services Pty Limited S Austraka 100%
G45 Secure Solutions AG (Austria) S Austria 100%
G45 Secure Solubons SA/INY S Belgum 100%
G45 Cash Solutions (Belgrum) NV C Belgium 100%
(45 Interativa Service Ltda S Brazil 100%
Vanguarda Seguranga eViglancia Ltda S Braz 100%
(G4S Cash Soluuons {Canada) Limrted C Canada 100%
(45 Secure Solutions (Canada) Limrted ) Canada 100%
G4S Secunty Services Regiones SA 5 Chite 100%
GAS Secure Solutions Colombia S.A 5+C Colombia 100%
G4S Secunty Services A/S S Denmark 100%
A4S Aviatron Services (UK} Limited S England 100%
G4S Care and Justice Services (UK) Limited S England 100%
GAS Cash Centres (LK) Limited C England 100%
GA45 Cash Selutions (UK) Limited C England 100%
G4S Integrated Services (UK) Limited S England 100%
G45 Ruisk Management Limited S England 100%
GA4S Secure Solutions (UK) Limited S England 100%
GA45 Secunity Services (UK) Limited S England 100% ‘
G4S Utility and Qutsourcing Service (UK) Limited ) England H00%
AS G45 Baltics S+C Estonia 100%
G45 Secunty Services Qy ) Finland 100%
G45 Keszpenzlogisziikal K&t C Hungary 100%
G45 Secure Solutions (India) Pvt. Limned' $ S India 49%
G4S Secure Sclutions (fre) Limrted S Ireland 100%
GAS Secure Solutions (israel) Limited S lsrael 92%
G4S Secunty Technalogies (Israel) Limed S Israel 92%
G4S Kenya Limited S+C Kenya 100%
Al Mulla Secunty Serwices Co WHLL® S+C Kuwart 49%
45 Secunity Solutions SARL S+C  Luxembourg 100%
Safeguards G4S Sdn Bhd®? 5+C Malaysia 49%
G45 Cash Solutions BY C  Netherlands 100%
G45 Beheer BY S Netherlands 100%
G45 Secure Solutions AS S MNorway 100%
GAS Peru SAC S+C Peru 100%
G4S Qatar SPC S+C Qatar 0%
al Majal Service Master Co Limrted* S SaudiArabia 49%
Mohammed Bin Abdoud Al Amoud: Co for Crvlian Secunty Services Partnership (Almajal)® S+C  Saudi Arabia 0%
GA45 Cash Solutions (5A) (Pty) Limited C  SouthAfrica 75%
GAS Secure Solutions {SA) (Pty) Limited S South Affica 74%
GA4S Secure Soluuons AB ) Sweden 100%
GA4S Secure Solutions (Thadand) Limited S Thailand 100%
Group 4 Secuncor Secunty Services UAE (LLC) G45° S+C UAE 49%
GA4S Government Selutions Inc S USA 100%

GA4S Integrated Servces, Inc 5 USA 1 00%
GA45 Secure Solutions {USA) Inc 5 USA 100%
GAS Technology LLC ) USA 100%
G45Youth Services LLC S USA 100%

Jomnt ventures (see note 21)

Bridgend Custodial Services Limited? ) England 59%
Btoemfontemn Correctional Contracts {Pty) Lirited? S South Afnca 20%
Policrty Limited 5 Israel 46%

Associated undertakings
Space Gateway Support LLC S USA 46%

G4S Secure Solutions (India) Pvt. Limited has a year end of 31 March

Safeguards G45 Sdn Bhd has a year end of 30 june

Bridgend Custodial Services Limited has a year end of 30 September

Bloemfontein Correcuonal Contracts (Pty) Limsted has a year end of 30 September

L

By wirwe of shareholder agreements, options pre-emption rights and other contracuual arrangements, the group has the power to govern the financeal and operating
policies 50 as to obtain the benefits from the actviues of these companies These are therefore consobdated as full subsidiries
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Parent company balance sheet
At 3| December 2013

2013 2012
MNotes £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets ®) (B 6
Investments {©) 3,055 3051
3066 3067
Current assets
Debtors {d) 2992 2930
Cash at bank and in hand 56 9
3,048 2,939
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdraft(unsecured) (€3] (%
Borrowings(unsecured) (e (C1)] (a0
Other creditors 0] (2.856) (2.851)
(2922) {2900)
Net current assets 126 39
Total assets less current [iabilities 3,192 3106
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings{unsecured) [O)] (1,040) (1, 174)
Other creditors 0] - 23]
(1.040) (1176)
Net assets 2,152 1,930
Capttal and reserves
Called up share caprtal 38 388 353
Share prermium and reserves [0) 1,764 | 577
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,152 1,930

The parent company financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 31 March 2014

They were signed an its behalf by

Ashley Almanza
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Parent company reconcihation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

£m fm

Retaned profit for the year 15 24
Changes in far value of hedging dernvatives 8) 6)
Shares 1ssued 343 -
Dndends declared {130} {120}
Own shares purchased - (€)
Tax on equity movements 2 2
MNet increase/(decrease) in shareholders funds 222 (106)
Opening equity shareholders’ funds 1,930 2036
Closing equrty shareholders’ funds 2,152 1,930
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

(A) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 They have been prepared under the
hustorical cost convention except for the revaluation of certan financial instruments and in accordance wath applicable Unrted Kingdom Accounting
Standards (UK GAAP)

The {inancsal statements have been prepared under the going concern basis

Exemptions
Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account

The company has taken advantage of the exemption from prepaning a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS | Cash Flow Statements’
The cash flows of the company are included within its consolidated financial statemants.

The company 1s also exempt under the terms of the revised FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures from disclosing related party transactions with
wholly owned subsidianes within the group

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated amorusation and any prowsion for impairment. Intangible fixed assets are amortised
an a straight-line basis over their expected economic life Software 15 amortised over penods up to a maxamum of eight years

Fixed asset mvestments
Fixed asset investments which comprise investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less amounts written off

Financiat instruments
Financial assets and financial babilties are recogmised when the group becomes a party 10 the contractual provisions of the instruments

External debtors
Debtors do not carry interest and are stated ntally at thewr far value The company provides for bad debts based upen an analysis of those that
are past due in accordance wath local condrtions and past default expenence

Cash at bank and i hand and bank overdrafts
Cash at bank and in hand and bank overdrafts comprise cash balances and call deposits

Interest-beanng borrowings

Interest-bearng bank overdrafts, loans and loan notes are recognised at the value of proceeds receved net of direct i1ssue costs Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are recognised in the profit and loss account on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method

External creditors
Creditors are not interest-bearing and are stated initially at their fair value

Amounts owed toffrom subsidiary undertakings
Amounts owed toffrom subsidiary undertakings bear interest at prevating market rates

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the value of proceeds recerved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Derwvauve financial instruments and hedge accounting

In accordance with ts treasury policy the company only holds or issues derwvative financial instruments to manage the group's exposure 1o finanoial
risk. not for trading purposes Such financal nsk includes the interest nisk on the group's variable-rate borrowings the fair value nsk on the groups
fixed-rate borrowngs. commodity nsk in relation to its diesel consumpuon and foreign exchange nisk on transactions on the translation of the
group’s results and on the translation of the groups net assets measured in foreign currencies The company manages these rsks through a range
of dervative financral instruments, Including interest rate swaps commodrty swaps, commodity options forward foreign exchange contracts and
CUITENCY Swaps

Dervative financal instruments are recognised in the balance sheet as financial assets or habilities at far valuz The gain or loss on remeasurement

to far value 1s recogrused immediately n the profit and loss account, unless they qualify for hedge accounting Where dervatves do qualify for
hedge accounting, the treatment of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the riem being hedged as descnbed below:

Forr value hedge

The change In the farr value of both the hedging nstrument and the related portion of the hedged item s recognised immediately in the profit and
loss account

Cash flow hedge

The change in the farr value of the portion of the hedging instrument that 1s deterrruned to be an effective hedge 1s recognised in equity and
subsequently recycled to the profit and loss account when the hedged cash flow impacts the profit and loss account, The ineflecive portion of the
farr value of the hedging nstrument 15 recogrised immedsately in the profit and loss account.
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Foreign currencies

The financial statements of the company are presented in sterling, its functional currency Transactons in currencies other than sterling are
transiated at the rates of exchange prevaiing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and labilities which are
denomirated in other currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date Non-monetary assets and liabilities carned at fair value which
are denominated in other currencies are translated at the rates prevaling at the date when the far vatue was determined Non-monetary items
measured at historical cost denominated in other currencies are not retranslated Gains and losses ansing on retranslation are included in the profit
and loss account.

Taxauon
Current tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all material timing differences that have cnginated, but not reversed, by the balance sheet date Deferred
tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the tming differences reverse based
on tax rates and laws enacted or substantrvely enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recognised where their recovery 1s
considered more likely than not in that there wall be surtable taxable profits from which the future reversal of underlying tirming differences can
be deducted

Pensions

The company partiapates in multi-employer pension schemes in the UK which prowde benefits based on final pensionable pay The company 1s
unable to (dentfy its share of the schemes assets and habifities on a consistent and reasonable basis In accordance with FRS |7 Retirement
Benefits, the company treats the schemes as (f they were defined contribution schemes and recognises charges as and when contributions are
due to the scheme Details of the schemes are included in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements

Share-based payments

The company grants equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees The fair value of share-based payments is determined at the date
of grant and expensed, with a corresponding increase in equity on a straght-line basis over the vesting period, based on the company s estimate of
the shares that will eventually vest The amount expensed ts adjusted over the vesting period for changes in the estmate of the number of shares
that will eventually vest, save for changes resutting from any market-related performance conditons

Developments expected in future accounung penods

The new UK financial reparting framework which comaes into effect for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2015 consists of three
new standards, FRS 100 Applicaton of Financal Reporting Standards’ sets out the application of financial reporting requirements n the UK and
Republic of Ireland FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework outiines the reduced disclosure framework avallable for use by qualifying entities
choosing to report under IFRS and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' 1s the new UK GAAF
which replaces all previous SSAPs and FR3s in one standard A {ull analysis 15 currently being undertaken to identrfy the most appropriate option

Divdends
Dividends are recogrised as distrbutions to equity holders in the period in which they are paid Dividends proposed but not declared are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the consalidated financral statements

Financial guarantees

The company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the ndebtedness of other compantes within the group The company
considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such The company therefore treats such contracts as a contingent babihty
unless and until such time as 1t becomes probable that the company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

Own shares held by employee benefit trust
Transactions of the company-spensored employee benefit trust are included n the parent company financial statements In particular the trusts
purchases of shares in the company are debrted drectly to equrty
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(B) INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Software
£m

Cost
At | Janvary 2013 17
Addtions 3
Disposals &
At 31 December 2043 13
Amorusation
At ! January 2013 0
Amortisation charge @
Disposals !
At 3! December 2013 )

Net book value

At January 2013 16

At 31 December 2013 [l

{C) FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
The following are included in the net book value of fixed asset investments

Total
Subsidiary undertakings m
Shares at cost.
At | January 2013 305
Addtions 13
Imparments (%)
At 31 Decernber 2013 3,055

The impairment within the carrying value of investments in the year 1s pnmanly due to a reduction in the net asset value of certain
subsidiary undertakings

Full details of significant investments held by the parent company and the group are detailed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements

(D} DEBTORS

2013 2012

£m £m

Amourts owed by group undertakings 2918 2828
QOther debtors 8 -
Dervative financial instroments at far value 66 102
Total debtors 2,992 2930

Included within dernvative financial iInstrumnents at fair value 1s £52m due after more than one year (2012 £77m) See note (g) for further details
Included in other debtors is £1m (2012 £nil) with regard to deferred tax compnsed as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Changes in fair value of hedging dernvatives I -

Total deferred tax | -
The reconcihation of deferred tax balances 1s as follows

Total

£m

At | January 2013 -
Charged to eguity in relation to changes in fair value of hedging dervatives 1
At 31 December 2013 |
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(E) BORROWINGS (UNSECURED)

The unsecured borrowings are in the following currencies

Financial statements

2013 2012
£m £m
Sterling 419 419
Eurc 37 73
US dollar 645 722
Total unsecured borrowings 1,101 1,214
The payment profile of the unsecured borrowings 15 as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Repayable wrthin one year 6l 40
Repayable within two to five years 469 402
Repayable after five years 571 772
Total unsecured borrowings 1,101 1,214
Undrawn committed faciliies mature as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Within twao to five years 265 856
Total undrawn commutted facilities 965 856

Borrowings consist of £37m of floating rate bank loans (2012 £73m) and £1 064m of fixed rate Joan notes {2012 L1 144m) Bank overdrafts bank
loans, loan notes 1ssued in July 2008 and May 2009 are stated at amortised cost The loan notes issued in March 2007 are stated at amortised cost
recalculated at an effective interest rate current at the balance sheet date as they are part of a fair value hedge relabonstip The directors believe
the fair value of the company's bank overdrafts bank loans and the loan notes issued in March 2007 calculated from market prices, approximates
1o their book value US$200m (£121m) of the loan notes 1ssued in July 2008 have a fair value market gain of £21m (2012 £31m) The far value of

the remaining notes approximates 1o their book value

Borrowing at floating rates exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The management of this nisk 1s detaled in note (h)

Thera were no financial habilries upon which no Interest is paid

(F} OTHER CREDITORS

2013 2012
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed 10 group undertakings 2,821 2817
Other taxation and social securtty costs 4 |
Other creditors 1 -
Accruals and deferred income 29 31
Denvave financial instruments at far value | 2
Total credstors - amounits falling due within one year 2,856 2851
Amounts faling due after more than one year
Denvative financial instruments at far value - 2 :
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{G) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying values of derwvatve finangial Instruments at the balance sheet date are presenied below

Assets Assets Liabiliues Liabilities

013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £

Cross currency swaps designated as cash flow hedges 21 31 - -
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges - - I 3
Interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges 45 70 - -
Commeodity swaps - I - 1
66 102 | 4
Less Amounts falling due after more than one year (52) 77 - 2
Amounts falling due within one year 14 25 | 2

Dervative financial Instruments are stated at far value based upon market prices where availlable or otherwise on discounted cash flow valuations

The mark to market valuation of the dervatves has decreased by £33m (2012 decrease £12m) during the year
The interest rate, cross currency and commedity swaps treated as cash flow hedges have the foilowing maturities

Assets Assets Liabilives Liabifities

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Within one year - 9 | 2

In the second year 15 - - 2

I the third year - - - -

In the fourth year - 17 - -

In the fifth year or greater 3 6 - -

Total carrying value 21 32 | 4
Projected settlement of cash flows (including accrued interest) assocrated with dervatives

Assets Assets Liabiliues Liabthties

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m fm £m £m

Within cne year - 7 | 2

In the second year 16 2 - 2

In the third year - - - -

In the fourth year - 17 — -

In the fifth year or greater 5 6 - -

Total cash flows 21 32 | 4
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(H) FINANCIAL RISK

Currency risk and forward foreign exchange contracts

The group conducts business in many currencies The group presents s consolidated financial statements in sterling and as a consequence is
subject to foreign exchange risk due to the translation of the results and net assets of s foreign subsidianes The company together with G45
International Finance plc hedges a substantial porton of the group's exposure to fluctuations in the translation into sterling of its overseas net
assets by holding loans in foreign currencies Translation adjustments arising on the translation of foreign currency loans are recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Cross currency swaps with a nominal value of £101m were arranged to hedge the foreign currency nsk on US$200m of the second US Private
Placement notes issued in July 2008, effectively fixing the sterling value on this portion of debt at an exchange rate of | 9750

Assuming a 1% appreciatien of sterling against the US dollar the fair value net gain on the cross currency swaps which hedge part of the currency
loan notes would be expected to fall by £1m

Interest rate risk and interest rate swaps

Borrowing at floating rates as described in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements exposes the group to cash flow interest rate rsk, which
the company manages within policy imits approved by the directors interest rate swaps and, to a lmited extent, forward rate agreements are
utilised to fix the interest rate on a proportion of borrowings on a reducing scafe over forward periods up to a maximum of five years At 3|
December 2013 the nominal value of such contracts was £nil {in respect of US dollar) (2012 £nil) and £37m (in respect of euro) (2012 £73m),
therr weighted average interest rate was nil% {US dollar) (2012 nil%) and 2 8% (eure) (2012 3 2%), and their weighted average period to maturity
was twelve months All the interest rate hedging instruments are designated and fully effective as cash flow hedges and movements in therr fair
value have been deferred in equity The quantity of interest rate swaps outstanding in the company I1s expected to continue to decline as Treasury
activity 1s increasingly conducted by G4S International Finance plc

The US Private Placement market 1s predominantly a fixed rate market, with investors looking for a fixed rate return over the life of the loan notes
At the time of the first issue in March 2007, the company was comfortable with the proporton of floating rate exposure not hedged by interest
rate swaps and therefore rather than take on a tugher proportion of fixed rate debt arranged fixed to floating swaps effecuively converting the
fixed coupon on the Private Placement 1o a floating rate Following the swaps the resutting average coupon on the US Private Placement 15 Libor
+ 60bps These swaps have been documented as far value hedges of the US Private Placement fixed interest loan notes, with the movements in
therr far value posted to profit and loss at the same time as the movement in the far value of the hedged tem

The interest on the US Private Placement notes issued in july 2008 and on the stering Public Bond ssued in May 2009 was kept at fixed rate

The core company borrowings are held in US dollar euro and sterling Although the impact of nsing nterest rates (s largely shielded by fixed rate
loans and interest rate swaps which fix a portion of the exposure, some interest rate risk remains A | % increase in interest rates across the yield
curve In each of these currencies with the 31 December 2013 debt position constant throughout 2014, would lead to an expectation of an
addtional interest charge of £3m in the 2014 financial year

Commodity risk and commodtty swaps

The group’s principal commaodity nsk relates to the fluctuating level of diesel prices particularly affecting s cash solutions businesses The company
acts as a market intermediary arranging commodiy swaps and commodity options with its relatonship banks with back to back deals on identcal
terms with ts subsidiares 1o fix synthetcally part of the exposure and reduce the associated cost volatihty

Counterparty credit nisk
The company’s strategy for credit risk management 1s to set minimum credit ratings for counterparues and monitar these on a regular basis

For treasury-related transactions, the policy limits the aggregate credit risk assigned to a counterparty The utilisation of a credit it 1s calculated by
applying a weighting to the notional value of each transaction outstanding with each counterparty based on the type and duration of the
transaction The total mark to market value outstanding with each counterparty 1s closely monritored against policy hmits assigned to each
counterparty For short-term transactions {under one year), at inception of the transaction the financial counterparty must be investment grade
rated by ether the Standard & Poor's or Moady's rating agencies For long-term transactions, at inception of the transaction the financial
counterparty must have a minimum rating of BBB+/Baal from Standard & Poors or Moody's

Treasury transactions are deati with the company’s relationship banks, all of which have a strong investment grade raung At 31 December 2013
the largest two counterparty exposures relating to treasury transactions were £28m and £20m and both were held with institutions with
long-term Standard & Pocrs credit ratings of A- and A respectively These exposures represent 42% (2012 37%) and 30% (2012 29%) of the
carrying values of dervative financial iInstruments, with a far value gain at the balance sheet date Both of these banks had significant foan
commitments outstanding to G4S plc at 31 December 2013

The company participates in the group s multi-currency notional pooling cash management syster with a wholly owned subsidiary of an Aa3 rated
bank. There 1s legal nght of set off under the pooling agreement.
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Notes to the parent company financial statements continued

(H SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Share Merger Profit and Cwn

premium reserve  loss account shares Total

£m im £m £m f£m

At | January 2013 258 - 1339 (20 1,577
Retained profit - - 15 - 15
Changes in farr value of hedging dervatives - - & - G)]
Shares 1ssued - 308 - - 308
Dwvdends declared - - (130) - (130)
Own shares awarded - - 2 2 -
Tax on equity mavernents - = 2 - 2
At 31 December 2013 258 308 1,216 {18) 1,764

In 2013 the £308m addrtion to the merger reserve resulted from the group’s 9 99% share placement in August 2013

() AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Fees pad to KPMG Audit Pic and its associates for non-audit services to the company niself are not disclosed in its individual accounts because the
companys consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis

(K) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The group has one type of equity-settled share-based payment scheme in place being the condittonal allocations of G45 plc shares An employee
benefit trust established by the group holds shares to satisfy the vesting of condrional allocation awards Reserve for own share disclosures
relevant to the company are presented within note 37 to the consolidated financial statements Share-based payments disclosures relevant to the
company are presenited within note 40 1o the consolidated financial statements

(L) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certan disclosures relevant to the company are presented within note 41 to the consolidated financial statements Company transactions with
group undertakings pnmanly consist of royafty charges, central service charges group insurance recharges and loan transaciions

There were no matenal transactions with nan-wholly owned group undertakings in 2013 (2012 none)

(M) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

To help secure cost effective finance facilities for ns subsidiaries the company 1ssues guarantees to some of its finance providers At 31 December
2013 guarantees totalling £47%m (2012 £493m) were in place in support of such faclities

The company also guarantees the debt obligations of G4S International Finance plc At 31 December 2013 contingent habiliies of £1,012m (2042
£1 061m) were outstanding in support of such debt obligations

The company 1s included in a group registration for LUK VAT purposes and 1s therefore jointly and severally hiable for all other UK group companies
unpaid debts In this connection The liability of the UK group registration at 31 December 201 3 totalled £17m (2012 £19m)
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document

or the action you should take, you should immediately consult
your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other
independent professional adviser authorised under the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the United
Kingdem or, if not, from another appropriately authorised
independent financial adviser if you have sold or otherwise
transferred all your shares in G485 plc, please send this notice and
the accompanying documents to the person through whom the
sale or transfer was effected so that it can be passed on to the
purchaser or transferee

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of G45 plc
witl be held at The Platinum Suite, ExCel. London One Western
Gateway, Royal Victoria Dock, London E16 | XL onThursday, 5 June
2014 at 200 pm in order to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the
following Resolutions

Resolutions | to 19 and Resolution 22 will be proposed as ordmary
resolutions Resolutions 20, 21 and 23 will be proposed as specal
resolutions

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

| To recerve the inangial statements of the company for the year
ended 3| December 2013 and the reports of the directors and
auditor thereon

REMUNERATION

2 To approve the Directors Remuneration Policy as set out In the
Directors remuneration report in the company’s annual report and
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013

3 To approve the Directors' remuneration report other than the
part contaning the Director's Remuneration Pobicy as set out In
the company's annual report and accounts for the year ended
31 December 2013

4 That the rules of the G45 Long Term Incentive Plan ( LTIP”) in
the form produced at the Annual General Meeting and initialled
by the chairman of the meeting for the purposes of identfication
(a summary of which is set out In the appendix 10 the explanatory
notes to this Notice of Meeting) be and are hereby approved,
and that the directors be and are hereby authonsed to

(a) adopt the LTIP and to do all such other acts and things as they
may consider appropriate to implement the LTIP and

{b) establsh further plans based on the LTIP but modified to take
account of local tax, exchange control or securtties laws In overseas
territories provided that any shares made available under such
further plans are treated as counting against the limits on indmdual
or overall participation in the LTIP

DIVIDEND

S To declare a final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2013
of 5 54p (DKK 0 4954) for each ordinary share in the capral of
the company

DIRECTORS

6 To elec Himanshu Raja as a director

7 To re-elect Ashley Almanza as a direcior

8 To re-elect john Connolly as a director

9 To re-elect Adam Crozier as a director

10 To re-elect Mark Efliott as a director

|| To re-elect Winnie Kin Wah Fok as a director
12 To re-elect Grahame Gibson as a director
13 To re-elect Mark Seligman as a director

14 To re-elect Paul Spence as a director

£5 To re-elect Clare Spottiswoode as a director
16 To re-elect Tim Weller as a director

AUDITOR

17 To re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditor of the company to hotd
office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of
the company

18 To authorise the directors to determine the remuneration of
the auditor

DIRECTORS' AUTHORITY TO ALLOT

19 That the directors be and are hereby generally and uncondiionally
authonised pursuant to and in accordance with section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 (the” Act’) to exercise all the powers
of the company to allot shares in the company or grant rights to
subscribe for, or convert any security into shares in the company

(1) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £129,299,000, and

(n) comprising equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the
Act) up to a further aggregate nominal amount of £129,293,000
provided that they are offered by way of a nghts 1ssue o holders
of ordinary shares on the register of members at such record
date(s) as the directors may determine where the equrty
securities respectvely attributable to the interests of the
ordinary shareholders are proporticnate (as nearly as may be
practicable) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held
or deemed to be held by them on any such record date(s)
subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with
treasury shares fractional entitlements, record dates shares
represented by depositary receipts, legal or practical problems
arsing under the laws of any territory or the requirements
of any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange or any
other matter,

provided that this authority shall expire on the date of the next
Annual General Meeting of the company save that the company
shall be entitled to make offers or agreements before the expiry of
such authority which would or might require relevant securties to
be allotted after such expiry and the directors shall be enutled to
allot relevant secunities pursuant to any such offer or agreement

as If this authority had not expired and all unexpired authorities
granted previously to the directors to allot refevant securities undet
section 551 of the Act shall cease to have effect at the conclusion of
this Annual General Meeting (save to the extent that the same are
exercisable pursuant to section 551(7) of the Act by reason of any
offer or agreement made prior to the date of this Resolution which
would or right require shares to be allotted or rights to be granted
on or after that date)

20 That the directors be and are hereby empowered, pursuant to
section 570 of the Act, subject to the passing of Resolution |9
above 1o allot equity securiues (as defined in section 560 of the
Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by Resolution 19
above as if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment, provided that this power shall be imited to

() the allotment of equity securities in connection with an offer
or ssue of equity securies (but in the case of the autharrty
granted under paragraph {n) of Resolution |9 above by way of
rights Issue only} to or In favour of the holders of shares on the
register of members at such record date(s) as the directors may
determine where the equity securities respectwvely attributable to
the Interests of the shareho!ders are proportionate (as nearly as
may be practicable} to the respective numbers of shares held by
them on any such record date(s) but subject to such exclustons
or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or
expecient in relation to fractional entitlements, treasury shares
record dates, shares represented by depositary receipts, legal or
practical problerns arising under the laws of any territory or the
requirements of any relevant regulatory body or stock exchange
or any other matter, and

{1} the allotment {otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (1)
above) of equity securities pursuant to the authority granted
under Resolution 19()) above up to an maximum nominat
amount of £19 394000,
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

and shall expire on the expiry of the authonity conferred by Resofution
19 above unless previously renewed vaned or revoked by the company
N general meeting, save that the company shall be entitled to make
offers or agreements before the expiry of such power which would

or might require equity securities to be allotted or treasury shares to
be sold after such expiry and the directors shall be entitled to allot
equrty securtties or sell treasury shares pursuant to any such offer

or agreement as If the power conferred hereby had not expired

All previous unutilised authonties under section 570 of the Act shall
cease to have effect at the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting

AUTHORITY TO PURCHASE OWN SHARES

21 That the company be and 1s hereby generally and unconditronally
authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the Act, to make
market purchases (within the meaning of section 653(4) of the Act)
of ordinary shares of 25p each in the capital of the company on
such terms and in such manner as the directors may from tme to
tme determine, provided that.

(1} the maxsmum number of such shares which may be purchased
15 155159000

{n) the minimum price which may be paid for each such share 1s
25p (exclusive of all expenses),

{m} the maximum price which may be paid for each such share 15
an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for an ordinary share in the company as denved
from The London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five
business days immediately preceding the day on which such
share 15 contracted to be purchased (exclusive of expenses),
and

(n) this authority shall, unless previously revoked or varied exprre at
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the company
to be held in 2015 (except In relation to the purchase af such
shares the contract for which was entered into before the
expiry of this authority and which might be executed wholly
or partly after such expiry)

AUTHORITY TO MAKE POLITICAL DONATIONS

22 That In accordance with sections 366 and 367 of the Act, the
company and all companies which are subsidiaries of the cormpany
during the penod when this Resolution 20 has effect be and are
hereby uncondrtionally authorised to

{1) make poltical donations to poltical parties or independent
election candidates not exceeding £50,000 in total

1} make political donations to political orgamasations other than
p P [3
poliucal partes not exceeding £50,000 1n total and

{nry incur political expenditure not exceeding £50,000 in total,

(as such terms are defined in the Act) during the period beginning with
the date of the passing of this Resolution and ending at the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the company provided that the
authonsed sum referred to in paragraphs (1), (u) and (n) above may

be comprised of one or more amounts In different currencres which
for the purposes of calculating the said sum shall be corwerted into
pounds sterling at the exchange rate published in the Londen edition
of the Financial Times on the date on which the relevant denation s
made or expendrture ncurred (or the first business day thereafter) or,
if earler on the day in which the company enters into any contract or
undertaking in relation to the same

NOTICE PERIOD FOR GENERAL MEETINGS OTHER
THAN AGMS

23 That a general meeting of the company other than an Annual
General Meeting may be called on not less than 14 clear
days’ notice

By order of the board

Peter David
Company Secretary
31 March 2014
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The Manor

Manor Royal

Crawley

West Sussex RH10 9UN
Compary No 4992207

Notes

| Shareholders are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any
of their nghts to attend and to speak and vote on their behalf at
the meetng A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy In
relation to the Annual General Meetng prowded that each proxy
1s appainted to exercse the rnghts attached to a different share or
shares held by that shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder
of the company A proxy form which may be used to make such
appointrnent and give proxy instructions accompanies this notice

2 Details of how to appoint a proxy are set out In the notes to
the enclosed proxy form In order to be vald an appointment of
proxy must be retumed with any power of attorney or any other
authonity under which 1t 1s executed, by one of the following
methods in hard copy form by post to Capita Asset Services PX5S |
34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4ZF, in hard copy form
to that address by couner or by hand duning usual business hours,
or,n the case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST electronic
proxy appointment service as described in paragraphs 8 and 9
below In gach case the form of proxy must be recerved by the
company no later than 2 00pm on 3 June 2014 To change your
proxy INstructions you may return a new proxy appaintmert
using the method set out above The deadline for receipt of proxy
appointments also apphes in relation to amended instructions
Persons listed on the VP Securities register should follow the
instructions on their Voting Request Form

3 The retun of a completed proxy form, other such instrument
or any CREST Proxy Instruction will not prevent a shareholder
attending the Annual General Meeting and voting in person If
helshe wishes to do so

4 Any person to whom this notice is sent who Is a person nominated

under section |46 of the Act to enjay nformation rghts (a
Nominated Person’} may under an agreement beiween tim/her

and the shareholder by whom he/she was nominated have a nght
to be apponted (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy
for the Annual General Meeting If a Nominated Person has no such
proxy appointrent right or does not wish 1o exercise it he/she may,
under any such agreement, have a nght to give instructions to the
shareholder as to the exercise of voting nghts

5 The statement of the nghts of shareholders in relation to the
appeintment of proxies in paragraph | above dees not apply to
Nominated Persons The rights descnbed in these paragraphs can
only be exercised by shareholders of the company

& To be entrtled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting
{and for the purpose of the determination by the company of
the votes they may cast), shareholders must be registered in the
Register of Members of the company at 530 pm on 3 June 2014
{or in the event of any adjournment. on the date which 1s two
working days before the time of the adjourned meeting) Changes
to the Register of Members after the relevant deadline shall be
disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend and
vote at the meeting

7 Asat 28 March 2014 (being the latest practicable date prior to
the publication of this Nouice) the company s 1ssued share caprtal
consisted af | 551,594,436 ondinary shares, carrying one vote each
Therefore, the total voung nghts in the company as at 28 March
2014 was 1,551,594 436

8 CREST members who wash to appoint a proxy or proxies through
the CREST electronic proxy appointment senace may do so by
using the procedures described in the CREST Manual (available via
www euroclearcom/CRESTY CREST Personal Members or ather
CREST sponscred members, and those CREST members who
have appointed a service provider(s), should refer to their CREST
sponsor or voting service provider(s) who will be able to take the
appropriate action on their behalf




9 In order for a proxy appointment or Instruction made using the

CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a
CREST Proxy Instruction ) must be properly authenticated in

accordance with Euroclear UK & Irefand Limrted's specifications
and must contan the information required for such instruction as
described in the CREST Manual The message regardless of whether
1t constitutes the appointment of a proxy or 1s an amendment to
the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, n order
to be vald, be transmitted so as to be receved by the issuers agent
(ID RAIC) by 200 pm on 3 June 2014 For this purpose the time
of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the tirme
stamp applied to the message by the CREST Application Host) from
which the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enguiry
to CREST in the manner prescnibed by CREST After this time any
change of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should
be communicated 1o the appointee through other means

0 CREST members and where applicable, therr CREST sponsors or
voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland
Limnred does not make avallable special procedures in CREST for
any particular message Normal system tmings and imitations will,
therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions
ft1s the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or,
if the CREST member s a CREST personal member or sponsored
member, or has appointed a voting service previder; to procure
that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take{s)) such
action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message Is transmitted
by means of the CREST system by any particular ttmme In this
connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST
sponsors or voting system providers are referred, in particular, to
those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limrtatiors
of the CREST system and timings

The company may treat as invahd a CREST Proxy Instruction in the
crcumstances set out In Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2001

12 Voting on alf Resolutions will be conducted by way of a poll rather
than a show of hands This 15 a more transparent method of voting
as shareholders’ votes are to be counted according to the number
of shares held As soon as practicable following the Annual Generat
Meeting the results of the voting at the meeting and the numbers of
proxy votes cast for and against and the number of votes actively
withheld i respect of each of the Resolutions will be announced via
a Regulatory Information Service and also placed on the company s
website wawaw gds com

I3 Any corporation which Is a shareholder can appoint cne or mare
corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its
powers as a shareholder provided that they do not do so in relation
to the same shares

14 Under section 527 of the Act, members meeting the threshold
requirements set out in that section have the right to require the
company to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter
relating to (1} the audit of the companys accounts {including the
audrtors report and the conduct of the awdrt) that are to be lad
before the Annual General Meeting or (i) any arcumnstance
connected with an auditor of the company ceasing to hold office
since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports
were laid in accordance with section 437 of the Act The company
may not require the shareholders requesting any such website
publication to pay its expenses in complying with sections 527
or 528 of the Act Where the company 1s required to place a
statement on a website under section 527 of the Act, t must
forward the statement to the company s auditor not later than
the time when 1t makes the statement available on the website
The business which may be deaft with at the Annual General
Meeting includes any statement that the company has been
required under section 527 of the Act to publish on a website

I5 Any shareholder attending the meeting has the nght to ask
questions The company must cause to be answered any such
guest:on relating to the business being dealt with at the meeting
but no such answer need be given If (a) to do so would interfere
unduly with the preparation for the meeting or Involve the
disclosure of confidential information, {b) the answer has already
been given on a websrte In the form of an answer to a question, or
() t 15 undesirable 1n the nterests of the company or the good
order of the meeting that the questron be answered

16 Uinder sections 338 and 33BA of the Act. members meeting the
threshold requirements in those sectrons have the right te require
the company () to give, to members of the company entitled to
recerve notice of the meeting, notice of a resofution which those
members intend to move (and which may property be moved) at
the meeting, and/or (1) to include in the business to be dealt with
at the meeting any matter {other than a proposed resolution)
which may property be included in the business at the meeting
A resolution may properly be moved or a matter properly included
in the business, unless (a) (in the case of a resolution only) it would
If passed, be ineffective {whether by reason of any inconsistency
with any enactment of the company's constitution or otherwise}
{b) 1t 1s defamatory of any person, or () 1t 1s frivolous or vexatious
A reqguest made pursuant to this right may be in hard copy or
etectronic form, must sdentify the resolution of which notice 1s to
be given or the matter to be included in the business must be
authenticated by the person(s) malang it and must be received
by the company not later than 23 Apnl 2014, being the date six clear
weeks before the meeting, and (in the case of a matter to be
included i the business only) must be accompanied by a statement
setting out the grounds for the request

|7 A copy of this notice and other information required by section
31 1A of the Act, can be found at www gds com

18 The rules of the new G4S Long Term Incentive Plan (see Resolution
4 above, paragraph 2 of the explanatory notes below and the
summary of the rules set out In the appendix to the explanatory
notes below) will be avallable for inspection dunng normal business
haurs {Saturdays, Sundays and public holdays excepted) at the
offices of Herbert Smith Freehills LLF, Exchange House, Primrose
Street, London EC2A 2EG and will be avallable at the place of the
meeting from |5 minutes before the start of the meeting untl
its conclusian

IS Any electronic address or web site address i1s provided in this
Notice of Meeting solely for the purpose stated expressly herein
and may not be used to communicate with the company other than
for such purpose Notwithstanding any telephone number,
fax number or email address that appears on this document or
elsewhere, neither the company nor Capita Asset Services will
accept voting instructions received via media other than post or
by CREST Proxy Instruction in accordance with the notes above
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Recommendation and explanatory notes relating to business to be conducted at the

Annual General Meeting on 5 June 2014

The board of G45 plc considers that the Resolutions set out in the
Notice of Annual General Meeting are tikely to promote the success

of the company and are in the best interests of the company and is
shareholders as a whole The directors unanimously recommend that
you vote in favour of the Resoluttons as they intend to do in respect of
their own beneficial holdings

Explanatory notes in relation to the business to be conducted at the
Annual General Meeting are set out below

I FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
{RESOLUTION 1)

The charman will present the financial statements of the company for
the year ended 3| December 2013 and the reports of the directors
and auditor thereon 1o the Annual General Meeting

2 REMUNERATION (RESOLUTIONS 2TO 4)

Changes made to the Companies Act 2006 (the’ Act') have resulted
in new requirements this year both for the content of the Dhrectors’
remuneration report {the Report ) and rts approval Accordingly the
Report which Is sat out on pages 64 to 79, contains

— A statement by Mark Elliott, chairman of the company s
Remuneration Committee

— The directors’ remuneration policy in relation to future payments to
the directors and former directors, and

— The annual implernentation report on remuneration which sets out
payments made in the financial year ending 31 December 2013

The poicy part of the Repart, which sets out the company's forward
looking policy on directors’ remuneration (including the approach to
exrt payments to directors) s subject to a binding shareholder vote by
ardinary resolution at least every three years The statement by the
Remuneration Committee chairman and the annual implementation
report on remuneration will as in the past, be put to an annual advisory
shareholder vote by ordinary resolution

Resolution 2 is therefore the ordinary resolution to approve the
directors' remuneration policy which is set out within the Report on
pages 66 to 72 As noted on page 64, the directors remuneration
policy will commence on 6 june 2014 Payments will continue to be
made to directors and former directors {in their capacity as directors)
in accordance with existing contractual arrangements unt) this date

Once the directors’ remuneration pelicy commences, all payments by
the company to the directors and any former directors must be made
In accordance with the policy (unless the payment 1s separately
approved by shareholder resolution)

If the directors remuneration policy 1s approved and remasns
unchanged, it wll be valid for up to three financial years without a new
shareholder approvat If the company wishes to change the policy. it will
need to put the revised policy to a vote again before it can implement
the new policy

If the directors remuneration policy 1s not approved the comparry will,
if and to the extent permitted by the Act, continue to make payments
to directors in accordance with existing contractual arrangements

and wall seek shareholder approval for a revised policy as soon as
practicable

Resclution 3 is the resolution to approve the directors remuneration
report, other than the part containing the directors’ remuneration
poticy This 1s an adwsory resolution and does not affect the future
remuneration paid to any directar

Resolution 4 relates to the Long Term Incentive Plan ( LTIP } which
the company proposes to introduce to replace the Performance Share
Plan which was adopted by the Board in July 2004 and will expire in
july 2014 In order to ensure executives continue to be iIncentvsed to
deliver the group’s strategy over the longer term the Remuneratron
Committee has concluded that a replacement long term incentive plan
should be introduced and, having consulted widely has set revised
performance measures including the tntroduction of average operating
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cash flow as a third measure The pnincipal terms of the LTIP are set
out In the appendix to these explanatory notes on pages 156 and 157
This ordinary resolution seeks shareholder approval of the LTIP

The full rules will be avadable for inspection dunng the hours and

at the locatrons set out in note 18 to the Notice of Meeting

3 FINAL DIVIDEND (RESOLUTION 35}

A firal dwdend of 5 54p (DKK (0 4954) per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 201 3 1s recommended for payment by the
directors M the recommended final dvidend 1s approved, it will be paid
on Fnday |3 june 2014 to all ordinary shareholders who were on the
register of members at the close of business on 2 May 2014

4 ELECTION AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(RESCLUTIONS 6 TO 16)

Resolution 6 deals with the election of Mr Raja as a director as he was
apported since the companyss last Annual General Meeting and. in
accordance with the company’s articles of association he will retre
and stand for election

Resolutions 7 to |16 deal with the re-election of the other directors in
accordance with the requirements of the UK Carporate Governance
Cade which prowides for all directors of FTSE 350 companies to be
subject to re-election by shareholders every year

Biographies of each of the directors seeking election or re-election
are set out on pages 48 and 49 The board has confirmed following a
performance review that all directors standing for re-election continue
to perform effectively and demonstrate commitment to their roles

5 REAPPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION (RESOLUTIONS 17 AND 18)

Resolution 17 relates to the reappointment of KPMG Audst Plc as the
companys auditor 1o hold office untl the next Annual General Meeting
of the company

Resolution |8 authonses the directors to set the auditor’s
remuneration

6 AUTHORITY TO ALLOT SHARES (RESOLUTION 19)

Resolution 19 seeks shareholder approval for the directors to be
authorised to allot shares

At the last Annual General Meeting of the company held on 6 June
2013 the directors were given authority to allot ordinary shares in
the capitat of the company up to a maximum nominal amount of
£235 110,000 This authonity expires at the end of this years Annual
General Meeting Of this amount 470,220,000 shares could only be
allotted pursuant to a nghts 1ssue

Resolutron F9 wall, if passed renew this authonty to allot on the same
terms as last years resolution (save that the number of shares In
question has increased) The board considers 1t appropniate that the
drrectors be granted the same authonty to allot shares in the capital
of the company up to a maximum nominal amount of £258 538 000
representing a Iittle under two thirds of the companys issued ordinary
share capral as at 28 March 2014 (the iatest pracucable date prior to
publication of the Nouce of Annuat General Meeting) Of this amount,
517,196 000 shares {representing a little under one third of the
company s issued ordinary share capital) can only be allotted pursuant
to a rights 1ssue The authority will last unti! the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting in 2015

The directars do not have any present itentuon of exerasing this
authority In accordance with best pracuice if the directors were to
exertise this authorty so as to allot shares representing more than
ane third of the current capital of the company they would all offer
themselives for re-election at the following Annual General Meeting
although rt 1s the directors current Intention 1o stand for election
annually In any event in accordance with the requirements of the UK
Corporate Governance Code



As at the date of the Notice of Annual General Meeting, the company
does not hold any ordinary shares in the caprtal of the company in
treasury However the 6 934 564 shares held within the (45 Employee
Benefit Trust and referred to on page 137 (note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements) are accounted for as treasury shares.

7 DISAPPLICATION OF STATUTORY PRE-EMPTION
RIGHTS (RESOLUTION 20)

Resolution 20 seeks shareholder approval to give the directors
authonty to allot shares n the caprtal of the company pursuant to the
authonty granted under Resolution [9 for cash without complinng with
the pre-emption rights in the Companies Act 2006 (the Act') in
certain arcumstances This authority will permit the directors to allot.

(a) shares up to a nominal amount of £258 598 000 (representing a
little under two thirds of the company s issued share capital) on an
offer to existing shareholders However unless the shares are
allotted pursuant to a rights 1ssue (rather than an open offer}, the
directors may only allot shares up to a nominal amount of
£129 299 000 {representing a hitle under one third of the
companys rissued share caprial) (in each case subject 1o any
adjustments such as for fractional entitlements and overseas
shareholders, as the directors see fit) and

(b) shares up to a maximum nominal value of £19 394 000
representing approximately 5% of the issued ordinary share caprtal
of the company as at 28 March 2014 (the latest pracuicable date
prior to publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting)
otherwise than in connection with an offer to existing shareholders

As with Resolution 19, the terms of Resolution 20 are the same as
last year's resolution (save that the number of shares in question
has increased)

The directors confirm their intention to follow the prowisions of the
Pre-emption Group s Statement of Prnnciples regarding cumulative
usage of authorities within a rolling three-year peried The Principles
provide that companies should not i1ssue shares for cash representing
more than 7 5% of the relevant company's 1ssued share capital in any
roliing three-year period other than to existing shareholders without
prior consuftation with shareholders

The authority contained in Resolution 20 will expire upon the expiry of
the general authority conferred by Resolution |9 (1e at the end of the
next Annual General Meeting of the company}

8 PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES (RESOLUTION 21)

Resolution 2§ seeks to renew the company’s authority to buy back

its own ordinary shares in the market as permitted by the Act. The
authority Iimrts the number of shares that could be purchased to a
maximum of 155 159000 (representing a little less than 10% of the
company's iIssued ordinary share capital as at 28 March 2014 (the latest
practicable date prior to pubhcation of the Notice of Annual General
Meeting)) and sets minimum and maximum prices This authority wili
expire at the condlusion of the company s Annual General Meeting

in 2045

The directors have no present intention of exercising the authority to
purchase the company’s ordinary shares but will keep the matter under
review taking nto account the financial resources of the company the
companys share price and future funding opportundies The authority
will be exercised only If the directors believe that to do so would result
In an increase i earmings per share and would be in the interests of
shareholders generally No shares were purchased pursuant to the
equialent authority granted 1o the directors at the company’s last
Annual General Meeting

As at 28 March 2014 (the latest pracucable date prior to the
publcation of the Notice of Annual General Meeting) there were
no opuions over the ordinary shares in the capital of the company

9 POLITICAL DONATIONS (RESCLUTION 22}

Resalution 22 deals with the rules on political donations contained in
the Act. Under these rules, political donations to any poliical parties
independent election candidates or poliical organisations or the
incurmng of political expendriure are prohibrted unless authornsed

by shareholders in advance What constitutes a political donation,

a polical party, a political organisation or political expenditure 1s not
easy to decde as the legslation 1s capable of wide interpretation
Sponsorship, subscrptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for
employees {ulfiling public duties, and support for bodies representing
the business community i policy review or reform, may fall within this
Therefore notwithstanding that the company has not made polrical
donatons requinng shareholder authonty in the past and has no
intention ether now or in the future of making any such polmical
donation or incurring any such political expenditure In respect of any
peliitical party, political organisation or independent election candidate,
the board has decided to put forward Resclution 20 which 1s the same
as the resolution on this subject which was passed at the companys
Annual General Meeting held on & June 2013 This will allow the
company to support the community and put forward its views to wider
business and government interests without running the nsk of being In
breach of the law This authonty will cover the penod from the date
Resolution 20 1s passed untl the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the company As permitted under the Act, Resolution 22
also covers paolitical donations made or political expenditure incurred,
by any subsidiares of the company

10 PERIOD CF NOTICE FOR CALLING GENERAL
MEETINGS (RESOLUTION 23)

Resofution 23 1s a resolution to allow the company to hold general
meetings (other than Annual General Meetings) on 14 days notice

The minimum notice period permitted by the Act for generat meetings
(other than Annual General Meetings) 1s 21 days However the Act
allows companies to reduce this period back to 14 days (other than for
Annual General Meetings) provided that two condrtions are met The
first condition s that the company offers a facility for shareholders to
vote by electronic means This condition s met if the company offers a
facity accessible to atl shareholders, to appoint a proxy by means of a
website The second condition 1s that there 1s an annual resolution of
shareholders approving the reduction of the minimum notice period
from 21 days to 14 days

The board s therefore proposing Resolution 23 as a special resolution
to approve |4 days as the minmum period of notice for all general
meetings of the company other than Annual General Meetings The
approval will be effective untl the company s next Annual General
Meeting, when it 1s intended that the approval be renewed

The board will consider on a case by case basts whether the use of
the flexibility offered by the shorter notice penod 1s mertted taking
into account the circumstances including whether the business of the
meeting 15 time sensitive and will balance that against the need for
shareholders to consider their voting decisions, particularly where the
proposals concerned are complex and may require more time for
proper evaluatuon
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Recommendation and explanatory notes relating to business to be conducted at the

Annual General Meeting on 5 June 2014 continued

APPENDIX

SUMMARY OF THE G4S LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
{THE"“LTIP™)

Administratton

Awards will be granted, and the LTIP will be administered, by the beard,
or a duly authonsed committee of the board Awards for executive
directors will be determined and administered by the Remuneration
Committee (and references 1o the board shall mean the Remuneration
Committee in respect of such awards)

Eligibility
Awards may be granted to any of the employees of the company or its

subsiciaries including the executive directors

Form of awards
Under the LTIP awards will take the form of erther

— a condiional nght to receve shares which will be automatically
transferred to the award holder following vesting (a“Conditionat
Award"), or

— an interest in shares which will be held on behalf of the award holder
untl) vesting (a "Forfeitable Share Award ) The award holder will not
be entrtled to call for or otherwise deal in the shares subject to a
Forfertable Share Award prior to vesting

Timing of grant of awards

Awards under the LTIP may, save in exceptional aircumstances only be
granted within a period of 42 days (1) commencing on the date of the
adoption of the LTIP or (i) following the date of announcement by
the company of its interim or final results (or as soon as practicable
thereafter if the company is restricted from being able to grant awards
during such period)

Awards under the LTIP may not be granted more than ten years
after the rules are approved by shareholders of the company in
general meeting

Non-Transferable and Non-Pensionable
Awards are non-transferable and do not form part of pensionable
earnings

Dividend equivalents

Award heolders may recewe an additional payment (or shares of
equivalent value) equal to the dvidends during the vesting penod
which would have been paid on the nurnber of shares that vest Award
holders shall not be, unless the board determines otherwise entitled to
recenve any dvidends paid in respect of shares subject to a Forfeitable
Share Award

Indivtdual hmit

The maxmum market value of the shares over which an employee
may be granted an award under the LTIP in any calendar year shall not
exceed an amount equal to 250 per cent. of the employee s gross
annual basic salary at that tme

Plan Lirmits
Shares may be newly issued transferred frorn treasuery or market
purchased for the purposes of the LTIP

The number of shares subject to outstanding options or awards
granted within the previous |0 years and the number of shares issued
for the purpose of options and awards granted within the previous

}0 years shall not exceed |0 per cent. of the company's ordinary share
caprtal in 15sue mmediately prior to the proposed date of grant under
all employees share schemes adopted by the company
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The number of shares subject to outstanding options or awards
granted within the previous 10 years and the number of shares 1ssued
for the purpose of options and awards granted within the previous 10
years shall not exceed five per cent. of the compan,'s ordinary share
caprital in 1ssue immediately prior to the proposed date of grant under
all discretionary employees share schemes adopted by the company

These hmits de not include nghts to shares which have been released,
lapsed or otherwise become incapable of exerase or vesting Any
option or award which the board has determined will only be satisfied
with existing shares (or which 1s granted on such terms) will not be
subject to or counted in calculating the above limits Treasury shares walt
count as new issue shares for the purpose of these imts for so long as
wnstrtutional investor bodies consider that they should be so counted

Performance condiuons

The board will determine the performance conditions which will apply
to awards and which will be measured ordinanly over a peried of

not less than three years {(or such shorter perod as the board may
determine to be appropriate on the recrutment of an employee)
There will be no provision for re-testing The board may alter the
performance conditions If events happen after the date of grant that
cause the board to consider that any element of the performance
candition 1s no longer a fair measure of the company s performance
provided that the rewised target 1s not considered to be matenally less
challenging n the arcumstances Performance conditions proposed for
executive directors are outined in the company’s remuneration policy
and will be set out In the annual report on directors remuneration

Vesting

Awards will normally only vest three years after the date of grant (or
such earlier date as the board may determine to be appropriate on
the recruitment of an employee) while the award holder remains in
office or employment with the group and to the extent that relevant
performance conditions have been met.

For those awards that are to be granted in June 2014 the board has
determined that any such awards will be treated as If they were granted
in March 2014 (both in respect of the vesting period and the share
pnce that I1s 1o be used to calculate the number of shares over which

an award can be granted) in order to bring these awards in ine

with the company's usual grant cycle This 1s because the board

has historically granted allocations under the company's existing
Performance Share Plan in March each year but as noted in paragraph

2 of the Explanatory Notes on page |54, the Performance Share Plan
will shartly be expinng and therefore new awards will be granted under
the LTIP As the LTIP will not be adopted by the board until after it has
been approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, awards
under the LTIP cannot be granted until June 2014 at the earhest

If the board so determunes an award may be satsfied in whole or
in part by a cash payment as an alternative 1o the issue or transfer
of shares

Leavers

An award will normally lapse where the award holder ceases to hold
office or employment with the group Awards will not lapse on death
or where the cessation of office or employment with the group 15 due
to myury disabifity ill-health redundancy retirement, the transfer of the
award holders employment in connection with a business sale, the
company with which the award holder holds office or emplayment
ceasing to be a member of the group or any other reason If the board
so determines (a ‘Good Leaver )

Where an award holder ceases employment for a Good Leaver reason
the award will continue and vest on Its normal vesting date However
the board may determine that the award will instead vest on ar at any
time following the date of cessation On the death of a participant, an
award shall mmedately vest




Corporate actions

In the event of a change of control, awards will normally vest. In the
event of the passing of a resolution for the voluntary winding-up of the
company awards will vest. In the event of a demerger of a substantial
part of the groups business, a special dvdend or a similar event
affecting the value of the shares to a material extent, awards may be
adjusted as set out below or the board may allow awards to vest.
Where the corporate action forms part of an internal re organisation,
unless the board determines otherwise, an award shall not vest, and
instead will be rolled-over into an award over shares in the new
controling company of equivalent value

Extent of vesting

Awards will only vest (including for ieavers or on a corporate action) to
the extent that the relevant performance condwions have been satisfied
Where an award vests prior to the normal vesting date, the board

will assess performance using such information as it determines to

be appropriate

Where, prior to the normal vesting date, an award holder ceases
empiloyment for a Good Leaver reason or there is a corporate action
the number of shares in respect of which an award vests will unless
the board determines otherwise be pro-rated on the basis of the
number of whole months which have elapsed from grant to the date
of cessation or the corporate action (as apphicable)

Varaton of capital

The number of shares subject to awards may be adjusted in such
manner as the board may determine, following any varnation of share
capital of the company, a demerger of a substantal part of the groups
business a special dvidend or a smifar event affeciing the value of
shares to a material extent.

Alterations

The board may amend the LTIP rules as it considers appropnate
subject to any relevant legistation, provided that no modification may
be made which confers any additional advantage on parycipants
relating to eligibility, plan limnts the basis of iIndnidual entitlement. the
price payable for the acquisition of shares and the provisions for the
adjustment of awards without prior shareholder approval, except

in relation to performance conditions or minor amendments to
benefit the administratton of the LTIP, to take account of a change in
legislation or to obtain or maintain favourable tax exchange control
or regulatory treatment for participants or the company (or other
Eroup comparves)

Clawback

The board may apply clawback where at any time before or within two
years of vesung 1t determines that the financial results of the company
were misstated, an error was made in any calculation or In assessing
performance which resulted in the number of shares In respect of
which the award was granted or vested being more than it should have
been The board may also apply a claw-back where the award holder
has been dismissed for misconduct

A clawback may be satisfied in a number of ways including by reducing
the amount of any future bonus, by reducing the vesting of any
subsisting or future options or awards (other than tax-advantaged
options or awards), by reducing the number of shares under any vested
but unexercised option and/or by either one or both of a requirement
to make a cash payment or transfer of shares to the company

The clawback provisions will not apply following the occurrence of a
takeover or similar corporate event

Owverseas plans

The LTIP contains provisions which permit the board to establish
further plans for the benefit of overseas employees based on the LTIP
but medified as necessary or destrable to take account of overseas tax,
exchange control or securtttes laws Any new shares 1ssued under

such plans would count towards the indvidual and overall plan hmits
outhned above
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Group financal record

G4S ple was formed in 2004 from the merger of the secunty business of Group 4 Falck and Securicor
Since that time, the group has delivered robust shareholder returns and tts five year financial performance 1s

shown by the following financial record

UNDERLYING TURNOVER AT CONSTANT
EXCHANGE RATES

GAS revenues have grown consistently during the last five years

REVENUE'

£./.4bn

* At 2013 exchange rates and adjusted for discontinued operauons
Re-presented for specific items including profic or loss on disposals
consistent with the 2013 presentation

UNDERLYING PBITA AT CONSTANT
EXCHANGE RATES

Operating profit, defined as profit before interest, tax and amortisation
and excluding specific tems declined 6% to £442m (2012 £470m)

Adjusting for the prior year impact of the review of assets and laburies
n 2013 underiying operaung profit grew 2 8% to £442m (2012
£430m) with strong growth in profits from emerging markets of 25%

PBITA

£442m

* At 2013 exchange rates and adjusted for disconunued operations
Re-presented for specific wems inchuding profic or loss on disposals
consistent with the 2013 presentation

DIVIDEND

In the five years since 2009 G4S has delivered average
dradend per share growth of 57%

Pence per share

896p
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CASH GENERATED BY CONTINUING OPERATIONS

£460m

IMAGE REMOVED

CONTINUED GROWTH IN REVENUE
FROM EMERGING MARKETS

The group has a strong and growing emerging markets business
and they form a growing part of revenues and profits

+ 676

revenue growth from emerging markets in 2013

IMAGE REMOVED

SHARE PRICE

From the merger n July 2004 to the end of 2013, the GA4S share
price has increased | 13% outperforming the FTSE 100 by 58%
(see page 77 for its comparative TSR performance against that
of the FTSE 100)

_|._ O share price increase
o since 2004
O G4S share price CAGR’
+ O from 2004 to 2013
1

* CAGR 1s compound average
growth rate

IMAGE REMOVED

EMPLOYEE NUMBERS

613,000

IMAGE REMOVED
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General information

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Results announcements
Half-year resuits — August
Final results — March

Dwidend payment
Interm pad — 18 October 2013
Final payable — 13 fune 2014

Annual General Meetng
5 june 2014

CORPORATE ADDRESSES

Registered office

‘The Manor

Manor Royal

Crawley

West Sussex RH 10 $UN
Telephone +44 (0} 1293 554 400

Registered number
4992207

Auditor

KPMG Audnt Plc
15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL

Stockbrokers

}PMorgan Cazenove

125 London Wall

London EC2Y 5A)

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Citigroup Cenitre

Canada Square, Canary VWharf
London E14 5B

Financial advisors

] P Morgan Cazenove
125 London Wall
London EC2Y 5A)
Barclays Capral

5 The North Colennade
Canary Wharf

London EI4 4BB

G4S website
www gds com
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

Registrars and transfer office
All enquiries relating to the administration of
shareholdings should be directed to

Capita Asset Services

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road

Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TV

Telephane within the UK 0871 664 0300
(calls cost 10p per minute plus network
extras) from outside the UK

+44 20 8639 3399

Faxc +44 (0) 1484 600911

Email shareholderenquires@capita co uk
Secure share portal

www capitashareportal com

Please note that beneficial owners of shares
who have been nominated by the registered
holder of those shares to receve inforration
rights under section 146 of the Companies
Act 2006 are required to direct all
communications to the registered holder of
their shares rather than to the company or
the company's registrar

Capita share portal

The share portal is an online facilty provided
by the company’s registrars, Caprta Asset
Services, for shareholders to manage their
holding securely online reducing the need for
paperwork. By registering for a free portal
account shareholders are able to access a
range of online faciities 24 hours a day
in¢luding those described below

View account holding detals

Allows shareholders to access therr personal
account shareholding balance, share
transaction history indicative share valuation
and dividend payment history It also enables
shareholders to buy and sell shares

Change of address bank mandates
downioadable forms

Allows shareholders to update ther postal
address and complete change or delete bank
mandate instructions for dividends A wide
range of shareholder information, ncluding
downloadable forms such as steck transfer
forms is also avallable

Dedicated helpline

Caprta Asset Services alsc has a helpline to
help users with all aspects of the service
Telephone (from the UK) 0871 664 0391
Calls cost [Op per minute plus network extras,
lines are open 8 30am ta 5 30pm Monday to
Friday)

Telephone

(outside the UK) +44 (0) 20 8639 3367

Ermatl shareportal @capita.co uk




www.g4s.com

G45 plc

The Manor
Manor Royal
Crawley

West Sussex
RHI0 9UN
Unrted Kingdom

Telephone +44 (0) 20 8770 7000
Emall investor@g4s com

Regrstered i England No 4592207
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